HOUSE OF COMMONS
DEBATES

FOURTH SESSION—FIRST PARLIAMENT
34 VICTORIA

VOLUME 1V

COMPRISING THE PERIOD
FROM THE FIFTEENTH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 1871
TO THE FOURTEENTH DAY OF APRIL, 1871

SPEAKER: THE HON. JAMES COCKBURN



© Library of Parliament, 2007

ISSN 0229-1398
Cat. No. X 1-014E



Foreword

In 1871 Joseph-Godéric Blanchet, an elected member of Canada’s first Parliament and
future Speaker of the House of Commons, rose in the House and moved that an official
record of its deliberations be established. “Some very important debates have taken place
since Confederation, and yet it would be a matter of the greatest difficulty to ascertain the
views expressed by the leading minds of the country.” His motion went down to defeat,
and the House would not have an official record of its debates until 1875.

The eight years from 1867 to 1874 were an important period in the history of the young
country, and there was much to debate. Manitoba, British Columbia and Prince Edward
Island were entering Confederation; an evolving central government was grappling with
the emerging issue of provincial rights; a railway to the west coast — as much a feat of
politics as of engineering — was being built; efforts to promote immigration were raising
uncomfortable questions; proposed tariff measures were putting strains on Canada’s
relationship with our neighbour south of the border; and, with the imminent departure of
the last British garrison troops, there was a sense that Canada would now be on her own
in the world.

In the 1960s, with the support of then House of Commons Speaker Roland Michener, the
Library of Parliament began addressing this gap in Canada’s historical parliamentary
record. A detailed record of the earliest deliberations of the House was commissioned,
and the project to prepare a balanced version of those debates, based primarily on the
extensive newspaper reporting of the day, was begun.

Parliamentarians, academics and lovers of Canadian history will be encouraged to know
that our current Parliamentary Librarian, William Young, continues to oversee this
important project and that the Library is now publishing the reconstituted 1871 debates of
the House of Commons in both official languages.

Many thanks are due the historians, librarians, translators, transcribers and editors who
have very carefully consolidated Parliament’s first deliberations and presented them here.
I would also like to acknowledge the parliamentary staff involved in this project, whose
characteristic dedication and persistence were instrumental in its success.

Hon. Peter Milliken, M.P.
Speaker of the House of Commons
Ottawa, 2009






Preface

This is the fourth volume in the series of reconstituted debates of the House of Commons. Its
publication continues the project initiated under my predecessor, former Parliamentary Librarian
Erik Spicer, to reconstruct the parliamentary record from 1867 through 1874, before the official
reporting of debates was established. The first volume was issued in 1967 to mark Canada’s
centennial year.

Prior to 1875 the only substantive record of speeches delivered in the House was to be found in
the major newspapers of the day. At the time, the fledgling Library of Parliament clipped
various press articles recounting debates in Parliament and pasted them into scrapbooks. These
have become known as the “Scrapbook Debates,” and have provided most of the source material
used in producing this volume.

In reconstructing and publishing the early debates of Parliament, the Library has been fortunate
to collaborate with distinguished scholars and academics. During the 1960s and 1970s, Dr. Peter
Waite of Dalhousie University, a well-known historian of the Confederation period, edited three
volumes of early debates. Dr. Norman Ward of the University of Saskatchewan — whose
reputation as a teacher and lecturer approaches the legendary — originally undertook the editing
of this fourth volume. Sadly, he passed away before he could finish, and Pamela Hardisty,
former Assistant Parliamentary Librarian, carried on the project. Dr. Duncan McDowall of
Carleton University has contributed the lively and comprehensive historical introduction.

As an historian, | believe there is significant and enduring value in recovering and preserving
such important source material. With the publication of these reconstituted debates, the thoughts
and deliberations of Canada’s first parliamentarians will reach a larger audience, adding to our
collective understanding of this country and its people. As Parliamentary Librarian, | feel proud
to have played a role in bringing this publication to fruition, and fortunate to have done so during
the tenure of House Speaker Peter Milliken, whose keen interest in all things parliamentary is
exemplified in his support for this initiative.

| extend my sincere thanks to the many people who contributed to this project through its various
stages. Naming them all would require a separate volume, but I must single out the following
few for their extraordinary contributions: Michael Graham and Cynthia Hubbertz who, with the
assistance of Teresa Ray, kept this project on course; and researchers Louis Brillant, Héléne
De Celles and the late Gary King, whose work was invaluable. Finally, I would like to
acknowledge the fine team at the House of Commons Parliamentary Publications Service for
their ongoing practical support and expert assistance, crucial to the successful completion of this
undertaking.

William R. Young
Parliamentary Librarian
Ottawa, 2009






Introduction

Late in the afternoon of 3 April 1871, Joseph-Godéric Blanchet, the member for Lévis and a
stalwart of the Quebec wing of John A. Macdonald’s ruling Liberal-Conservative Party, rose in
the House of Commons to make a motion." A doctor by vocation and one-time mayor of Notre-
Dame-de-la-Victoire, Blanchet had first won election to the Assembly of the United Canadas in
1861. In 1867, he capitalized on the provision for dual representation in Canada’s First
Parliament, winning a seat in both Ottawa and the Quebec Assembly. Blanchet became the
Speaker of the Assembly. He would in time — with his appointment as Speaker of the federal
House in 1879 — become the only Canadian politician ever to act as Speaker in both the federal
and provincial spheres. While in the Quebec Assembly, Blanchet chaired a committee that
honed the Standing Orders of the House. This expertise in parliamentary procedure predisposed
Blanchet to make his motion on that spring afternoon in 1871.

The Commons, Blanchet pointed out, was without an official record of its debates. Newspapers,
he admitted, published renditions of the Commons debates, but these were inadequate. “Some
very important debates had taken place since Confederation,” Blanchet reminded his colleagues,
“and yet it would be a matter of the greatest difficulty to ascertain the views expressed by the
leading minds of the country in those debates.” With categorical aplomb, Blanchet concluded:
“This is the only Parliament in existence that had no official report, and the great questions that
would have to be dealt with in the future necessitated the taking of immediate action.” That
action should be the hiring of “stenographers for the publication of debates, and in both
languages.””

A testy debate ensued. Too costly, some asserted. Others claimed that the prospect of seeing
their words in print would induce members into “endless” prolixity. But others backed Blanchet.
This was “an age of progress,” one Nova Scotia member attested, and “the people should know
from authentic sources what was going on in their legislative halls. Some of the best speeches of
the best men in Nova Scotia had never been reported.” One French-speaking member welcomed
the proposal because “under private enterprise their speeches were seldom reported.” Support
for Blanchet’s motion ranged across party lines. Liberal luminaries like Alexander Mackenzie
and Edward Blake on the opposition benches joined Dr. Charles Tupper of the government to
urge the taking of an official record of the debates. But, as Blake noted with prescience, the
motion was a “trial of strength between the speaking and the silent members, and as the latter
were in the majority, they might vote down the motion.” The motion was amended to stipulate
that the cost of an official record be “paid out of personal indemnity of Members of Parliament.”
Thus recast, Blanchet’s motion predictably went down to defeat — Yeas 51, Nays 91 — later that
evening. The “age of progress” in parliamentary reporting had once again passed Canada by.’
The Canadian Parliament would not have an official record of its deliberations until 1875.

1. The political affiliation and parliamentary career of all members of the House of Commons mentioned in this
Introduction are available from the Library of Parliament’s online reference site for “Senators and Members” on
the parliamentary website. Full biographical treatment of prominent politicians active in the 1871 sitting of
Canada’s First Parliament is available from the Dictionary of Canadian Biography Online at
www.biographi.ca/index2.html.

2. House of Commons Debates, 3 April 1871. For Blanchet biography, see: Frances Caissie, “Blanchet, Joseph-
Goderic,” Dictionary of Canadian Biography. Vol. XI, 1881 to 1890, pp. 85-86.

3. House of Commons Debates, 3 April 1871.



The English and American Precedents

Blanchet’s motion nonetheless caught the mood of the emerging democracies of western Europe
and North America. The erosion of royal privilege and broadening democratic inclusion since
the late eighteenth century had emboldened the English Commons and the American Congress to
assert their rights. Each increasingly saw itself as a prism of national political sentiment and, as
such, entitled to project its deliberations to the voters who sent their members to Westminster or
Washington. Published, officially sanctioned records of their debates offered such a medium.

The English House of Commons had long guarded the sanctity of its deliberations. Wary of the
King’s pretensions, the Commons traditionally asserted its right to debate behind closed doors
and “to exclude strangers” from its midst. Any attempt to convey the nature of its debates to
wider audiences was seen as an indignity on the House’s privileges.” But in the late eighteenth
century that insistence began to weaken. Empowered by its success in asserting its privileges
against King George III, the Commons saw purpose in spreading knowledge of its debates. If
Britain was to have a more responsible government, parliamentary debate must be connected to
public attitudes. In the first decade of the nineteenth century, newspaper reporters were allowed
to sit in the Strangers Gallery, where they hastily scribbled down accounts of the debates below.
These then surfaced in the press. The historian T.B. Macaulay would soon dub these early
political journalists the “fourth estate,” implying their active pens served the broader interests of
democracy.

Reporting from the Strangers Gallery had distinct limits. Reporters had to vie with other
spectators for seating. At moments of high political drama, the press was sometimes squeezed
from the gallery by the crush; William Pitt’s famous 1803 speech on war with France had to be
pieced together from hearsay collected in the corridor. Sessions lasting as long as twelve hours
strained the reporters’ endurance; food was sent up from Bellamy’s parliamentary eating house
to sustain the Fourth Estate.” In 1803, an enterprising pamphleteer William Cobbett (1762—
1835) attempted to provide a more reliable account of the debates when he started editing
Cobbett’s Weekly Political Register. For a shilling, readers were given a weekly compendium of
what had taken place in the Commons. At the same time, Cobbett began publishing a 36-volume
account of reconstructed parliamentary debates since the Conquest.

Always more of a polemicist than a publisher, Cobbett allowed publisher Thomas Curson
Hansard (1776-1833) to assume the publication of his Weekly in 1809. Hansard had ink in his
veins; his father Luke had served as printer to the Commons. Sensing the potential of having a
reliable and regular rendering of their debates, the Commons anointed Hansard as its official
reporter. The name stuck. To this day, the published debates on the English Commons are
known as Hansard. Later in the nineteenth century, Her Majesty’s Stationery Office took over
Hansard’s role and made the publication a fully public affair.

The young American democracy took another seventy years to emulate the English precedent.
As early as 1789, shorthand renditions of Congressional debates began circulating. Newspapers

4. See: J.P. Joseph Maingot, Q.C. Parliamentary Privilege in Canada. Montreal and Kingston: McGill-Queen’s
University Press, 2nd edition, 1997, pp. 40—41.

5. See: J.C. Trewin and E.M. King. Printer to the House: the Story of Hansard. London: Methuen, 1952, p. 80.



haphazardly reported the affairs of Capitol Hill.® By the 1830s, private publishers were
producing volumes of reconstructed Congressional debates. The most consistent of these was
the Congressional Globe published by Preston Blair and John Cook Rives. A Virginia-born
admirer of Andrew Jackson, Blair championed public access to the political affairs of
Washington. Initially the Globe was criticized for its partisanship, but by the late 1840s both the
Senate and House of Representatives had accorded it official reporter status. Stenographers were
trained and put to work. For the first time, the debates appeared in first person form rather than
the old, detached third person style. In 1855, Congress agreed to finance the Globe’s work.

The years immediately after the Civil War were marked by a new assertiveness by Congress.
Described by one historian as “the zenith of congressional power and initiative,” these years saw
Congress push back the power of the president.” One aspect of this ascendancy was the 1873
decision to bring the Globe under the purview of the Government Printing Office. The
Congressional Record was born. Congress would have an assured line of communication to the
voters who elected it.

Hansard comes to British North America (1851-1875 and after)

Dr. Blanchet’s contention in 1871 that the young Confederation’s House of Commons was “the
only Parliament in existence that had no official report” was not precisely accurate. Nonetheless,
the parliamentary history of British North America tended to bear Blanchet out. The
achievement of responsible government in the 1830s and 1840s had given British colonial
politicians reason to broadcast their deliberations to the voters to whom they were now beholden.
As elsewhere, newspapers often offered spotty and sometimes partisan coverage of debates in the
colonial assemblies. But some legislatures soon felt the urge for a truer record. Nova Scotia led
the way. After a decade of newspaper renditions, the Assembly voted in 1851 to finance an
official rendering of its debates, the first colonial Hansard. Elsewhere in the Empire, the
Australian colony of Queensland instituted an official Hansard in 1864, followed by New
Zealand in 1867.

Not all colonies followed suit. Newfoundland, Vancouver Island and mainland British Columbia
made no attempt to record their legislative debates. While Prince Edward Island did, New
Brunswick only fitfully published its debates. The central Canadian colonies of Upper and
Lower Canada, forced by an act of the British Parliament in 1841 into a legislative union,
published only “journals” of their sessions, a factual record of reports and statistics submitted to
the Legislative Assembly of the united province. Newspapers provided episodic coverage of the
actual debates of the Assembly. In the wake of the Charlottetown Conference and the decision
to engage in the Confederation project, the Assembly of the two Canadas broke with tradition
and decided in the spring of 1865 to record its protracted debate on the terms of the
Confederation pact. Some members objected to the putative high cost, but at an actual cost of
$14,490.65 the debates were published, in both English and French — all 1032 pages of a debate
that, while it contained kernels of political wisdom, was largely a chronicle of long-windedness.
Historian Peter B. Waite has suggested that the desire felt by every member to get on the record

6. Interestingly, one of these freelance reporters was English pamphleteer William Cobbett, who spent eight years
in the new American republic in the 1790s where he wrote under the pen name “Peter Porcupine” before
eventually returning to England to take up the same role outside Westminster.

7. See: James L. Sundquist. The Decline and Resurgence of Congress. Washington: The Brookings Institution,
1981, p. 26.



on the momentous matter of a greater union “encouraged quantities of plain drivel . . . dressed up
for public consumption.”®

Confederation in 1867 brought no decisive break with this patchwork tradition. The new House
of Commons made no provision for recording its debates. By default, the task was left to
journalists sitting in the Strangers Gallery. The reporters brought partisan dedication to their
assignment. Mid-nineteenth-century newspapers reflected the rough sectarian world in which
they lived; publishers courted readership by sporting their religious, ideological and ethnic
sentiments. Circulation and advertising were not the only foundation of a paper’s commercial
success; the spoils of power — government printing contracts, railway passes, inside information
— came to publishers whose party had found the voters’ favour. As historian Paul Rutherford has
noted of the nineteenth-century Canadian press:

Journalism and party seemed inextricably linked — by tradition and necessity. . . .
The typical publisher or editor remained addicted to playing politics, for him a
grand sport that added spice to life and gave significance to his calling. . . . The
result of the game often gave him, or at least his newspaper, sustenance in the
form of readers, subsidies, and patronage.’

The Toronto Globe, founded in 1844 by Scottish immigrant George Brown, perhaps best typified
this partisanship; the paper habitually sounded clarion calls for the defence of the Grit cause and
Toronto’s commercial ambitions. Brown’s bugbear of “French domination” was a constant
editorial theme. But political coloration was not a nineteenth-century newspaper’s only tint.
Editors assiduously curried the favour of particular business and religious agendas. The
Montreal Gazette, partly owned in the 1870s by steamship mogul and railway promoter Hugh
Allan, could be relied upon to pump any political platform that aligned with a railway platform. "
Across the border in Ontario, Mackenzie Bowell used his proprietorship of the Belleville
Intelligencer to trumpet the interests of the ultra-Protestant Orange Order.'" As the nineteenth
century drew to a close, Canadian newspapers slowly shifted their focus from the profits of
partisanship to the more lucrative rewards of advertising, mass circulation and political
independence. As late as 1891, however, 36 of Canada’s 101 daily newspapers still openly
styled themselves as Conservative and another 35 flew Liberal colours. Only 30 declared their
independence. Partisanship in Canadian journalism had a long sunset.'

To this motley and often self-interested crew of journalists fell the task of conveying the
deliberations of Parliament in the years 1867 to 1874. As they had in England, reporters
appeared in the Commons gallery, where they transcribed what they heard below them. These
accounts were taken in the third person and were then hastily despatched, usually by telegram, to
Toronto or Montreal newspapers. The Globe and the Mail were the most persistent Toronto
observers, while the Gazette eavesdropped on the debates for its Montreal readers. The Globe,

8. P.B. Waite, ed. The Confederation Debates in the Province of Canada, 1865. Toronto: McClelland and Stewart,
1963, p. ix.

9. Paul Rutherford. A Victorian Authority: The Daily Press in Late Nineteenth-Century Canada. Toronto:
University of Toronto Press, 1982, p. 212.

10. See: Minko Sotiron. From Politics to Profit: The Commercialization of Canadian Daily Newspapers, 1890-1920.
Montreal and Kingston: McGill-Queen’s University Press, 1997.

11. See: P.B. Waite. “Bowell, Sir Mackenzie.” Dictionary of Canadian Biography. Vol. X1V, 1911-1920, pp. 120-
124.

12. See: R. Louis Gentilcore et al. Historical Atlas of Canada, Vol. Il: The Land Transformed, 1800-1891, Plate
28: “Politics and Parties, 1867—-1896” and Plate 51: “The Printed Word,” Toronto: University of Toronto Press,
1993; and Brian P.N. Beaven, “Partnership, Patronage and the Press in Ontario, 1880-1914: Myths and
Realities.” Canadian Historical Review, Vol. 64, No. 3 (September 1983), pp. 317-351.



for instance, often devoted as many as 14 densely printed columns a day to the previous day’s
proceedings. In Ottawa, the recently established Times reported the proceedings of the
Commons and the Senate. Maritime newspapers and the francophone press, however, seldom
posted reporters to Ottawa to cover Parliament. Proximity made the job of Ottawa newspapers
like the Times easier, particularly when the Commons sat late into the evening and morning
printing deadlines loomed."

Each newspaper tended to apply its political bias to its coverage of the Commons debates.
Toronto’s pro-Liberal Globe tended to foreground Grit speakers and shortchange Tories.
Conservative papers like the Mail and the Times gave prominence to the government of John A.
Macdonald. Staff at the fledgling Library of Parliament collected these varied renditions and
pasted them into scrapbooks in an attempt to reconstitute the debates in their entirety. In 1870,
the enterprising editor of the Ottawa Times, James Cotton, produced a synthesized compendium
of that year’s debates. He repeated the process for the next two parliamentary sessions, but was
never successful in securing official sanction or funding for his endeavour, although the House
did vote in 1872 to buy six hundred copies of the previous two years’ editions. The Times did
not long survive this setback, going out of business in 1877.

While the “Scrapbook Debates” and “Cotton Debates™ provide a precious historical record of
Canadian parliamentary dialogue in these years, they also underscore the overall deficiency of
relying on a partisan, free-enterprise press to transmit the deliberations of the nation’s elected
representatives. Newspaper circulation in these years was, for instance, tethered to narrow
regions. Canada’s largest paper, the Globe, had only 20,200 readers in 1872. So the
dissemination of Parliament’s affairs was restricted. There was also the problem of bias and
accuracy. Grit papers shortchanged Tory speakers and vice versa. The newspaper renditions
contained some worrisome traits. The reporters, for instance, showed no qualms in interjecting
phrases such as “after some unimportant remarks from Mr. . . .” into their renditions of a debate.
Many members also sometimes suspected the integrity of the reporters. James Cotton was, for
instance, suspected of being a “ministerialist” sympathizer; he was, after all, trying to secure
payment for his services from government coffers. In the 1871 session, Ontario Liberal David
Mills categorically declared that “he would not accept any report made last year as a correct
one.” The French language completely defeated the reporters. Although francophone members
appeared reluctant to debate in their mother tongue, when they did their remarks went
unrecorded. On occasion, the newspaper debates noted that bilingual speakers like George-
Etienne Cartier “repeated the above statement in French,” but had no means of verifying exactly
what then transpired.

Within months of its first sitting after the 1867 federal election, the Commons began debating the
inadequacy of newspaper reporting of its affairs. The leading spirit in the agitation for some
form of official Hansard was the Ontario Liberal Alexander Mackenzie, whose Clear Grit
sensibilities predisposed him to any broadening of democratic privilege in the young nation.
Mackenzie’s biography in the Dictionary of Canadian Biography describes him as “a fierce
defender of the supremacy of Parliament.”'* At Mackenzie’s instigation, a joint committee of
both houses was struck within a month of the opening of Canada’s First Parliament. Mackenzie
reminded the House that New Zealand already had such a system. Other members warmed to
the idea. Nova Scotian Joseph Howe, although sitting in the House as an anti-confederate, liked

13. For an excellent account of parliamentary reporting by the private press, see: David Farr, “Reconstituting the
Early Debates of the Parliament of Canada,” Canadian Parliamentary Review, Vol. 15, No. 1, Spring 1992, pp.
26-32.

14. Ben Forster. “Mackenzie, Sir Alexander”. Dictionary of Canadian Biography. Vol. XII, 1891-1900, p. 650.



having “free competition” do the reporting but believed that “the Ottawa papers were not up to
the task.” Prime Minister Macdonald was cagey; he would leave the “question in the hands of the
House.” The House subsequently instructed the committee to prepare a “formal” plan for a
Canadian Hansard.

The committee reported in March 1868 that an official record of Commons debates, in both
French and English, could be had for $12,000 a year. Any desire for better reporting was quickly
overwhelmed by concern over its cost. Wild rumours circulated that the Congressional Globe in
Washington cost the American taxpayer $100,000 a year. Other members quipped that once
MPs saw their words in print “they would be ashamed to say so much about so little.” When put
to a vote, Mackenzie’s Hansard scheme was defeated by a margin of almost two to one, with the
Prime Minister, sensing the mood of the House, voting “Nay.”

Like a terrier, Mackenzie would not let go of the idea. He doggedly kept the gist of his 1868
report in the consciousness of the House. His campaign acquired allies on both sides of the
Commons. Perhaps most notably, Dr. Charles Tupper — Father of Confederation, Tory
“lieutenant” for Nova Scotia and a member of Parliament from a province that had recorded its
own debates since 1851 — stood shoulder-to-shoulder with his Grit adversary on this particular
issue. “Private enterprise,” he argued, had failed to record the debates of Parliament so that “the
future historian” could “put his hand on an authoritative narrative of the deliberations of the
House.”"> Francophone members of Parliament such as Dr. Blanchet embraced the idea; private
enterprise had seldom reported their words in their own language. In the early 1870s, various
attempts were made to tug the House away from its frugality on the issue. Some encouragement
came from the Senate, where in 1871 a shorthand reporter was employed to record and prepare
its debates for publication. The Commons, however, would go no further than buying copies of
the privately produced “Cotton Debates.” It would take the fall of the Macdonald Conservatives
in late 1873 to open the way for the decisive shift.

The Pacific Scandal of 1873 not only swept Macdonald out of office, it also brought the
Mackenzie Liberals into office on a wave of virtuous indignation over the political morality of
the young Confederation. Prime Minister Alexander Mackenzie was now securely positioned to
act on his passion for egalitarian democracy. A secret ballot was quickly introduced; Canadians
could now cast their vote solely according to their conscience. And the reporting of Commons
debates was finally wrested from the press. On 4 February 1875, as soon as the
Governor General, Lord Dufferin, had delivered the Speech from the Throne, the Prime Minister
moved that “the Votes and Proceedings of the House be printed, being first perused by
Mr. Speaker, and that he do appoint the printing thereof, and that no person but such as he shall
presume to print the same.” Homework for the motion had been done by a Commons committee
in the previous session; a bilingual, published Hansard was estimated to cost just under $8,000.
Some debate ensued over whether the official reporter should be placed in a special gallery
above the House or allowed as a “stranger” to sit on the floor of the Commons. “As an
experiment,” it was decided that a table would be placed on the floor near the Speaker to ensure
the reporter the best possible vantage point. Mackenzie’s motion was subsequently passed and
Canada’s House of Commons finally, almost a decade after Confederation, had Hansard.

But Dr. Tupper had been prophetic. Historians had been left with no “authoritative narrative” of
the Commons for the years 1867 to 1874, nor of the Senate from 1867 to 1870. A very
assiduous historian might have cobbled together an impression of Parliament in these years by
combing through the “Scrapbook Debates” assembled by the Library of Parliament, and the

15. House of Commons Debates. 3 March 1870.



“Cotton Debates.” But for all others, amnesia prevailed until the early 1960s when, perhaps
prompted by the approaching centennial of Confederation, three men determined to rescue the
parliamentary debates of our country’s first years from the margins of our political history.

In 1961, the noted University of Saskatchewan political scientist and leading historian of
Parliament, Norman Ward, joined forces with House of Commons Speaker Roland Michener
and Parliamentary Librarian Erik J. Spicer to initiate a project dedicated to reconstructing as
accurate a rendition as possible of the missing early years of the Canadian parliamentary record
out of the patchwork of the Scrapbook and Cotton Debates. Once funding was secured, the
project was placed in the hands of Professor Peter B. Waite of Dalhousie University. Waite
proved an apt appointee. He had already in 1962 published a lively account of the “life and
times” of Confederation which drew heavily on contemporary newspaper reporting of the
various colonial paths to or away from British North American union.'® His edited version of the
debates of the central Canadian colonies in their combined Legislative Assembly in 1865 on the
terms of Confederation had appeared in 1963. Under Waite’s inspired editorship there would be
published successively over the ten years from 1967 to 1976 three volumes each of reconstituted
Debates for the Senate and for the House of Commons, recording the parliamentary sessions of
1867-1868, 1869, and 1870 respectively in both English and French.

The Parliamentary Session of 1871

The fourth session of the Parliament first elected in August—September 1867 convened in Ottawa
on 15 February 1871, and would sit until 14 April. These were typical parameters for an early
Canadian Parliament. Politics was not a full-time vocation for most politicians; it was something
to be fitted into an otherwise busy professional or commercial life. Distance and the relatively
crude state of Canadian transportation also conspired against frequent sessions of Parliament,
particularly for Nova Scotia and New Brunswick members. Parliament consequently met but
once a year. Mid-winter to early spring offered the most convenient window for most — the
rhythms of Canadian commerce and agriculture generally slowed in the winter. Once in session,
the Commons established a steady but not onerous schedule. Daily sessions began at three in the
afternoon and continued until the late afternoon. Sometimes, after a recess for dinner, the
members sat into the evening. At times, a heated debate might push adjournment late into the
evening and infrequently into the wee hours of the morning. In compensation for their labours,
members received a sessional allowance of $600 plus a stipend that covered their travel
expenses. With a salary of $5,000 a year, Cabinet ministers fared much better (largely because
their obligation to the political affairs of the nation was considered a full-time commitment).

Attendance at the 1871 session reflected the original 181-member composition of the 1867
Commons; death, resignations and by-elections had altered the actual membership of the House.
For these men, party politics existed in only a rudimentary manner. The election of 1867 had
yielded John A. Macdonald a workable majority of 108 who loosely styled themselves as the
Liberal-Conservative party, or the “government party.” This appellation reflected an attempt to
preserve the expedient, pre-Confederation coalition of Ontario Conservatives, Quebec bleus and
Ontario Reformers which had carried the union in Central Canada. The touch of party was light
in the Maritimes with members styling themselves as “ministerialists,” prepared to support the

16. P.B. Waite. The Life and Times of Confederation, 1864—1867: Politics, Newspapers and the Union of British
North America. Toronto: University of Toronto Press, 1962.



Macdonald administration, or “antis,” those inclined to resist the blandishments of
Confederation. Newly created Manitoba was in essence a pocket borough devoted to the railway
policies of the government.

A Cabinet of 14, headed by Macdonald as Prime Minister, Minister of Justice and Attorney
General, oversaw the formation of government policy. On the opposition benches, there was
little cohesion. Ontario Reformers, or Liberals, who had fallen away from the 1867 coalition, sat
under the tacit leadership of Ontario Grits such as Alexander Mackenzie and Edward Blake.
Quebec rouges, or liberals bent on the separation of church and state, led by Antoine-Aimé
Dorion aligned for tactical purposes with the Ontario Liberals but shared little else with them
except a disdain for the government. On any particular issue, especially if it had a strong local
flavour, members might break ranks and vote along expedient lines. These were “the shaky
fellows,” “loose fish” or “waiters on Providence” who made the politics of Canada’s early
Parliament volatile and unpredictable. For instance, the 1867 election had sent 18 “anti-
confederate” members of Parliament to Ottawa from Nova Scotia. Over time, Macdonald had
wooed them — especially their leader, Joseph Howe — into sympathy with, but not always
automatic devotion to, the government’s cause.

In a political culture still rooted in open voting, powerful lingering local attachments and only
the flimsiest sense of loyalty to the federal fact, it was a veritable miracle that Canada functioned
at all as a political entity. Principle was often trumped by expediency. On many issues and
days, only the application of generous dabs of patronage and the consummate personal skills of
Macdonald and his senior acolytes, especially Cartier from Quebec, held the nation together.'’
Thus the House convened in the snowy Ottawa mid-winter of 1871. In his Speech from the
Throne, the Governor General, Lord Lisgar, set what was to be the overriding theme of the
session: fortifying and expanding the young Dominion. The year 1870 had witnessed a number
of rude shocks administered to the fledgling nation. The first check to Confederation had come
from the West where the Riel Rebellion in the winter of 1869—1870 had stymied Ottawa’s hope
of a smooth assertion of federal power over the former territory of the Hudson’s Bay Company.
Native and Metis resistance took the form of a provisional government created under the
leadership of Montreal-educated Louis Riel in defiance of commissioners sent from Ottawa to
take possession of the Red River. Bloodshed ensued. In March 1870, the provisional
government executed an obstreperous Ontario land surveyor, and Orangeman, named Thomas
Scott. The crisis struck at the heart of the delicate Anglo—French accord that underlay
Macdonald’s administration of the nation. Ontario Protestant expansionism collided directly
with French, Catholic particularism. Deft clerical diplomacy, the despatch of a militia expedition
to the Red River, and the promise of a federal amnesty to Riel and his confreres cooled the
situation. Manitoba thus entered Confederation in July 1870, not as a territory, but as a fully
fledged province, one entitled to send four members of Parliament to Ottawa. Riel fled into
exile. Despite Lord Lisgar’s roseate observation that Manitoba was “entering steadily upon a
career of peace and prosperity,” the new province would generate an undertow of anxiety
throughout the 1871 session.

If Manitoba required a healing touch, Lisgar also reminded the reconvened Parliament that other
challenges of consolidating the union could not be put off. A railway from Central Canada to the
Maritime provinces — a Charter right promised in 1867 — had to be surveyed and construction
begun. Legislation to promote a “liberal land policy” had to be crafted to attract immigrants to

17. See: Escott M. Reid. “The Rise of National Parties in Canada,” in Hugh G. Thorburn, ed., Party Politics in
Canada, Scarborough: Prentice-Hall, 1967, pp. 13—-19; and Jeffery Simpson, Spoils of Power: The Politics of
Patronage, Don Mills: Collins, 1988.



Canada’s newly acquired western territories. And, perhaps most daunting of all, the House
would have to deal with the prospect of expanding Canada to the Pacific. An address from the
legislature of still-autonomous British Columbia “praying for admission into the union” had to
be debated. Would Canada be a coast-to-coast nation? Under what terms?

Lisgar’s speech reminded the returning legislators of another trauma of 1870. Since the 1860s,
marauding members of the Fenian Brotherhood had harassed British North America from safe
havens in the United States, eager to apply Irish nationalist pressure on the “British” fact
wherever they encountered it. However militarily inept the raids proved, they caused high
anxiety in Canada. Two raids into Quebec by “lawless bands” of Fenians had once again
alarmed Canadians in 1870. Although Canadians had “rallied at the first call to arms with
praiseworthy alacrity” and had shored up the border, the raids triggered a broader sense of
external menace in the young Confederation. American covert support for the Fenians was
symptomatic of deeper problems with Canada’s southern neighbour. Thus Lisgar reminded the
House that the unresolved issue of control of the east coast fishery hovered over Ottawa’s head,
as did a series of thorny legacies of the American Civil War, most notably Washington’s claim
that Britain compensate it with Canadian territory for the predations of British-built Confederate
raiders. Such issues not only obliged Canadians to define their relations with the United States
but also provoked a finer tuning of the young Canada’s relationship with Mother Britain. Thus,
the parliamentary session of 1871 would be a mirror to a young nation grappling with its internal
cohesion and expansion while at the same time coming to grips with the world beyond its shores.

The Manitoba issue exposed the rawest nerve of the young Confederation. On the surface, the
House heard that preparations were underway for a “special federal election” that would see four
members of Parliament elected in the new province. When that election was held on 2 March,
the House of Commons grew for the first time since Confederation. The new Manitoban
members of Parliament were a politically and racially variegated group. They included John
Christian Schultz, a prominent member of the “Canadian party” that had been so instrumental in
provoking the Metis resistance of 1870. Schultz had in fact been taken prisoner by the
provisional government. Manitoba also elected Donald Smith, a Scottish-born fur trader who
had brokered the agreement with Riel and now came to Ottawa to sit with Macdonald’s
Conservatives. The new member from Provencher, Pierre Delorme, gave the House its first
Metis member of Parliament. A fur trader and farmer, Delorme had been a member of the Metis
provisional government — in fact participating in the arrest of Scott — but had broken with it over
the propriety of executing such prisoners.

The appearance of members of Parliament from Canada’s newest province was but one legacy of
the bitter events of 1870. Throughout the session, the government was assailed by Ontario
Liberals over its settlement of the Manitoba imbroglio. There were cries that justice be brought
to those responsible for “the wicked, unprovoked, damnable murder”'® of Thomas Scott.
Rumours of the whereabouts of the fugitive Riel further inflamed the debate. Perhaps most
ardent on this front was William McDougall. A one-time Ontario Clear Grit, McDougall had
joined the Conservatives at Confederation (hence his nickname “Wandering Willie””) and had
been despatched to the Red River as its putative Lieutenant Governor in 1869. His subsequent
rebuffing by the Metis goaded him into paroxysms of Protestant Ontario indignation. As the
member of Parliament for Lanark North, McDougall attacked the arrangements made for the new
province as being too generous to the Catholic Metis. “They,” he raged, “had the control of the
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Government, the Bishop of St. Boniface was the actual ruler of that Government, and his
influence was supreme. (Cries of Oh! and No! No! from various members.)”"”

The government, conscious that its power crucially depended on support from Catholic bleus
from Quebec, did its best to parry these charges. Militia and Defence Minister George-Etienne
Cartier, always careful to avoid the word “murder,” suggested that since Scott’s execution had
taken place before Manitoba entered the union, the federal government had no retroactive
jurisdiction over the sad incidents at the Red River. Furthermore, Riel was beyond its reach; the
1842 Webster—Ashburton Treaty with the United States did not permit extradition for cases of
treason. Other Conservatives suggested the Manitoba issue was being fanned for reasons of pure
Ontario parochialism. Mackenzie Bowell attacked Edward Blake (a Liberal who would, a year
later, use his position as Liberal premier of Ontario to place a $5,000 bounty on Riel’s head) for
exploiting the situation: “The portals of the grave have been opened, and the dust of the martyred
dead dragged forth to do the works of such politicians as the member for Durham. Crocodile
tears have been copiously shed, and affected tears wiped from where none existed, in order to
carry the Ontario elections.” Such was the language of “race” in nineteenth-century Canadian
politics.

The festering dispute over Manitoba and Riel showed just how close to the surface the old
sectarian jealousies of pre-Confederation colonial life still lurked. Regional and religious
jealousies not only threatened the bonding of the young country, but also tore at the cohesiveness
of the nation’s political alliances. They kept Ontario Liberals from embracing Quebec rouges
and constantly destabilized the precarious union of Anglo-Conservatives and Quebec bleus at the
heart of Macdonald’s ruling party. Other issues in the 1871 session warmed this ever-present
animosity. At Confederation, the accumulated debt of the legislative union of Ontario and
Quebec had been apportioned between the two new provinces and Ottawa. The terms of the
division pleased neither province; it was “unequal” and an “injustice” from each perspective.
Some favoured legal arbitration, others a political settlement. The spirit of parochialism reared
its head elsewhere. When an Ontario member of Parliament opposed a $10,000 subsidy on the
Halifax—Saint John steamer, Haligonian Charles Tupper complained of the “niggardly spirit” at
work and remarked that “a similar spirit . . . had almost rent old Canada apart™' before 1867.

The mean sectarianism of the 1871 session thus provided evidence of an old set of British North
American sensibilities wrestling with the spirit of a fragile new nationality. Only occasionally
did a tone of higher purpose emerge. “We are now in Confederation for weal or for woe,”
Toronto Tory Robert Harrison (a frequent complainer about Ontario’s share of the debt
distribution) sanctimoniously pointed out. “The man who needlessly provokes sectional strife
wickedly 2\;veakens the ties of Confederation, and knowingly strengthens the hands of our
enemies.”

If looking backward could excite differences among the members of the 1871 House, so too
could looking forward. As Lord Lisgar had indicated in his Throne Speech, an address from the
legislature of British Columbia invited Ottawa to engage in a negotiation for the entry of that
distant colony into the new Confederation. Egged on by its shrewd Governor, Sir Anthony
Musgrave, the Confederation cause in British Columbia coalesced around a clique of local
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professionals and merchants. Three sine qua non conditions lay embedded in British Columbia’s

approach to the potential union: federal assumption of the colony’s debt, a generous per capita

annual grant, and the connection of the Pacific to Central Canada by means of a transcontinental
: 23

railway.

On 28 March, British Columbia’s address was placed in the form of a resolution before the
House in Ottawa by Cartier. The government cast the prospect in terms of romantic and
affordable inevitability. Cartier drew “the attention of the House to the fact that while our
[American] neighbours had taken sixty years to extend their borders to the Pacific, the young
Dominion would have accomplished it inside of ten years.... We need a seaboard on the
Pacific if ever this Dominion was to be a powerful nation in the future....” God and nature,
Charles Tupper asserted, “had placed it in the power of this Parliament to take up this question.”
British Columbia, one Ontario Tory predicted, would give Canada “harbours like Venice and
Amsterdam.” Customs Minister Leonard Tilley warned that if the offer was not taken up “that
Colony might yet be absorbed into the American Union.” Finance Minister Francis Hincks
rounded out the government’s case by arguing that a Pacific railway might be undertaken by
private enterprise aided by “a liberal land grant and liberal money subsidy.” The whole
commitment to British Columbia, Hincks assured the House, would only create “an annual
charge of about $100,000 upon Canada.”**

The opposition Liberals demurred. In doing so, they were obliged to tread a very fine line
between endorsing the higher goal of expanding the union and expressing a vigorous skepticism
about the cost and practicability of linking the Pacific to the Atlantic under such hurriedly
concocted terms. Richard Cartwright of Kingston suggested that the estimated cost of the Pacific
railway reflected wishful thinking more than engineering reality. Alexander Mackenzie
cautioned that survey work should be done before the young country was made liable for such a
fiscal commitment. Even some Tories expressed their doubts. William McDougall — ever the
“loose fish” — declared that he “was as anxious as any man to see this Confederation completed;
but denied he was therefore bound to accept every absurd, extravagant scheme proposed
professedly with that object, and not shown to be either necessary or practicable.”” Others
complained that the 80-cent per capita grant to British Columbians would be onerous and out of
proportion to that paid to other provinces. Thus the Liberal opposition to the terms of British
Columbia’s entry into Confederation was deeply rooted in the frugal mid-nineteenth-century
liberalism of Ontario. But the government persevered and by early April the die had been cast —
on 6 April, the House endorsed the extension of the federal Militia Act to British Columbia. A
bill to incorporate a Pacific railway followed. A British Columbia delegation soon set out for
Ottawa to close the deal.

The fractiously debated expansion of Canada onto the western plain and to the Pacific was
shadowed by another powerfully felt tension throughout the 1871 session — the unresolved issue
of Canadian—American fishing rights. But this tension went largely undebated in the House.
The most telling indicator of its simmering importance was the absence of Prime Minister
Macdonald from the House through virtually all of the 1871 session. For all but two weeks of
the session, the ruling party was a party without its leader. In Macdonald’s stead, George-
Etienne Cartier (known in the House as “the Lightning Striker” for his deft ability to wield
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political power) was Canada’s de facto prime minister, ably captaining his party through the
delicate debates over Manitoba and British Columbia.*®

On 27 February, Macdonald left the capital for Washington, where he was to participate in a
joint commission that was to delineate Canadian—American fishing rights and a cluster of other
issues straining Anglo—American relations. The fisheries issue was long standing, tangled and
freighted with national sentiment. In the wake of the War of 1812, Americans had been denied
use of the inshore fishery off the east coast of British North America. The Reciprocity Treaty of
1854 had opened the fishery to American fishermen, but its cessation in 1866 once again closed
it. Americans who obtained a licence might fish Canadian waters, but when increasing numbers
of Americans chose simply to fish the Canadian inshore with impunity, Ottawa reacted by
deploying inspectors to expel them. The ensuing conflict soured the young Dominion’s relations
with Washington, and pulled Canada into a tripartite Anglo—-Canadian—American negotiation to
resolve the issue and such attendant legalities as where exactly the inshore fishery boundary ran
— from headland to headland or along a shore-hugging line. Macdonald was chosen as one of the
five British commissioners.

The fishery issue excited Canada’s nascent sense of national identity. Macdonald’s biographer
Donald Creighton would later note that the Canadian Prime Minister’s presence in Washington
was “a slightly embarrassing novelty . . . the first time that a British North American had ever
participated on terms of equality in such a general imperial negotiation.””” The fishery question
aroused both Canada’s traditional nervous regard for the United States and a newer suspicion
that Britain was prepared to sell Canada short if it served her broader imperial needs. The year
1871 would see the departure of the last British garrison troops from Canada; there was a sense
that Canada was now on her own in the world. Even Macdonald’s ally Alexander Galt warned
the House that an adverse outcome of the Washington negotiation would place Canada in “a
position of subordination and inferiority.” Alexander Mackenzie counselled that Macdonald
must resist the “arrogant” American demand for assured access to the Canadian inshore. Given
that there were rumours that the Americans might even demand that Britain cede Canadian
territory, Mackenzie went on to express his doubt that “our interests would be safe in the hands
of British negotiators.”

Macdonald understood the high stakes in the fishery issue. Just days before his departure for the
American capital, he confronted the challenge: “If this threatening cloud were removed — if the
pending controversies were settled — we might calculate upon a long term of peace with the
United States, with increased trade and prosperity, upon a vista of tranquility, progress and
happiness.”* On 27 February, the Prime Minister departed Ottawa and would not return until
early May. In the interim, the House fell silent on the fisheries issue, but the outcome of the
Washington talks hung like the sword of Damocles over Parliament.

Between the spikes of intense debate over the unresolved Manitoba, British Columbia and
fisheries issues, the House got on with the more mundane business of nation formation. An Act
was passed “assimilating” the currency of the new Dominion; the motley monetary system that
the nation had inherited from colonial times was reformed and standardized. Henceforth, all
coinage in the Dominion would be minted by the federal government while larger paper
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denominations above $4 would be issued by the chartered banks against a standard national
value.” The introduction of a national, decimalized currency was reinforced by an Act that
regularized the issuance of bank charters and honed the corporate governance of banks.*® Other
Acts fine-tuned the activities of insurance companies, issued railway charters, appointed port
wardens, and made provision for servicing the federal loan taken out to underwrite the 1869
purchase of the Hudson’s Bay Company lands in the Northwest. Preparations were approved for
the taking of Canada’s first federal, decennial census. Indian treaties were discussed. Bills were
paid: $200,000, for instance, for “unavoidable expenditure” incurred in repelling the 1870 Fenian
raids. The House even found time to regulate its own affairs; an Act was passed to secure the
independence of Parliament by preventing members of Parliament from accepting any fee,
allowance or emolument from the Government of Canada beyond their stipulated salary.’’
Cumulatively, these Acts constituted the process of what political scientists today call “state
formation,” the bolting together of a civil society by means of regulation and standardization.
The Confederation was being made to function as a cohesive and coordinated whole, whether
that entailed answering the questions of a census taker or taking out a policy with an insurance
company.

When focused on these issues of nation building, the House worked with efficiency and
camaraderie. There was even time for the occasional flash of humour. Cartier could, for
instance, put aside the cloak of de facto government leader and deprecate himself: “. .. it was
generally supposed that when lawyers once got up they never knew when to sit down . . .”** In
response to a question concerning the impact of the tariff on flour in the Maritimes, Finance
Minister Hincks promised “to make a statement soon.” “To make a flowery statement,” one-
time Finance Minister Alexander Galt quipped.” At other times, members revealed their
remarkable erudition, quoting the classics to bolster a point or, as Liberal Edward Blake was
often wont to indulge, paring the fine points of constitutional law. At times like these, the House
indeed seemed the prism of a young nation fast growing accustomed to its own diversity and
beginning to display trust in its democratic deliberation. This mood was perhaps facilitated by
announcement by Hincks that the young Dominion was running a budgetary surplus estimated at
$2.4 million. Fiscal security bred expansive nationalism.

All the while, the reporters in the Strangers Gallery scrambled to keep pace with the
parliamentarians below. By early April, a mood of restlessness seemed to creep into the House’s
deliberations. Spring was here and parliamentarians’ thoughts turned to family and constituents.
Cartier hinted at an impending prorogation, but pleaded for a few more days to tie up the loose
ends of the British Columbia resolution and the attempt to activate a Pacific railway. Finally, on
14 April, the House convened early, pushed through a last few items of supply, voted to ensure
that their recently elected Manitoba colleagues be paid for the entire session, and then paraded to
the Senate chamber to witness the Governor General give Royal Assent to the 57 Acts they had
passed. The House was then prorogued. Called to return to Ottawa on 25 May, the members
must have wasted little time scurrying to the train station for the journey home.*® The unsettled
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fate of Riel, the British Columbia negotiation, and the fishery negotiation in Washington must
have preyed on their minds as items sure to resurface when they next met. An election also
loomed; it had been four years since Canadian electors had first been called upon to select a slate
of federal legislators. But for the time being, their work in Ottawa was over. The fourth session
of Canada’s First Parliament was over, its deliberations captured for posterity in the columns of
the nation’s newspapers, and now recreated in this publication.
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signature to the provisional Treaty of Washington on 8 May and departed for Ottawa shortly thereafter, but the
treaty was not to be debated in Ottawa until 1872 and did not come into effect until 1873.
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Saint-Maurice, Quebec
Dorchester, Quebec
Montmorency, Quebec

..... Addington, Ontario

Norfolk South, Ontario
Richmond, Nova Scotia
Simcoe South, Ontario

Marquette, Manitoba

Monck, Ontario

Simcoe North, Ontario
Middlesex West, Ontario
Glengarry, Ontario
Lunenburg, Nova Scotia
Antigonish, Nova Scotia
Kingston, Ontario
Cornwall (Town), Ontario



Name of Member Constituency

McDougall, JOhn Lorn .......ccccoevveiiiiiieic e Renfrew South, Ontario
McDougall William .........ccocoviiiiiiiceeeeceee Trois-Rivieres (Ville), Quebec
McDougall, Hon.William, C.B. .........cc.cccevveveiiennn. Lanark North, Ontario
MacFarlane, Robert ..o, Perth South, Ontario
McGreevy, Hon. Thomas ..........ccccevvevviieieesieciennn, Québec-Ouest, Quebec
IMCKAY, ANGUS ...ovooverereeeeeeseeseeesieesiessesss e Marquette, Manitoba
McKeagney, Hon. James Charles ..........c.ccccceeevennee. Cape Breton, Nova Scotia
Mackenzie, AleXander .........cccccvevevvevieee v, Lambton, Ontario
McMillan, Donald ..........ccccceveeiiiiieecccee e, Vaudreuil, Quebec
MCMONIES, JAMES ...vveveiiiiiiieeetee et Wentworth North, Ontario
Magill, Charles ........cccoeviiiiiieceece e Hamilton (City), Ontario
Masson, Louis-Frangois-Rodrigue ............cc.ccccevenene Terrebonne, Quebec
Masson, Luc-Hyacinthe ...........ccccovveviiiiiiiecieiie, Soulanges, Quebec
Merritt, Thomas Rodman ........ccccceeveveeeeviieeee e, Lincoln, Ontario
Metcalfe, JAMES .....ccovvviiiiiieeee e York East, Ontario

MIlIS, DAVIA ....oooeeiiiiiie e Bothwell, Ontario
LOMOFfatt, GEOIGE ....veveeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e Restigouche, New Brunswick
MOFISON, JONN ..ooiiiiiiec e Victoria North, Ontario
Morris, Hon. AleXander .........ccocooevevenenenesnnennens Lanark South, Ontario
MOITISON, ANQUS ...cvviiiiiiieiiesieeiee e Niagara (Town), Ontario
Munroe, JOhN H. ..o, Elgin West, Ontario
O’ConNOr, JONN ....cooiiiii s Essex, Ontario

Oliver, TROMAS .....ooveiiiiiiieee e Oxford North, Ontario
Paquet, Anselme-HOmMEre .........cccocevvveivieiveieeenn, Berthier, Quebec

Pearson, Frederick M. .........cccocoiiiiiiii Colchester, Nova Scotia
Pelletier, Charles-Alphonse-Pantaléon ..................... Kamouraska, Quebec
Perry, Charles ........cccovevvieieee e Peterborough West, Ontario
Pickard, JONN ... York, New Brunswick
Pinsonneault, Alfred ... Laprairie, Quebec

Pope, JORN HENMY ..o Compton, Quebec

Pouliot, Barthélemy .........cccoceviviieiieieee e L’Islet, Quebec

Power, PatriCK ........ccooeiiiiiiieiieee e Halifax, Nova Scotia
Pozer, Christian HeNnry ........cccccovevvvveiieeieseece e Beauce, Quebec

Ray, William Hallett ..............ccoooviiiiieeee Annapolis, Nova Scotia
Read, HON. RODEIt ......coviiiiiieee e Hastings East, Ontario
Redford, JAMES .......ccooiiiiiiiiieeee e Perth North, Ontario
Renaud, AUGQUSEE ......ccooveiiiiieieseeeee e Kent, New Brunswick
Robitaille, ThE0dOre ........cccovvevieivieieccec e, Bonaventure, Quebec

% Elected in Manitoba federal election, March 2, 1871
19 Elected in by-election, November 29, 1870



Name of Member Constituency

ROSS, JAMES ....ooeieciieciecce e Wellington Centre, Ontario

R0sS, HON. JONN JONES ....ovvvieiiiiiieeecieee e Champlain, Quebec

R0SS, JOhN SYIVEStEr .......ccccoveiiiieieee e Dundas, Ontario

ROSS, WALl ..ot Prince Edward, Ontario

ROSS, William ..........ccoooiiiiiieeec e Victoria, Nova Scotia

RYAN, GBOIGE ..o King’s, New Brunswick

Ryan, Michael Patrick ..........ccccccooeiviiiiiciiciece, Montréal-Ouest, Quebec

Rymal, JOSEPN .....oovveiiiiciee e Wentworth South, Ontario

Savary, Alfred William ...........ccooviiiinii Digby, Nova Scotia

Scatcherd, ThOMAS .......cccevveiveiiiie e Middlesex North, Ontario

1Schultz, John ChISHIAN «..vveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeerean, Lisgar, Manitoba

SCrIVEr, JUIIUS .....cveiieieee e Huntingdon, Quebec

Sénécal, Louis-Adélard .........ccccoeveeeeivieiiie e, Drummond—Arthabaska, Quebec

Shanly, Walter ... Grenville South, Ontario

Simard, Georges-Honoré ...........ccccceveveveveseineene Quebec Centre, Quebec

Simpson, Wemyss Mackenzie ..........ccccccovevveieennenn, Algoma (The Provisional Juridical
District of), Ontario

Smith, Hon. Albert James..........cccoccevvevvcvecicceen, Westmorland, New Brunswick

25mith, Donald AlEXaNdEr ........o.vveeeveeeereeerreenn. Selkirk, Manitoba

SNIdEr, GEOIJE ..voveieeecieeieeie e Grey North, Ontario

Sproat, AleXander .........cccoceviverenienieene e Bruce North, Ontario

Stephenson, RUFUS ..., Kent, Ontario

StIrton, David ..o Wellington South, Ontario

Street, Thomas Clark .........cccooevvviviieiieie e, Welland, Ontario

SyIVain, GEOIQE ..o Rimouski, Quebec

Thompson, David ..., Haldimand, Ontario

Thompson, John Hall ... Ontario North, Ontario

Tilley, Hon. Samuel Leonard, C.B. ......c.cccccveruvenene. St. John (City), New Brunswick

BTourangeau, Adolphe Guillet dit ............ccccoevevenn.. Québec-Est, Quebec

Tremblay, Pierre-Alexis ..., Chicoutimi—Saguenay, Quebec

Tupper, Hon. Charles, C.B. .......cccccovvveiiiiciieceene Cumberland, Nova Scotia

Wallace, JONN .....cooviiieeccee e Albert, New Brunswick

Walsh, Aquila ..o Norfolk North, Ontario

Webb, William HOSte ..., Richmond—Wolfe, Quebec

Wells, James Pearson .........cccoceveeveiiniienesieseenias York North, Ontario

White, JONN ..o Halton, Ontario

11 Elected in Manitoba federal election, March 2, 1871
12 Elected in Manitoba federal election, March 2, 1871
3 Elected in by-election, July 18, 1870



Name of Member Constituency

YOWItE, JONN ©.eoeeeeee e Hastings East, Ontario
Whitehead, JOSEPN ......ccoovieiiiiice e Huron North, Ontario
Willson, Crowell .........cccooooieiiiiiicccceee e, Middlesex East, Ontario
Wood, Hon. Edmund BUrke .........cccccvvveeiiivieee e, Brant South, Ontario
Workman, ThOMAS ........cccceevveiiieeiiecirec e Montréal-Centre, Quebec
Wright, AlONZO ...oooiiiiiiee e Ottawa (Comté), Quebec
WIIght, AMOS .....covveiiiiecicce e York West, Ontario
YOUNQ, JAMES ...oeeviciecieeie e Waterloo South, Ontario

“ Elected in by-election, March 20, 1871



CONSTITUENCIES BY PROVINCE WITH
NAMES OF MEMBERS ELECTED

PROVINCE OF MANITOBA

LISOAN vttt
MarquUette ........c.ooei i
Marquette ...... ..o
Provencher .........coocvvvieiie i
SEIKITK e

PROVINCE OF NEW BRUNSWICK

Albert ..
Carleton ...
Charlotte .....oooviii e
GlOUCESIEN .t e

KING’S e
Northumberland .............cooooii i
QUEBBN S i e e
RestigouChe ........c.ovviv i
St. John (City) .o,

St. John (Clty & County)
Sunbury ..

AV Te3 (o] (I B
Westmorland .........ccooeeii i
Y O K e e

PROVINCE OF NOVA SCOTIA

ANNAPolis ...,
ANLIgonish ...
Cape Breton ..o,
Colchester .....covviiici i
Cumberland ........c.coviiiiii i
Dighy o
Guysborough ...
HalifaX .....ooovvieie e,
Halifax .....cooviiii
Hants ..o

! Elected in Manitoba federal election, March 2, 1871
2 Elected in Manitoba federal election, March 2, 1871
% Elected in Manitoba federal election, March 2, 1871
* Elected in Manitoba federal election, March 3, 1871
® Elected in Manitoba federal election, March 2, 1871
® Elected in by-election, November 29, 1870

LJohn Christian Schultz
2James S. Lynch

*Angus McKay

*Pierre Delorme

®Donald Alexander Smith

John Wallace

Hon. Charles Connell

John Bolton

Hon. Timothy Warren Anglin
Auguste Renaud

........... George Ryan

Hon. Richard Hutchison
John Ferris

®George Moffatt

Hon. Samuel Leonard Tilley
Hon. John Hamilton Gray

...Charles Burpee

John Costigan
Hon. Albert James Smith
John Pickard

William Hallett Ray

Hugh McDonald

Hon. James Charles McKeagney
Frederick M. Pearson

Hon. Charles Tupper

Alfred William Savary

Hon. Stewart Campbell

Alfred Gilpin Jones

Patrick Power

Hon. Joseph Howe



PROVINCE OF NOVA SCOTIA (cont’d)

INVEINESS vttt i i e e e
LUNenburg ....o.vvveeie e
PICIOU v s
QUEENS .. e
Richmond .........coooviiiii e
Shelburne .....oovii
V4 (01 (0] F- U
Yarmouth ...

PROVINCE OF ONTARIO

AdAINgtoN ....oooii
Algoma (The Provisional Judicial District of)
Bothwell ...
Brant North .......cooooiiii e,

Brant South ...........

Brockville (Town), with the Township of
Elizabethtown thereto attached ...........
Bruce NOrth .....ocoiiii e
Bruce SoUth .......ooiiiii i
Cardwell ...,
.. John Holmes

Carleton ............

Cornwall (Town), with the Township of

Cornwall thereto attached ......................
DUNAAS ...
Durham East .........cooviiiiiiii e,
Durham WEeSt ....c.ovii e e e,
EIQINEASt ...,
EIginWesSt ...
S X vttt
Frontenac ..........oovviii i
GleNQAITY ..ot
Grenville South ...
Grey North ...t
Grey South ...
Haldimand ...
Halton ...
Hamilton (City) ......ccovviiiiii
Hastings East ..........coooiviiiii e,
HastingS East .......c.ooeeiiiiiiiiii e

" Elected in by-election, June 23, 1870
® Elected in by-election, April 27, 1870
° Elected in by-election, March 20, 1871

Hugh Cameron

"Leverett de Veber Chipman
Edmund Mortimer McDonald
James William Carmichael
James Fraser Forbes

Hon. Isaac Le Vesconte
Thomas Coffin

William Ross

Frank Killam

James N. Lapum

Wemyss Mackenzie Simpson
David Mills

John Young Bown

... Hon. Edmund Burke Wood

James Crawford
Alexander Sproat

Francis Hurdon

Thomas Roberts Ferguson

Hon. John Sandfield Macdonald
John Sylvester Ross

Francis Henry Burton

Edward Blake

Thomas William Dobbie
John H. Munroe

John O’Connor

8George Airey Kirkpatrick
Donald Alexander Macdonald
Walter Shanly

George Snider

George Jackson

David Thompson

John White

Charles Magill

Hon. Robert Read

®John White



PROVINCE OF ONTARIO (cont’d)

Hastings North
Hastings West
Huron North
Huron South

Lambton
Lanark NOorth ...,
Lanark South
Leeds North and Grenville North
Leeds South
LBNNOX ottt
Lincoln
London (City) ..eee e e
MiddleseX East ........ooviiiiiii i
Middlesex NOrth ..o,
Middlesex West
Monck
Niagara (Town), with Township of

Niagara thereto attached
NorfolkK North ...,
Norfolk South ...,
Northumberland East .............ccooviiiiiininnnn.n.
Northumberland West, excepting therefrom

the Township of South Monaghan ............
Ontario North
ONtario SOUth ... e
Ottawa (City) ..ovviiiiiiiiiie e e e e e e,
Oxford North
Oxford SOUth .....oiiii e,
Peel
Perth North
Perth South
Peterborough East
Peterborough West ..........cooooiiiiiii i
Prescott
Prince Edward
Renfrew NOrth ..o,
Renfrew South ....c.oviiii e
Russell
Simcoe North
Simcoe South
Stormont
Toronto East
Victoria North

Mackenzie Bowell
James Brown

Joseph Whitehead
Malcolm Colin Cameron
Rufus Stephenson

Hon. Sir John Alexander Macdonald

Alexander Mackenzie
Hon. William McDougall
Hon. Alexander Morris
Francis Jones

John Willoughby Crawford
Richard John Cartwright
Thomas Rodman Merritt
Hon. John Carling
Crowell Willson

Thomas Scatcherd
Angus Peter McDonald
Lachlan McCallum

Angus Morrison
Aquila Walsh
Peter Lawson

.. Joseph Keeler

Hon. James Cockburn
John Hall Thompson
Thomas Nicholson Gibbs
Joseph Merrill Currier
Thomas Oliver

Ebenezer Vining Bodwell
Hon. John Hillyard Cameron
James Redford

Robert MacFarlane
Peregrine Maitland Grover
Charles Perry

Albert Hagar

Walter Ross

Hon. Sir Francis Hincks
John Lorn McDougall
James Alexander Grant
Thomas David McConkey
William Carruthers Little
Samuel Ault

James Beaty

John Morison



PROVINCE OF ONTARIO (cont’d)

VictoriaSouth ... George Kempt
Waterloo North ... Isaac Erb Bowman
Waterloo South ..................co i iiiieeneeee. 2. James Young
Welland ................cccoieeiiiiiiiii i vee e en . Thomas Clark Street

Wellington Centre ..........oovee i iiiiiiiiieeeeen, James Ross

Wellington North ..., George Alexander Drew
Wellington South ..o, David Stirton

Wentworth North ...........ocoviiiiiii i evees ... James McMonies
Wentworth South ..o, Joseph Rymal

WeSt TOroNto ...vveee i e, Robert Alexander Harrison
YOrKEast ....ccooviiiiiiiiii i eeea a0 James Metcalfe

YOrkK NOMh .o James Pearson Wells

York West .....coooeiiiiiiiiicii i i i e e e .. Amos Wright

PROVINCE OF QUEBEC

Argenteuil .............cciiiiiiieicee e e e HONL JON Joseph Caldwell Abbott
Bagot ... Pierre-Samuel Gendron

BRAUCE ..t Christian Henry Pozer
Beaucharnois .......................ei i ieiienvenennn. Michael Cayley

BellEChaSSE ... ..o eee e e 19T¢lesphore Fournier

Berthier .......ovvie i Anselme-Homeére Paquet

Bonaventure ...
Brome ...
Chambly ...
Champlain ...
CharleVoiX ......ovviiii
Chateauguay ..........cooovieriiiiiiiiiiieenns
Chicoutimi—Saguenay ..........cccoeeveeeveiiinennnn.
ComPLON ...
Deux-Montagnes .......ccovevie i,

Dorchester ............

Drummond—Arthabaska .......................

GaASPE e,
Hochelaga ........ccoooviii i
Huntingdon ..o,
Iberville ...
Jacques-Cartier .........cooveviiiii i
Joliette ...

Kamouraska

19 Elected in by-election, August 15, 1870

Théodore Robitaille
Hon. Christopher Dunkin

.Pierre Basile Benoit
.Hon. John Jones Ross

Simon-Xavier Cimon

Hon. Luther Hamilton Holton
Pierre-Alexis Tremblay

John Henry Pope
Jean-Baptiste Daoust

..Hon. Hector-Louis Langevin

Louis-Adélard Sénécal
Pierre Fortin

Hon. Antoine-Aimé Dorion
Julius Scriver

Francois Béchard

Guillaume Gamelin Gaucher
Frangois Benjamin Godin

cetreeeiieeeinieeaineeeeena. . Charles-Alphonse-Pantaléon Pelletier
Laprairie .....o.oovei e
L’ ASSOMPLION ..o e

Alfred Pinsonneault
Hon. Louis Archambault



PROVINCE OF

QUEBEC (cont’d)

LOthini@re ..o

Maskinonge
Mégantic
Missisquoi

MONECAIM .o e

Montmagny

MONtMOIENCY ... e,
Montréal Centre .......coeeii i e

Montréal-Est
Montréal-Ouest
Napierville
Nicolet
Ottawa (Comté)
Pontiac
Portneuf

QUEDEC CENLIE vt e,

Québec-Est
Queébec-Ouest

QUEDEC (COMLE) ...t v e,
RICheliQU ..o i
Richmond—Wolfe

RIMOUSKI ... e,

Rouville

Saint-Hyacinthe ...

Saint-Jean
Saint-Maurice
Shefford

Sherbrooke (Ville)
SOUIANGES ...

Stanstead
Témiscouata ....

Terrebonne ...... .
Trois-Rivieres (Ville)

Vaudreuil
Verchéres
Yamaska

1 Elected in by-election, June 10, 1870

12 Elected in by-election, July 18, 1870

3 Elected in by-election, November 18, 1870
 Elected in by-election, September 1, 1870

Joseph-Hyacinthe Bellerose
Joseph-Godéric Blanchet
Barthélemy Pouliot
Henri-Gustave Joly

George Caron

Hon. George Irvine

'George Barnard Baker

Joseph Dufresne

Hon. Joseph-Octave Beaubien
Jean Langlois

Thomas Workman

Hon. Sir George-Etienne Cartier
Michael Patrick Ryan

Sixte Coupal dit la Reine

Joseph Gaudet

Alonzo Wright

Edmund Heath

Jean-Docile Brousseau
Georges-Honoré Simard
2Adolphe Guillet dit Tourangeau
Hon. Thomas McGreevy

Hon. Pierre-Joseph-Olivier Chauveau
3Georges Isodore Barthe
William Hoste Webb

George Sylvain

Guillaume Cheval, dit St-Jacques
| ouis Delorme

Francgois Bourassa

Elie Lacerte

Hon. Lucius Seth Huntington
Hon. Sir Alexander Tilloch Galt
Luc-Hyacinthe Masson

Charles Carroll Colby
Charles-Fréderic-Adolphe Bertrand
Louis-Frangois-Rodrigue Masson
William McDougall

Donald McMillan

Félix Geoffrion

Moise Fortier






Readers Note

This is the fourth volume in a series begun in the 1960s to reconstitute the early debates
of the House of Commons. The editorial approach followed here is set out in P.B.
Waite’s Introduction to the first volume, which presents the debates of 1867-1868.

These debates are a reconstruction from newspaper accounts and are in no way
considered official records of the House of Commons. Numbers and figures misquoted
in original newspaper reports have been corrected where required. The exact names of
bills, votes, etc., sourced from the Journals of the House, occasionally replace the more
dubious titles found in unofficial records of the day. Professional designations have been
suppressed in favour of the official names of individuals. These were exhaustively
researched using parliamentary guides, the Dictionary of Canadian Biography, and the
Library of Parliament’s own PARLINFO database, where readers may consult the
political biographies of Canada’s first parliamentarians. The names of electoral districts
have been verified and made consistent, but readers should note that other place names,
which may have changed since the 1800s, have been left “as reported” here.

There has been no attempt to clean up awkward or incomplete sentences. The reader
must adopt the mindset of a reporter in the late 1800s, writing furiously in a noisy,
bustling environment. Likewise, the language of debate is rooted in the times, with the
appearance of archaic words and turns of phrase and liberal references to the classics of
the day. Those with a keen eye will note some creative spelling and variations in the
capitalization of parliamentary terms, a lack of consistency that honours the flavour of the
times.






COMMONS DEBATES

February 15, 1871

HOUSE OF COMMONS

Wednesday, February 15, 1871

The SPEAKER took the chair at 3.00 p.m.

Prayers

A MESSAGE was brought by René Kimber, Esquire, Gentleman
Usher of the Black Rod:—

The SPEAKER,

His Excellency, the Governor General desires the immediate
attendance of this Honorable House in the Senate Chamber.

Accordingly, Mr. Speaker, with the House, went to the Senate
Chamber:—And being returned:

Mr. Speaker informed the House, that during the Recess, he had
received the following notifications of vacancies which had
occurred in the representation of the electoral districts of
Missisquoi, Quebec (City) East, Cumberland, (Nova Scotia)
Bellechasse, Saint-Hyacinthe, Colchester, (N.S.), Richelieu and
Restigouche; and that he had issued his Warrants to the Clerk of the
Crown in Chancery to make out new Writs for the Election of
Members to serve in this present Parliament for the said Electoral
Districts:

Adolphe Tourangeau, Esquire, Member for the Electoral District
of Quebec East; Louis Delorme, Esquire, Member for the Electoral
District of Saint-Hyacinthe; George Moffatt, Esquire, Member for
the Electoral District of Restigouche (New Brunswick); Leverett de
Veber Chipman, Esquire, Member for the Electoral District of
Kings; Georges Isidore Barthe, Esquire, Member for the Electoral
District of Richelieu; and the Honorable Charles Tupper, C.B.,
Member for the Electoral District of Cumberland, having
previously taken the Oath, according to Law, and subscribed before
the Commissioners the Roll containing the same, took their seats in
the House.

Ordered, That the Hon. Sir John A. Macdonald have leave to
bring in a Bill respecting the administration of Oaths of Office.

He accordingly presented the said Bill to the House, and the same
was received and read the first time.

Mr. Speaker reported, That when the House did attend His
Excellency the Governor General this day, in the Senate Chamber,
His Excellency was pleased to make a Speech to both Houses of

Parliament, of which Mr. Speaker said he had, to prevent mistakes,
obtained a copy which he read to the House, as followeth:—

Honorable Gentlemen of the Senate, Gentlemen of the House of
Commons,—

I have much satisfaction in meeting you at this, the usual and
most convenient season of the year, and under the present
auspicious circumstances of the Country.

The hope | was sanguine enough to express at the close of the
last session that no further attempt would be made to disturb our
frontier, was doomed to early disappointment. The Session had
scarcely closed when lawless bands assembled within the United
States in great numbers, and renewed the menace of invasion. They
ventured to cross the border at two points, but were promptly met
and repelled. So complete and humiliating was the repulse, that the
invaders lost heart and hope, threw away quantities of arms, and fell
back to encumber the villages in their rear, with their starving and
demoralized masses. Our Militia rallied at the first call to arms with
praiseworthy alacrity, and the spirit which pervades the country,
swelled their numbers with volunteers from all quarters. The
gallantry displayed and the success achieved, have been duly
recognized by the highest Military authority, and honored in
gratifying terms of appreciation, by Her Most Gracious Majesty. In
maintaining the Militia on active duty, the Government incurred an
outlay to a considerable amount beyond what was provided by the
votes of last Session. The accounts of the entire expenditure for the
defence of the frontier will be laid before you, and | feel confident
that you will pass a bill to indemnify the Government.

My anticipations of success in regard to the Act passed for the
Government of Manitoba, and the North West Territories, and in
regard to the Military Expedition, which it was necessary to
despatch, have been fortunately realized. The troops surmounted the
difficulties of the long and toilsome route with endurance and
intelligence. They encountered no armed opposition, and their
arrival at the Red River was cordially welcomed by the inhabitants.
The people of the new Province have, under the Constitution
accorded to them last year, assumed all the duties of self-
government, and every appearance warrants the hope that they are
entering steadily upon a career of peace and prosperity.

The Legislature of British Columbia has passed an Address to
Her Majesty, praying for admission into the union, on the terms and
conditions therein stated. All the papers on this important subject
will be submitted, and your earnest attention is invited to them. |
hope you will think that the terms are so fair as to justify you in
passing a similar Address, so that the boundaries of Canada, may,
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at an early day, be extended from the shores of the Atlantic Ocean
on the one side, to the shores of the Pacific on the other.

Should such an Address be adopted, it will be necessary for you
to take steps to secure the early exploration and survey of a route
for an Interoceanic Railway, with a view to its construction in
accordance with the terms of Union.

The acquisition of the North West Territories throws upon the
Government and Parliament of the Dominion the duty of promoting
their early settlement by the encouragement of immigration. This
duty can be best discharged by a liberal land policy, and by opening
up communications through our own country to Manitoba. The
means proposed for accomplishing these purposes will be submitted
for your consideration.

Her Majesty’s Government has decided upon referring the
Fishery question, along with other questions pending between the
two countries, to a joint commission to be named by Her Majesty’s
Government and the Government of the United States. On this
commission Canada will be represented. This mode of dealing with
the various matters in controversy will, | trust, lead to their
satisfactory adjustment. Canada urges no demand beyond those to
which she is plainly entitled by Treaty and the law of Nations. She
has pushed no claim to an extreme assertion, and only sought to
maintain the rights of her own people fairly and firmly, but in a
friendly and considerate spirit and with all due respect to foreign
powers and international obligations. The thanks of the country are
due to the Admiral on the Station and those under his command, for
the valuable and efficient aid which they rendered to our cruisers
during the past season in maintaining order and protecting the
inshore fisheries from encroachment.

The prospect of the adoption of an international currency seems,
in the present state of Europe, to be so remote, that | recommend
you to consider the propriety of assimilating the currency of the
Dominion without further delay.

The extension to Manitoba of the militia and other laws of the
Dominion, and their adaptation to the present circumstances of that
young Province, will require your attention.

The decennial Census will be taken on the third day of April
next, and it is believed that a more thorough and accurate system
has been adopted than any that has hitherto obtained. It may be
necessary to amend the Act of last session in some particulars.

Among other measures, Bills will be presented to you relating to
Parliamentary Elections, Weights and Measures, Insurance
Companies, Savings Banks, and for the Consolidation and
Amendment of the Inspection Laws.

Gentlemen of the House of Commons,—

I have given directions that the Public Accounts shall be laid
before you. You will learn with satisfaction that the Revenue for the
past year was in excess of what was estimated, and that the
prospects for the current year are so encouraging that,
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notwithstanding the extensive public improvements which are
contemplated, you will probably be able to diminish the taxation of
the Country.

The Estimates for the ensuing year will be submitted to you, and
I feel assured that you will be of opinion that the supplies which
you will be asked to vote can be granted without inconvenience to
the people.

Hon. Gentlemen of the Senate, Gentlemen of the House of
Commons,—

I lay these various and weighty matters before you, in full
confidence that they will engage your mature attention, and | pray
that the result of your deliberations may, with the Divine Blessing,
prove conducive in all respects to the advancement and happiness
of the country.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD moved that His
Excellency’s speech be taken into consideration tomorrow.

The House resolved to establish the usual Standing Committees,
and adjournment was moved by Hon. Sir John A. Macdonald,
seconded by Hon. Sir George-E. Cartier.

* x %

THE FISHERIES

On the motion for adjournment, Mr. MACKENZIE asked if it
was the intention of the Government to bring down any
correspondence regarding the fisheries before the discussion on the
address of His Excellency tomorrow. It was desirable on so
important a matter, if there was any correspondence relative to the
appointment of the Joint High Commission that the House should
have it before them, as it was quite impossible for them to avoid
discussing it during the debate tomorrow. It was a matter of far too
much importance to this country, looking at it simply as one
respecting our national rights, that the House should pass dumbly
over this portion of His Excellency’s speech without discussing, to
some extent, at least, the questions that everyone could see were
involved in it. The Commission, for anything they might know to
the contrary, might adopt some course that this Parliament might
not think consistent with the national interests in this Dominion;
and it was desirable that, at the earliest possible moment some
expression of the opinion of public men in the country should be
had on it. He took it for granted that the correspondence would be
brought down.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said it was not the intention
of the government to bring down any correspondence or any papers
of any kind before the answer to the address was carried. It was an
unusual course and an exceedingly inconvenient one that the hon.
member proposed. Care would be taken that the address to be
moved should not commit any member of this House to the
approval of the policy of the government on that or any other
question. The government would, so soon as the House should
address itself to business, bring down such portions of the
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correspondence relating to the fisheries as could be so produced
without injury to the public interests. His hon. friend must know
that it was a subject, under the present circumstances, to be very
carefully handled, and he had no doubt that on a matter of so great
importance the government would receive every consideration at
the hands of the hon. members opposite. They would, as they had
done on other similar occasions, aid the government, and avoid any
course which might by any possibility prejudice the interests of the
country, so soon as the address was answered, the papers asked for
would be brought down.

Mr. MACKENZIE was aware that the general usage was as
stated by his hon. friend, but there had been exceptions to it, and on
very important questions like this, a departure from the custom
might be admitted. He thought it unnecessary for the Hon. Premier
to call on his supporters to aid him.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said he appealed to his hon.
friend opposite, and not to his supporters. He said that on a matter
of national interest we might expect a favourable consideration
from the hon. members opposite.

Mr. MACKENZIE said he must have misunderstood his hon.
friend, and he would not make the remarks that he had intended.
The Government could always count on the patriotic assistance of
the Opposition on matters of such importance.

Hon. Sir A.-T. GALT said that the returns on this question
brought down last year, were very short and he would be glad that
his hon. friend would see that the returns this year were more
complete—as much so as was compatible with the public interests.

The House then adjourned at 4.05.
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Thursday, February 16, 1871

The SPEAKER took the chair at 3 p.m.

Prayers

Mr. MAGILL presented the first report of this Hochelaga
Election Committee.

* * %

NEW MEMBER

Mr. FOURNIER the new member for Bellechasse, was
introduced by Hon. Mr. DORION and Mr. GEOFFRION, and
took his seat. Mr. BAKER, the member for Missisquoi, having
taken the oath, also took his seat.

* * %

THE MANITOBA REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. MACKENZIE asked for information regarding the
representation from the Province of Manitoba. By the Act of last
session four members were to be elected as representatives of that
province to seats in the House. No information had been received
concerning the issue of the writs for those elections, or whether the
elections had taken place, or whether that province was to remain
unrepresented during the present session. It had been agreed that the
Bill as passed in that relation was wholly unconstitutional, and
opposed to the Federal system, under which we politically exist,
and if he recollected aright, the Hon. Premier admitted last session
that it might be necessary to apply to the Imperial Parliament to
execute the provisions of that Bill—in other words to give them
legal force as the law of the land. He (Mr. Mackenzie) thought the
House was entitled to know what steps had been taken as regarded
this matter, for it was generally admitted by gentlemen well
informed on the subject, that the House had exceeded its powers.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD quite recognized the right
of the hon. gentleman to ask the question, and he would try to
answer it, although it might have been more satisfactory to have
waited the submission of the papers on the subject. Perhaps the
papers would have answered the question themselves. The first duty
imposed upon the Lieutenant-Governor of the new Province of
Manitoba was the completion of a census of the people with all
convenient speed. That census was undertaken and finished in a
manner which the papers would show was satisfactory and above
all suspicion of error. The moment the census was taken, the
Lieutenant-Governor reported to His Excellency the Governor
General the result of the census and the divisions into which, for

electoral purposes, the new province had been made. On the receipt
of that despatch, without further delay, writs had been issued and
sent up to Manitoba, and the Government expected to hear every
moment the result of those elections, quoad the members returned
to this House.

As regards the question of the legality of the seats of those
gentlemen, or of the representative system provided into the
Manitoba Act of last session, the question was, he thought, first
raised by the hon. member for Halton. In his (Hon. Sir John A.
Macdonald’s) reply to that question, he stated there was in his
opinion a doubt as to the appointments to the Senate, and perhaps as
to some other clauses of the Bill, and that they would be carefully
considered; and that if it was thought on mature consideration there
was any doubt as to the constitutionality of those provisions, steps
would be taken to secure their ‘‘constitutionalization,’” if he could
use such a word, by an Act of the Imperial Parliament. On his
return to Ottawa, after an absence of some months, he examined the
case carefully, and made a report upon it, which was made the basis
of an order in Council, which was transmitted by His Excellency to
the Secretary of State in England. They had received in return the
draft of a Bill for the purpose of confirming that Act and all the
proceedings under it, and also making all provision for the future,
with which he would not now trouble the House. As regarded the
other provisions, they might be dealt with so as to settle once for all
the affairs of the province. He trusted the settlement or
arrangements effected could be transmitted to England by the next
mail, with the object of submission to the Imperial Parliament.

Mr. MACKENZIE asked if it was the intention of the
Government not to nominate the Senators for Manitoba till this Bill
passed the Imperial Parliament.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said his hon. friend ought to
give notice of that question.

Mr. MACKENZIE thought not. The people were represented in
the other House as well as in this, and it was certainly the duty of
the Government to inform the House whether the people of
Manitoba were to remain for the present unrepresented in the
Senate. Had the Government appointed the Manitoba Senators?

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said it was the intention of
the Government that Manitoba should be represented in both
branches of the Legislature during the present session. It would be
an anomaly to have the people represented in one House and not in
another. Perhaps by concert with the hon. gentlemen opposite it
might be arranged, so that without raising any question of
constitutionality the representatives of Manitoba might be allowed
to take their places in the other House also, pending the receipt of
the Bill from England.
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Mr. MACKENZIE said that would be a matter for
consideration.

* * %

THE FISHERIES QUESTION

Hon. Sir A.-T. GALT wished to know if the Government
proposed to proceed with the debate on the address at once. He had
given special consideration to the American question referred to in
His Excellency’s speech, and holding the opinion he did on the
subject, it might be his duty to move for some expression of the
House concerning it. The time was so short between the present
moment, and that when the Commission would sit, that if any
expression of the opinion of this House could have effect upon the
action of the Commission, he thought it was necessary that it should
be given at an early day. He did not see how it could be done at any
other time than during the debate on the address. It was quite true
that there would be an embarrassment felt in the absence of the
correspondence asked for yesterday by the hon. member opposite,
but he trusted that that embarrassment would be greatly relieved by
the explanations which, he had no doubt, the hon. gentlemen in the
Government would make. He might say with regard to one branch
of that correspondence, he thought the Government were in a
position to give it to the House before going on with the debates. He
referred to that which had taken place before last year. On the 9th of
March last year, copies of correspondence relating to the protection
of the fisheries were asked for. On the 9th of May, he found, on the
reference to the journals of the House, the Hon. Minister of Militia
had brought down a short despatch from Earl Granville to the effect
that a portion of the fleet in the North American waters would be
detailed for the purposes of protecting the fisheries and preserving
order. The despatch was very short—only some four lines. The
House was told that there was other correspondence which would
be brought down without delay. It was not laid before the House,
however, and had not appeared during the recess. Now, he thought
if that correspondence were laid before the House it would put them
in possession of the facts, at any rate up to the period previous to
the recent apparent change of policy on the part of the Imperial
Government on this question. He hoped that the Government would
see that the House was placed in possession of the correspondence,
believing, as he did, that it was his duty to call attention more
particularly to the circumstances attending the appointment of the
Joint Commission which had been announced. The question
involved in the debate was of such gravity, and was related so
closely to the most important interests of this country, that he
thought it would be very improper, he might say, to permit almost
the only chance the House would have to express their opinion on
the subject to pass without giving full consideration to it. He
thought that there was no particular object in detaining the House at
this moment, as the House did not know what would be the
language contained in its reply to the Address.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said with regard to the
copies of the Address, they would be laid before the House in a
very short time. He would repeat to his hon. friend from Sherbrooke
what he had said yesterday, that the reply would be so framed that
this House would not be asked to commit themselves to the policy
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of the Government. Of course they were in the hands of the House
with respect to going on with the debate today or having it
postponed. The discussion on the Address had now become merely
formal in England, and an amendment was never moved except in
the way of a vote of want of confidence. In fact, no matter what
information the House might obtain by papers being laid on the
table, they and the country at large would receive from the
discussion expressions altogether unsatisfactory. While the
Government were thankful to the hon. gentleman for Sherbrooke
for his kind notice as to his intentions with respect to this matter, it
was a question whether his motion would not receive more justice
at the hands of the House and at his own hands if it were a
substantial motion on the Orders of the Day. Those papers that the
Government could with any propriety, and without decided injury
to the public interests, furnish, would be laid on the table without
delay, and then, of course, his hon. friend could have every
opportunity to discuss the matter. If the House wished to postpone
the debate till tomorrow the Government would do so.

Mr. MACKENZIE quite concurred in the desire expressed by
the hon. member for Sherbrooke respecting the correspondence
relative to the fisheries. He (Mr. Mackenzie) asked for it yesterday,
believing that in a matter of such grave importance to our natural
existence, it was exceedingly desirous, almost necessary he might
say, that the House should, who had been elected, had been
introduced, discuss the debate on the speech of His Excellency. The
Government refused his request, though why he did not see, for the
Hon. Premier intimated his intention to bring it down after the
debate on the Address. If anything should constitute an exception,
this case should. With regard to the general question of proceeding
with the debate, he would say that unless the correspondence asked
for were brought down there was no necessity for delay.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON believed that this House should follow as
closely as possible the practice of the Imperial House of Commons.
In that body the debate on the Queen’s speech lately took place on
the same day that it was delivered. If he were disposed to find any
fault with the Government it would be because they did not proceed
with the debate on His Excellency’s address yesterday. Seeing that
the Hon. Minister of Justice refused to bring down the papers in
advance of the discussion, there could be no good reason why the
discussion should not proceed at once.

(Applause.)

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT said that if he was to understand the
Premier would afford him an opportunity after the papers were
brought down, of obtaining the opinion of this House on the points
he desired to bring before it, he would not stand in the way of the
address.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD: Certainly.

Hon. Sir A. T. GALT reminded the hon. gentleman there was
always a difficulty in making a substantive motion; sometimes it
was got rid of by moving the previous question. He did not intend
his motion should be so disposed of. He was perfectly prepared to
let the matter stand over; but there were considerations higher than
mere parliamentary convenience, and among them was the
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obtainment of the opinion of this House in reference to the
important matters to be dealt with by the approaching International
Commission. The Hon. Premier was soon to leave for Washington.
No discussion of the fishery or other questions, to come before the
Commission, would be of the slightest advantage if it were to
follow the departure of the leader of the Government. He thought it
was their bounden duty to strengthen the hands of their
representative on that Commission by every means in their power.
He proposed to do so by a resolution. If the Government promised
him an early opportunity of doing so—say Monday or Tuesday, he
would not stand in the way of the immediate passage of the address.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD promised the early
opportunity solicited. He quite recognised the importance of these
subjects, and the propriety of the discussion before he left for
Washington.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT said he was satisfied with that statement,
as he believed fair play would be given him.

The matter then dropped.

* * %

THE DEBATE ON THE ADDRESS

Mr. LACERTE rose to propose the address in reply to His
Excellency’s Speech from the Throne. Taking up the various
paragraphs, he spoke briefly on each, as usual, expressing
concurrence in the different views therein set forth, and
complimenting the Government on its administrative policy. He
referred particularly to the Fenian enterprise of last spring, and the
wise and vigorous efforts put forth for its overthrow. He hoped the
House would fully sustain the Administration in this matter by
voting the additional expenditure it was compelled to incur. He was
glad at the prospect of the settlement of the fishery dispute, and
believed everything would be done to protect Canada’s interests.
Fortunately the Red River trouble was ended, thanks to the
judicious and conciliatory action of the Government, and to the
exertions and bravery of the Volunteers. The Dominion was in a
prosperous condition, largely owing to the wisdom of Ministers,
who deserved the confidence of Parliament and the people. He had
much pleasure in moving the Address.

Mr. KIRKPATRICK rose to second the motion. The topics of
the speech well deserved the compliments paid them. Scarcely had
the Parliament been prorogued last summer when hordes of
miscreants from the United States suddenly assembled on our
frontier to pillage and ravage our land. To add to the infamy and
offensiveness of this outrage, those marauders chose for the time of
their unwarranted operations, the day above all, dear to loyal British
subjects, the Queen’s birthday. The hostile movement was, thanks
to the bravery and loyalty of our volunteers and the troops of the
Queen, hurled back in disgrace from our border. He hoped and
doubted not the House would cheerfully vote the extra expenses
entailed by this attempted Fenian invasion.

The next subject of the Speech was the Fisheries, and it was but
truth to say that the action of the Canadian Government in regard to

them had met with the approbation of the whole country. The
reference of General Grant to the action of Canada exhibited both
ignorance and prejudice. The Dominion had but acted within its
right, and it was certain The next subject in the speech was that of
Manitoba. No better Governor could have been chosen than him
who is now de facto, if not de jure in power. The improvements
already witnessed in Manitoba prove the judiciousness of the efforts
made to suppress disorder and rebellion, and set up the authority of
Canada. The brave Volunteers who had been instrumental in
securing those happy results, deserved the thanks of the country.
When disbanded he believed they were entitled to grants of land in
Manitoba. No better settlers could be chosen, and in justice to them,
and in the interests of the Province, everything should be done to
retain them in the North West.

The proposed admission of British Columbia and Vancouver
Island was a subject of satisfaction to us all. The great scheme of
Confederation was being rapidly consummated. Those great
territories, so rich in natural resources, would be a great acquisition
to Canada, and everything possible should be done to unite them to
her by a Pacific Railway, grants of land, and, if possible, pecuniary
contributions, should be made in aid of such enterprises.

There is little doubt that in this way they could be achieved.
Immigrants were necessary to development of the great resources of
the Pacific colonies, and good, rapid communications were
indispensable to the attraction of immigration. The next subject of
the Speech was the Fisheries, and it was but truth to say that the
action of the Canadian Government in regard to them had met with
the approbation of the whole country. The reference of General
Grant to the action of Canada exhibited both ignorance and
prejudice. The Dominion had but acted within its right, and it was
certain that action was justified by the approval of the Government
of England also. However, a Joint Commission had been appointed
to consider the Fishery question and that relating to events
connected with the last war, and from it he thought Canada had
nothing to fear. He hoped, however, that the injury done to Canada
by repeated Fenian raids would form one of the subjects discussed,
and that indemnity for our losses thereby would be as rigorously
required as was indemnity for the losses from the Alabama.

The improvement of our coinage system and other proposals of
the speech would be cordially received. The interests of the country
demanded such ameliorations. The general administration of the
affairs of the Dominion had been beneficial, as its progress and
prosperity amply testified. He could but concur in the closing
aspiration of the Speech from the Throne, upon which the future
happiness and advancement of Canada would largely depend.

Mr. MACKENZIE said that it was important in opening the
grant inquest of the nation, that they should review the
administration of affairs and foreign events, while abstaining from
unusual criticism. Tremendous events had taken place since the last
session, including those of a gigantic and disastrous war. It was but
right he should express his sympathy with the sacrifices and
sufferings of that great nation, being the friend and ally of England.
He did hope that France would not suffer much either in feeling or
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interest in the forthcoming treaty of peace. (Hear, hear.) Coming to
the position of Canada, it was but right her relations towards the
United States should receive attention. President Grant had spoken
of it as a semi-independent position and there was truth in this view
of it. Doubtless it was on this account that we had been continually
and systematically subjected to offensive remarks and ill judged
acts of administration from the people of the United States. The
inhabitants of this country had reason for complaint on this head,
but were not willing to submit to ill will or aversion with the object
of forcing them from their present constitutional position. That
policy he for one repudiated in the strongest possible terms, and he
announced his strongest opposition to yielding any of our rights to
an arrogant demand from them. (Hear, hear.) If we were to
maintain an independent position on this continent we must
cultivate that natural love of liberty which prevailed in our midst,
and maintain our natural rights intact.

It was for this reason he desired to have the correspondence
relating to this question brought down. He desired to know whether
an attempt had been made by the Imperial Government to force
negotiations upon us, with an object naturally hostile to our rights.
The hon. member who seconded the address expressed a hope that
the matter of the Fenian movement would be brought down before
the Joint Commission. If it were to be discussed by them, he saw no
indication of it. He had read all the information he could find
relating to it, and no mention of our claims appeared in it. If it were
so, the British Minister at Washington was much to blame. Nothing
could be more arrogant and ridiculous than the claims put forward
by the President of the United States to the free navigation of the St.
Lawrence. The instances referred to by the President were all cases
which were settled by treaty. He (Mr. Mackenzie) was disposed to
giving all facilities to the commerce of our neighbours, but he was
not disposed to concede to them as a right what was manifestly an
unjust claim.

With regard to the fishery question, he believed that it was an
unwise concession to give up for a moment our claim to the
headland boundary line. He was not able to congratulate the House
on the condition of affairs in Manitoba. If he were asked to
congratulate them that the men who had rebelled against the
Government of Canada were the very ones who had received
offices and held power, that loyal men had been rigorously
excluded from places of trust, and that the murderers of poor Scott
were still at large, he might congratulate the House. He was not in
favour of punishing the poor dupes of a few designing men, but he
believed that the men who had been guilty of stirring up rebellion
and executing an innocent man should not be allowed to go free of
punishment. He would simply recall the past to say that these men
should receive the punishment they deserved, and to say that the
men who had been loyal to Canada should not be excluded from
places of honour and trust.

He would now refer to the recent additions which had been made
to the Cabinet. The hon. member for Cumberland had gone before
his constituents and made some remarkable statements to them. He
(Mr. Mackenzie) held in his hand a copy of the speech referred to,
and he would just read a portion of it to the House. It would be
noticed that the hon. gentleman with characteristic modesty had
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spoken of his own great services to the Government, and to the
country at large. (Here Mr. Mackenzie read an extract from the
speech, commenting on it humorously amid the laughter of the
House.) The hon. member for Cumberland had boasted that he had
secured an increase of his following. That he brought with him
fifteen members to the support of the Government. He
congratulated the hon. member on his increasing influence. He was
pleased also to notice the friendship which had grown up between
his hon. friend and the hon. member for Hants. Times had changed
since the two hon. members were opposed to each other. He (Mr.
Mackenzie) made these statements in order that the speech of the
hon. member from Cumberland should receive the publicity it
deserved. The Ministerial journals seemed to have slighted the hon.
member in this matter. None of them published it. It was true the
Ottawa Times in a short paragraph had remarked that it was too
important to be passed over without notice. The speech, it was
evident, was never intended to circulate outside of Cumberland.

After referring to the course which the Government pursued
towards the hon. member for North Lanark, Mr. Mackenzie spoke
at some length on the subject of the Intercolonial Railway, and the
causes which led to the ultimate choice of the Northern Route. The
hon. member for North Lanark had given a very full explanation in
his pamphlet, recently published, of this matter. (Here Mr.
Mackenzie read an extract from the pamphlet referring to it). While
he (Mr. Mackenzie) looked with regret at the great loss to the
country caused by the choice of the Northern Route, he was not
sure that the Dominion had not derived some gain since certain
members of the Government had been induced to acquiesce in the
acquisition of the North-West Territory. He spoke at some length of
the Fenian raid of last spring. He could not believe that the United
States Government had exercised all their influence to prevent that
raid. During last year, in Utah the Mormons organized a militia
force and commenced to drill them openly. They were at once put
down by the State authorities. Now, he contended that the
municipal authorities on the frontier, if they had been disposed to
deal with Canada in a friendly spirit, might have treated the Fenians
in a similar manner. If they possessed the power in the one case,
they certainly did in the other. The Government at Washington had
certainly acted in the most prompt and friendly manner as soon as
representations were made to them by the Canadian authorities.

In conclusion he would say that every member should recognize
constituted authority and, in everything that related to the welfare of
the country, the Government should have the earnest and cordial
support of the Opposition. On the other hand, he should lose no
opportunity, as he was bound to do in his position in the House, to
point out the grievous results of the present administration on the
interests of the country.

(Cheers.)

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said the hon. member for
Lambton in his anxiety to fill up his half hour speech, as Leader of
the Opposition found it necessary to take up the election speech of
the hon. member for Cumberland and criticize it. If the hon.
gentleman had had anything in his mind that he thought he could
bring out against the Government, he would have done so; but the
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hon. gentleman was as mild as he possibly could be, and although
the administrative policy of the Government was so disastrous, and
although it was the duty of the hon. member to protest against that
disastrous policy, yet he had not condescended to notice the facts he
condemned, but he told them exactly that there had been a series of
extraordinary statements made by the hon. member for
Cumberland, and that to secure his return to this House, the hon.
member had been obliged to bring up these statements. The
Government considered this and he (Hon. Sir John A. Macdonald)
accepted it as the judgment of his hon. friend in favour of the
Government. (Laughter.) He could not as a consistent member of
the Opposition approve of their course, and he could not condemn
them, and so was silent. (Renewed Laughter.)

The hon. member admitted that the House had met in a season of
prosperity, and under prosperous circumstances. It was true, the
hon. gentleman remarked that it was so, but then, it was owing to
the exertions of the people themselves, and in no degree attributable
to the administration of the Government. He (Hon. Sir John A.
Macdonald) would admit that it was so, and the Government
congratulated themselves that Providence smiled on them while
they were in power, and that they had a comfortable majority of the
people’s representatives with them. He agreed with the hon.
member that we all should feel sympathy for the ancient ally of
England in her troubles; but he could not agree with the hon.
member that this was the day of her greatest humiliation. There
never was a time in the history of France when her future appeared
brighter. She would rise renovated by her great trial to her old
place, and be one of the first powers of Europe, if she had ever
ceased to occupy that position; and he had no doubt that England
and France would again and again act in concert as the foremost
nations of modern civilization. (Hear, hear.)

With reference to the remarks of the hon. member respecting the
fishery question, he would inform him that the Government were
fully aware of their responsibility, and they were pleased to observe
that their course in recent events had met with general approval
throughout the country; and he would tell the hon. member that he
need be under no apprehension, although he had expressed it, that
England, our old Mother Land, would ever act the part the hon.
member apprehended—to sacrifice our interests for the sake of any
advantage to herself, or any desire to settle any question between
the United States and herself. That was not the course that Mother
England and the people of England would pursue. If any
Government in England could sacrifice our interests for their own
advantage, the people of England would reject them with scorn. He
could assure his hon. friend that he would find that England was
now, as she had always been, a fostering mother, careful of our
interests and rights, and ready as she had always shown herself in
the past, to protect us with all her force and might and power.

(Applause.)

He would not make any remarks respecting the observations of
his hon. friend on the Fenian invasion, and about the claims which
Canada of right had in consequence of the outrages upon our
border, and the losses and expenses brought upon our people by
those invasions. The hon. member would find that in this, too, the

Canadian Government had taken every step necessary to press our
claims to a conclusion. He could only assure his hon. friend that if
they were not settled it would not be the fault of this Government.
He would not enter into a discussion of the matter just at present, as
they had already arranged on the papers that this subject should be
taken up hereafter.

His hon. friend had said that he would not join in the
congratulations on the state of peace existing in Manitoba. He (Hon.
Sir John A. Macdonald) thought that it was a matter of
congratulation to every well-ordered mind to see peace, quiet, rule
and law brought into a country where all these had been absent. He
thought it was a greater matter of congratulation that the accession
of that country to the Dominion of Canada had not been made at the
sacrifice of a single drop of blood; that the march of the soldiers,
both regular and militia, was a peaceable one; that the only
difficulties were those offered by the wildness of the country
through which they proceeded; and that they were received, as the
House had hoped they would be, as friends, brothers, fellow
citizens, persons whose advent would be welcomed, and not
persons to be feared. It was a matter of great consolation that there
had been no blood shed in the acquisition of the North West, and
that although mistakes had been made, yet those errors led to no
serious consequence, except, perhaps, the expenditure of a little
money. The Union had been finally accomplished, and ere long the
representatives from Manitoba would take their seats in this House.
Granting all that had been said as to the mismanagement of the
Canadian Government in consummating the union, to be correct,
still it was a matter of congratulation that the union had taken place
in harmony and peace, without the loss of one single life in the
attempt to effect that union. The hon. member had remarked that he
could not enter into congratulations that the murderers of a
Canadian subject should have escaped justice. The hon. member
was not asked for such congratulations. The Red River country was
a British country at the time the crime was committed, although
British law was for the time suspended. But British law and
institutions existed there, and by the consent and voice of the people
of Canada and their Parliament the people of the North West had
now got a legislature and Government of their own, on whom were
thrown the responsibility of the administration of the laws, and on
whom was also thrown the establishment of courts of civil and
criminal jurisdiction, and the protection of the life, liberty and
property of the people, and the punishment of offenders against
them.

He would ask his hon. friend why he had introduced this subject,
or why he spoke of it all? Would he point out in what mode the
Government of Canada, or the tribunals, or the constituted
authorities of Canada could in any way have prevented the act? The
hon. member knew that until the 15th of July last, when the act of
Union was consummated, the North West was in no way connected
with Canada except as a portion of the British Empire. Canada
could no more have interfered in Manitoba than in any other colony
of Great Britain. Canada had no control, no power, no authority. It
was simply this, so long as that colony had its own Government,
they were responsible for the protection of life and property, and for
the administration of justice; and when that power was overthrown
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it was for Her Majesty only, in her Imperial capacity and with the
Imperial authority in the tribunals of Great Britain, to bring any
offenders to justice. The moment that the Province became united
with the Dominion it had a local Government of its own, and on
that local Government, by the act of this Parliament, was thrown the
obligation of punishing offenders. The people of Manitoba must be
left as free people to manage their own institutions and protect their
own people. He did not see that his hon. friend was at all justified in
obtruding this discussion on the House during this debate. It was
their duty, instead of trying to arouse man against man, and to keep
alive such matters, to throw oil in the troubled waters and suppress
hostile feelings, which were natural enough, but much to be
deplored. He believed the laws would be fairly administered in
Manitoba, and that life and property would be held just as sacred
and safe there as they were in the older and larger province of
Ontario.

His hon. friend had spoken of the Intercolonial Railway, and
promised that at an early day he would bring up that subject.
Having promised so much, he (Hon. Sir John A. Macdonald) would
promise another. He would promise that his hon. friends’
statements, whatever they might be, if they were against the action
of the Government or any subordinate engaged on the line, that
there would be a full, complete and satisfactory answer—if not
satisfactory to his hon. friend, at least satisfactory to this House and
to the country. (Hear, hear.)

He would make no reply to the remarks of his hon. friend,
respecting the hon. member for Lanark. At the proper time, there
would be a frank and free discussion of all that he had alluded to.
He must protect against the course of the hon. member for Lambton
with respect to a friend of his in this House. The hon. gentleman
had mentioned a rumor reflecting on that gentleman. It was easy to
get up a rumor. It might be done by inserting a paragraph in a
newspaper, and many had been so created in order to give an hon.
member an opportunity to say he saw such and such in a certain
paper. There should be no quotation of rumors in this House,
respecting the character or conduct of persons in public life. The
British system should be followed—that no member of Parliament
shall make statements that he cannot verify or does not honestly
believe to be strictly true.

The House rose for recess at 6.10 p.m.

AFTER RECESS

The debate on the address was resumed.

Mr. BOWN said that the Government deserved censure for the
manner in which affairs had been managed in Manitoba since the
organization of that Province. Loyal men had been allowed to go
unrewarded, while those who had imprisoned and shot loyal men
had been appointed to places of honour and trust. The conciliation
policy pursued by the Lieutenant Governor was favourable to men
who had acted in opposition to law, and compassion to such men
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was the greatest cruelty that could be inflicted on those who had
stood up for Canada in her time of need. The Lieutenant-Governor
had early shown where his sympathies lay by going to reside in the
Hudson’s Bay Company’s fort and receiving hospitality there. It
was evident from the manner in which he had acted in the matter of
Scott’s death and in other circumstances, that his mind had been
biased in favour of the late rebel party.

Dr. Bown criticised the conduct of the authorities in Manitoba in
the inquiry respecting the death of Depoti, which was held with
closed doors, the principal object seeming to be to fasten his death
on the Canadians. The arrest of Riel had not been effected though
he had been in the territory after the arrival of the Lieutenant-
Governor. There was some secret cause for this, and it was evident
that the Lieutenant-Governor’s mind had been biased. As to the
elections which had been held in the new Province, seven or eight
of the candidates who had been elected had been introduced from
the Quebec Province. It might be said that Lieutenant-Governor
Archibald had nothing to do with this, but, if so, why did he permit
three of these men, not qualified by the Act, to take places in his
cabinet? As to the murder of Mr. Scott, it would be far better to let
it rest than that there should be a mere mockery of a trial. He hoped
the Government would open up a way of communications to the
North West without delay, for the present route would not be
available for two years. He hoped the Government would make up
the losses which loyal men had incurred in the new Province during
the late rebellion.

Mr. MASSON (Terrebonne) agreed with the Hon. Premier that
the Government had no jurisdiction in the matter of the murder of
Mr. Scott. It should not be forgotten, however, that no less than six
counties in Manitoba had offered to return Riel as their
representative. Why did Mr. Bown attack the Government now,
when he supported the Manitoba Bill last year?

Mr. BOWN said he did not know things would have turned out
as they did.

Mr. MASSON (Terrebonne) said this was no excuse. As to
Riel, it had been asserted that he had been in Manitoba since the
entry of our troops, but he (Mr. Masson) had good authority for
saying this was not a fact.

He referred to the relations existing between the Mother Country
and the colonies, and said there was an uncertainty in the minds of
the people, since the withdrawal of the troops, whether Britain
proposed to sever the connection with Canada or not. Some even
supposed that she would look to the colonies for help in time of
trouble, instead of the latter looking to the former under
circumstances of difficulty. We should learn from the Government
whether the withdrawal of the troops indicates England’s desire to
get rid of us, and whether, since we have formed a confederation,
we shall be expected to help her in the time of her need. The
Minister of Militia ought to enlighten the House on this important
subject before the Militia estimates are brought down. There was
discussion going on about independence, but would it not be better
to know at once the intention of the Imperial Government, or to
adopt such a position as in plain language would only cause us to
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fight in our own quarrels. In our present position the feeling in
favour of independence was spreading.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS [excitedly]: No, no.

Mr. MASSON (Terrebonne): Yes, yes. The feeling was
spreading. He appealed to the Government if they wished to
continue the connection with England, as he did to enlighten the
House on the intention of the Imperial Government, for Mr.
Cardwell, a member of that Government; had recently delivered a
speech the argument of which was that the colonies should in future
act for the defence of England, or be feeders and not suckers.

Mr. MILLS said the Federal system made it necessary that each
Province should have an independent governmental existence. Such
could not be given to any Province by this Parliament. He had
called attention to this fact last year, and was glad the Minister of
Justice had changed his views in this respect. (Hear, hear.) As to
the murder of Scott, it was still competent for the Government of
Canada to authorize the trial and punishment of Riel. The Minister
of Justice had said that this Government had no power to cause the
arrest of the murderers of Scott. This was not so. The Hudson’s Bay
Company were bound by the Imperial Government to transfer to
Canada, for trial and punishment, persons guilty of higher crimes
than misdemeanour. It was still competent for the Government of
Canada to authorize the trial and punishment of Riel, and it was
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also competent for the Lieutenant-Governor of Manitoba to ask for
extradition.

The second paragraph of the address was agreed to.

Hon. Mr. DORION on the proposal of the adoption of the
paragraph relating to the admission of British Columbia, protested
that he knew nothing of the merits of the terms of this admission,
and declared his unwillingness to express blindfold any concurrence
in the Government’s Pacific Railway scheme. If it was to be one of
the character of the Intercolonial Railway, he would give it his
strenuous opposition. He could not approve of the wording of the
paragraph.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD consented to a verbal
alteration to meet the objection of the last speaker. The change was
of a non-committal character, and thus modified, the clause was
adopted.

The remaining paragraphs were read and concurred in without
debate, and the address, being read a second time, was agreed to.

After the usual formal resolutions in regard to the address and its
presentation, Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD gave notice of an
address of congratulation to Lord Lisgar on the distinguished
honour recently conferred upon him by Her Majesty.

The House adjourned at a quarter past nine.
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HOUSE OF COMMONS

Friday, February 17, 1871

The SPEAKER took the chair at three o’clock.

Prayers

Several petitions and motions were presented.

* * %

LACHINE CANAL BRIDGE

Hon. Mr. HOLTON asked if the Grand Trunk Railway had
asked permission to erect an additional bridge on or near the
Lachine Canal, at the Wellington Bridge, Montreal, and if so, when
the permission was applied for and when granted.

Hon. Mr. LANGEVIN said the Railway company was allowed
to cross the canal with a swing bridge at Wellington Street, to be
built at the place and in the stead of the existing bridge, and subject
to the conditions he would lay before the House.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON: When was the permission applied for, and
when granted?

Hon. Mr. LANGEVIN: Applied for on 17th January, 1871, and
granted 28th January.

GRAND TRUNK RETURNS

Mr. MACKENZIE moved for returns of statements, showing
the gross earnings of the Grand Trunk Railway during certain
years.—Carried.

* * %

NORTH WEST INSTRUCTIONS

Mr. MACKENZIE moved an address for copies of all
instructions to Lieutenant-Governor Archibald, also copies of all
reports and official correspondence between the Lieutenant-
Governor and the Dominion Government from the date of his
appointment.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said that while no objection
would be urged to furnishing the returns asked for, it would be as
well to mention exactly the papers which were wanted. There was a
very large amount of correspondence continually passing between

the Local Government and the Dominion Government, only a
portion of which could be of any service to the hon. member.

Mr. MACKENZIE said he only wished to obtain that portion
relative to the new system of Government, the division of the
Province into electoral districts, and everything, in fact, connected
with the new order of things. He did not want the formal
correspondence.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER called the attention of the
hon. member to the fact that Lieutenant-Governor Archibald was
the Governor of the North West Territory as well as of Manitoba,
and correspondence relevant to both capacities should be included.

The motion was amended in accordance with the suggestion, and
carried.

* % %
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS submitted the public accounts for
the year.

(Applause.)
Mr. MACKENZIE: It will save us a great deal of trouble.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS also laid on the table details of
expenditure for the defence of the country.

Mr. MACKENZIE: Perhaps the hon. member will give us
details of all the expenditure from the fund for unforeseen expenses.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS said they would be submitted in a
few days.

BRITISH COLUMBIA CORRESPONDENCE
MOTIONS

Mr. MACKENZIE moved for an address for copies of all
correspondence between the Government and British Columbia, its
delegates, or the Imperial Government relative to the admission of
such colony into the Dominion; also copies of all orders in council
or other documents relating to such negotiation.—Carried.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said all correspondence
would be brought down by message, and the motion was
unnecessary.
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INTERCOLONIAL TENDERS

Mr. MACKENZIE moved for an order of the House for copies
of all Tenders for Works on the Intercolonial Railway since the last
return, and in the same form; also copies of advertisements calling
for such Tenders, the names of the newspapers in which such
advertisements were inserted, and amount paid for same; also
copies of Tenders received for locomotives or other rolling stock,
and for rails with the same information regarding advertisements;
also a statement showing the number of engineers, and engineers’
assistants, pay-masters and other employees in each District and
Section on the 1st day of July 1870, and also the number of men
employed in each Contract Section on that day; also copies of all
reports of Engineers, Commissioners or others regarding the change
made from the route selected by Major Robinson between Bathurst
and the Miramichi River; also copies of all correspondence between
the Railway Commissioners and the Government, relative to
contracts and all orders in Council relative to such correspondence
of contracts.—Carried.

* * %

IMPERIAL CORRESPONDENCE ON NORTH WEST

Mr. MACKENZIE moved for an address to His Excellency the
Governor General for copies of all correspondence between the
Dominion Government and the Imperial Government concerning
the North West Territories since November 1st, 1869 with copies of
all orders in Council or other documents relative thereto; also
copies of all correspondence with the Commander-in-Chief and the
Commanding Officer of the Expedition, and copies of all orders in
Council or other documents relating to the expedition; also a
statement in detail of all expenses incurred in connection with
sending the Military expedition giving the names of parties
receiving money, and stating the nature of the service and whether
by contract or otherwise.—Carried.

* * %

LEASING GOVERNMENT LAND

Hon. Mr. HOLTON moved an address for copies of all
correspondence, reports of engineers, or other documents, relating
to the leasing by the Government to the Montreal Warehousing
Company of a lot of land bordering on the Lachine Canal. He said
he feared the Government had committed a serious error in regard
to this matter. Five or six years ago a lot of land on the Lachine
Canal had been purchased by the Government for the extension of
harbor facilities in Montreal. It was allowed to lie fallow, so to
speak, a long time, but during last summer or autumn was leased to
a private company, the Montreal Warehousing Company, for a long
term of years, as he was informed, at a rental considerably less than
the interest on the cost of the lot. The Government were mistaken in
leasing, or lending this lot at all to private parties. But admitting
they were right in diverting it from public to private uses, it should
have been put up to public competition.

Hon. Mr. LANGEVIN thought no opinion should have been
given in this matter till the papers were laid before the House. A
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discussion would then be in order. He had no doubt those papers
would satisfy the House the Government had acted right in this
matter.

The motion was carried.

* k% %

AMERICAN SILVER

Hon. Mr. HOLTON then moved for a statement of the amount
of American silver withdrawn from circulation and the details of the
expenses, and so forth, thereby incurred; and also a statement
showing the total amount of the new issue of silver coin, the cost of
coinage and the profit of the Government resulting from the issue.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS said there could be no objection
to giving this information. But he thought he would only do right in
taking the earliest opportunity of stating what the action of the
Government had been with respect to the removal of this coin. He
would not enlarge at present on the very great loss and
inconvenience to the country, resulting from the circulation of this
American silver. On his acceptance of office, he found that the
subject engaged the very serious consideration of the House during
the previous session. He found that during that session a large
special committee had been appointed, of which the hon. member
for North Oxford was the chairman, for the purpose of investigating
the matter. They reported a number of resolutions, and
recommended that the plan adopted by Government in 1868, by
which silver to the amount of one million was purchased and
exported, be again tried, or that the Government should in some
way withdraw silver to the amount of five millions from the
circulation of the country.

The last resolution was not adopted by the House, and it seemed
to him that the plan adopted by his predecessor did not meet with
their approval. From the best information that he (Hon. Sir Francis
Hincks) could obtain—and he might say that the result had rather
confirmed his impression—the estimated amount of silver in the
country which had been in circulation for a period of about five
years past, was something about $10,000,000. Under the operations
of Mr. Wier, it cost a good deal to remove the silver from
circulation. When the Government took up this matter, they were of
opinion that it was exceedingly desirable that the public should be
put to as little cost as possible. He believed that a scheme could
have been devised for removing the silver, by which the country
would incur no expense, but it would have been opposed. It would
be remembered that the coin was received in the first place at four
per cent, afterwards it was increased to five and then to six per cent,
at which it stopped, and, he might say, after all the coin had been
received. If it had been put down to six per cent at first, it would
have paid all the expenses of removal.

He would like, before sitting down, to call the attention of the
House to the enormous loss which the public sustained by the
circulation of this silver. They knew that nine millions of dollars
were exported, and it was estimated that between one and a quarter
and one and a half millions of dollars remained in circulation in the
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country. Therefore, there was upwards of ten millions in circulation.
Now, from the best information he could obtain, six millions of this
amount changed hands every month, which would give for the
twelve months of the year, a circulation of $72,000,000. He saw his
hon. friends (Hon. Mr. Holton and Mr. Mackenzie) smiling, but he
would tell them that estimate had been carefully prepared. On this
$72,000,000 at the broker’s rate 14 per cent commission, there was
an actual loss of $180,000 per year, which would give for the five
years a loss of $900,000. But that was not the whole loss. There was
besides a loss of four per cent which might be fairly calculated,
making a total loss during the five years of between fourteen and
fifteen millions of dollars. The hon. gentlemen opposite smiled, and
no doubt would argue that if one class of persons lost another
gained this money. He would not deny the fact, but there was an
actual loss on the six millions of dollars in circulation, nevertheless.
It displaced six millions of bank notes, and thereby diminished the
actual amount of the capital of the country by six millions. If it was
an advantage to the country to employ the paper to take the place of
gold, it must be so.

Mr. MILLS: Is not silver capital?
Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER: It was depreciated capital.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS: It was clear that six millions in
bank notes could not be employed, owing to the circulation in the
country of foreign silver.

Mr. MACKENZIE: That is, it reduced the profits of the banks
on that amount.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS: It was a loss to the country at
large, and he therefore entered into communication with Mr. Wier,
of Montreal, whose name had been brought into discussion last
year, to see whether the silver could be removed without any risk
whatever to the public, on the same terms and at the same cost as in
his previous operation on one million dollars, the accounts of which
had been laid before the House, and had been considered
unobjectionable by the Committee. He had the satisfaction of
knowing that although the cost of removing $4,800,000 under this
operation was very nearly the same as in the other case, still the
difference was slightly in favor of the last. Of course, a great deal of
this silver was sold at a loss in New York, upon the price paid for it
here, in consequence of the pressure on the New York market
having reduced the price. In anticipation of the papers coming
down, he would not say anything further on this matter on the
present occasion.

With reference to the new coinage, he would remark that steps
were taken, at the earliest moment, to have it issued to exactly the
same value as the previous money issued under an order in Council.
He might say with regard to the composition of the coin, that it was
standard silver, which was made of something like twelve and a
fraction part of pure silver, with an alloy of one part of copper. It
was bought by the mint at the rate of 5s. and 2d. per ounce, which
would be 62 shillings per pound standard silver. The mint coined it
and issued it at an advance of six per cent. The amount coined for
this country was $750,000. Of course, there were various charges
on it, but he was happy to say there was a profit on the operation of
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something like $14,000, and he would remark here, that if any one
would carry out the calculation, he would perceive that if Canadian
coin to the amount of $4,500,000 (the amount of foreign silver
exported) had been brought into the country, they would have
cleared all expenses. But there were reasons why this was not
advisable. It would, if carried out, have resulted in depreciating the
silver in value.

As far as his information went, he heard from time to time that
when the banks wanted to pay out silver, people asked them for
fractional notes instead. The public seemed not to be so entirely
displeased with the notes as the hon. member for Lambton was.
Still, the Government has shown no disposition to force this
fractional currency into circulation. On the contrary, he was sure
there would be no trouble in largely increasing circulation; but he
quite agreed with the hon. member opposite that nothing could have
a worse effect than to have the supply in excess of the demand.
They were received at the banks and were not allowed to go out
again into circulation when it could possibly be avoided.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON had no desire, in asking for those returns,
to find fault with the Hon. Finance Minister. It was a desirable
object to export the foreign silver from the country, and some of the
steps taken by the hon. gentleman, while not being exactly what he
would have approved of himself, were good. The question arose,
though, that if the hon. gentleman had done so well this year, why it
was that the other hon. gentlemen on the treasury benches did not
do so long ago, and prevent such loss to the country. The hon.
gentlemen could not escape the responsibility of having inflicted on
the country all this loss and inconvenience.

With reference to that part of his motion relating to the fineness
of the new silver, his object was to show the amount of base metal
the Government were authorizing into circulation as the legal tender
of the country. There could be no difficulty in arriving at this
knowledge, for he took it for granted that the Order in Council
authorizing the issue must show the percentage of alloy used in the
coin and he thought the House was entitled to know precisely that
percentage. By the first part of the motion, he simply wished to
ascertain what amount of American silver had been withdrawn and
at what cost.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS said, with regard to the attack
made on the Government for not having taken this measure sooner,
he thought if the hon. gentleman would only reflect a little, he
would see that it was only last year the Government were in a
position to do it. If he (Hon. Sir Francis Hincks) had to take the
same course his predecessor had been compelled to do—to go into
the market and sell bonds at a discount of two per cent—he would
have shrunk from doing so. The reason why he (Hon. Sir Francis
Hincks) had undertaken it was because the Government had greater
means at their command, and were better able to carry out the
scheme. Mr. Wier could not carry it on without borrowing money at
a large percent of interest from the banks, and it was for that reason
that he had not succeeded.

Mr. DUFRESNE thought the removal of the American silver
had an excellent effect upon the trade of the country. The need of its
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withdrawal was pressing, and the mode adopted had admirably
answered the purpose in view. The country generally was satisfied
with the results achieved, whatever the brokers may think.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT thought the Finance Minister had reason to
congratulate himself on the success of his scheme for the removal
of the silver. That hon. gentleman had undertaken his (Hon. Sir
A.T. Galt’s) defence. Now he did not think he required any defence
of his conduct while Finance Minister. He had only been in office
two years from 1862, and should not be charged with the whole
blame of the state of the currency up to the removal of the
depreciated silver.

The motion was then carried.

* * %

THE FISHERIES QUESTION

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT asked for copies of all correspondence
between the Governments of the Dominion and England since 12th
February 1870 on the subject of the fisheries, and of the proposed
Imperial and United States Joint Commission, with the minutes of
Council relating to the same. He said there was not as correct an
idea prevalent with regard to the submission of correspondence as
there ought to be. The fault committed here was one of reticence.
All correspondence with the English Cabinet not marked by it
“‘private and confidential’” should be brought down. In this case
there was a great need of as much frankness as possible. There was
a feeling of uneasiness abroad in regard to the fisheries. If the
Government had confidence on the subject, it could only spring
from the contents of the correspondence that had taken place with
the Imperial authorities. It was quite as important that the country at
large should be put in possession of it, so that it should experience
similar confidence. Indeed it was even more important. Publicity
was essential to responsible Government, and the English practice
was to bring down correspondence far more fully than we had done
usually. As to the most important questions with which the British
Government had recently been engaged, it had not waited the
assembling of Parliament, but has made public its correspondence
through the medium of the press. He need but cite the recent
communications with Prince Gortschakoff and the American
secretary of state, the one on the Eastern and the other on the
questions between the States and England. He would like, in
particular, to see the despatch or order in council of March 23rd,
1866.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD admitted it had been the
practice of late, in England, to be very free in the matter of the
publication of correspondence. He himself thought the practice
proper and beneficial. His own customary phrase on such
occasions—*‘all papers that could be brought down without
detriment to the public service’’—was not prompted by any desire
to withhold from Parliament or the country information to which
they were entitled, and which could with any prudence be asked.
The phrase was more one of form than of anything else, and with
regard to the present papers meant nothing unbecoming the
importance of this question or the rights of the legislature. He had
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no objection to send down all the documents which the public
interests warranted. He thought there would be no difficulty about
this despatch.

Mr. MACKENZIE said he observed a statement in a recent
pamphlet by a gentleman lately a colleague of hon. gentlemen on
the treasury benches, to the effect that it had been a practice of
theirs to keep back or mutilate papers demanded by members.
There was no denying the impression prevalent in this House that
papers had been withheld that should not have been. Anyone who
looked over the Imperial blue-books could see that papers usually
refused Canadian members could be had a month or two afterwards
through those compilations. Last year he moved for correspondence
concerning the defence of the country, which we were told could
not be brought down. Constant reiteration seemed necessary to
success. Papers should be available as soon as the circumstances of
the country justified their production.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said as to the recent
pamphlet by a former colleague, who he could be he had no
curiosity to know, but he was satisfied that no former colleague of
his would have possibly submitted to any mutilation of papers while
in office, and that if any mutilation had since been effected, he
could know nothing about it.

(Laughter and applause.)

Mr. MACKENZIE: As to that he had no knowledge; nor was it
any of his business.

(Laughter.)

The motion was dropped on the understanding that the
Government would bring down the correspondence.

* % %

THE DEFENCE QUESTION

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT moved for all correspondence, orders in
council, and other papers relating to the mission of the Hon. Alex
Campbell to England, and his report thereon. He said he wished for
explanations regarding the important subjects covered by the papers
asked for here. He was not aware that when the House was
prorogued last session the question of defence stood in any different
position from that of 1865, the year of the mission to England on
this subject. The agreement we then entered into was that Canada
should maintain a sufficient militia force, and undertake the
erection of fortifications at places west of Quebec and elsewhere.
England assumed the fortification of Quebec and the armament of
all the defences. There was a general assurance given that on
Canada’s devoting to the defence of the country all her resources in
men and money, England would help here with all the forces at her
command. A plan of defence embracing land and naval preparations
was also agreed upon. In conformity with that agreement Canada
passed an act providing for fortifications. No action thereon had
been taken, nor had the Government declared what it intended.

From the omission of the subject from the speech he presumed it
was not the intention of Ministers to bring the matter before
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Parliament. Up to the close of last session no statement was made
as to any change in the relations between England and Canada on
the subject of her defence. Immediately after the country was
startled by the removal of the troops. No one would desire their
retention here for the mere purposes of the colonies. If kept, they
ought to be strictly kept for Imperial purposes. For local purposes
we should supply the whole means of defence. But the
circumstances which justified the proposal to remove the greater
part of the troops were suddenly altered by the recurrence of the
Fenian raid, in the repulsion of which the troops were extremely
valuable as coadjutors of our Militia. The order for their withdrawal
within a few hours after the repulse of the Fenians certainly excited
a strong feeling of uneasiness throughout the country. He believed
that the Government, perceiving the existence of this uneasiness,
desired to have explanations respecting the recall of the troops from
the Imperial Government—at least the papers so stated—and hence
the mission of Mr. Campbell to England.

He (Hon. Sir AT. Galt) desired to know Mr. Campbell’s
instructions, and the result of his mission. His return was followed
by steps in direct contravention of the agreement made in 1865 with
the Imperial Government. A transfer of the forts and military
material was made to the Colonial Government. Guns and other
war-like necessaries were shipped to England in violation of the
agreement that the armament for our fortifications should be
provided at her expense. The defence of the country was, of course,
rendered more difficult by the removal of those materials. We have
not ourselves large military stores in our possession; nor was it
expected we should have. Their renewal materially affected the
ability of this country to defend itself. He thought there must have
been explanations required and given with regard to the causes that
lead to the adoption of that policy. However, notwithstanding the
many reasons for the stationing of a military force for a time at Red
River, within a few days after the arrival of the expedition there, it
was withdrawn. Was it with the recommendation of the Canadian
Government?

The article in Blackwood on this expedition has received a good
deal of attention from its supposed origin with the distinguished
commander of that force. He (Hon. Sir A.T. Galt) would not have
noticed it but for this circumstance, and the gross injustice therein
done the public men and people of Canada. Its language was a
malicious slander upon them, as none could fairly say that a
colonial politician was a synonym for a corrupt individual. He
could not believe the commander of the expedition guilty of such an
insult and slander unless confronted by the clearest proof. The
correspondence he asked for should show why this change of policy
had taken place; why the troops had been withdrawn, and were we
expected to complete these fortifications, and generally why the
engagement of 1865, that all the resources of the Empire would be
employed in our defence, should have been modified. If the
government possessed this information they were bound to give it
to the public, that everyone might know whether, hereafter, as some
in high places in England alleged, the defence of this country was to
be confined to naval efforts. This was the statement attributed to the
Chancellor of the Exchequer.
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He (Hon. Sir A.T. Galt) was sorry to say he thought the course
taken towards these colonies indicated that that was the policy of
the Imperial Government, and could not believe our Ministers
ignorant of what it intended doing in this respect; and, if so
informed, he asked the papers for the purpose of relieving the minds
of the people on the subject. If, on the other hand, the Imperial
Government did not entertain such a policy for the defence of
Canada, we were entitled to know it at the earliest possible day.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER thought it was well that the
motion included a reference to the defence of Canada, as that
formed a part of the mission of the Hon. Mr. Campbell to England.
He would take this opportunity to make a few remarks on the
question of defence, and the position of the Imperial Government
thereon. The agreement between the Imperial Government and
Canada, as laid down in the despatch of the 17th of June, 1865, still
existed, and was in force. That despatch did not touch the question
of the number of troops left in this country. Since it was sent, in
furtherance of the policy of the Imperial Government to concentrate
the army, the troops had been withdrawn from Canada. The
despatches from the Imperial Government would be brought down,
in which the Imperial Government gave the assurance that the
policy of withdrawal of the troops was intended for times of peace,
and that in case of war England would continue to regard it as her
duty to defend Canada as a portion of the British Empire.

Mr. JONES (Leeds North and Grenville North) said that all
the recent acts of Great Britain—her whole policy, in fact—showed
there was no disposition whatever to abandon her responsibility for
the defence of Canada. This discussion was therefore quite
irrelevant, it being calculated to throw injurious doubts on Britain’s
intentions and immemorial policy.

* * *

STANDING COMMITTEES

On motion of Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD, a special
committee was appointed to prepare and report lists of members to
comprise the select standing committees ordered by the House. The
committee was with few exceptions the same as that of last year.

* k% %

MESSAGE FROM THE GOVERNOR GENERAL

A message was read from His Excellency, announcing the
appointment of Hon. Mr. Howe in the room of Hon. Mr.
McDougall, to act with Mr. Speaker as Commissioner under the
provisions of the Act respecting the internal economy of the House.

The House adjourned at 5 o’clock, till Monday next.
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HOUSE OF COMMONS

Monday, February 20, 1871

The SPEAKER took the chair at 3.00 p.m.

Prayers

Several petitions were received, and one was denied.

* k% %

BANKING

Mr. CRAWFORD (Leeds South) in the absence of Hon. Mr.
Abbott, introduced a Bill to amend the Acts respecting Banks and
Banking. It was given first reading.

* k x
CREDIT FONCIER

Mr. DUFRESNE introduced a Bill to facilitate the incorporation
of the institution Credit Foncier. It was given first reading.

* % %

BANK OF UPPER CANADA, AND ROYAL CANADIAN
BANK

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS presented a statement of the
proceedings of the Bank of Upper Canada under the Act of last
session, also the charter of the Royal Canadian Bank.

* * %
STANDING COMMITTEES

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD presented the report of the
committee appointed to strike the standing committees for the
session.

* % %
PROTECTION OF RIVERS

Mr. CARTWRIGHT introduced a Bill for the better protection
of navigable streams and rivers.

* * *

DUAL REPRESENTATION

Mr. MILLS introduced a Bill to render the members of the
Legislative Council and Assembly of the local legislatures
ineligible to seats in this House. It was given first reading.

EXTRADITION

Mr. MILLS introduced a Bill for the extradition of persons
charged with crimes in the United States and other foreign
countries. It was given first reading.

* * %

HOCHELAGA CONTESTED ELECTION

Hon. Mr. IRVINE presented the final report of the Hochelaga
election committee, with their unanimous decision that the sitting
member, Hon. Mr. Dorion, is a duly elected member, and that the
objection taken by the petitioner to his election before the
committee and the petition against the sitting member’s
qualification is frivolous and vexatious.

* k% %

CONTROVERTED ELECTIONS

Mr. BLAKE asked whether it is in the intention of the
Government to introduce this session a measure for the trial by
judges of controverted elections.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said it was not the intention
of the Government to introduce such a measure.

SUPREME COURT

Mr. BLAKE asked whether it is the intention of the Government
to introduce this session a measure for the creation of a supreme
court.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD asked that the question be
left over till another day.

* % %

THE RED RIVER EXPEDITION

Mr. STEPHENSON asked whether any portion of the VVolunteer
force at present stationed in the Province of Manitoba has been or is
likely soon to be recalled from there, and if so, what battalion is to
be reduced, and to what extent; and if both are to be reduced in
what proportion is the reduction to be made; also whether in the
announced land policy any portion of the public lands in Manitoba
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will probably be allotted to the Volunteers now in that Province,
and if so, what probable quantity per man, and under what
conditions such allotments will be made?

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER replied that as early as the
beginning of January last the Government considered the
expedience of maintaining the two battalions. They decided all but
two companies should be discharged on the 1st of May, the two
remaining to have 40 men, and a captain and two lieutenants.

Hon. Mr. ANGLIN: What about a chaplain?

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER: Who has uttered the word
chaplain? (Laughter.) I want to know.

Mr. MACKENZIE: The Minister of Militia had better give
notice of this question. (Renewed laughter.)

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER: You will hear of this
chaplain question more than you think before the end of this
session. The question is out of the way, and | understand it came
from the hon. member for Gloucester (Hon. Mr. Anglin).
(Laughter.) He (Hon. Sir George-E. Cartier) supposed that this
member would join in spreading the hue and cry made very
unnecessarily and very absurdly on the appointment of a chaplain.
That was the reason why he wanted to make sure who was his
interrupter. He was going to say that the two regiments would
remain there for six months, and if the Government should require
further service they would be bound to remain for six months
longer. Respecting the question of land, the Government was
determined, as it always had been determined, to give a free grant
of land to these brave Volunteers, and so the commanding officer
had already been instructed to enquire what number of men of these
two regiments intended to remain in the Province. Those who
intended to remain would be entitled to a free grant. With regard to
the extent of the grant the Government could not give an answer.
The grants, however, would be free and unconditional, because the
men deserved it. (Hear, hear.) With regard to those Volunteers who
did not wish to remain, they had been told they would be carried,
free of expense, to their places in Upper or Lower Canada.

Mr. MACKENZIE said that on one point he desired a little
more information. It was this. A number of VVolunteers had obtained
their discharge by personal application since the 1st of January.
Would these men be entitled to the same grant of land as the others?

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said the same Volunteers
had applied for a discharge and obtained it. They were there on the
spot, and would be entitled to a grant of land if they remained in the
country. The men forming a part of the two depot companies, one
in Thunder Bay and one in the Island of St. Helen, if they wished to
go to Manitoba, would have free grants also.

At the suggestion of Mr. MASSON (Soulanges), Hon. Sir
George-E. Cartier repeated the above statement in French. The
subject then dropped.
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DUTY ON COAL

Mr. MAGILL asked whether it is the intention of the
Government, during the present Session of Parliament, to make any
alteration in the Tariff, by which the consumers of coal imported
from the United States, may be relieved from the present
burthensome duty, levied upon that article.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS said he was quite certain the hon.
gentleman was too experienced in parliamentary affairs not to know
that that question could not be answered till the budget was brought
down. He was also certain that the hon. gentleman had by this
question gained his end.

* * %

CANAL COMMISSION

Mr. MAGILL asked whether, as a commission had been
appointed to report upon the question of enlarging the canals of the
Dominion, and generally to inquire into the best means for the
improvement of our internal water communication, it is the
intention of the Government, at an early date, to place any
information before this House respecting the progress made by the
said Commission; and if such information is to be furnished, will it
be in the shape of a report from that Commission, or an
announcement of the policy of the Government on the subject of
canals.

Hon. Mr. LANGEVIN said the Commission had made
considerable progress, and would probably report at an early day.
Till then, of course, the last portion of the question must remain
unanswered.

* * %

THE FISHERIES QUESTION

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD laid on the table the
correspondence respecting the Fisheries, asked for a few days ago
by the motion of Sir A. T. Galt. In answer to him the Hon. Premier
made the following explanations. He said it was the intention of the
Government to take the same steps for the protection of our
Fisheries during 1871 as had been lately adopted and now existed.
After the cancelling of the Reciprocity Treaty, it would be
remembered, the Canadian government thought fit to assert its
fishery rights. While preparing to do so, communications were
received from the Imperial Government that would appear in the
papers now before the House, to the effect that there was a
probability of fresh proceedings for the renewal of the treaty; and it
was suggested, in view of this fact, that the American fishermen
should be allowed to fish in the same unrestrained way as before.
The Canadian Government represented that they thought such a
course would be unwise; that it was better to proceed at once to the
assertion of our rights; that to allow our rights to remain in
abeyance would be an apparent surrender of them, which would
increase the difficulty of their subsequent assertion.

Her Majesty’s government having strong opinions on the subject,
and the Canadian government desiring to act in accord with them, a
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regulation was made at once asserting the rights, and exempting
American fishermen from inconvenience during that season. That
was accomplished by requiring them to take out licence on payment
of a nominal fee. The Nova Scotia government made a strong
protest against our going so far; but also preferring to stand in
accord with the Imperial Government they acquiesced in the
concession and arrangement made. Subsequently, as was known,
the fee was increased, but still, to a very moderate extent, only to $1
and that was merely for the purpose of again asserting our claims
and again showing that we really did intend to protect our fisheries
and that it was not to be considered that the establishment of a
nominal fee was at all what Canada considered to be the value of
her fisheries. In the following season, the licence was again
increased, but the government found that the American fishermen
were altogether disregarding the regulations, and were continually
trespassing in our waters. The number of licences issued steadily
decreased every year, until at last, he might say, they ceased
altogether and American fishermen fished in our waters without
obtaining any permission whatever. In 1866, there were 354
licences issued; in 1867 there were 281; in 1868 they had decreased
to 56, and in 1869 to only 25. In other words, the American
fishermen insisted on fishing in our waters without giving
compensation. The licence system was found to be a failure.

In consequence of this state of things, the Canadian government
resolved to do away with the licensing system and to exclude
foreign fishermen from our waters, preserving our right for our own
people. This was indicated to Her Majesty’s Government and they
agreed with the Canadian government to maintain, as before, a
naval squadron in our water to aid in the protection of our fisheries.
It was thought by the Imperial Government that in addition to the
material and moral support we received in the protection of our
rights, that we ought to aid that squadron ourselves. We therefore
placed a marine police of eight vessels in our waters, to act in
accord with Her Majesty’s squadron, Her Majesty’s naval officers
commanding the United Squadron. Under this new arrangement,
our fisheries had been on the whole exceedingly well protected, and
it was admitted by those who understood the subject, and were
especially interested in the reservation of our own fisheries for our
own fishermen, that they had been protected in the most efficient
manner during the past season, and the papers, when brought down,
would show how much we owed to the zealous, prudent and
discreet course of Her Majesty’s naval officers. It was known to the
House that since the Treaty of 1818, with respect to our fisheries,
that other questions had arisen as to the geographical extent of our
fisheries and the construction of the Treaty itself. Now, with regard
to the question of the renunciation by the United States forever of
the right to fish within three miles from our shores, there could be
no dispute.

There was no question raised by the American government.
There was, however, the question commonly called the Headland
Question which was an important one. By concert with Her
Majesty’s government, and in order to secure the material aid and
support of that government, it was arranged that, for the present, the
question of headlands should be placed in abeyance; that was not
actually enforced. At the same time, it was arranged between the
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Canadian and Imperial Governments, and the Imperial Government
and the Government of the United States, that this right was not to
be abandoned in any way, notwithstanding that it was at the time
not actually pressed. But, he (Hon. Sir John A. Macdonald) might
say with regard to all questions relating to the fisheries, Her
Majesty’s government and the Canadian government had been quite
in accord, and the Imperial Government had given positive and
repeated assurances that not one of our rights should be abandoned
or surrendered. It was, however, obvious to the Canadian
government that it was exceedingly inconvenient that we should
have rights, or supposed rights, that remained a dead letter—that
these rights, especially as regarded the geographical question as to
what portions of our waters were included within the terms of the
Treaty, should be defined, and it was exceedingly important that
any remaining questions or doubts as to the actual and true meaning
of the headland question should be brought to an end. It was, of
course, exceedingly inexpedient that we should be continually
asserting our rights and at the same time be unable to enforce them.
If we had a right we should know it and enforce it, or receive
compensation for its abandonment. The Imperial and Canadian
governments therefore had a good deal of correspondence on this
point, and it resulted in his colleague—Hon. Mr. Campbell—going
to England on that and other matters, and the papers would show
that the Canadian government requested Her Majesty’s government
to open communication with the Government of the United States
on the headland question for the purpose of establishing the limits
of exclusion from our shores, et cetera.

It was decided that it was to be done by a mixed commission, on
which Canada was to be represented. Canada also requested that the
commission should sit on this side of the water. In due time, Hon.
Mr. Campbell got a favourable communication stating that in
consequence of the request of Canada, that application would be
made to the United States government. In proper time, when Her
Majesty’s government thought it was advisable to take the
necessary steps, they communicated with the United States
government, and it was arranged that there should be a commission,
to be composed in the first place of three representatives on each
side. The three named by Great Britain were the British
Ambassador, Earl de Grey and himself (Hon. Sir John A.
Macdonald). The American Government cheerfully assented to the
proposition, and expressed a desire to widen the questions to be
decided between the two governments. England assented at once,
and at the suggestion of the United States, the Commission was
increased to five on each side. The five were Earl de Grey, Lord
Tenterden, Sir Stafford, Northcote, Prof. Bernard and himself (Hon.
Sir John A. Macdonald). Thus the case stood, and, as he said
before, in the communications which had passed between the two
governments, no rights of Canada would be surrendered in any
way, without our consent, and without that the present action of the
proposed commission would not be conclusive, but would go
before the House of Lords and the House of Commons.

Hon. Sir AT. GALT said he would like to have the
correspondence brought down before the departure of the Premier
to Washington.
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Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said he would endeavour to
have it submitted to the House without delay.

Hon. Sir AT. GALT having moved for the correspondence
between the Dominion and Imperial Governments since February,
1870, on the subject of the fisheries and of the proposed Imperial
and United States’ Joint Commission. He questioned the Premier in
regard to the character of the papers.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said a good many papers
were omitted because marked by the Imperial authorities
“‘confidential.”” The Government had applied for permission, by
cable, to submit all the papers.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT: Is the Order in Council of 1866 brought
down?

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD: Yes.

Mr. DUFRESNE asked if the action of the International
Commission would be confined to the fisheries, or would it
embrace other questions, such as the indemnity for the Fenian raid.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD gave an account of the
organization of the Commission. The original idea was the
settlement of the fishery question. Afterwards in acquiescence with
the proposal of the United States the Alabama matter was included.
Then the Canadian government urged the inclusion of the claims
arising out of the Fenian raid. The correspondence on this subject
was still proceeding. He had not seen the ipsissima verba of the
commission, and could not tell how much it would undertake. All
he knew was that a despatch had been received from England
conceding the Canadian demands, and giving Canada
representation on the commission.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON: Was the Canadian government consulted
as to the enlargement of the commission’s functions?

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD: No. The American
government asked to have them enlarged and the British
government agreed to it.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON asked if the Canadian claims arising out of
the Fenian raid were to be submitted.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD could not answer that
positively. He said they had a claim and asked the Imperial
Government to make it on their behalf. The first proposal for the
widening of the sphere of the Commission came from the United
States, as it could not well have come from the Imperial
Government. They wisely consented, however, and so with mutual
agreement all questions between the Governments were to be
considered.
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Mr. MACKENZIE said the letter of Secretary Fish proposing
the enlargement was limited almost entirely to questions arising
from the war. He (Mr. Mackenzie) did not see there was any room
for the Hon. Premier’s expectation that the United States
Government would listen to the Canadian claims as to the raid.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS said surely it must be seen it was
not probable Mr. Fish would propose the entertainment of those
demands.

Mr. MACKENZIE: Of course not.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS: Therefore he simply proposed
what he wanted. But Sir Edward Thornton’s letter covered not only
the Fishery question, but all questions in dispute between the
United States and the British Empire. Its words were quite wide
enough for that inference.

Hon. Mr. ANGLIN: No, no.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS: Yes;
comprehensive enough to cover all the questions.

the words are

Hon. Mr. HOLTON said they had no evidence the claims had
ever been urged on the United States Government.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD: The question was first as
to the Fisheries. | confined my statement to that.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT confessed that, in his opinion, the
correspondence between Mr. Fish and the Imperial Government did
not cover the Canadian claim. The first letter of the British Minister
at Washington, however, contained general terms which led to the
conclusion the Commission might cover everything, including the
Fenian claims and the headlands question. But a correspondence
must be taken as of the two parties, and the most important letter
that passed between the two parties was that of Mr. Fish, which, as
he read it, related solely to the claims arising out of the late war.
However, he quite understood the Premier’s inability to state
positively whether the Canadian claims would or would not be
considered by the Commission. But he hoped the leader of the
Government would take such steps as were necessary to ascertain
whether they would or not.

Mr. MACKENZIE said that if it had been the intention of the
Dominion Government to have them so considered, they could tell
us whether Mr. Campbell was instructed to make representations on
the Fenian raid to the Imperial Government.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said they had urged on the
British Government not only the claims of Canada, but those of
private individuals, in connection with the consideration of the
Alabama claims. They received an official answer that their wishes
would receive attention. A large expenditure was incurred by the
threats of the raid and the raid itself. The Canadian Government
urged its title to an indemnity for that raid. Mr. Campbell had
pressed that claim.
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Hon. Mr. HOLTON said the question now arose whether the
statement of our losses, required by Earl Kimberley, was furnished
by our Government. If that statement had been sent—

Several ministers: It has gone.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON said they should say when it was sent, and
the matter should be included among the papers now brought down.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said the main object of the
papers related to the Fisheries. The Canadian Government did urge
the Fenian claims, but they could not be expected to produce the
papers on this subject at present, because he did not know whether
this subject would be included with those to receive the attention of
the Commission.

Mr. BLAKE said the Premier ought to know what the subjects
of the Commission would be, at least in so far as Canada was
concerned. The facts were probably known to the United States,
and our ignorance of the matter was unsatisfactory.

Mr. MACKENZIE said before the hon. gentleman accepted the
appointment as one of the commission, the terms of the commission
must have been settled between the two contracting powers, and the
subjects of reference to it determined. He could not conceive that
that matter was delayed till this time, but the Government seemed
to be in ignorance as to what subjects were to be referred to the
Commission.

* * *

FENIAN RAID CLAIMS

Mr. MACKENZIE gave notice that he would, on Wednesday,
move for all correspondence with the Imperial Government on the
subject of the compensation for Fenian raids.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT said the return brought down included Mr.
Campbell’s report, and it would be remembered that the return
voted for on Friday included all correspondence on the defence
question.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said the papers respecting
the defence would, of course, be brought down.

The motion to print the papers was then carried and the matter
dropped.

* * *

INTERCOLONIAL COMMISSIONERS

Mr. MILLS moved for a statement of the number of days each
of the Intercolonial Railway Commissioners was engaged in the
performance of the duties of his office at the seat of Government,
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and on the line of railway respectively, during the year 1870, etc.—
Carried.

* * %
DEFENCE

Mr. MASSON (Soulanges) said he would not move for the
correspondence respecting the military expenditure and defences of
the Dominion, since the information was or would be included in
papers promised in accordance with other motions.—Dropped.

* * %

THE ST. CLAIR FLATS CANAL

Mr. MACKENZIE moved for correspondence and papers
relative to the canal built by the United States Government on
Canadian territory in the St. Clair Flats or Walpole Island. After
referring to the position of the matter in 1866, he said he had no
doubt the canal was wholly within our territory. That was the
opinion of all the navigators and engineers who had surveyed the
route, among the latter, Gen. Meade. He trusted that in this, as in
every other matter in dispute between the States and Canada, our
Government would not yield up anything except upon the best
grounds. (Hear, hear.) If this canal be conceded they would be
absolutely without a channel on this side of Walpole Island, the
land boundary; and it would be impossible for Canada to send a
vessel from lake to lake through our territory, as there was no other
channel with six feet of water we could call our own.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said the government had
not lost sight of the matter, being quite aware of its very great
importance. They were now in correspondence with Her Majesty’s
Government on this subject. The correspondence not being
completed could not be brought down, and that portion producible
might frustrate their object.

Mr. MACKENZIE said perhaps, then, he should let the matter
stand. He thought the Minister of Public Works could have
answered the question, as he had gone with a war vessel through the
canal and taken possession of it.

(Laughter.)

The motion was allowed to stand.
F——
HARBOURS OF REFUGE ON WESTERN LAKES
Mr. OLIVER moved for the correspondence relating to the

harbours of refuge on Lakes Huron and Erie since the last returns
were brought down.—Carried.
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NORTH WEST INDEMNITY CLAIMS

Mr. BODWELL moved for a return of the claims made upon
the Dominion Government consequent upon the insurrection in the
North West Territories.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS said there could be no objection
to the fullest information on the subject. The claims embraced in
the motion were different kinds. A considerable number had been
filed, a portion of which would be found in the public accounts,
others had come in since the close of the fiscal year and been paid,
while some were yet before the Board of Audit. There was another
class which it had not been in the power of the Government to deal
with—those of the refugees who had suffered very considerable
loss and inconvenience of different kinds. The most formidable was
in behalf of the Hudson’s Bay Company. (lronical cheers.) The
Premier stated last session that the claims of the refugees were not
considered, because the manner of compensation had not been
decided on. It had always been the endeavour of the Government to
secure compensation. The claims would be submitted to them, and
it was the intention of the Government to prepare a measure of
compensation during the present Session. When the Manitoba Bill
was passing through the House, the claims of Dr. Schultz, who had
been ruined by the troubles, and those of others of similar
experience, had been brought before them.

(Hon. Sir Francis Hincks here read a paper signed by Dr.
Schultz’s creditors, stating that should he be enabled to pay the
amount owed them, they were prepared to furnish him goods to the
extent of his ordinary purchases in the same form as before, and
thus enable him to resume his business.) The debtor’s account, or
amount claimed, was within a mere trifle of $70,000, which he
(Hon. Sir Francis Hincks) did not think a very reasonable one.
There were thirty claims in blank for want of data, being those of
individuals rendered destitute. Dr. Schultz stated that with $500 he
would undertake to pay their expenses and send them back to the
country. The claim of Dr. Lynch amounting to $300 was also
preferred. Having ascertained Dr. Schultz had been a considerable
loser, and that the Government was prepared to assent to the
principle of compensation, he advanced a sum of money to that
gentleman’s creditors for the purchase of some stock. He received
$500 for other refugees and $300 for Dr. Lynch. He (Hon. Sir
Francis Hincks) was personally responsible for these sums.
Believing the sentiment of the House was in favour of these
claims—(Hear, hear)—and knowing the Government assented to
the principle, he had acted as he described.

Mr. BLAKE: When were these sums advanced?

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS said he could not tell, but he had
under the circumstances to take a considerable amount of
responsibility. Eleven thousand dollars was the sum paid to the
creditors of Dr. Schultz. This was a payment made, for which he
was personally responsible to the Bank of Montreal. The sum, of
course, was not in the public accounts.
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In answer to Mr. Mackenzie, Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS said
there was no doubt compensation would be given, but the manner
of doing so was not decided upon.

Mr. MACKENZIE read from an Imperial Blue Book a report of
a question on the subject of compensation, and the answer of the
Premier thereto, to show that the Government last session took a
different view of the matter from the present or used language to
justify that impression. This fact could be gleaned from the report
in the Blue Book, garbled and imperfect as it was, which had been
taken from a pretended official report published by a well-known
Ottawa journal, which was not last year at all reliable in matters of
this kind. For all that, however, he thought that the version of the
Premier’s remarks given was in this case to a certain extent reliable,
and it showed a difference of the kind he had mentioned.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD thought the hon. gentleman
was not quite correct, as he had stated these claims must be paid by
somebody; but he was not prepared to say from what sources. That
they were due he had no doubt.

The motion was carried.

* * %

SALARIES OF INTERCOLONIAL OFFICERS

Mr. STIRTON moved for a statement of the salaries and wages
of engineers and staff of the Intercolonial Railway, up to January
1st, 1871.—Carried.

MANITOBA BILL

Mr. BLAKE moved for correspondence between the Canadian
and Imperial Governments in relation to the Manitoba Act. He said
he observed from the reports in both the local and Toronto papers
that the Hon. Premier had informed the House the other day that he
had taken into consideration the constitutionality or legality of the
proceedings that had passed in reference to Manitoba in this House,
and that he had communicated with the Imperial Government upon
the subject. That in accordance with that communication a draft of a
Bill to be submitted to the Imperial Parliament had been prepared
and was to be sent to England by the next English mail. That Bill
was to affect the Manitoba Act, and also to make provision for the
Government of that country in the future. He could not believe it
was possible that the hon. gentleman could have fully considered
the matter when he intimated to this House that it was his attention
to send for the action of the Imperial Parliament a proposed
measure affecting the rights and interests of this country in the
North West, without first submitting it to this House and obtaining
its assent.

(Here the hon. member sketched the events preceding and
connected with the passage of the Manitoba Act in order to show
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the right of the Canadian Parliament to be consulted previous to the
action of the Imperial authorities.) He maintained that the leader of
the Government had no right to say that he would send home by the
next mail a measure which might not be approved by this House, to
be converted into an Act of Parliament which would be irrevocable.
The House had a right to know, and he insisted that they should
know, and have an opportunity of formally deciding upon the
prudence or imprudence of the action of the Government. They had
suffered enough from past blunders and mistakes with reference to
this North West Territory, and Parliament must take to itself the
responsibility devolving on it. What they had done in the past they
might to a certain extent revoke, but what might be done by the
Imperial Parliament was irrevocable. If the Hon. Premier did not
submit the measure to this Parliament he (Mr. Blake) would follow
up this motion by another one by which he would test the sense of
the House on the question.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD believed the despatch to be
transmitted to England would meet with the approbation of the
House and of the country. The one doubt he had was a technical
one—whether Government could properly place on the table here a
Bill which was to be laid before the Parliament of England. If he
found that it was one of that nature, the communication itself and
the answer would show in every respect what the measure was
designed to be, and the hon. gentleman would have an opportunity
of bringing up the question if the scope of the correspondence did
not meet his views or the views of this House. At any rate the whole
substance of the Bill, excepting the mere wording of it, would be
laid before the House.

The motion was carried.
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Mr. MACKENZIE wished to know in what state the reports of
the Departments were at present. If they were brought down at an
early day it might save hon. members the necessity of moving for
SO many returns. Last year and the year before there was much
annoyance and hindrance to the public business caused by the
delays in bringing down departmental reports, especially the report
of the Post Office Department.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said tomorrow he would
state when the Post Office Department reports could be brought
down.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER: The Report of the Militia
Department will be ready within ten days from this time.

Hon. Mr. LANGEVIN: The report of the Public Works
Department will be submitted in a few days.

Hon. Mr. MORRIS and Hon. Mr. TILLEY replied to the same
effect for their departments.

Mr. YOUNG asked when the report of the Minister of
Agriculture would be ready.

Hon. Mr. DUNKIN: At an early date.

Mr. MACKENZIE: If any report of the
Commissioners would be brought down.

Intercolonial

Hon. Mr. LANGEVIN replied in the affirmative.

The House adjourned at 5.25 p.m.
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HOUSE OF COMMONS

Tuesday, February 21, 1871

The SPEAKER took the chair at three o’clock.

Prayers

THE CENSUS ACT

Hon. Mr. DUNKIN moved for leave to introduce a Bill, entitled
““An Act to amend the Census Act.”’

In reply to Mr. Mackenzie, Hon. Mr. DUNKIN explained the
nature of the Bill. It was therein proposed to bring in all the territory
for census purposes, not now included in the Dominion. The census
of British Columbia would thereunder be taken. That was to say,
the Act should be extended to Manitoba and British Columbia. The
same principle as to mode of procedure and details, now in
operation as to the Dominion, would apply to those distant
Colonies. With respect to the time of the census taking, it was
provided in the Bill, that the census might be taken any time
between the 1st of May and 30th of September next. It was
physically impossible the census should be taken in certain remote
regions, early in April next. Machinery was also provided for the
collection of information at times apart from those occupied by the
enumeration. Other changes of more or less importance—of
detail—were provided for.

Mr. MACKENZIE said the provisions of the Bill were
excellent. One matter was omitted. Was it intended to take the
census of the North West Indians?

Hon. Mr. DUNKIN: Certainly. It was intended to obtain all the
information possible respecting the Indians in our territory.

Mr. MACKENZIE said he was glad of that. He would regret
that anything in our legislation should take place that would tend to
place us in a false position towards the native inhabitants.

Motion carried, and Bill read the first time.

* * %
RETURNS AND STATEMENTS

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS brought down returns of all
expenditure under the head of unforeseen expenses; of the expenses
of Hon. Mr. Campbell’s mission to England, and of all expenses,
etc., connected with the exportation of the depreciated silver.

EXPORTATION OF AMERICAN SILVER

Hon. Mr. HOLTON remarked upon the absence of details in the
statement respecting the coin; there was nothing to show the
manner in which the expenses arose, or the parties therein
concerned. Information as to the quality or purity of the coin was
also desirable. The mere gross or summary statement was not
sufficient. The return did not comply with the terms of the Address
ordering it.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS said with regard to the fineness of
the silver in the new coinage, the order in Council of 1867 had been
quoted because it described exactly the fineness and value of the
silver coinage, which was to be of exactly the same fineness as the
British silver. The reference to that order in Council was made
merely to establish the fineness. The actual order in Council was to
the same effect and could be furnished if required. With regard to
the details an agreement to pay at the rate of 1 1/2 per cent for all
silver exported, was made in order to cover charges. It was
calculated that at this rate, Mr. Weir would make a commission of
1/2 per cent out of the operation. It was thought to be safer to do
this than to incur any risks. In point of fact, with regard to that
portion of the silver exported, he (Hon. Sir Francis Hincks)
happened to know that the principal bank engaged in carrying on
the operation,—he referred to the Bank of Montreal—had increased
their rate of commission. They would not go on at the rate they first
agreed on with Mr. Weir. There were a great variety of liabilities
and responsibilities to be incurred. For instance, sometimes, a
package turned out to be short, or spurious coins were found in it.
Mr. Weir’s profit after paying all charges, amounted to five-eighths
of one per cent. The express charges, the bank commission, the
brokerage in New York and charges of that description were paid
by the Government and charged to Mr. Weir in the account, making
up this 1 1/2 cent he was to get. The only other charges were the
charges in England, which were chiefly freight, and the Bank of
Montreal commission and the expenses on the silver it was found
necessary to send to England, owing to the impossibility of selling
more in New York after the market there was glutted. He had not
the slightest objection to bring down these returns, but he did not
think it was necessary.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON said he supposed the matter would be
referred to the Committee on Public Accounts and the details could
be submitted there. The amount seemed to be very large to him—
$118,000—and it did seem to him that they should have the details
of so large an expenditure furnished to the House. Part of that
expenditure seemed to have been incurred in New York, part in
England, and part in this country, but there was an entire absence of
details as to names of persons to whom the money had been paid,
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and of details generally. The hon. gentleman would see that this
$118,000 constituted more than 1 1/2 per cent of the gross amount;
therefore, there must be some further statement to be made to the
House before they could come to a thorough understanding of the
matter.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS said the difference between the
total amount of the cost of the exportation and the total amount of
the issue arose from the loss in the sale of the silver in New York.
There would be no objection to giving further information if
necessary. He moved that the relevant documents be referred to the
Committee on Public Accounts.

* * %

THE DEFENCE QUESTION

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT called attention to the absence of papers
connected with the mission of Hon. Mr. Campbell to England,
which he expected would have been brought down. The present
papers contained the gist of all produced yesterday and however
interesting, were not all that were required.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER after an examination of the
papers, admitted they were deficient, stated they were made up
without his knowledge, and promised the remainder would be
produced within ten days, as soon as they could be copied.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT hoped the Government would look at the
returns before transmitting them to the House, because it was only
the members of the Government who knew what despatches were
of value to the House.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER promised his attention to the
matter.

* * %

ELECTION BILL

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD gave notice that on Friday
he would introduce an Election Bill.

* * %

STANDING COMMITTEES

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD moved concurrence in the
report of the Special Committee appointed to select the Standing
Committees.—Carried.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD also moved the re-
appointment of the Library Committee which, in the main, was the
same as last year.

Mr. MACKENZIE called attention to the anomalous position of
the Library officers, some of whom were under the Senate and
some under the House. Some received remuneration from the Upper
House in consideration of services rendered. The Library should be
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placed under the control of a General Committee, the same as the
printing. Let there be no duplicating of salaries, which gave rise to
confusion. The Government last year promised to consider the
matter.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD acknowledged his
responsibility for the delay, excusing himself, however, on the
ground of severe illness towards the end of last session. The
required amendment could only be secured by the adoption of the
hon. gentleman’s suggestion. It would be well to move an
instruction to the present Committee to report on the management
of the Library, the salaries of the officers and so forth. (Hear, hear.)

The motion was agreed to.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER was then granted permission
to withdraw his imperfect return respecting Hon. Mr. Campbell’s
mission to England.

* * *

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS moved that the public accounts,
the return of the exportation of the depreciated silver, and that
relating to the unforseen expenditure be referred to the Committee
on Public Accounts.—Carried.

* % %

HONOUR TO THE GOVERNOR GENERAL

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD moved that an address be
presented to His Excellency the Governor General, congratulating
him on his elevation to the peerage of Great Britain. He said he had
no doubt the House would cordially adopt this address, and convey
to His Excellency, in fitting terms, its congratulatory compliments
on the high honour conferred upon him. He had not been long here;
but he (Hon. Sir John A. Macdonald) believed he had won golden
opinions from every one, at all events, from all who had been able
to follow clearly his course. All agreed he had been a constitutional
Governor in the best sense of the term. His services to Her Majesty
did not commence in this country. He had had a long life of
parliamentary and official experience. His Excellency had had the
great advantage of a varied experience both as a representative of
the people and an Executive Officer of the Crown. In all those
positions he had won cordial and continuous approval from his first
entrance upon public life. He went into Parliament for the county in
which he resided, and represented it 20 years. Thus he had a
thorough training as a representative of the people. As a reward for
his services he received practical proof of the confidence of the
Government by an important office in the Government of his
country. Thus he received the advantage of training in the
administration of a government founded upon free constitutional
principles. He also held, later, a high and important position in the
colonial service as Lord High Commissioner in the Government of
the lonian Islands, and as Governor in Australia. He thus learned
how to deal with great Colonial questions, as his previous
experience had taught him how to discharge the duties of British
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Parliamentary life. We were therefore of one accord as to his just
claims to the high and distinguished honour Her Majesty had
conferred upon him. He would, there was no doubt, be delighted at
this mark of our gratification at his good fortune. Since this honour
was conferred, Her Majesty had bestowed another which, all things
considered, must be more gratifying, proud as was the position of a
Peer of the Realm—namely, the honour of the appointment of Lord
Lieutenant of the county, which he represented twenty years.

Mr. MACKENZIE said he had much pleasure in seconding the
motion. He quite concurred in all that had been said respecting His
Lordship the Governor General. It was one of the great privileges
we had enjoyed of late years to live under the administration of a
constitutional Governor. The benefits of such a system we were
able to appreciate from the inconveniences previously experienced
from one of an opposite character. We had not been troubled with
any of the evils of arbitrary authority or unconstitutional
administration during the term of His Excellency Lord Lisgar. He
(Mr. Mackenzie) need not say anything further in praise of that
nobleman, as we all acknowledged the facts just mentioned by the
hon. gentleman opposite. We all agreed in the eulogies passed by
the Hon. Premier, and he cordially seconded the motion just
submitted.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER in a few appropriate
remarks, supported the motion, complimenting His Excellency on
his faithful, conscientious, and highly satisfactory discharge of the
important duties confided to him by Her Majesty. It was our pride,
our pleasure, and our great interest to live under his administration.
The manner in which he performed his functions left nothing to be
desired. The hon. and gallant baronet proceeded in still happier
phraseology to express the above sentiments in the French language
and was cordially cheered on resuming his seat.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD moved that the resolution
be referred to a committee, consisting of Mr. Mackenzie, Hon. Sir
George-E. Cartier, Messrs. Howe, Tilley, Dorion, Holton, Cameron
(Peel), Hon. Sir A.T. Galt, and the mover.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD submitted a report of the
committee, with an address to His Excellency, which was adopted,
and directed to be presented to His Excellency by such members of
this House as are members of the Privy Council. The address read:

* * %

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY:—

We, Her Majesty’s dutiful and loyal subjects, the Commons of the
Dominion of Canada, in Parliament assembled, beg leave to express
to Your Excellency the deep satisfaction with which we have
observed your elevation to the Peerage of the United Kingdom of
Great Britain and Ireland.
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We recognise, in this gracious act of Our Beloved Sovereign, Her
appreciation of your eminent services in the numerous responsible
positions to which you have had the honor to be called by the
Crown, as also Her recognition of the wise and eminently judicious
manner in which you have represented Her Majesty in this
Dominion, and we trust that you may be spared to give, during yet
many years, to the Empire, the benefit of your mature judgment and
long experience of public affairs.

The said Address, being read a second time, was agreed to.

* % %

THE GOVERNOR GENERAL’S SPEECH

On motion of Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS, the House took
into consideration the address of His Excellency.

* % %

SUPPLY

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS introduced the Supply Bill, and
gave notice that he would move the House in Committee on Friday
next, for the purpose of considering the measure. That part of His
Excellency’s speech that related to supply was referred to the same
Committee.

INLAND REVENUE DEPARTMENT

Mr. STEPHENSON asked whether any recent changes have
been made in the mode of receiving payments by the Inland
Revenue Department, and what the nature and object of such
changes have been and whether these have resulted satisfactorily.

Hon. Mr. MORRIS replied that certain changes had been made
that had worked well and satisfactorily. It has heretofore been found
impossible to guard against loss by collectors by the system of
receiving security from them. For instance, at Montreal the
collector receiving a salary of $1,600, collected $919,000 for the
year ending 30th June last; the collector at Toronto, $410,000; and
the collector at Windsor, $524,000. Heretofore all these sums
passed into the hands of the collector. The change had been a
simple one, and yet it was one that he believed would prove
completely effective. It was the substitution for accepted checks or
drafts on the banks in favor of the Receiver General, so that all
sums exceeding $500—that being the maximum rate fixed on—
would pass directly from the hands of the collector to the Receiver
General, thus diminishing the chances of risk to the Government.
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Mr. MACKENZIE: In other words, copying the plan adopted reference to slide dues and other Departments of the Government,
by the Crown Lands Department in the old Province of Canada. and he was happy to say it worked well.

Hon. Mr. MORRIS said he adopted the system in use with The House adjourned at 4:20 p.m. until Thursday.
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HOUSE OF COMMONS

Thursday, February 23, 1871

The SPEAKER took the chair at three o’clock.

Prayers

Several petitions were received.

Mr. WORKMAN presented a petition from the Montreal Board
of Trade for a general inspection law; and one from the Montreal
Corn Exchange, against the grain and flour duties, and setting forth
the propriety of throwing off duties on the necessaries of life, in
order to render this country a cheap one to live in.

* % %
REPORTS

Mr. HARRISON presented the first Report of the Committee on
Private Bills.

Mr. MACFARLANE presented the first
Committee on Standing Orders.

report of the

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS presented the first report of the
Committee on Public Accounts, and recommended the reduction of
the quorum to seven members. The motion for its adoption was
carried.

A similar proceeding took place in respect of the Committee on
Banking and Commerce, and of the Committee on Private Bills.

* * %

BILLS INTRODUCED

Mr. MACFARLANE moved for the introduction of an Act to
amend the Railway Act of 1868. The Bill received first reading.

Mr. YOUNG moved that a notice be sent to the Senate
informing them that this House had consented to the joint action
proposed with a view to the appointment of a Joint Committee on
Printing.—Carried.

Mr. HARRISON moved for leave to introduce a Bill to extend
the right of appeal in criminal cases. The Bill received first reading.

Mr. BLAKE moved for leave to introduce a Bill to secure the
independence of the Senate; it received first reading.

* k% %

MESSAGE FROM THE GOVERNOR GENERAL

A message was received from His Excellency, thanking the
House for their loyal address, and their promise to devote their
earnest attention to the subjects submitted in the address to their
consideration.

* * %

THE INTERNATIONAL COMMISSION

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD tabled a supplementary
return on the subject of the fisheries, and Mr. Campbell’s mission to
England.

Hon. Sir A.-T. GALT intimated his desire to proceed with his
motion tomorrow.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said he had no objection to
fixing that day. As would be seen by the cable despatches and other
advices, it was necessary he should leave for Washington
immediately.

Mr. BLAKE asked if the papers would be ready in print
tomorrow, and if the Premier could give any further information
respecting the scope of the Commission.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD replied that the papers
would be printed in English by tomorrow, and that he was in no
position to give the information inquired for. The cable despatches
showed that the English Ministers were maintaining a reticence on
this subject.

* % %

GRAND TRUNK RAILWAY

Mr. JONES (Leeds North and Grenville North) asked whether
the Government has instituted any inquiry or investigation in
relation to the numerous accidents which have lately occurred on
the Grand Trunk Railway, and the great irregularity connected with
the delivery of the mails by that road; also whether Mr. Brydges,
President of the Grand Trunk Railway is still employed by the
Government as one of the Commissioners for the construction of
the Intercolonial Railway.
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Hon. Mr. LANGEVIN said that the returns required by law and
by the regulations of the Grand Trunk Railway Company have been
made regularly, and no complaint having been made to the
Government, and nothing unusual under the law, appearing to the
Government, no investigation has taken place. As for the
irregularities in the delivery of the mails | may say that up to the
very severe weather we have had, the Grand Trunk Railway carried
the mails with greater regularity than they did last year. Of course
during the severe weather we have had, the Grand Trunk Railway
was subject to the same delays as other lines. With respect to the
last, | may say that Mr. Brydges is still employed by the
Government.

* * %

SUPREME COURT

Mr. BLAKE asked whether it is the intention of the Government
to introduce this session a measure for the creation of a Supreme
Court.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said the subject was under
consideration.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON: It has been under consideration.

Mr. BLAKE: It has been decided in two former sessions.

* * %

SALES OF CLERGY RESERVES

Mr. THOMPSON (Ontario North) asked when the remainder
of the return to an Address, of 25th of April last, as to the amount
accrued from the sales of the Clergy Reserves in Upper Canada,
since the Act 18 Vic., Cap. 2, a statement of amounts paid each
municipality annually, in Upper Canada, and the amounts now due
to them respectively, under the authority thereof, will be laid before
the House.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS said that return will be sent down
very shortly.

* * %

PATENT ACT

Mr. OLIVER asked whether it is the intention of the
Government during the present session of Parliament to introduce a
Bill to amend the Patent Act.

Hon. Mr. DUNKIN said it was not the intention of the
Government at present to bring down any amendment.

* * %
NEWSPAPER POSTAGE

Mr. DELORME asked whether the Government intends during
this Session to bring down any measure for the abolition of Postage
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on newspapers published in Canada, and sent to subscribers in
Canada.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD replied that it was not the
intention of the Government, this Session, to bring down any such
measure. The revenue of the Post Office Department had been
considerably diminished by the reduction in the rates of postage,
from five to three cents, and the Government did not feel
themselves in a position to make any further reductions.

* % %

THE FAMINE IN FRANCE

Mr. FOURNIER asked whether it is the intention of the
Government to ask for an appropriation in aid of those who are
suffering from the famine caused by the disastrous war which has
desolated France.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD replied that this was a
subject which had been under the consideration of the Government
for some time. Some weeks before the fall of Paris, the subject had
been brought before Government as one of interest not only to
Canada, but to the whole world—it was now of world-wide interest.
The Government did not propose to ask this House to vote any
money for the purpose, but as far as in their power lay, they would
follow the example set by Her Majesty’s Government in England
and by the Government of the United States. The Government in
England had put the whole transport service at the disposal of the
people of England for the transportation of the most munificent
contributions they were now sending to the relief of the suffering
people of France. It was the intention of the Canadian Government,
with the consent of Parliament, to ask for aid in the transmission of
any contributions from any part of Canada for the purpose.

* k% %

BAIE VERTE CANAL

Mr. BURPEE asked whether the surveys and report of the same
of the proposed Canal between the waters of the Gulf of St.
Lawrence and the Bay of Fundy (so important to the trade of the
Dominion) will be completed in time to admit of its being laid
before this House at its present Session?

Hon. Mr. LANGEVIN: The survey is not yet completed. The
Surveying and engineering party is expected back about the 10th of
next month, and we hope to be able to obtain their report in time to
submit it to the House before the end of the Session.

* k% %

TWENTY-CENT PIECES

Mr. CHEVAL asked whether it is the intention of the
Government to adopt such measures as may appear to them
expedient to withdraw from circulation the silver twenty cent coins,
which are a nuisance to the public, as we have now in circulation
twenty-five cent coins?
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Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS replied that the Government had
taken the only steps it was possible for them to take with regard to
the withdrawal of these twenty cent pieces from circulation. He
might observe that when it became necessary to get an additional
supply of small silver coin, this subject engaged the attention of the
Government, and they were of opinion that the twenty-five cent
coin was the best to circulate, and they were fully sensible of the
disadvantage of having two coins in circulation so similar in
appearance and so nearly alike in value. It was deemed advisable,
however, to go on with the issue of the twenty-five cent coins,
because there happened to be but a small amount of twenty cent
coins in circulation. The banks were instructed to accept them and
never to reissue them, and, therefore, it depended on the public to
have them withdrawn. He was very glad to have this opportunity to
state that the Government was as desirous as it could possibly be to
co-operate in every way with the banks in withdrawing these twenty
cent coins from circulation.

* * %

THE FISHERIES

In reply to a question from Hon. Sir A.T. GALT, respecting his
motion on the paper, for correspondence between the Dominion and
the Imperial Governments since the 1st of February, 1870, on the
fisheries and the proposed International Commission.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said that there was little to
relate on these subjects at present. The correspondence brought
down showed that a Commission was asked for for a specified
purpose, by the Canadian Government, in regard to the Fisheries.
The Imperial Government promised to communicate with the
United States Government on the subject, and did so, with the result
all were aware of. The changes subsequently adopted at the instance
of both Governments were already known. Nothing beyond the
letters between the ministers of London and Washington could be
produced at present.

Hon. Sir AT. GALT complained they had not got any
correspondence since Earl Kimberley’s report, and little after the
date of 1866. However, the matter was coming up tomorrow.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD: Yes.

Hon. Mr. TUPPER said the correspondence was contained in
the supplementary return brought down.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT said that in that case he would allow his
motion to drop.

* * %

THE INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY

Mr. JONES (Leeds North and Grenville North) moved for a
return of the names of persons who have tendered for contracts on
the Intercolonial Railway since the 19th of May, 1869. He said his
object was to gratify the public expectation. The general impression
throughout the country was that there was a great, reckless
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expenditure connected with this undertaking, that incompetency as
well as extravagance were the order of the day. The expenditure in
connection with this railway was enormous, a few years ago, but in
1870 it exceeded all preceding years being for engineers, and so
forth $306,681. He moved for details as to the letting of all the
contracts since the 19th May, 1869, the salaries of employees on the
road, and other information in regard to it, including the rates per
mile of the different contracts.

Hon. Mr. LANGEVIN said a large portion of the information
asked for was already before the House. The rest would be brought
down.

The motion carried.

* k% %

PROVINCIAL ARBITRATION

Mr. BLAKE moved for correspondence between the Canadian
and Quebec and Ontario Governments, touching the Provincial
arbitration and award.

Hon. Mr. CHAUVEAU hoped the hon. gentleman would amend
his motion so as to make it include a copy of the joint address of
both Houses of the Local Legislature of Quebec to the Governor
General on this subject. The address was a very strong protest
against the award being considered as anything but one illegal and
unjust.

Mr. GODIN moved in amendment to strike out all the words
after the word “‘award’’ in the main motion, so as to imply a
disavowal of confidence in the decision.

Mr. FOURNIER moved, in amendment to the amendment,
seconded by Mr. POZER, That the words *‘and that the following
words be substituted instead thereof; and representing to His
Excellency, that in the opinion of this House the question relative to
the division of the debt between the Provinces of Ontario and
Quebec having been submitted to and adjudicated upon by two
arbitrators only, one appointed by the Dominion Government and
the other by the Government of Ontario, in the absence of the
Avrbitrator appointed by the Government of Quebec, the award is
not binding on the respective Provinces’” be added at the end
thereof.

He said that he desired on that occasion to register his protest
against this award. The Province of Quebec was unanimously
against this award. All lawyers knew that when arbitrators were
appointed the presence of all at the hearing of the case was essential
to any valid award. He went further believing, with the Quebec
Premier, that the award, too, should be unanimous. It was for
Ontario to adopt any possible violation of the present difficulty.
(Hear, hear.)

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said he could not take any
action in the matter at present, of the kind asked by the
amendments, or any affirming the validity or invalidity of the
award. But the Government had no objection to bring down all the
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papers, including those asked for by the Premier of Quebec. The
amendments were premature. The House did not officially know
that the award was the decision of the Arbitrators, and before it
knew that the papers must be put on the table.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON: Not necessarily.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD: Yes, necessarily. The best
mode of dealing with this subject was to excise from the main
motion its last part, leaving the matter to be considered after the
submission of the papers.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said that the House could not
decide on this important matter before it was in possession of the
papers. It would be unjust to do so, and it would be dangerous to
lower Canada’s interests if it were admitted that this House could
nullify the award.

Mr. DUFRESNE sustained the position taken by Hon. Sir
George-E. Cartier, and invited Mr. Fournier to withdraw his
motion, as it could do no good.

Mr. JOLY said it was well known that on four different dates,
the Government of Quebec protested against the decision of the
arbitrators and had more than once notified His Excellency of the
resignation of the Quebec representative. In no case was anything
more than a merely formal reply vouchsafed. Either the Federal
Government had or had not the right to interfere. If it had, the
subject was sufficiently important to call for their interference. If
they had a proper regard for the peace, welfare and good
understanding between the Provinces that composed the Dominion,
and the Federal Government ought, if not to interfere (in case of a
doubt as to its power), at least, to suspend the proceedings and if it
could do neither, it should now show that it would least attempt to
do so. But they had throughout shown a lack of interest in the
matter. He protested against the course which the Dominion
Government had taken in this matter, a course which, certainly,
whatever might be their powers, was calculated to lead to
difficulties.

Mr. BLAKE was satisfied that if the question were found to be
within the province of this House, and if they had power to deal
with it, they would do so in the most impartial manner. He could
not agree with his hon. friend’s motion on this simple ground, that
he believed this House, independent of the law, had no right to deal
with this question. However desirable, or undesirable it might be,
they had not the power to do so, and should not attempt it. For that
reason his hon. friend’s motion was one which should not receive
the assent of the House. He could not agree that the latter part of his
motion should be excised, and if the hon. member was determined
to have it done, it must be by the decision of a majority of this
House. Under the circumstances of the case, it was the duty of the
Government, as far as necessary for the adjustment of the debt, to
assume that the decision of the arbitrators was valid until it should
be decided to be otherwise, and they should have the financial
arrangements based on that award, and he would not agree to have
it refused unless by a majority of the House.
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Hon. Mr. DORION contended that the Government had a right
to interfere. It was the duty of the Government to say whether the
award was legal or not, and whether they would act upon it or not.
If the Government took no steps in the matter, it was within the
power of the House to inform His Excellency that the award was
null, and therefore should not be acted upon. Three arbitrators were
appointed without a quorum being fixed. In the absence of one of
them a decision was given, and Quebec saddled with what was
considered an unfair proportion of the surplus debt. In view of this
fact, he was astonished that the Government should not take any
steps to set the award aside, and he thought that Quebec had just
cause of complaint in the matter. As the Government did not seem
to understand their duty in the matter, it would be the duty of the
House to remind them of it; and he believed there was fairness
enough in the House to have a just decision on the subject. For
himself, it was enough that the matter had been decided in the
absence of the Quebec representative, and on that ground alone it
was the duty of the House to take action upon it, and immediate
action too, so as to allay excitement and bad feeling. It was
important to the peace and harmony of the Dominion that this
question should be settled as soon as possible.

Mr. MAGILL said the cause of the absence of Judge Day was
simply his inability to get the other two arbitrators to agree with
him. If he could have done that there would have been no difficulty
at all. It was a question of law, and this House had no power to deal
with it.

Mr. HARRISON agreed with the previous speaker that this
House had no power to adjudicate on the question. If the House
could constitute themselves a bench of judges, they could not be
said to be quite impartial. Some of them must be advocates as well
as judges. He objected to having this matter sprung on the House
without notice, and to discussing it at all until the papers were
brought down.

Hon. Mr. CHAUVEAU said he was ready to defend here what
was done in the (Quebec) legislature; but the members for
Bellechasse and Hochelaga should not propose or try to do here
what was not done in that Legislature. It was unjust to bring up and
try to secure a decision or action upon the merits of the question
without previous notice, or the submission of the papers. The award
was illegal and unjust, and Lower Canada would never submit to it.
It was not only a legal but a political question, for upon its decision
depended the stability of Confederation. He would vote against the
motion of the member for Bellechasse. The Dominion Government
is bound to act upon this arbitration question; for the subsidy
payment would be based on some view of the question. He would
go further than the member for Hochelaga, and say Quebec would
not submit to an unjust award from no human authority. He
repeated that sentiment, and affirmed that Quebec was unanimous
on this point.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER: Yes, yes.

Hon. Mr. CHAUVEAU would vote against the amendment of
the member for Bellechasse because it was premature. He would
vote for the motion of the member for Joliette, because it would do
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away with the objectionable part of the motion of the member for
Durham.

Mr. GEOFFRION said the objections of the Premier of Quebec
would have some force if the question were a decision upon the
events of the arbitration. The amendments were not premature.
Information was not so much needed as pretended, for everybody,
even so far north and west as Manitoba, knew the manner in which
the decision was rendered. The simple question was as to the
legality or illegality of that decision. After all the information
elicited on this subject, the Dominion Ministers were unready to
pronounce an opinion on the subject. He believed the decision
illegal, and was ready to proceed with it at once, though so many
other Quebec members were without any opinions thereon.

Mr. DUFRESNE replied to the charge of unreadiness directed
against himself and other Quebec members. He was ready with his
opinion, but other members were not, and preferred waiting for a
better opportunity of expressing it, namely, when all the papers
were brought down, and all the members were in possession of the
facts.

Mr. GEOFFRION suggested to the hon. gentlemen an
accommodation of their differences. Let him ask the member for
Bellechasse to let his motion stand for the present, and he would
probably do it.

Mr. DUFRESNE: Let him do it then.

Hon. Mr. BEAUBIEN criticized and condemned the
amendment of the member for Bellechasse, and argued in favour of
the suspension of judgment and action on this question till all the
papers were before the House.

Hon. Mr. IRVINE hoped his hon. friend, after he had heard this
discussion, would withdraw his motion and re-introduce it at some
more opportune time. Apart from the reasons given against the
introduction of the amendment by the hon. member for Bellechasse,
he thought it was hardly fair to ask this House to pronounce an
opinion on the question without any notice whatever having been
given, and introducing it, too, we might add, as a surprise to a
motion which no one would have supposed would have led to an
amendment of the kind. The motion was an unusual one, and was
rarely tolerated by the House. He was far from admitting that this
House was competent to settle the question at all—that it was the
proper tribunal. He was certain even the movers of the amendments
would not quietly submit to an expression of opinion upon a
substantive motion contrary to the spirit of theirs. An appeal from a
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decision of this Parliament, considered unjust by Quebec, would
doubtless be sought.

Hon. Mr. DORION: What is the proper tribunal?

Hon. Mr. IRVINE was not called upon to decide; he was merely
speaking as to the improper tribunal. He did not deny that an
expression of the opinion of this House might be in order. So far as
the award was to be acted upon by the Dominion Government—so
far as they might have to treat it as legal or illegal—they would
have to be responsible to this House for their action, and the House
would pronounce upon it. He agreed with the amendments of the
member for Joliette. They should certainly support the amendment
to the motion of that hon. gentleman, so as to exempt the House
from the expression of any premature opinion on the merits of the
question. They should not ask the Government in any way to act on
the award at present. He did not admit it was valid, nor did he
believe any part of it should be recognized or treated by this House
as legal. He hoped the hon. member for Bellechasse would consent
to withdraw his amendment, which he must see could not possibly
carry. (Cheers.)

Mr. BLANCHET argued that the motion was not at present in
proper form, as it appealed to a House at present ill-informed, and it
would be a great deal more prudent and in order if the hon. member
for Bellechasse would withdraw his motion.

Mr. FOURNIER rejected the idea that want of information was
any defence for the unreadiness of the hon. members to proceed
with this question at present. Everyone in this House was well
aware how the case stood at present. All the facts had been made
public in both provinces. He was certainly determined to obtain an
expression of the opinion of the House on his motion. The question
was not asked of the merits of the arbitration, but as to whether a
tribunal composed of three arbitrators could render a decision in the
absence of one of the three, and whether the decision so rendered
could be valid. He would not withdraw his motion, but he would
not object to an adjournment of the debate if the House desired it.

Mr. MACKENZIE said it was now six o’clock, and as this
debate would not be resumed after it, and as the two Bills on the
paper were not printed, he did not see what was to be done after six.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD moved that the House
adjourn until three o’clock next afternoon.

The House adjourned at six o’clock.
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HOUSE OF COMMONS

Friday, February 24, 1871

The SPEAKER took the chair at 3.00 p.m.

Prayers

Several petitions were presented including the following:

Mr. CRAWFORD (Leeds South) presented the petition of H.J.
Hubertus and others, praying to be incorporated to construct a
railway from Toronto, through Peterborough, Madoc and Ottawa
City, and across the Ottawa River in the Province of Quebec. The
Company to be known as the Ontario and Quebec Railway
Company.

Mr. WORKMAN presented the petition of William Matheson
and others in Montreal against the duties on coal, flour, etc.

* * %

NATURALIZATION OF ALIENS

Mr. CAMERON (Huron South) asked leave to introduce a Bill
to amend the Act 31 Vic., Cap. 66, relating to the naturalization of
aliens. The Bill received first reading.

* * %

UNFORESEEN EXPENSES

Mr. YOUNG moved to refer the returns on unforeseen expenses
for the period July 1, 1870, to February 18, 1871, to the Joint
Committee on Printing.—Carried.

* * %

POST OFFICE

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD presented the published
report of the Postmaster General for 1870.

* * X
SUPPLY
The House resolved itself into committee to consider that a

Supply be granted to Her Majesty. The committee reported a
resolution, and Hon. Sir A.T. GALT, seconded by Mr. Cartwright,

moved that the House resolve itself into committee to consider the
following resolution:

That this House recognizes in the fullest manner the importance
to the cause of peace and civilization, of the settlement of all
questions in dispute between Great Britain and the United States.
And, in the especial interests of Canada will rejoice to find the
result of the Joint High Commission productive of cordial and
lasting friendship between the two nations.

That this House regards the control and disposal of the inshore
fisheries and the navigation of the inland waters of the Dominion as
specially within the powers conveyed to the Parliament of Canada
under the British North America Act. And will view with the utmost
concern and apprehension any proposal to alter, or diminish the just
rights of the Dominion, in these respects, without their consent.

That this House has always been, and now is, prepared to
concede the most free and unrestricted use of the Fisheries and
Inland Navigation to the United States upon receiving as an
equivalent therefore complete compensation in modification of the
United States commercial system, directed to the more free and
liberal interchange of the products of labour in the two countries.

That the concession to the United States of the freedom of the
fisheries and of the St. Lawrence without such compensation would
place Canada in a most disadvantageous position for future
negotiation by depriving her of the means of offering any adequate
equivalent for those concessions she is desirous of obtaining from
that nation.

That this House willingly consents to the consideration by the
Joint High Commission of all subjects in which Canada is
concerned with the United States. And will cheerfully make any
sacrifices that may be required at their hands in the interest of the
Empire, so far as they do not compromise the national interests and
security of this country, and directly tend to their undue
subordination to the United States in the future.

That this House desires that the question of the claims of Canada
upon the United States, arising out of the repeated and illegal
invasions by predatory bands of so-called Fenians, organised within
the Territory of the United States may be so dealt with by the Joint
Commission, as to afford indemnity for the past, and security
against similar outrages in the future.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT said he had never on any occasion been
more strongly impressed with the gravity of the circumstances
under which he addressed the House, than he was at this moment.
The interests which were at stake in the negotiations now pending
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between Great Britain and the United States were of the most vital
character to this Dominion. Our future political existence depended
on the manner in which they were settled. It was the duty of the
House to strengthen the Government by every means in its power in
the protection of the interests of their country, and he was sure the
Government would be glad to have the support of Parliament in
carrying out the policy which they had themselves announced.
There were matters connected with the appointment of the Joint
High Commission which were calculated to excite distrust in the
minds of our people and rendered necessary that the views of this
House should be presented in unmistakable language. He knew that
this action would imply a doubt as to the protection of the interests
of this country in the negotiations now pending.

He would not, however, for a moment attribute dishonorable
motives to the Imperial Government. Far from it. But they were
anxious for a settlement of the pending disputes and the
establishment of cordial relations with the United States. Having
those great ends in view, he thought they might look at our
Canadian interests in these questions as of comparatively minor
importance. It was a favoured idea with the Americans that Canada
should become a part of the Republic. The States would prefer the
concessions to be made should be such as to place us in a position
of subordination and inferiority. This, rather than English
concessions or money payments, as in the settlement over the
Alabama claims, would be particularly welcome to our neighbours.
A year ago the only question of great moment between Canada and
the States was that as to our claims to indemnity for the Fenian raid.
As to the Fisheries, no treaty or national recognition was needed to
confirm or establish our rights to the three mile limit. Our rights
were of an international character. The fact of the treaty being made
confirmed the Canadian national pretension on the subject. The
licence system avoided difficulties as to the fisheries. The causes
for a failure of the licence system were and must be found in the
fact that it was not enforced.

An able pamphlet recently issued on this subject proved that
statement. If the Government were unable to carry out the system of
licences or partial exclusion, a fortiori it would be still more
difficult to enforce a system of total exclusion. In protecting the
rights of Canada, the Government would receive as cordial
assistance from him as if he cordially approved of all their previous
action. Our Government soon found that they could not enforce
their rights respecting the three mile limit without running risk of
losing their rights involved in the headland question. Interference of
England was again invoked. Mr. Campbell had expressed the
feeling of distrust in Canada, and in the Cabinet, whose members
saw it was proper to express it. The papers showed that the fisheries
and Fenian raid questions were pressed, and the subject of the
withdrawal of the Imperial troops.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT here read portions of the papers recently
brought down, exhibiting the representations of Mr. Campbell and
the reply of Earl Kimberley. He (Hon. Sir A.T. Galt) presumed that
the instructions respecting the protection of the fisheries for the
current year, which were the same as last year, were the fruit of
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Imperial counsel. This, however,

satisfactory.

seemed vague and not

The reply of Earl Kimberley was as vague as it could be in the
then state of affairs, binding the Imperial Government in no respect
whatever. The second point was as to Fenian claims. They were
very much stronger than the Alabama claims. (Cheers.) The raid
took place in a time of peace, and when no causes existed here to
give it a shadow of excuse. The drilling and preparations, moreover,
were carried on in broad daylight. The Alabama escaped by stealth.
What comparison was there between the two cases? The Alabama
case was a single one, but we have had these raids from year to
year. Properly, then, Mr. Campbell was urged to press these claims
for indemnity for the past and security for the future. Under those
circumstances, the language of the Imperial Government should
have been plain and distinct. (He read Earl Kimberley’s despatch to
show how the reply contrasted with what might have been looked
for.) The House and the country would learn with surprise that
Canadian remonstrances had not been productive of any British
remonstrances with the United States Government.

All that was done was a demand for a bill of the losses of those
outrages; and we were required not to present our claims in any way
calculated to hurt the feelings of our neighbours. No man in Canada
needed this warning. Suffering as we had suffered in those cases we
might have expected a more sympathetic and useful response than
we had received from the Imperial authorities. Then as to the
withdrawal of the military, little consideration had been shown our
feelings, if not our interests, in the matter. The action taken had
been characterized by great haste and precipitancy. In the Canadian
appeal preferred by Mr. Campbell, a cordial and friendly answer
might have been given. The language of the Earl was of a wholly
different character. After reciting the language of that nobleman to
the effect that the Imperial Government’s decision as to the
withdrawal of troops would not be departed from, he said he only
adverted to this subject now because it formed part of Mr.
Campbell’s mission. The language of that Government had a most
important bearing upon our present position. Unless the House
expressed some opinion in this matter, we should be assumed to be
perfectly satisfied with the measure of support indicated in the
English despatches. The correspondence was unsatisfactory, and the
mission of Mr. Campbell so far as eliciting any promise of Imperial
support and encouragement, a failure.

With respect to the fishery question, and despatch of October
10th, 1870, we found a proposal for a Commission to settle
disputed points as to fishery limits, came from Mr. Adams when
Minister to England in 1866. The object was to remove doubts as to
geographical limits within which Americans had a right to fish.
Proposal remained in abeyance until Mr. Campbell went to
England. The Order in Council giving him authority to proceed
thither said nothing about a Commission. He was glad to think our
Government did not propose it because we claimed right and
professed certainty upon it, and could not properly have put our
pretentions in doubt. It was for Americans to propose a
commission, and, fortunately for us, they were first to do it.
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Notwithstanding the proposition of the Imperial Government for a
joint commission to settle the fishery limits, it was intended to be of
a practical kind, with the object of settling what was fair and just
between both nations. Considering the absence of complaints and
correspondence on the part of the United States respecting the
fisheries, President Grant’s accusations on the subject in his
Message, startled the whole Dominion. We might have assumed
that the United States Government would have inquired in regard to
the supposed Canadian abuse of fishery rights. No communications
with our Government took place. The first thing we heard of the
matter was through newspaper paragraphs, that the subject of
fisheries was being discussed at Washington. The Canadian
Government papers, in good faith doubtless, denied the stories, but
they were correct. Up to the 10th of February, the Imperial
Government communicated with the Canadian Government on the
negotiations. Afterwards, however, the British Ministers entirely
ignored our Government.

With regard to the reference in the Queen’s speech of the
possibility of individual indiscretions in relation to the fisheries, and
warning against our deprecating them, unless there was some
concession respecting the three mile right contemplated. Individual
indiscretions would be as likely to occur after the decision of the
Commission as they are at present. Canada had an undoubted right
to this limit, and if the exercise of her authority could be construed
into improprieties or indiscretions, we should know it. He doubted
if the Canadian Government had any information as to the
Commission further than the Thornton-Fish correspondence. He
censured the extension of the Commission, which was at first
designed to settle the headlands question. His object in this motion
was to strengthen the hands of the Government—not to weaken
them. He did not desire to censure the Imperial Government or
accuse it of any intention to sacrifice our rights. But he believed the
mixing up of Canadian with Imperial questions in this Commission
would be disadvantageous to us. Both sets of questions should have
been kept separate. The fisheries were of paramount importance to
us. They meant an important source of employment and trade to us,
and a field for the training up of seamen.

They have intrinsic merits also. They constituted valuable means
of commercial exchange with the United States—means of securing
useful trading equivalents from our neighbours. It was the way we
dealt with fisheries and navigation of the St. Lawrence upon which
depended our future advantage and superiority with the United
States in negotiating any commercial convention. If we made an
improper use of them—if we lost those advantages—we should be
placed in a position of inferiority, having nothing to offer for
enviable opportunities. He vindicated the manner in which Canada
had discharged her neighbourly obligations towards the United
States during the last war. We were always ready, and are still, to
treat with them on fair terms. We always offered them coveted
facilities for a reasonable return. There was no reason why our
claims and interests should have been exposed to injury by union
with British questions on which Britain’s position was not near so
strong as was ours. Then, he proposed to introduce a few short
resolutions referring to the matters in dispute between Canada and
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the United States, which were distinct from the questions pending
between Great Britain and the Republic. It was important that we
should make no concessions which would sacrifice our rights.
There were certain things which this country could not lose. The
House would agree with him in believing that the concessions that
would be demanded by the United States would, if granted, place us
in a position of inferiority. The Imperial Government would, no
doubt, be asked to transfer this country to the United States.

He for one repudiated the idea that this country was in any way
subordinate, or that it should ever be subordinated to the policy of
the United States. He had only one object in view, a desire to
maintain the connection with Great Britain as long as it could be
maintained with reference to the honour and interests of the two
countries, and when the time should come that that connection was
to cease he desired that the people of Canada should not be placed
in any position of inferiority to the Great Republic to the south of
us. He declared that we hold in our hands those great interests
which would go, hereafter, to build up an empire on this continent.
(Cheers.) He desired that we should not lightly part with them, that
they should be kept intact in the hands of this Dominion, and it was
by maintaining our rights and not consenting to any weak
concession on this point, but by a firm assertion of what we
believed to be the rights of this country and maintaining them, that
we should best protect ourselves from what he believed to be the
somewhat dangerous position in which we now stood.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD expressed his pleasure at
the intimation of the hon. gentleman that his motion was not one
hostile to the Government. He was certain he occupied too high a
position in the politics of the country, and as a statesman, to say
otherwise than he thought, or shrink from any proper responsibility.
No doubt, he believed, the passage of his motion would strengthen
the hands of the Government and of himself (Hon. Sir John A.
Macdonald) as a member of the Commission. (Hear, hear.) But he
did not believe it would strengthen their hands to give the
Government and people of the United States reason to believe that
they entertained any distrust of the Mother Country, (cheers) that
they feared she could think for a moment of sacrificing the interests
of Canada. (Renewed cheers.) They should avoid any expression of
distrust. He could not join in it, being satisfied of the truth and
loyalty of England, in the larger sense of the word, towards us.
(Hear, hear.)

He was satisfied of the honour of the statesmen of England, and
that they would not for any consideration of peace or the quiet
settlement of any of the questions between their country and the
United States, sacrifice the interests of the people of Canada. He
was convinced that if any government were base enough to propose
such a course, it would be repudiated and rejected with disdain by
the British people. He had no fear that the pledges given by
government after government would be broken. If there was a
country in the world, or a government in the world that had always
kept its pledges, carried out its engagements and enforced its
treaties—no matter at what sacrifice—it was that of England.
(Cheers.) They were not going to betray us now; and why should



COMMONS DEBATES

40

we by any act or expression inform the people of the United States
that we were so distrustful of the honour of England, of her
protection—were so convinced of the great danger of being
sacrificed as to weaken the hands of the Commission—or to show
there was a division between Canada and England in sentiment and
feeling? Why show the United States the fissure through which the
entering wedge of severance could be put?

He was not aware of any cause to distrust the Government and
people of England. The hon. gentleman was a member of the
Government in 1865, and of the deputation to England, and was
then as satisfied as his colleagues of the assurances of Lord
Palmerston’s Cabinet, that in the case of war we should be defended
by land and sea with the whole force of the Empire. Had there been
any change since? The Government they had met day after day for
consultation comprised the present Premier, Mr. Gladstone, Earl
Grey, Mr. Cardwell, and Earl Somerset, men of the existing
Cabinet. Could they be suspected of infidelity to their previous
pledges, or of conduct lowering to the dignity and honour of
England? For what? For fear of war? Did we not lately see England
rise as one man at the threat of interference with the independence
of Belgium? And was she, so willing to run the risk of a great
continental war to keep her engagements towards Belgium, likely to
betray her own child, the country she was bound by every tie to
protect with all her power, to the last man and the last shilling? In
order to lay the basis or groundwork for his resolution, the hon.
gentleman was obliged to bring in, as an indication that England
was not true to us, the tone of Earl Kimberley’s despatches about
the Fenian invasion and the withdrawal of the troops.

He (Hon. Sir John A. Macdonald) thought it was unfortunate his
language on this subject should have been of the kind heard. It
would be quoted and republished in every journal in the United
States, and turned to our disadvantage. The hon. gentleman
complained of the words of the despatch recommending the use of
the becoming language, on our part, in forwarding our claims from
the Fenian raid, and that there was no expression of sympathy with
us. We did not want any further expression of sympathy than we
had received again and again. England asked our statement for what
purpose? To lay it before the Washington Government. We were
merely asked to set it forth in diplomatic, courteous language, so as
to avoid annoying the susceptibilities of either people, already
delicate on account of the Alabama and other questions. As to the
withdrawal of the troops, he was not concerned on behalf of the
Canadian Government to support or defend the course taken by Her
Majesty’s Government in their own discretion. As an individual and
a member of the Canadian Government, and looking to the future
relations between Canada and England, to the growing importance
of Canada, and of a warm, friendly feeling between her and
England and between them and the States, he had no hesitation in
saying it was a mistake to withdraw the troops.

He thought it would have been a wiser policy—as a symbol of
the sovereignty of England in this Continent—to use the words of
Mr. Campbell—to have left the troops among us. That opinion was
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held by one of the oldest and most experienced of English
statesmen, Earl Russell, the representative of the great Whig Party,
and by Lord Carnavon, a leading statesman, and one of the chiefs of
another great party. The Government, however, had taken a
different ground, believing that the interests of England, as well as
of the Empire, were better served by the concentration of the troops
in the Mother Country. Though he believed this a mistaken policy,
it was no evidence of England’s intention to disregard her pledge to
defend us with the whole power of the Empire. The British
Government, in compliance with the Canadian Government’s
representations on this matter—they had not failed in their duty in
respect to it—reiterated their pledges of 1865, that the whole force
of the Empire would be used in our defence. (Cheers.) Why then
express distrust of England?

The hon. gentleman said he was glad the Canadian government
had not suggested the Mixed Commission, and that he (Hon. Sir
John A. Macdonald) was in error in stating they had. In 1866, after
the termination of the Reciprocity Treaty, Minister Adams proposed
that while the whole subject of the renewal of the treaty or the
settlement of the fishery question was under discussion, the
American fishermen should be allowed their old unrestricted fishing
privileges. Lord Clarendon’s speech in reply was a masterpiece of
statesmanship. He readily met the proposal for a Commission on
the disputed question. We, however, at once represented that during
the discussion of the matter we should not agree, that Canada
should be precluded from asserting her right. That despatch was
sent to Lord Clarendon, and by him transmitted to the United States
Government, and from that moment the matter ended. It ceased to
be a matter of personal interest, and became as much a matter of
history as the proceedings in connection with the Treaty of Ghent.
Lord Clarendon saw the astute mode in which the American
Minister proposed to keep open the question of our fishery rights,
while the Commission might sit till eternity.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT: Mr. Campbell said it was accepted by
Lord Clarendon.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said he did not accept it on
certain conditions which were not accepted by the American
Government, and so the thing fell to the ground. Why did we renew
the proposition in any shape whatever? It was important we should
have not only the moral support of Her Majesty’s Government, but
the material support of her fleet. England at once granted us this
support, in the shape of a large squadron commanded by an able
and energetic officer. We assented to the proposal of England that
we should not, for the time, assert our exclusive rights to the
fisheries, till the headland question was settled. We did not abandon
or waive our rights, but merely to remain in accord with the British
Government, with whom rested the responsibility for peace or war
with the States, we yielded to their wishes for the time being. He
believed we were right in so doing, and should have shown a selfish
disregard of the interests of England, had we taken any different
course. We showed a due regard for England’s interests and our
own in delaying till a more opportune season the enforcement of
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our rights. We felt and still feel the inconvenience of having the
rights we were afraid to enforce—of having to waive from day to
day and year to year—and therefore had instructed Mr. Campbell to
ask for a mixed Commission to settle the fishery question. He
believed in so doing that he would receive the approbation of the
House and country. (Cheers.) They had thus gained the assistance
of Her Majesty’s Government on the fishing banks and at
Washington.

He believed the experience of last year had shown that, if we
persisted in the policy we commenced in 1867—setting aside the
question of headlands altogether—the policy of a rigorous
exclusion of American fishermen from our three mile limit—we
should virtually exclude all foreign fishermen from our waters.
They would not, so great would be our geographical superiority,
find it to their interest to employ their capital in our waters. We
were thus gaining our rightful advantages while abstaining at the
instance of England from pressing our rights to their utmost limits.
We adopted the license system because it was regarded as merely
provisional, till a better, a final one could be devised. His hon.
friend is wrong in thinking that a system of licenses, was less
difficult to enforce than one of exclusion. The exclusion altogether
was much easier, because the other system required a large police,
with constant visits and interference. His hon. friend was opposed
to the license system.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT said the hon. Premier was wrong in saying
he was opposed to the license system.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD said his hon. friend’s policy
was the same as his own on the subject. As ministers in the same
Government, the moment the Treaty came to an end, they proposed
the complete exclusion of American fishermen from Canadian
waters. They were to be notified of this decision promptly. The
Government, of which the member for Sherbrooke was a member,
acted promptly and decisively on the subject. They adopted the
licensing system as a temporary expedient and in deference to the
wishes of the British Government. It was to be employed only until
a new and better arrangement could be made. The Governments of
the Maritime powers also consented to the English
recommendation. The Canadian Government by its Order in
Council, of 1866, announced that their fixed policy was one of
exclusion. So in this way the hon. gentleman was opposed to the
licenses.

Hon. Sir AT. GALT: Of course, in the same way as my hon.
friend.

(Laughter.)

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD: The license system was
found a failure, and it was perceived that the effective assertion of
our Canadian rights was the only, the best course we could pursue.
The last hope of the renewal of the Reciprocity Treaty having
ended, and the licenses having failed, they introduced again, in
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1870, the policy of exclusion which had proved successful. It would
appear by the papers that the Canadian Government desired a
Commission touching the headland question. The Imperial
Government had a right to unite the Fishery and Alabama
questions, and having this right, there was no reason to fear
Canadian interests would be sacrificed in the negotiations. One
would think from the speech of the hon. gentleman that the
settlement of the Alabama question was a matter of no importance.
Was it of no importance that a terrible war between England and the
States, which would subject Canada to all the miseries of the
battleground, should be avoided?

If this threatening cloud were removed—if the pending
controversies were settled—we might calculate upon a long term of
peace with the United States, with increased trade and prosperity,
upon a vista of tranquility, progress and happiness.

He was glad the United States had suggested the settlement of
this dispute, and when there was a mutually sincere desire on this
subject, there would be a way found out of the difficulty. (Cheers.)
The invitation to Canada to take part in this Commission showed
that Canada had made an additional step in the estimation and
favour of England in this, that he, unworthy as he was, should have
been chosen to represent the cause of Canada at Washington.
(Cheers.) His hon. friend had expressed himself as afraid that the
Fisheries question would be neglected if associated with the
Alabama claims and others in which the Imperial Government were
more directly interested. He (Hon. Sir John A. Macdonald) thought
differently. The very fact of its being made a matter of Imperial
interest, and on which the Imperial statesmen were obliged to act
with the same force as on the Alabama claims, would give it more
importance in the eyes of the United States Government than if
dealt with by a smaller committee. He had no doubt that if he were
to take sweet counsel with his hon. friend on the resolutions, they
would find that there was little difference between their views.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT: Hear, hear!

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD: That was one thing, but it
was quite another matter to bring the subject before the House at
this time. It was much to be regretted that an attempt should be
made to fetter the representation of the Dominion. How would he
stand in Washington with the other unfettered representatives, if he
was sent merely as a delegate, to repeat the instructions he had
received from this Parliament. It would prevent a free and frank
discussion of the question if he was to be restricted to saying, as
these resolutions would imply, that the demands of Canada were
merely for modifications of our commercial relations with the
United States. Could anyone imagine the four Commissioners from
England receiving instructions from the British Parliament in such a
way? He was quite sure that the gentlemen who composed that
Commission would decline to act under such conditions.

He agreed with his hon. friend that by international law, and the
treaty of 1818, the three miles of water extending along our shores
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were as much a portion of Canada as any place three miles within
land, and could his hon. friend suppose for a moment that England
would give away a portion of our territory? There was no fear of
England ceding a part of Canada, and she would as much be giving
up a portion of this country by ceding our rights to the three mile
limit as if she gave away one of our cities. Her policy was opposed
to ceding territory in any case without the consent of the inhabitants
of the place to be given up.

Then again, Lord Granville, in the House of Lords, and Mr.
Gladstone in the House of Commons have announced that the
action of the Commission would not be final. If the result of this
Commission was to settle the pending questions, he had not the
slightest doubt that all matters affecting this country would be
submitted to this Parliament for ratification. It was so with the
Reciprocity Treaty. In 1866 there was a Mixed Commission
appointed to settle the fisheries question between France and
England. That Commission quite rearranged the matter. The treaty
they framed was submitted to the British Parliament and ratified by
them, but was rejected by the French Government, and the policy of
the British Government was so averse to considering a treaty
binding that was not ratified by the people affected by it that the
treaty of that Commission is considered a nullity. In the Joint High
Commission about to sit at Washington there would be a sincere
desire on hoth sides, he believed, for a settlement of the pending
disputes, but there was no risk whatever to our interests. Even if we
could suppose that England were willing to sacrifice us, as a matter
of law she could not until the Canadian Parliament ratified the
treaty by its own act. He hoped his hon. friend would be satisfied by
this discussion, that our rights were of the first importance, that they
could not be over-estimated and that our interests must not be given
away or surrendered in any way, except by our own act. He had no
doubt that such was the general opinion of this House, and he hoped
his hon. friend would not inopportunely affect the action of the
commission by pressing his resolutions to a vote, but would consent
to withdraw them.

It being six o’clock, the House rose.

AFTER RECESS

Mr. MACKENZIE said he had listened with great pleasure to
the speeches of the member for Sherbrooke and the leader of the
Government, and was far from regretting that the discussion had
taken place, but would have preferred if it had come on during the
debate on the Address. The leader of the Government had taken
very strong grounds on the subject, asking on what occasion
England had ever failed Canada in her negotiations. Unfortunately,
he maintained, she had almost always failed her, mentioning the
treaty relating to the boundary between the United States and
Canada, both in the east and west, as an instance in which the
ignorance of English statesmen had resulted in depriving Canada of
a large amount of territory which she ought to possess, and it was
therefore no matter of surprise that when a new question such as the
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one then under discussion came up the people of Canada should
manifest some doubt as to whether they would obtain a satisfactory
settlement.

The leader of the Government had made a great deal out of the
fact that our interests would be safe in the hands of the British
negotiators. Unfortunately this was not a fact, for every negotiation
that had taken place, except that on the Reciprocity Treaty—which
was chiefly managed by Canadians, though Lord Elgin was
nominally at the head of the negotiating party—had been to our
disadvantage. On all other occasions—whether from inattention to
our interests, or from ignorance of some fact of which they ought to
have been cognizant—the representatives of British authority had
failed to give that attention to our interests necessary to secure our
rights. In the treaty of 1783 we found that very great ignorance
prevailed with regard to our geographical position on this continent.
If that ignorance had not existed, we would now have a North-West
greater in extent, twice over, than the one we now have. Then, there
was the eastern boundary question. Who did not know it was
through incapacity or ignorance that the Provinces of Lower
Canada and New Brunswick were cramped up by the insertion of
the State of Maine in the heart of our territory? No British
negotiator could be as cognizant of what was necessary for our own
interests as our own people were; and perhaps it was not a matter of
surprise that there would be impatience on the part of our people
when any new question came up, such as the fisheries; but we
should remember that the commission was already appointed, and it
would be ungracious on our part to do anything that would imply
any suspicion that the parties named on the commission would
fairly consider the subjects committed to them.

Still, the House had already pronounced on the subject in its
reply to the speech of the Governor General, and as the matter of
the Commission was already settled and the Commissioners
appointed, he thought the passage of the resolutions would imply a
suspicion that the parties named in the Commission would not fairly
consider the matters with which they had to deal. It should also be
remembered that the hon. gentleman at the head of the Government
was to be a member of that Commission, and although he had never
agreed with that gentleman’s views, he could not believe that any
Canadian who had occupied the prominent position that that
gentleman had occupied could ever be so lost to the honour of his
country as to fail to recognize his duty, and while he agreed with
many of the views expressed by the member for Sherbrooke he
thought it would be wrong to force the adoption of the resolutions
he had moved. He believed it was essentially necessary for Canada
to use every means in her power to promote friendly relations with
the United States, and he, for one, was willing to make any
reasonable concessions to accomplish that end, but it had in the past
invariably been found that anything yielded was merely the prelude
of more exorbitant demands on the part of the States.

The hon. gentleman at the head of the Government had
mentioned in his speech the subject of the national defence. In this
matter he would simply say that in his opinion the mere retention of
a few British troops could be of no possible avail as a defence from
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an attack from the United States, and that if ever such an attack
should be made, it would have to be met by a force ten or twenty
times as large as that which the British Government could ever be
asked to station in Canada, and if the British troops were merely to
act as a symbol of the force of the Empire that lay behind them,
why we had that symbol in our own redcoats and in our flag which
was the same as that of England, and he did not think therefore it
would make any difference whether the three or four thousand
British troops were left in Canada or taken away altogether. We had
already the assurance of the British Government that whilst we
remained in connection with her the whole force of the Empire
would always be available for our defence.

He believed, however, that the really valuable spirit of the United
States was hostile to any acquirement of territory by conquest, and
that spirit would steadily grow; and looking at the future, he did not
believe the time would ever come, that Canada would have to
defend her territory against an army from the United States. If ever
there should be war between England and the United States, it
would be for some cause that was considered just by one country or
the other, and he had too much faith in the people of both countries
to believe that the one would ever be guilty of committing any
wrong that would compel the other to go to war to repair.

He thought that in the matter under discussion they owed a
certain obligation to the opinions of the gentlemen opposite, and as
they had declared that it would be injurious to their success in
negotiating with the other members of the Commission to have any
such resolutions passed as those then before the House, and as on
other grounds he thought it would be impolitic to pass those
resolutions, he felt bound to recommend their withdrawal. He
wished, however, to refer to one expression made use of by the
member for Sherbrooke, namely, that the Imperial Government
would rather concede some of our rights in compensation for the
Alabama claims than make a money payment.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT stated that what he had intended to say,
and what he believed he had said, was that the American
Government would prefer to receive some such concession than a
money payment.

Mr. MACKENZIE after acknowledging the correction,
proceeded to say that he believed the sole object of the leading men
in the United States in keeping the subject of the Alabama claims so
prominently forward was to endeavour to drive British power
entirely from the continent, and as far as that was concerned, he
agreed with the remarks of the member for Sherbrooke, who, he
was sure, would join heartily in resisting all such attempts. The
future position of Canada might be such as was anticipated by the
member for Sherbrooke, but he (Mr. Mackenzie) did not think it
was desirable that any change should take place in our political
relations, and he did not speak of this merely as a matter of
sentimental attachment, although he was not ashamed to own that
he had that sentimental attachment, but on material grounds he
believed it was for our interest that our relations should not be
changed. But if the anticipations of the hon. gentleman should be
realized, he believed the people of Canada would be fully equal to

43

the emergency. He thought it was very desirable that the public men
of Canada should express a bold decided opinion on the matter
under discussion, but he hoped the hon. gentleman, the mover of the
resolutions, would not force a vote upon them, as he thought a
division would be most undesirable.

Hon. Mr. TUPPER said he was sure the House would agree
with the opinion expressed by the hon. member for Sherbrooke, that
no more important question had ever been submitted to that
Parliament than the one now under consideration. He (Hon Mr.
Tupper) considered that the Government, the House, and the
country were deeply indebted to the hon. mover of these
resolutions, as the discussion that had been elicited would show to
the world that while public men here differed upon the
comparatively insignificant questions as to who should administer
public affairs, the moment that any question arose involving the
material interests or touching the honour of the Dominion, all
parties would be found standing shoulder to shoulder in defence of
the rights of their common country.

He accepted the statement frankly made by the hon. member for
Sherbrooke, that he had moved these resolutions with a sincere
desire to strengthen the hands of the Government and of the first
Minister as a member of the Joint Commission, in its fullest sense,
but he believed that the hon. member would, seeing that his object
had been fully attained by the discussion, in deference to the desire
expressed on both sides of the House, consent to withdraw them.
He could not agree with that hon. member in the opinion that there
was any ground for distrusting the Imperial Government. He had
faith in the Government, Parliament, and the people of England,
and believed that no party could retain power in that country who
would sacrifice the rights of the Dominion.

In relation to the important question of the fisheries, the House
had the guarantee of the past that our interests would be fully
protected. This was not a question of yesterday. For the last 30
years this controversy had existed, except when, happily, suspended
during the operation of the Reciprocity Treaty. The British
Government having discovered that a great error had been
committed in allowing the United States to fish in our waters, under
the Treaty of 1783, when that treaty was abrogated by the War of
1812, refused to renew those concessions, although earnestly
pressed for by the United States. In defence of our rights they sent a
naval force into British American waters, and made numerous
seizures of American fishing vessels, until, by the Convention of
1818, the United States renounced forever the right of fishing
within three miles of the coasts, bays or harbours of British
America, except in certain localities therein specified. In 1819 an
Act was passed by the Imperial Parliament, to carry into effect the
provisions of that Convention. In 1836 the Legislature of Nova
Scotia passed a stringent Act for the same purpose, containing a
clause under which the master of a fishing vessel could be
examined under oath if found hovering in our waters. In 1838 a
naval force was sent from England in response to an address from
the Legislature of Nova Scotia, and in the following year numerous
seizures of trespassers took place. In 1841 an exhaustive
remonstrance was made by Mr. Stevenson, the American Minister
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at the Court of St. James, complaining of the severity of the Nova
Scotia Act, the exclusion of American fishing vessels from the
bays, and from a line drawn three miles outside of the headland, and
claiming the right to navigate the Gut of Canso.

This was referred to the Government of Nova Scotia, and a case
on all these points was prepared and sent for the opinion of the law
officers of the Crown in England. The opinion of the Advocates and
Attorney Generals of the British Government, sustaining our view
of the question on all these points was adopted and sent out by Lord
Stanley, in 1842.

In 1843 the Washington, an American fishing vessel, was seized
for fishing in the Bay of Fundy, and Mr. Everett, then the United
States Minister, made an earnest appeal to Lord Aberdeen, claiming
that that Bay ought to be excepted. He said, May 25, 1844, the
existing doubt as to the construction arises from the fact that a
broad arm of the sea runs up to the Northwest between the
Provinces of New Brunswick and Nova Scotia. This arm of the sea
being commonly called the Bay of Fundy, though not in reality
possessing all the characters usually implied by the term Bay, has of
late years been claimed by the provincial authorities of Nova Scotia
to be included among the coasts, bays and creeks, and has been
forbidden to American Fishermen. Lord Aberdeen, while asserting
the right to exclude foreigners, under the Convention of 1818, from
the Bay of Fundy, agreed to make it an exception from all the other
Bays, but asked in return for this *“liberal concession’” a reduction
in the American duty on fish which was made by Congress in 1846.

An attempt having been made to extend this privilege to other
bays, the Colonial Minister, Lord Stanley, sent a despatch in reply
to remonstrances from New Brunswick and Nova Scotia, saying
that Her Majesty’s Government would adhere to the strict letter of
the treaty except as to the Bay of Fundy. In 1851 the agreement of
Colonial delegates in London to unite in the protection of the
Fisheries was followed by a proposal for reciprocal trade between
the United States and British America in the Presidential message.
Nothing having been done in 1852, Sir John Pakington sent a
despatch saying, ‘‘among the many pressing subjects which have
engaged the attention of Her Majesty’s Ministers since their
assumption of office, few have been more important in their
estimation than the questions relating to the protection solicited for
the fisheries on the coast of British North America. Her Majesty’s
Ministers are desirous to remove all grounds of complaints on the
part of the Colonies in consequence of the encroachments of the
fishing vessels of the United States upon those waters, from which
they are excluded by the terms of the convention of 1818, and they
therefore intend to despatch, as soon as possible, a small naval force
of steamers or other small vessels to enforce the observance of that
Treaty.”’

Those who have been surprised at the recent message of
President Grant will find by looking back to the events of that day
that history is only repeating itself. The excitement in and out of
Congress was far greater than now, but it was only the prelude to a
fresh proposal for a convention on reciprocal trade made in
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December of the same year, and which resulted in a Reciprocity
Treaty which happily disposed of all these difficulties, and which
resulted in the greatest commercial advantages to both countries.
Unfortunately, in a moment of irritation, arising from circumstances
connected with the late Civil War, the Government of the United
States put an end to that Treaty, and deprived their fishermen of the
privileges they had under it enjoyed. The British Government
believing that a new Treaty would be made if our rights were not at
once enforced, proposed that they should be left in abeyance for one
year with that object, but readily concurred in the policy of
requiring foreign fishing vessels to pay license. They sustained the
Government of Canada in raising that charge and when it was found
ineffective in enforcing our rights, and no disposition evinced for
reciprocal trade, they again sent a large naval force to aid in
excluding foreign fishermen. New causes of irritation having sprang
up between England and America, Her Majesty’s Government have
desired, pending their discussion, to avoid the enforcement of our
extreme rights; but they have been careful to notify the United
States that they do not concede anything that has ever been claimed
under the treaty of 1818.

He (Hon. Mr. Tupper) contended that with this evidence before
us of the determination on the part of England not to yield up one
jot or one title of our rights, but to aid us on every occasion for the
past thirty years to maintain them unimpaired, it would be as unjust
as it would be ungrateful to evince the slightest distrust, or suppose
for a moment that the Imperial Government could for any
consideration forget the interests of this Dominion. His hon. friend,
the member for Sherbrooke, had complained of the withdrawal of
the troops from Canada, but while all would regret their departure,
if Her Majesty’s Government were of the opinion that by
concentrating their forces in England they could best consult the
security of the Empire, we must bow to their decision. The House
must not forget that, no sooner had the first indication of danger
occurred at the time of the Trent affair, than swift steamers from
England were following each other in rapid succession across the
ocean, pouring troops and munitions of war into Canada for its
defence. Nor must it be forgotten that two regiments of British
troops and three batteries of artillery are maintained at Halifax, the
present headquarters, which is being made one of the strongest
fortresses in the world by Imperial expenditure. If Her Majesty’s
Government had shown an anxious desire to avoid any possible
cause of collision with the United States, he believed it was largely
increased by the reflection, that in such a struggle Canada must
naturally be the battle ground for that unnatural war. He could
readily understand the desire of England to avoid by any means
consistent with national honour a war that would be a disgrace to
civilization.

For his own part he had no fear on this point, and did not expect
that the hon. gentleman would ever see a blow struck between the
two countries, but all would rejoice to see any cause of difference
removed, as he had no doubt they would be by the measures
proposed by the Joint Commission about to sit at Washington. He
rejoiced to know that no time could be more opportune than the
present for the consideration of the questions in which Canada was
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so deeply interested. The abrogation of the Reciprocity Treaty was
done under the mistaken impression that Canada was so dependent
upon the policy of the United States that it would be compelled to
join them. The Confederation of these provinces was considered an
experiment likely to result in failure. Only a year ago the North
West was in a state of insurrection, and it was said that British
Columbia was seeking annexation to the Republic. Today the
provinces of this Dominion are consolidated into one harmonious
whole. The new Province of Manitoba, with the vast North West
has been added to our country without shedding one drop of blood,
and the Legislature of British Columbia has unanimously asked
admission to the Confederation upon the terms offered by the
Government of Canada. Instead of being starved into annexation by
the abrogation of the Reciprocity Treaty we find our exports to the
United States exceeding any former year by thirteen millions, and
largely in excess of our imports from that country. Never did the
whole of the Dominion enjoy so high a degree of prosperity; while
each of the provinces of which it is composed can boast a large
surplus revenue, the Central Government is able to show an
increase of exports and imports over any former year; a large
increase in the Revenue from Imports, Excise, Canals, Railways,
Post Office and Bill Stamps, evidencing the highest degree of
commercial prosperity, while the value of Canadian bonds and
stocks has reached a point never before attained.

Such is the financial position of Canada, that the Government is
prepared not only to construct the Intercolonial Railway, and
grapple vigorously with the great questions of canals and a railway
to the Pacific, but at the same time reduce the comparatively light
taxation of the people. | feel assured that under these auspicious
circumstances the hon. member for Sherbrooke will withdraw his
resolutions, and this House by its unanimous action will show to the
world, that all parties in Canada have unqualified faith in the
justness of our cause, and the support of England in the
maintenance of our rights, by allowing the commissioner whom Her
Gracious Majesty has chosen for Canada, to enter upon the high
duties with which he is charged, as free and untrammelled as his
colleagues belonging to either England or America. (Loud cheers.)

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North) was surprised to hear
the remarks of the hon. member opposite. The circumstances of this
country with regard to England had undergone no change. With
respect to our Fisheries, the policy of the English and Canadian
Governments has been the using of them, with a view to promoting
the reciprocal trade of Canada and the States. The chief object was
not the simple protection of our Fisheries. So far as we had gone
little had been gained in the direction desired. The hon. gentlemen
on the Treasury benches had changed their views with regard to the
importance of the Fisheries as a means to the attainment of a larger
trade with the States. The question would now seem likely to be
settled on its merits. The questions to be submitted to the
Commission were mainly connected with the late Civil War, with
which we had nothing to do. The claims of Canada touching the
Fenian invasion do not seem likely to be dealt with. The House
should receive distinct assurances that the Government had done its
duty in this matter. If all the other subjects mentioned in connection
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with the Commission were to be considered, the Raid claims would
stand a poor chance of consideration.

He was glad at the prospect of a settlement of these questions,
but feared the High Commission without any expression on the part
of this House, would dispose of the Fishery question to the
advantage of England, and as a set off to the Alabama claims. The
interests of Canada would run the risk of grave injury. The rights
and interests of the people of this country should not be sacrificed
as a set off to American claims upon England, and this House
should so express its opinion. From personal knowledge of the
feeling of men in the Lower Provinces, he could state that it was
feared that the rights and claims of Canada would suffer in the
forthcoming Commission. That was his own apprehension also.
There was no doubt that vigilance and determined action were
necessary on the part of Canadian statesmen to prevent our interests
being seriously compromised. We had suffered gravely from the
blunders of British and Colonial representatives in dealing with
questions between us and the United States. The tendency of the
negotiations, the spirit in which they would be undertaken, led to
the conclusion that our interests were in danger. (Ironical cheers.)
He was firmly convinced that the attempt of the Government of
Canada to put in force extreme claims and rights of this country
with regard to the Fisheries, without the cordial assistance of the
Imperial Government, was a dangerous policy. (Cheers and counter
cheers.) The Hon. Finance Minister laughed, but if England had
gone to war with Russia, as was lately probable, another kind of
expression would have overspread his countenance. He believed
that the Hon. Premier should not be allowed to commit this country
to any arrangement—that he should not be subjected to defeat in the
Commission by a majority of his colleagues, without a previous
declaration of the opinion of this House. (Cheers.)

Mr. YOUNG said as far as the resolutions were concerned, he
could not agree with the hon. member for Sherbrooke; at the same
time he did not think it right to find fault, unless the question was
brought before them in an enlarged manner. Our relations both to
the United States and the Mother Country should be cordial and
friendly. The interests of the Dominion tended to draw closer the
bonds of friendship with the Mother Country and the United States.
We all sprang from the same origin, and we ought to be drawn
together in the common bonds of friendship and good feeling, and if
others did anything that would cause a breach of amity and good
feeling, we would not be to blame. With the exception of one
particular point he did not think that any just cause of complaint
could be brought against Canada. He referred to placing the duty on
coal. He warned the Minister of Finance that matter would be taken
exception to, on the other side of the line, and that it would be likely
to create ill feeling there. With the exception of that one serious
blunder the policy of the Government had been conciliatory. But
disguise it as we might, a very considerable portion of their people
had encouraged attacks upon this country. With these facts before
them, he, for one, felt that the Commission at Washington should
stand up for the rights of this country. It would cause a dangerous
feeling here, if the rights of our Fisheries were to be at all yielded to
the United States.
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With regard to the President’s message, he considered that our
policy had been most liberal towards them. It had gone to the
extreme limits—as far as the rights of this Government could go.
We have allowed them to use our canals, and, considering the
expense we had been at in the building of them, he thought, under
these circumstances, we ought to stand up for our rights. He was
inclined to think that from what was said about the Fenian raids, our
Government had not pressed it upon the Imperial Government in as
strong a light as they should have done. With regard to the Hon.
Minister of Justice, he had the utmost confidence in his judgment
and knowledge. We have learned some wholesome lessons since
1866, the time when the treaty was abolished. He could not speak
much for the other Provinces, but for the Province of Ontario they
had good evidence of the prosperity existing there. They had
evidence that the deposits in the banks were largely increasing. In
1869 there were six millions of dollars in the various Savings Banks
and at the present time there were fully seventy millions belonging
to the people in our Building Societies. Still we were willing to
meet our neighbours half way, though under no necessity of doing
so. He considered if the Americans were prepared to place our
commercial relations on a better basis, it would be for the advantage
of both countries.

Mr. BLAKE thought that they were not in a position, from the
information in their hands, to properly discuss the question; and
even if they were, they were not, in the interest of the country, free
to discuss it in all its bearings to any advantage; and while there
could not be free, unfettered discussion, it was better there should
be none at all. As to the best mode of settling international disputes,
there was, of late days, no difference of opinion The humane and
equitable spirit was conceded all due influence. This did not
conclude the present question, however. This was not the case of a
regular dispute between two ordinary nations. The complicated
position of the Mother Country, with its various dependencies and
various interests, created or occasioned questions of a different
character from those originating with other powers. He felt averse
from pronouncing upon the present motion or the character of the
Commission for a variety of reasons. In the first place, they did not
know what its scope was. The Premier was not able to tell us
whether it embraced the claims of Canada on account of the Fenian
Raid. Then some of the members had not had time to study the
papers brought down, and some material to the case had evidently
not been produced. A document made and sent to the United States
was surely one which the people of Canada, in whose name and for
whose behoof it was despatched, should have been made acquainted
with. (Cheers.) Again, we did not know whether our consent to the
Commission’s conclusions was to be asked. The Premier seemed to
assume, that because the provisions of the treaty would
““probably,”” as he had observed, be submitted to the Imperial
Parliament, they would have to be submitted to this Parliament.
That by no means followed, we had already recorded our views
upon those matters shortly to be considered—that the people of this
country had not demanded and did not demand anything more than
their rights secured by treaty and the law of nations. Had we not
recorded that declaration, the statement of the First Minister, on
introducing this question, would have filled him (Mr. Blake) with
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considerable apprehension; because he believed this speech was
designed to lead the country to the conclusion, that the headland
question was one which they would probably hear the end of in this
Commission and in a way not satisfactory to the people of this
country. (Hear, hear.)

The question was, now, having recorded our position—what
more could we do? The Commission had been constituted, the place
had been decided. The government took the responsibility in the
first instance of proposing the Commission with regard to the
Fisheries, and, in the second place, of agreeing to participate in the
labours of that Commission, when its scope had been enlarged to
other subjects, and, in the third place of agreeing to that
Commission without knowing whether it would embrace the Fenian
Raid claims of Canada. The step had been taken and was
irrevocable. The Commission was just about to sit and it appeared
to him that no action they might take, could in the slightest degree
reverse that policy at this moment. We were powerless to prevent
the sitting of the Commission, or the continuance of its sittings, or
its arrival at conclusions on the questions which the Premier said
might probably be submitted to it. The question was, whether we
ought to do or say anything which might in the slightest degree
embarrass or impede the course of the Administration with regard
to the matters upon which they had assumed this responsibility. His
opinion was they should not by voice, vote, or record, do or say
anything of the kind. We should allow matters to proceed without
doing anything to hamper the Government, or tending to bring the
labours of the Commission to an unsuccessful termination. He did
not think it was expedient we should come to any resolution
whatever on this question. He believed, notwithstanding, the claims
of Canada were indisputably correct. However, he joined with the
hon. gentlemen on both sides of the House in requesting the hon.
member for Sherbrooke to withdraw his resolutions.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT in reply, said he was willing that the first
minister and other gentlemen should combat his conclusions, but he
denied their right to charge him with imputing motives when only
interpreting acts. (Cheers.)

With regard to the policy of Great Britain in the matter of the
removal of the troops, he did not propose to discuss the question, as
the hon. gentleman, the leader of the Government, had stated, as his
individual opinion, that he was opposed to the present policy of the
Imperial authorities, and it might be assumed that that was the
opinion of the whole Government, as shewn by Mr. Campbell’s
report. He considered, however, that that policy evidenced a
material alteration in the relation of the Empire to Canada, and he
contended that it was therefore a fit subject for discussion, as it
concerned the nearest interests of the country. The leader of the
Government had also stated, in regard to the course taken by
Canada on the Fishery question, that if Canada had refused to meet
the wishes of the Imperial Government in the matter of Licenses,
she would have been acting against the interests of the Empire, and
would have been liable to all the consequences that might have
flowed from a serious disagreement between England and the
United States. He thought, however, that that argument should have
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been remembered by the Government a year ago, when they
determined on the policy then commenced, which was certain to
bring about this disagreement. What he had desired throughout had
been that such a temperate policy should be pursued as would have
avoided all trouble. Still, in the present aspect of the matter,
although he might disagree with the course the Government had
taken, he would not be found weakening their hands. The member
for Lambton, though admitting that the debate might prove useful,
had stated he thought it would appear ungracious to interfere in any
way with the proceedings of the Commission, and had spoken of his
(Hon. Sir AT. Galt’s) remarks on the question of defence, as
though they had some practical bearing on the particular question
under discussion, whereas they had only been intended to indicate
in the policy of the Imperial Government a divergence from that of
the Canadian Government, showing the necessity that the House
should express its opinion on a question which concerned Canada
alone. He then referred to the enquiries which had been made in the
House of Commons in England, in reference to the scope and
powers of the Commission, as a sufficient precedent to justify him
in bringing the question before the House. The member for West
Durham had stated that the discussion was inopportune, inasmuch
as the House had already disposed of the matter in its reply to the
Speech of His Excellency. He maintained that in passing that reply
it was understood that the House was not bound to anything; and he
would mention that on that occasion he had only been prevented
from introducing the present discussion by expressions from both
sides of the House that it had better be postponed to a future time.

Mr. MACKENZIE said that he had, on the occasions of the
passing of the reply to the Address, asked for the papers, expressly
in order that the discussion might take place.

Hon. Sir A T. GALT continued, that the discussion was only
postponed in the absence of the papers, and he had therefore simply
brought forward what ought to have been disposed of in considering
the Address. However, on a question of such importance,
surrounded by considerations of the very gravest moment, he would
be unworthy of his position as a representative of the people if he
did not defer to what appeared to be the general opinion of the
leading members of the House. He had thought that a declaration of
the views of the House on the question would do good, and he still
thought so, but inasmuch as the first Minister of the Crown had
stated that he would feel hampered and embarrassed in the
discharge of the important duties assigned to him, if the resolutions
before the House were carried, he had only one course open for
him. The leader of the Government had thus assumed the
responsibility of the matter, and he had the most implicit confidence
that the hon. gentleman, whatever he might think of his policy in
some respects, would do his duty in the interests of the country,
ably and well, and he felt that they had obtained some additional
guarantee for their safety in the negotiations then about to take
place. He therefore asked permission to withdraw his resolutions.

Mr. FORTIN said that in rising to address some remarks on the
important subject under discussion, he would first beg the
indulgence of the House as he was going to speak in a language that
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was not his own. He had heard the hon. member for the North
Riding of Lanark make a statement that he could not admit. This
hon. member had said, that in the protection of our Fisheries, we
had advocated and maintained extreme rights. Mr. Fortin was ready
to assert (and in this assertion he was sure to be sustained by all the
people engaged in the Fisheries) that the Government of Canada
had not maintained extreme rights in the execution of the measures
adopted by the protection of the Fisheries. Far from it. We had
always acted in a friendly and conciliatory spirit towards the
fishermen of the United States, and we had even allowed several of
our rights to remain in abeyance with a view to conciliation; such
for instance as the right to draw the line inside which foreign
fishermen are excluded, from headland to headland. We had only
prevented the foreign fishermen to come and fish inside the three
miles limit, in waters, which according to the law of nations, are
uncontestably ours. We have advocated the same rights that the
Government of the United States maintains on their own seaboard.
It is also said that when the Treaty of Reciprocity was cancelled,
our Government did not give sufficient notice to the people of the
United States of our intention to maintain our rights, and thereby
exclude foreign fishermen from our waters. Why, when we, in
1866, we adopted the license system, by which we allowed the
fishermen of the United States to participate in our inshore fisheries
for a nominal fee, it was well understood at the time that we would
stand by our rights the next year. However, we continued the
system through the same spirit of conciliation and friendliness, in
1867, 1868, and 1869, although it had proved a failure, very few
American vessels having taken licenses during the last two years.

Did we receive any compensation for what | will call the
surrender of our rights, from the people of the United States? | must
answer, No. Could we continue this system any longer? No, it was
against the interests of our fishermen to do so, and we stood by our
rights. The Government of the United States was informed of this
determination of ours. The United States Government gave
notification of it to their own fishermen as early as the middle of the
month of May, and besides, despatched one of their war vessels in
the Gulf to warn their fishermen against intruding in our waters.
Was that not sufficient notice? But besides, are not the American
fishermen instructed as to our rights on the back of their fishing
licenses, that they have to take instead of clearances from their
Custom Officers when they start for a fishing voyage? There is to
be found on that document the greatest part of the treaty of 1818, by
which they can see at once on what parts of the British coasts they
have a right to fish, and on what other parts they have not that right.
In my opinion this complaint, that our Government did not
sufficiently notify the fishermen of the United States of our
intention to maintain our fishery rights, is futile and not at all
founded on facts. Another complaint that has come from across the
border is that we, in an unfriendly manner, have prevented the
fishing vessels from getting their fishing supplies and transhipping
their cargoes in our ports. This is nothing else but exercising a right
of trading, and it is well known that by the treaty of 1818, no such
right is granted to the fishermen of the United States. | will say
more, the American fishing vessels are forbidden by their own
Government to trade in foreign ports.
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With regard to the fishery question itself, he thought that the
matters in contestation between the two Governments were not
difficult of adjustment. Our fishery rights were undeniable, and
could be easily established beyond any doubt. As for the three mile
limit, we only asserted and claimed rights that were given to all
maritime nations on their seaboard by the law of nations, and which
the United States people claim and maintain themselves on their
own seaboard. The right of drawing the line from headland to
headland was not, on our part, a new pretension. The British
Government had always maintained that right, and had repeatedly
asserted it by the seizure of American vessels found fishing inside
of that line, prior to the coming into operation of the Reciprocity
Treaty. And when this treaty was cancelled, this right was only left
in abeyance, in a spirit of friendliness and conciliation towards the
people of the United States, but it was never given up by our
Government. And why should we abandon it? Does not the
Government of the United States claim and maintain a similar right
on the coasts? Do not they assert and exercise jurisdiction over the
Chesapeake Bay and Delaware Bay, although both are about twelve
miles in breadth at their mouths? And should we be refused a
similar right on our seaboard?

The question of the Fisheries was going to be submitted to a
Commission composed of British and American statesmen, and he
was happy to know that we would be represented in that
Commission by our able Premier. He had confidence that the
British Commissioners would defend our rights, and the Mother
Country would stand by us. And if for the purpose of ensuring the
continuance of amicable and peaceful relations, and giving greater
facilities to the trade between the two countries, some arrangements
were recommended by the Commission, he expected that none of
our rights would be given up, unless equivalent advantages were
secured. Our inshore waters are the fields of operation of our
maritime population. It is there that our fishermen have to reap for
the support of their families. It is, so to say, the soil they have to till
day and night, and everyone knows how their work is laborious,
dangerous, and often poorly recompensed. And therefore, if any of
our Fishery rights are to be given up, a policy that | am not prepared
to recommend, it must be well understood that equivalent
advantages, directly benefitting our maritime population, must be
secured from our neighbours, such as fishing rights on the United
States coasts, although | may say they are not of great value to us; a
free market for our fish, and the same advantages to our shipping in
the waters of the United States, as they enjoy in ours.

Mr. Fortin had also a few remarks to make with regard to another
complaint coming from the other side of the line. It was that the
fishermen of the United States had been molested on our coasts. He
could say that this was also without foundation. It had been his lot
to be employed during sixteen years in the protection of the
Fisheries of Canada, and he had reliable information as to what had
taken place in the Gulf prior to the establishment of the Protection
Service in 1852, and he could say that the American fishermen had
never been molested on our shores, neither by the agents of the
Government, nor by our maritime population, who at all times
treated the American fishermen in a most friendly manner. He
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would say more, it was the Americans that had often molested our
fishermen in our waters, and he could prove that this was the case
by citing numerous instances. But he would content himself by
mentioning the following cases: How often has it not happened that
our fishermen have been practically excluded from the harbor of
Natashquan, and the fishing grounds adjoining it, although
Natashquan is to the West of Mount Joli, and consequently
undeniably in waters reserved to the British fishermen, because
American fishing vessels happening to be there before our vessels,
filled that harbour to such an extent, that hardly any room was left
for our own vessels to find shelter in it, while the fishing grounds
were covered by swarms of American fishing boats, which, as may
be well understood, injured very materially the operations of our
fishermen. How many times have not large numbers of American
fishing vessels come to anchor in our harbours, roadsteads and
bays, inside and among the moorings of the nets of our fishermen,
and have either prevented the latter from setting their nets, which
were going to provide them with bait for the next day’s work, or
have, in running out during the night or even in day time, torn and
destroyed many of those nets, worth from $20 to $40, by catching
them with the keels of their vessels, and thereby depriving our
fishermen of the means of prosecuting the labours of the morrow
and sometimes of many days. No bait, no fishing, as every one
knows. | will not speak of the numerous instances in which our
maritime population have suffered from depredations, trespasses
and other acts of malfeasance, and for which our people got no
redress.

Before ending his remarks, Mr. Fortin renewed the expression of
his confidence in the Government and said that the utterances that
had fallen from the lips of the Hon. Premier, when he spoke this
afternoon, confirmed him in the belief that in the negotiations about
to be opened at Washington, the Government would maintain our
rights. He added that the protection given to our fisheries last year
had been productive of a great deal of good, and hoped that it would
be continued. There was a time when this question of our fisheries
and their development and protection were looked at under different
points of view by the people of the different sections of this
country. The western portion of this country had in general always
opposed the fostering and protection of this important part of our
national wealth, and all know the opposition that had been made,
and the ridicule that had been attempted, on the action of the
Government, when the first expedition was fitted out in Canada for
the protection of our fisheries. But it was with pleasure that he
could state now, that those unfortunate differences of opinion had
disappeared, and that in the question now before the House, the
sentiments of the whole nation were in unison. And this is not the
least of the happy results of Confederation, which has bound
together the people of the different Provinces not only by a material
tie, but more so by sentiments of friendship, respect, and union,
which justify us in the expectation of a bright future for this
country.

Mr. ROBITAILLE: I did not intend, Mr. Speaker, to offer any
remarks on the subject that has occupied the attention of this hon.
House for several hours, but | must corroborate the statements made
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by my friend from Gaspé. The American fishermen have never
been molested by our fishermen nor by the authorities of this
country; on the contrary, they have been the aggressors on all
occasions. They have, without provocation, ill-used our people on
shore as well as at sea; they have taken advantage of the Sunday to
abuse and insult our peaceful population on the highway as well as
in the houses; they have wantonly destroyed nets set along the shore
for bait, belonging to our fishermen; they have stolen our
fishermen’s boats, and have, by their large numbers, made
themselves masters on the waters of Bay Chaleurs, as well as on
shore, insulting and assaulting right and left without any
provocation; and of this | am an eye witness. They used to look
upon the License System as null and ridiculous, because, as they
jocosely used to say, the officers engaged in protecting the
Canadian fisheries must give them three warnings before seizing
upon them, and they were sure of being en route for Boston after
the first or second warning, with a full cargo; and therefore they
would not take licenses when they could so easily avoid doing so.
Hence the failure of the license system.

I need not repeat what has been so eloquently said of the
importance of our fisheries, of their value to our brave and
hardworking fishermen, of their value to this country in a pecuniary
point of view, as well as a field for the production of a hardy class
of sailors, upon whom may depend on some future occasion the
safety of this country. | need not enlarge upon the necessity of
preserving intact those most valuable fishing grounds, that vast field
of labour for nearly one-fifth of our population, as these things are
fully understood by this House and by the public at large. My chief
object in rising, when the subject of this debate has been so
completely exhausted by able and eloquent speakers, is to ascertain
from the hon. leader of the Government if | understood him
correctly, when 1 gathered from his remarks concerning the
fisheries the other day, speaking on the Address, ‘“‘That the
headland question was of little moment, provided we could preserve
our exclusive right to the three miles limit.”” If | am correct in this,
the Hon. Premier will permit me to say that he has not grappled
with the importance of the question: that if he is prepared to give up
the question of the headland limit, he may as well be prepared to
give up the three miles reserve; that if he by any possibility
entertains any such notions, he had better not go to Washington, as
he would sacrifice one of the greatest interests of the Dominion;
and | speak thus to the hon. gentleman because the moment he
allows the American fishermen to penetrate our bays he may rest
assured the fishing is done for our own people. For instance, the
moment the American fishermen come into Bay Chaleurs, where |
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have personal experience, even keeping outside of the three miles
limit, the fishing is done for our people, as they come in large
numbers and ruin our fishing grounds by their practice of sowing
bait and throwing the offals of fish into the sea. The Hon. Premier
knows that | appreciate his talents and his consummate knowledge
(and, indeed, Mr. Speaker, if | had not had ten years’ experience of
his ability, his statesmanlike speech this afternoon would have been
sufficient to gain my esteem). He knows that | repose implicit
confidence in him; that I feel his presence at Washington will be a
safeguard to the interests of the Dominion, and therefore | trust that
he will accept my remarks in the same spirit as they are given, and
that he will be in a position to dispel my apprehensions.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD had much pleasure in
repeating what he had already said, which was, not that the
headland question was of no consequence, but that it was
unimportant as compared with the whole question of the fisheries.
In order to meet the wishes of Her Majesty’s Government, and in
order to obtain the support of that Government the Canadian
Government had agreed that the headland question should be left in
abeyance, but at the same time it was full stated, and, in no way
abandoned. If the Canadian Government had not so acted it might
have failed to get the moral support of the Imperial Government
and the presence of the British squadron in Canadian waters.

Mr. ROBITAILLE: | am happy to hear the Hon. Premier say
that the question of headlands will not be abandoned, and | have
full confidence in his assertion. Now, Mr. Speaker, | had expressed,
last session, complaints because our fishermen were left
unprotected against the encroachments and molestations of
American fishermen, and | feel it my duty to declare to this House
that during the last season, such judicious and efficacious protection
has been given as commands my approbation as well as that of this
honourable House.

Permission was then given for the withdrawal of the resolutions.

Hon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD in moving the adjournment
of the House, said he had asked permission of Mr. Speaker to take
some volumes from the library with him to Washington, and he
hoped the House would pardon this infringement upon their library
rules.

The House adjourned at 10.30 p.m.
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HOUSE OF COMMONS

Monday, February 27, 1871

The SPEAKER took the chair at 3.30 p.m.

Prayers

The SPEAKER laid before the House two returns (Sessional
Papers No. 8 and No. 15). Members presented several petitions, and
routine reports from the Committee on Immigration and
Colonization, and the Joint Committee on Printing, were received.

* * %

BILLS INTRODUCED

Mr. HARRISON introduced a Bill to extend the law as to
carrying dangerous weapons. The Bill was given first reading.

Mr. DREW introduced a Bill respecting County Court Judges.
Mr. MACKENZIE asked for explanations.

Mr. DREW said that under the Common Law Procedure Act of
Ontario there was a provision that Superior Courts could refer
matters of account to the Common Court Judges to decide by
summary procedure. The object of the Bill was to declare that they
had no right in cases of that kind to make any charge, as they
sometimes did at present.

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North) said if that was the
object of his hon. friend’s bill, there was no necessity to introduce
it. If there was no right to make such charges, there was no
necessity for legislation in that direction. If a County Court Judge
should make an illegal charge, and anyone should be foolish
enough to pay it, that was a matter that could easily be disposed of.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said that the hon. member
would bear in mind that the Judges were paid by the Dominion, and
must be dealt with by this Parliament. If the Judges received
anything beyond their salaries, it must be either legally or illegally.
There would be no harm in discussing the matter and it might be as
well to allow the hon. member to introduce his measure.

The Bill was read a first time; second reading, on Thursday.

Mr. OLIVER introduced an Act to amend the Patent Act of
1869.

The Bill was given first reading.

* * %

EAST HASTINGS

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER moved that a new writ be
issued for an election in the East Riding of Hastings, to return a

member in place of the Hon. Robert Read, who has been summoned
to the Senate.

* * *

HON. MR. GRAY’S REPORT

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER laid before the House the
preliminary report of Mr. Gray with regard to the manner in which
to carry out as much as possible the provisions of the British North
America Act, by which it was provided that the property and civil
rights laws in the Provinces of Quebec, Nova Scotia, and New
Brunswick might be assimilated. The report submitted to the House,
he said, was merely preliminary—to precede the appointment of a
Commission with the object, if it should be thought proper, that the
proceeding should be hereafter adopted. He might say at the outset,
that this report must necessarily be productive of great good, it
mattered not whether the assimilation took place or not.

Mr. MACKENZIE hoped the hon. member would not proceed
with the discussion before the document was laid before the House.
He did not believe it would be productive of the slightest good. He
believed it was a vile job from beginning to end. (Cries of
““Order.””)

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER was sorry that his hon. friend
had interrupted him. He was simply explaining the object of the
report, nothing more. It was his duty to do so.

Mr. MACKENZIE: Oh, yes; | have no objection to that, but I
do object to the hon. member characterizing it as an excellent
report.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER: | have a perfect right to say
S0.

Mr. MACKENZIE: Then I raise a point of order.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON: If the hon. member on the other side of the
House has a right to make a speech, so have I.

Mr. MACKENZIE: | doubt very much if he has ever read it.
(Laughter.)

The report was laid on the table, and the discussion was dropped.

* % %

CORRECTION

Mr. FORTIN wished to correct a mistake in the report of his
speech on the fisheries question, which appeared in the Times. The
printers had made him to say, ‘‘And, therefore, if any of our fishery
rights are to be given up, a policy I am now prepared to
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recommend.”” (Laughter.) It should be, “‘I am not prepared to
recommend.”” (Renewed laughter.)

Mr. MILLS: It is too bad to cheat the hon. member out of his T.
(Laughter.)

* % %

DEATH OF E. GOULET

Mr. MASSON (Soulanges) asked whether the Government is
aware that one Elzear Goulet, a Métis of the Province of Manitoba,
met his death in the month of September last in consequence of
assault or threats of assault, on the part of certain volunteers or
soldiers forming part of the Military Expedition to the North West,
and if so whether the Government had been put in possession of any
documents, or other papers relating to an investigation, or to any
other proceedings with a view to the discovery, trial or conviction,
of the person or persons suspect of having been the cause of the
death of the said Goulet.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER replied that the papers on the
subject would form part of those moved for in connection with the
North West Territory.

* * %

NEW BRUNSWICK ELECTORAL DISTRICTS

Mr. BOLTON asked whether it is the intention of the
Government to introduce this Session a measure for the
readjustment of the Electoral Divisions or districts in the Province
of New Brunswick, the present division having only been claimed
as temporary, and being at complete variance with the principle of
representation by population.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said it was not the intention
of the Government to alter the electoral divisions. After the census
there would have to be a reappointment of the representation.

* * %

ARBITRATION

Mr. GODIN asked whether it is the intention of the Government
to treat the decision of the Hon. Messrs. Gray and McPherson,
bearing date the 3rd September, 1870, in their capacity as
Avrbitrators appointed under Section 142 of the British North
America Act, 1867, as a legal decision of the Arbitration
Commission appointed in conformity with the said section, and in
case the Government should treat the same decision as null and
illegal, whether it is their intention to take steps to secure the
consent of the Provinces of Quebec and Ontario, for the
appointment of a new Arbitration Commission, and failing such
consent whether it is the intention of the Government to take legal
means to create a new Arbitration Commission.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said the Government
intended to inform the House by Wednesday or Thursday of its
purpose in relation to the Arbitration question. (Cheers.)
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INTERCOLONIAL TERMINUS

Mr. FOURNIER asked whether it is the intention of the
Government to make the terminus of the Intercolonial Railway at
Lévis, so as to avoid the useless circuit it would be necessary to
make in order to reach it by using the line of the Grand Trunk.

Hon. Mr. LANGEVIN replied the subject had been submitted to
the Department of Public Works at different periods; but the
Government had come to no decision about it. A correspondence
took place between the town of Lévis and the Government two or
three years ago on the subject, which had been laid before the
House.

* * *

DOMINION-PROVINCIAL ACCOUNTS

Mr. DREW asked: Have the Government made out an
approximate statement of the result of the accounts between Canada
and each province, on Feb. 1st, 1871, adjusted on the footing of the
award?

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER: The Government had made
no such statement.

* k% %

SALE OF STAMPS

Mr. OLIVER moved for a return of the amount paid, etc., for
the sale of postage stamps for the year ending June 30th, 1870.

Hon. Mr. MORRIS asked what information the mover wanted.
Was it merely as regards postage stamps or those and others?

Mr. OLIVER: Postage Stamps.

Motion carried.

NEW BRUNSWICK CLAIMS

Hon. Mr. CONNELL moved for correspondence between the
Dominion Government and that of New Brunswick relative to its
unadjusted claims. He stated that a very great deal of dissatisfaction
existed in New Brunswick in consequence of the non settlement of
that account. Whether the Dominion or the Local Government was
to blame he could not say. So strong was the popular feelings on
this subject that at the last elections, some of the Members lost their
seats, and others were placed near the foot of the poll. While
Quebec and Ontario had their claims settled, those of New
Brunswick had been delayed from time to time. He wanted to know
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the cause of the trouble and bickering on this subject. If necessary
the House had power to alter the Union Act, and meet this case
fairly and equitably. No doubt it would be agreed to by the British
Government. He recommended broad, liberal legislation, to render
justice to all parts of the Dominion and abolish sectionalism.

Hon. Mr. TILLEY had no objection to lay the papers before the
House. If, in the language of the member for Carleton, they would
enable us to know ourselves, we should be under great obligations
to the hon. member for having moved them.

* * %

DOMINION OFFICIALS HIRED BY PROVINCES

Mr. GODIN moved for the names of persons employed by the
Local Governments in connection with the Commission of
Avrbitration on the subject of the public debt of Quebec and Ontario.
He said he understood an officer of the Dominion Government had
accepted payment, $1,000, from the Ontario Government for
statements or calculations furnished for use in the arbitration.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said the Government knew
nothing of it—at least, he did not. He recommended the withdrawal
of the motion, as there was little information to furnish, and no
objection to give such as they possessed.

Mr. MACKENZIE said it seemed to him to have been a very
unfortunate and indecent proceeding for one of the chief officials of
the Ottawa Government to allow himself to be placed in the
opposition of the paid officer of a Government contesting matters of
account in relation to the arbitrators. It had a tendency with other
incidents connected with the arbitration to bring it into contempt
when we found one of the chief officials of the Dominion making
himself a party to a case in this way. He thought the House ought to
interject its opinion against such an intermission of duty for the
future, and to ascertain whether Ministers were disposed to defend
such conduct. The Minister of Militia pleaded ignorance of the
matter: but everyone knew the Ontario Government acknowledged
having paid this sum of $1,000. This state of affairs ought not to be
allowed to continue. As a member representing to some extent the
public opinion of Ontario, he felt bound to protest against such
conduct on the part of Dominion officers. (Cheers.)

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER again protested he knew
nothing of the matter. He had never read the budget speech of the
Finance Minister of Ontario, because it was too long. (Laughter.)
Every day we learned something new, and today such had been his
experience.

Hon. Mr. CHAUVEAU said if any of the employees of the
Government of the Dominion were required before this arbitration,
when they pretended they were approached by that capacity, they
should not have acted without the permission of that government;
and if they had thought such officials should have gone—an
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opinion he thought they should not have held—they should have
paid them themselves. The officials should not have been paid by
the Ontario Government. (Hear, hear.)

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT said that he thought there could be no
question that gentlemen in the public service had no right to give
their services at the request of any other parties whatever, and that
any information desired by the Local Governments at the hands of
the Government of the Dominion ought to form the subject of an
official communication, and he thought that the proceeding in
question, if it had occurred, was extremely irregular.

Hon. Mr. GRAY said no officer of the Dominion Government
had been examined before the arbitrators except the Auditor
General.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT said no officer of the Government had a
right to give his services at the request of any party, whether
Government or individual.

Mr. BLAKE thought there was a peculiar impropriety in an
officer of the Dominion Government acting in connection with the
Avrbitration question, and even in any service whatever on account
of the Local Governments, and he was surprised that such a service
should have been performed by Mr. Simpson, and still more so that
it should now be stated that the head of the Department was not
aware of his having done so, and of his having received payments
for having done so.

The motion was carried.

* k% %

FORMS OF RAILWAY RETURNS

Mr. BLAKE then moved an address to His Excellency for
copies of orders or directions made at any time under the Railway
Act as to forms in which returns thereby required should be made

up.

The motion, seconded by Mr. MACKENZIE, was put and
carried.

* % %

RAILWAY RETURNS

Mr. BLAKE then moved an address to His Excellency for
copies of returns made by each Railway Company under the
Railway Act of the late Province of Canada and the Railway Act of
1868, by which it is provided that each of the Companies affected
thereby shall in January and July in each year make a true and
particular return of accidents and casualties, whether to life or
property. He said that many accounts had lately been heard of the
unfortunate condition of one of the Railways in this country. On the
one hand reports were made as to the very great irregularity which
had occurred, and as to the very great number of accidents which
had taken place, and as to the great amount of damage done, while
on the other hand the most decided statements were made the other
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way. It was, however, certain that the public mind had been
alarmed. It had been alleged that such reports were calculated to
divert traffic from the Railway and injure it, and that such had
already been the result, and he thought that it was very important
that the truth of the matter should be ascertained by the production
of the returns for which he had moved, so that the public mind
might be soothed and the matter placed in a proper light.

The motion was carried.

* * %

HALIFAX PROVINCIAL BUILDING

Mr. YOUNG said that he understood some correspondence had
taken place between the Dominion Government and that of Nova
Scotia in regard to the Provincial Building at Halifax, and, in fact,
that there had been a very spicy dispute between the two
Governments on the subject, and he thought it very desirable that
the papers should be laid before the House, especially as one of the
leading organs of the Government had alluded to the matter in
defence of the position taken by the Dominion Government. He
therefore moved an address to His Excellency for copies of all
correspondence on the subject.

Mr. SAVARY desired to call attention to the fact that he had on
the notice paper a motion on the same subject, which, he thought,
would meet the matter more fully than that moved by Mr. Young. It
was well known that a dispute existed between the two
Governments on the subject, and, in fact, a statement of the matter
had been printed and largely distributed throughout Nova Scotia. As
far as he understood the matter, the Local Government charged that
of the Dominion with unjustly retaining the sum of about sixty or
seventy thousand dollars, and whatever might be the facts of the
case, there was no doubt that the Local Government was making a
great deal of it, and it was therefore a proper subject for discussion
in that House, in order that some conclusion might be arrived at—
and that it might be ascertained to what extent the Local
Government was correct. He would therefore ask Mr. Young to
withdraw his motion in order that he might make a more
comprehensive one which would place the matter more fully before
the House. He would move for the production of all papers
connected with the matter including a statement of all monies paid
on account of the building in question.

Mr. YOUNG said he had no objection to Mr. Savary making an
addition to his motion so as to include the information he desired
but he thought it would be better that his (Mr. Young’s) motion
remain, when Mr. Savary’s should come up in proper course.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS said that on the part of the
Government there could be no possible objection to let the motion
pass. He thought the whole question lay in a nutshell as by an Act
passed on the 22nd of June, 1869, which, however, the Government
of Nova Scotia considered unconstitutional, it was provided, by
clause 3, that Nova Scotia should from the date of the completion of
the new Province Building be debited in account with Canada at the
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rate of 5 per cent per annum until it should be placed at the disposal
of the Dominion and he, as Minister of Finance, had been obliged to
see that that provision was carried out. The Government of Nova
Scotia, however, refused to make over the building except on
certain conditions, which could not be entertained as there was a
further clause in the Act, which had emanated from the hon. and
learned gentleman from West Durham and had been assented to by
the House, stating that the provisions made by that act should be
taken in full settlement of all demands of Nova Scotia on Canada,
and he might add that the Government had been most careful not to
commit itself in the matter, and they had not the least objection to
the production of the papers.

Mr. MACKENZIE said he supposed the hon. gentleman meant
to say that the Government had been most careful not to commit
themselves by taking shelter under the provision moved by his
friend from West Durham, so that when any election or anything of
that sort comes, they could say that they had not committed
themselves, and so make an attempt to gain popularity.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS did not think it was possible to
treat the matter as a matter of account, but he thought it would be
quite competent for the Government to come down to the House
and ask them to vote the amount if legally due to the Province of
Nova Scotia.

Mr. SAVARY then said that he would move an amendment of
Mr. Young’s motion, for all papers in connection with the matter,
and for a statement of all monies expended on the construction and
completion of the building, and of all monies paid to the
Government of Nova Scotia under 32, 33, Vic., Cap. 2. He was not
aware that the Government of Nova Scotia claimed that the statute
to which the Finance Minister had referred was unconstitutional,
but they claimed that the third section had no reference to money
expended by the Local Government on the completion of Provincial
buildings since July 1st, 1867, and that the money so expended
should be reimbursed by them. He did not charge the Dominion
Government with any intention of keeping back anything to which
the Local Government was entitled, but he thought the subject was
a fair one for the consideration of the House as it had been much
agitated in Nova Scotia, and it was very important, therefore, that it
should be considered and decided by the Dominion Parliament. The
Local Government claims, in fact, that the Dominion Government
has paid to the Province similar claims and demands, and that as the
money had been expended subsequently to the Ist July, 1867, they
had a just claim to reimbursement—and indeed he had been
informed that a distinguished member of the Opposition in that
House had given a strong opinion that the Local Government was
entitled to the amount.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT thought it was necessary that the House
should have the papers before it, before it could pronounce
intelligently on the matter, but from the statements of the mover of
the amendment, the Nova Scotia Government seemed to have a fair
claim to re-imbursement of money expended since Confederation,
and it seemed a case in which, though the terms of the Act seemed
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to prevent the payment, the Government might find it necessary to
change the terms of the Act.

Hon. Mr. HOWE thought that when the papers were brought
down the matter ought to be discussed fully and settled finally, but
he deprecated any discussion under the present circumstances.

Hon. Mr. DORION had no recollection that anything had been
said respecting this claim on the occasion of the discussion on the
subsidy to be paid to Nova Scotia.

Hon. Mr. TUPPER agreed with his hon. friend the Secretary of
State for the Provinces that the more appropriate time for discussing
the question would be when the papers had been brought down, but
he thought the member for Digby had fallen into the fallacy which
had misled the Local Government, and as the late Finance Minister
had sanctioned that fallacy by his opinion, he thought it right to
state the grounds on which the Government had acted in the matter.
The claim of the Local Government to the payment of the $66,000
was founded on the fact that they state that after July 1st, 1867, they
paid out of their revenue that $66,000 towards the completion of the
building, and that it was therefore unjust to include that amount in
their debt, or to charge them with interest. The Minister of Finance
had already stated that when the Act was passed voting a large
additional amount to Nova Scotia, that Act was burdened by a
clause that until the building was surrendered, the Government
should charge five per cent on the cost of the building. He held that
there was no discussion between the $122,000 paid on the building
before Confederation and the $66,000 after Confederation, and he
would be delighted if his hon. friend from Sherbrooke would by the
weight of his great financial knowledge, support the view that all
contracts made by the old Governments were the property of the
Government making the contracts, for every one would remember
that at the time of Confederation they were building a railroad from
Truro to Pictou, and that large sums of money were paid after the
1st of July, 1867, by the Dominion Government in the same way
that money had been paid on the completion of the building at
Halifax.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT said that in one case the money had been
paid by the Dominion Government and the other by the Provincial
Government.

Hon. Mr. TUPPER said that he need not tell the House that he
would be the very last to stand in the way of a payment to Nova
Scotia, but he thought the House should understand this matter.
Under the Union Act every contract that was made by any of the
Provinces in relation to Public Works became the property of the
Dominion on the 1st July, 1867, but was it to be charged to the
Dominion under the Act? The Act provided that while the
Dominion should be responsible for the payment, every dollar
should be charged to the debt of the Province that contracted the
work. The Union Act provided also that every officer holding office
under the Local Government on the 1st July, 1867, became, in
relation of every matter that came under the control of the
Dominion Government, the officers of the Dominion, and therefore
the Commissioners to build the Provincial Building at Halifax
became in reality the Commissioners of the Dominion, and he held
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that in reality the building became the property of the Dominion
Government at Confederation, but Nova Scotia having declared its
intention to complete the buildings its debt is $66,000 less than if
the money had come out of the Dominion purse. As the matter had
thus been brought before the House, he thought it right to state what
had been the difficulty placed in the way of the Dominion
Government; but, he should only be too glad, for the sake of Nova
Scotia, if the opinion of his hon. friend from Sherbrooke should
obtain.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT said that after what had been said by the
hon. gentlemen from Cumberland, he thought they should certainly
wait until they got the correspondence.

Mr. SAVARY’S amendment was then put and carried.

* % %

HUDSON BAY COMPANY

Mr. YOUNG moved for an address to His Excellency for
correspondence between Hudson’s Bay Company and Government
of Canada touching non-payment of purchase money for
extinguishment of claims on North West Territory, &c. He thought
it was advisable that all the correspondence in relation to the
Hudson’s Bay Company, and their losses at Red River, should be
brought down.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER replied all would be laid
before the House with the papers, as well as a claim from the
Hudson’s Bay Company, in accordance with a motion of the hon.
member for South Oxford the other day.

Mr. YOUNG said that the motion had no reference to the
general correspondence with the Hudson’s Bay Company, which he
wanted produced.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS said that all the paper would be
brought down.

Mr. YOUNG then withdrew his motion.

* * *

INDEPENDENCE OF PARLIAMENT

Mr. BLAKE seconded by Hon. Mr. HOLTON, moved the
following resolution: ““That in the opinion of this House it is
inexpedient that any member of this House should for the future be
engaged in the service of the Government of Canada in any paid
employment, such as that in respect of which the Hon. Mr. Gray,
member for the city and County of St. John, in 1868, entered into
the receipt of three hundred dollars a month of the public monies.””
He said the events connected with the transaction to which he
referred were fresh in the public mind, and it had become the
general impression that greater stringency was required to secure
the independence of Parliament, without which members hold their
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seats, not for the purpose of representing the people but of enabling
some few persons to govern them in spite of their wishes. Shortly
after the first session of this present Parliament, the Act, miscalled a
Bill, to establish the independence of Parliament, was introduced,
and in spite of the protest of the Opposition it became law in its
present objectionable shape. It was passed in the shape, that while it
acknowledged the independence of members of this House, was
likely to be sapped by a yearly salary, fee or emolument from the
Government, it would not in the least be interfered with, only if the
fee or salary was not annual. That was the distinction, that the
independence of a member who was employed by the year at a
yearly salary would be interfered with, but the independence of the
member who was employed for two years at a two years’ salary or
by the month at a monthly salary, would not be interfered with in
the least. He agreed with the hon. members opposite that there was
a distinction between them, but it had always appeared to him that
the distinction was in favour of the man who was employed yearly,
for then he might maintain his independence, but if employed by
the month, he would be the more submissive servant.

The Opposition had endeavored to prevent the law from passing
in that shape, but were defeated. On subsequent occasions, when
appointments were made which they considered objectionable, they
protested against them but were defeated, and now, when this
Parliament was about to close, and there had been ample evidence
afforded of how badly the act worked, he ventured to appeal to the
House to reconsider the question and to determine, guided not
merely by reason, but by experience, that it was not expedient in
future that a person in receipt of such emolument should have a seat
in this chamber. There were instances of the fact that a man need
not have a long engagement, and yet remain a long time employed.
The case to which he desired to apply a remedy was one in which a
man held office for nearly if not quite two years. The hon.
gentleman received large sums—sums which he thought would
stagger the House when their attention should be called to them. For
about two years the hon. member for St. John, while holding a seat
in this House, received from the public funds as Commissioner, or
in the employ of the Minister of Justice in the codification of the
laws; or in some work for the Government, $3,600; no, not that,
only $300 a month, which was equivalent to that amount per year,
realizing for the two years a total of $7,200. Then as arbitrator
$4,400 was paid him. He received what each member got, a
sessional allowance of $600 per year; $1,200 for the two years. And
there was the mileage too, the earned mileage amounting to $584.
The hon. gentleman received from the Government, then, in various
ways, a total sum of $14,484, while a private member of
Parliament.

He (Mr. Blake) would contrast this with the salary of a Crown
Minister. The yearly salary of a Cabinet Minister was $5,000,
which with mileage amounted to less in two years than the amount
received by the hon. member for St. John within the same time. It
was time that there should be an end of this system. The House
should solemnly declare that it had not conduced to the
independence or the dignity of this Chamber, that its members
should have been in the pay of the Ministry of the day, whether that
pay were weekly, monthly or yearly. It did seem to him that there
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were plenty of gentlemen quite competent for the purpose of the
Government, and to such men it should be left, or that hon.
members who wished to pick up these crumbs from the public table
should resign their seats in the House. It seemed to him that the Act
recognized, but in the wrong way, that the distinction between
monthly and yearly hire had produced injurious results and should
be amended for the future. He had no desire to make personal
attacks on any hon. gentleman, but when the hon. member from St.
John sat in this House holding an office of emolument under the
Government, he should expect such criticism. He had no objection
that the hon. member should be employed. He understood today
that the hon. member had ceased to be employed. He (Mr. Blake)
was glad of it, for it now left the House clear of this case, and for
his own part he could say sincerely that he desired if the hon.
member wished to be employed in the public service, that he should
receive such share of the patronage of the House as he was fit to
earn—always on condition that the hon. member ceased to hold a
seat in this House while so employed. Long might his gallant
bosom swell, long might his waistcoat pocket fill with the streams
from the treasury benches, but not while he represented the people
here. (Laughter.) He (Mr. Blake) submitted his motion on which he
proposed to found a Bill to carry out the great reform which was so
much needed.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said it ought to be fresh in
the memory of every hon. member in the House, the circumstances
under which the present Bill was passed. The old Parliament of
Canada had had ample experience of the Independence of
Parliament Act to which the hon. member for Durham West had
alluded. It had been amended from time to time till it had reached a
state of perfection which commended it to the inhabitants of the late
Province of Canada. He thought that Act worked well. On several
occasions the members of the successive Governments which held
office before the Confederation had often felt it too stringent when
the services of the hon. members were required for special purposes
for which they were fitted. It had only been adopted after a long
discussion, and it was afterwards deemed expedient to strike out the
word “‘temporary’” in order that the Government should not be
deprived of the advantage which might be derived from employing
hon. members in such cases. If his memory served him right, there
was no division on that amendment in this House. Its necessity was
felt by all. Quite recently, under Mr. Gladstone’s government, Sir
Stafford Northcote had been asked to act as Commissioner at
Washington, and the Parliament were not opposed to it. It was not
considered by any member that such a proceeding was like bribery
which might be calculated to degrade a member of the House.
There was a circumstance which came to his (Hon. Sir George-E.
Cartier) knowledge when he was in England in 1858. The
Government called on Mr. Gladstone, who was in the Opposition,
to investigate matters which took place at the lonian Islands. He
would tell the hon. member for Durham West and the House that
when the Independence Act was passed in this House in 1868, there
was no intention on the part of this Government to obtain any
privilege which had not been already enjoyed by the English
Government. We had the same privilege given by Parliament.
Government is not to be deprived of the temporary services of hon.
members of the House who may be peculiarly fitted for certain
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services under the law of the land, and he wanted the country to
understand that he had not acted in regard to these appointments in
the way the motion of the hon. member for Durham West seemed to
point out. He would tell that hon. member that the Government had
considered the question, and that they were going to bring down a
measure with regard to the Act passed in 1868 in reference to the
independence of Parliament to amend it in such a way as to bring it
in as it was formerly under the legislative system in the late
Province of Canada. (Hear, hear.) He hoped his hon. friend would
not press his motion; if he did so, he (Hon. Sir George-E. Cartier)
would introduce an amendment that would carry out his views on
the matter.

Mr. MACKENZIE said it was somewhat remarkable, after the
experience the hon. gentleman had, that he should so have gone
against the motion; and that he proposed the cheap expedient, in
other words, he proposed to do exactly what his hon. friend from
Durham West wanted; and yet at the same time he wanted to
strangle him. If he would say that he was open to pursue the wrong
system, and he (Mr. Mackenzie) would allow that fact—yet he
objects to the motion of the hon. member for Durham West. In
relation to what passed when this Act was under discussion, if the
Hon. Minister of Militia would remember he would find there was a
division. He did not like to make a motion that was painful to any
member, or to mention the name of the member for St. John,—but
that motion was opposed by the Government, and at the last session
only eight votes defeated it. So the hon. gentleman could not say he
had large portions supporting him from the opposite side of the
House. At the same time the system which had been adopted was a
disgrace to this Legislature.

Mr. SAVARY said he was about to move all the words in the
resolution after ‘‘employment’ be struck out. He could not see,
whatever feeling the hon. member for Durham West might have in
the matter, now that the term of employment of the hon. member
for St. John had ceased, why that gentleman should be referred to in
particular, or why an ungracious allusion to any hon. member in
this House, should be allowed to go on the journals in such a
manner. He thought the views of the hon. member for Durham
West would be met, and the resolution would have a wider and
more effectual scope if amended as he (Mr. Savary) proposed. He
was not opposed to the principle which the hon. member desired to
lay down where the employment of any hon. gentlemen was similar
to that alluded to. He could not see why the House should limit the
resolution to one case. He should prefer to apply it to all cases. He
therefore moved that all the words in the original resolution after
the word “‘employment’” be struck out.

Mr. BLAKE said that is the same thing; make it six or eight
months at once.

Mr. BOWELL said the motion now in hand was a correct one,
and he was glad to hear the Minister of Militia say it was intended
to alter the Independence of Parliament Act so as to exclude this
class of employees. If the member for Durham West withdrew his
motion, he had no objection to withdraw his amendment.
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Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER after examining the Votes
and Proceedings for 1868, said the amendment proposed by the
Opposition had escaped his memory. The amendment had not
encountered stern opposition from the Government owing to the
temper in which it was proposed, and the tone of the debate. He was
sorry the member for Durham West had not agreed to withdraw his
motion after the Government promised to amend the Act. They kept
their word. He might take credit for forestalling the Government but
they had considered the matter before.

He moved, in amendment to the said proposed amendment,
seconded by the Hon. Mr. Tilley, That all the words after ““That’” in
the amendment, be expunged and the following substituted, ‘“all the
words after “That’ in the main motion be left out, and the following
substituted ‘this House will give its best consideration to any
measure that may be introduced, having for its object the further
securing the independence of Parliament,”” inserted instead thereof.

Mr. MILLS said the main motion was important. The reasons
existing for the exclusion of the parties mentioned in the Act of
1868 were as strong against the employment of parties not thereby
excluded as to the English Act securing the Independence of
Parliament; what was necessary there would not suffice for the
same object in Canada. The members in this country were of
different circumstances from those of the English members, who
were a plutocracy. Our position being different from that of the
English people, in this respect, demands different safeguards. Our
Governments should not be able to employ members of Parliament.
It was no longer possible to influence English as it was Canadian
members. What has happened within the last two years to give the
Government information it did not before possess? Was there any
Commission or event apart from the Intercolonial Commission or
the Arbitration within this period to instance in support of a new
policy apart from those mentioned in the motion. The
Government’s course was not unselfish. They had lost influence,
and having a prospect of some being kicked out of office, did not
like their successors to possess the advantages in the way of
patronage have possessed by themselves. He argued there was no
good reason against the motion.

Hon. Mr. CAMERON (Peel) contended the Act did not apply to
the member for St. John, and that the Government had power to
appoint him on the Commission. If his case had come within the
Act a motion might have proposed to make him vacate his seat. He
did not clearly understand the object of the motion. If it was
intended to change the whole character of the Act, and restore it to
its old condition that was one thing, or if it was intended merely to
embrace a particular case, that was another. Neither did the Minister
of Militia clearly explain what course the Government intended. No
doubt a large sum had been disbursed under the arrangements
aimed at by the resolution. Yet, in England larger sums still had
been paid by Governments to Commissioners like the member for
St. John, and even to gentlemen selected out of opposite parties. Dr.
Bowring received for a period of service not longer than that of this
hon. gentleman, upwards of eleven thousand pounds sterling.
Franklin Lewis and Mr. Blackburn, when chairman of like
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Commissions, received large sums, and Mr. Cobden was paid a
good deal of money for his labours in connection with the French
treaty.

At this moment there were more than forty members of the
English House of Commons receiving emoluments for services.
When Mr. Gladstone went to the lonian Islands his expenses
reached within a fraction of 2,000 pounds. Sir Stafford Northcote
had been appointed a member of the Joint High Commission by the
Government of the party opposed to his own. It might be said these
appointments in Canada were daring attempts to corrupt members;
but they had the usage of the Imperial Parliament for a course
adopted by the Liberals as well as the Conservatives. If the act here
was to be changed, Parliament ought to be informed in what way,
and whether it would affect parties receiving monthly salaries so far
as the hon. member particularly affected by this motion was
concerned. The item paid him came down and received the sanction
of Parliament, and that having been done, if a change had been
made at all, it must have been made without the slightest reference
to him. We had now from the Minister of Militia a promise that the
Act was to be amended, but how it was to be amended, we were not
told.

It being six o’clock, the House rose.

AFTER RECESS

Mr. MASSON (Soulanges) always understood that the intention
of the law was to prevent sitting members from accepting salaries
for services. It was argued that the law applied only to parties
receiving yearly salaries. He believed, however, the Act ought to be
amended so as to prevent the acceptance of salaries or payments by
members for services rendered. But as the law stood, he thought the
Government had acted regularly. As the Government promised to
amend the statute, he would vote against the amendment of the
member for West Durham.

Hon. Mr. WOOD said it was quite true that members of
Parliament in England were often selected for service on
comissions, and paid for their labours, and that Ministers frequently
chose political opponents without its being considered that their
subsequent votes were thereby likely to be influenced. It would
appear, however, from the position of parties in this country that
such may not be the case; and if it were true that it was necessary to
the independence of Parliament that persons who had a yearly
salary by virtue of a Commission from the Crown were
incapacitated from the supposition that they might be under the
influence of the Government of the day—if it were necessary to
have such a provision to protect the independence of the members
of the House—a fortiori—it must be necessary to protect that of
members employed casually and paid from day to day or month to
month. There were on two occasions he had cited in support of the
view that it was contrary to the spirit of the Independence Act that
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persons should occupy that position. He voted, however, against the
proposition of the member for Durham West, which went far
beyond the substance of the proposition contained in the present
main motion.

He had included in his former motion many persons not holding
office under the Crown in Canada, but holding office under the
Crown in any portion of Her Majesty’s Dominions. Certainly,
persons in the different provinces, like himself, holding office under
the Local Government were included in the motion. He could not
vote for the present motion. He thought he detected as its motive a
spirit of malevolence, not creditable to any hon. gentleman whether
in or out of this House. He saw no difficulty in the mover attaining
his end in a way different from the present, without attempting to
fix upon the journals an imputation of infamy in connection with an
hon. gentleman. Far better to have introduced a motion affirming an
abstract principle of universal application, such as, that it was
inadvisable a sitting member should be appointed to a position of
emolument by the Government of the day. He would vote against
the motion and for the amendment of Hon. Sir George-E. Cartier.
The other amendment was faulty with reference to monthly
payments and employments. The principle desirable should prevent
the Government from employing any one in any service in which he

got pay.

Mr. BLAKE after replying to some personal allusions in the
speech of Mr. Wood, noticed that it would have been better to have
proposed an abstract principle without the illustration. He said he
would have been delighted if he thought he could have carried it
without the illustration. His opinion, and he thought this might have
proved it, that the best way of carrying an abstract principle was to
impress on the House the importance of it by embodying in the
resolution the illustration of its importance. If his motion had been
framed in any different way, he would not have been met by the
proposition of the Government to concede the sense of his motion,
against which they had voted three sessions. He was not disposed,
holding he had put on the journals an admirable resolution, which
could not be amended either in matter or manner, to prevent the
House from pronouncing on the principle of it as it stood, in favour
of the milk and water amendment of Hon. Sir George-E. Cartier. It
did not commit the House or Government to the passage of any
measure but merely promised to consider any measure brought
down. He declined altogether to exchange his straightforward, plain
resolution, affirming an indisputable principle, for the amendment
of the Hon. Minister of Militia, which meant nothing at all. He
would ask that the votes of the House be recorded.

A division on the amendment of Hon. Sir George-E. Cartier:

YEAS

Messieurs

Archambault Ault
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Barthe

Beaubien

Benoit

Blanchet

Brousseau

Cameron (Inverness)
Caron

Cayley

Chipman

Colby

Dobbie

Dunkin

Fortin

Gaudet

Gibbs

Grover

Hincks (Sir Francis)
Howe

Irvine

Keeler

Lacerte

Lapum

Little

McDonald (Middlesex West)
Masson (Terrebonne)
McMillan

Morrison (Niagara)
Pickard

Pouliot

Renaud

Ross (Champlain)
Ross (Victoria)
Savary

Simard

Smith

Street

Tilley

Tupper

Webb

Wood

Wright (Ottawa County)—(83)

Béchard
Bodwell
Bowman
Carmichael
Cheval
Connell
Crawford (Brockville)
Dorion
Ferris
Fournier
Geoffrion
Hagar

Joly
Kempt
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Beaty

Bellerose

Bertrand

Bown

Burpee

Cameron (Peel)
Cartier (Sir George-E.)
Chauveau

Coffin

Costigan

Drew

Ferguson

Gaucher

Gendron

Grant

Harrison

Holmes

Hurdon

Jackson

Killam

Langevin

Lawson

McDonald (Antigonish)
Masson (Soulanges)
McDougall (Trois-Riviéres)
Morris

Perry

Pinsonneault

Ray

Robitaille

Ross (Dundas)

Ryan (Montreal West)
Shanly

Simpson

Stephenson

Sylvain

Tourangeau

Walsh

Willson

Workman

NAYS

Messieurs

Blake

Bowell

Cameron (Huron South)
Cartwright

Cimon

Coupal

Delorme

Dufresne

Fortier

Galt (Sir A.T.)

Godin

Holton

Jones (Leeds North and Grenville North)
Macdonald (Glengarry)
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MacFarlane Mackenzie

Magill McCallum

McConkey McDougall (Lanark North)
McMonies Mills

Moffatt Morison (Victoria North)
Munroe Oliver

Paquet Pelletier

Pozer Redford

Ross (Wellington Centre) Rymal

Scatcherd Scriver

Snider Stirton

Thompson (Haldimand) Thompson (Ontario North)
Tremblay Wells

White Whitehead

Wright (York West) Young—(58)

The vote on the amendment to the original question, as amended,
was carried by the same division; and the main question, as now
amended, was carried, again on the same division.

* k x

DISALLOWANCE

Mr. BLAKE moved an address to His Excellency for copies of
correspondence between the Imperial and Canadian Governments
and between the Governments of Canada and any of the Provinces
touching any Acts of the Legislature of Canada or any of the
Provincial Legislatures. He explained that the object was to
ascertain which of the Acts of any of the Legislatures had become
the subject of comment on the part of the Imperial authorities with
regard to disallowance or amendment.

The motion was carried.

* % %

FENIAN RAID CLAIMS

Mr. MACKENZIE then moved an address for copies of
correspondence of the Canadian with the Imperial Government
concerning the claims of Canada against the United States, arising
from the Fenian raids, together with copies of all Orders in Council
and documents relating to the same. The House had been informed
a few days ago, that there was such correspondence, that a certain
account had been sent to the Imperial Government, and he moved
for the papers so that the House might see the exact position of the
matter.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said that he thought when
the hon. gentleman, considered the delicacy of the matter, the fact
that the correspondence was not entirely closed, he would see the
propriety of his motion, and on behalf of the Government he must
state that they did not feel justified in bringing down the papers
asked for, as they did not think it would be conducive to the public
interests.



COMMONS DEBATES

60

Mr. MACKENZIE very much regretted that the Minister of
Militia had taken the grounds he had taken, as the House had been
distinctly led to believe that at least a portion of the correspondence
would be brought down.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS: Certainly not. No one did.

Mr. MACKENZIE: The hon. gentleman ought not to be too
positive in contradicting statements. He had certainly understood
that some of the papers would be brought down, and when it had
been said that the statement in question had been made and sent in,
he had given notice that he should ask for the papers, and now when
he made the motion he was told by the Minister of Militia that it
would not be conducive to the public interests that the statement
should be brought down. Of course, as the Ministry had assumed
the responsibility of making that statement he should not divide the
House, but he must protest against every request being met with
such an answer. Part of the proceedings had already been published,
and if they waited a few days they might find the remainder in an
Imperial Blue Book. Surely it was not a matter of no consequence
that the people should know what the claims of Canada were, and
the way in which the Government had urged them.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS said he was very much astonished
at the notion of the member for Lambton, and he would venture to
say that the hon. gentleman could not point out a single instance in
Imperial practice where papers relating to negotiations with foreign
Governments had been laid before the House, and it must be seen
that nothing could possibly be more injurious than such a
proceeding in the present instance.

Mr. MACKENZIE said that on the contrary he would show the
hon. gentleman on the morrow numerous instances in Imperial
practice of papers in such cases being brought down. He might
mention that in the case of the present High Commission the
English Government had even furnished the newspapers
beforehand, the basis on which the Commission was to proceed,
and he was certainly amused to hear the hon. gentleman make such
an extraordinary statement.

Mr. JONES (Leeds North and Grenville North) was equally
surprised to hear such a statement from the member for Lambton,
and he had good reasons for entertaining that surprise. He thought
he understood something of constitutional practice in England, and
could fully corroborate the statement of the Hon. Finance Minister,
and wherever it had been stated that the production of any papers
would be detrimental to the public interest, such production was
never urged.

Mr. BLAKE said Lord Kimberley had required the Canadian
Government to send a statement of the claims of Canada in respect
of the Fenian raids for transmission to the American Government,
and couched in such terms as would render it fit for transmission to
that Government. The Canadian Government had transmitted that
statement, when, he did not know, but they were told that it had
been transmitted. It had been framed expressly for the purpose of
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being communicated to the United States, following on that the
Commission had been arranged, and was about to sit, and as there
could be nothing in the statement unfit for the American
Government, as it had been framed expressly for them, surely there
could be nothing in it unfit to be submitted to the people of Canada.
And yet they were to be left in entire ignorance of the way in which
their claims had been set forth and urged, as such a proceeding
““‘would be injurious to the public interests.”” There was nothing
confidential about the paper, nothing secret, nothing private. It was
intended to be presented by the American Government to that of the
United States, and he certainly thought the hon. gentlemen could
not refuse to produce it on the ground of expediency in the public
interests. Such a reason might apply were the whole of the papers
asked for, but if the hon. gentlemen persevered in refusing the
particular document asked for, he thought they were bound to give
some special explanation of their reasons for doing so.

Hon. Mr. CAMERON (Peel) thought that the hon. gentlemen
who had just spoken has answered his own argument. He had
admitted the general principle that Ministers were justified in
refusing papers, the production of which they considered would be
deterimental to the public interests, and he had stated no reasons
why that principle should be departed from in the present instance.
It was not simply one particular document that was asked for, but
the whole of the correspondence, and after the Minister of Militia
had stated that their production ‘*would be injurious to the public
interest,”” by what possible right could the House urge the matter
further. They on that side of the House, took the statements of the
Government, and believed them, and when the Government
declared that the production of the papers would, in their judgment,
be prejudicial to the interests of the country, he thought the House
was bound to believe and accept the statement.

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North) quite agreed with the
hon. gentleman who had just spoken, that as a general rule the
Ministers should judge as to the propriety of submitting
correspondence, but he thought it was hardly fair to ask the House
on every occasion to submit to a simple statement as ‘‘public
interests’” without a word of explanation.

It was notorious that claims did exist, there was no secret as far
as that was concerned, and he thought there could be no reason for
withholding particulars of the account which had been preferred,
and the mode in which it had been urged. The statement might have
been a very inadequate one. If he remembered aright the Premier
had told them that the matter of these claims was not among those
to be submitted to the High Commission. If however, the
Government could tell the House that these claims would be
considered by the House, by the Commission, then he could
understand the propriety of withholding the papers, but under the
present circumstances of the case, the members of that House as
representatives of the people had a right to express their opinion as
to the manner in which the claims of the people had been put
forward. There might be some papers which it would be
inexpedient to submit, and those might be withheld, but they
certainly ought to have the statement, and though admitting the
propriety of submitting to the decision of Ministers in such matters,
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as a general rule he was not one to submit to a simple statement
repeated on every occasion without comment or explanation.

Hon. Mr. CONNELL thought that many additions might have
to be made in the claim, and then the particular paper in question
should be submitted.

Hon. Mr. WOOD said he could concur in many reasons why it
might be injudicious to bring the matter before the House, although
it might not be that the subject of compensation for the Fenian raids
would be brought before the High Commission, yet it might be very
inadvisable to make public statements which might tend to
influence the minds of the people of the United States, and so very
much embarrass the action of the Commission, and he was certainly
astonished that men of the great experience of the members for
Lanark, Durham West, and Lambton, should so earnestly press the
Government to produce papers which they must see it would be
most unadvisable to bring down, at the present time. Under any and
all circumstances.

Mr. MACKENZIE said that not being gifted with the unusual
reasoning powers and good judgment of the member who had just
spoken (Hon. Mr. Wood—That’s a fact, (Laughter.) they ought to
have some forbearance for him, but if the hon. gentleman was to be
their political schoolmaster he feared the House would not improve
in manners, judgment, or good sense.) He did not intend to divide
the House on his motion, but he felt bound to protest against the
course taken by the Government. As to what the last speaker had
said about inflaming the minds of the people of the United States,
that was beneath contempt. It was well known that the American
Government had published full minutiae of the Alabama claims,
and who had ever thought of its having any effect on the Canadian
mind. The claims on account of the Fenian raids would have to be
adjudicated on, and why should Canadians be afraid of letting the
United States know what their claims were. He would, however,
defer to the judgment of the hon. gentleman opposite and withdraw
his motion.

Motion accordingly withdrawn.

* * %

CHAPLAIN WITH RED RIVER EXPEDITION

Mr. MAGILL said you are all aware that during the past season
the people of this country had been called upon to restore law and
order in the North West. Too much praise could not be awarded
them for the readiness with which they had undertaken this duty.
Willingly they had come forward to offer their lives a sacrifice on
the altar of their country. It was well known that the Wesleyan
Methodists formed one of the most numerous and respectable
church bodies in this country and great discontent and
dissatisfaction arose when it was reported that that body had not
been treated with due respect by the Government. He hoped there
was no Jonahs in the camp. He thought this was a proper time to
bring this subject before the House that a prompt opportunity might
be afforded the Hon. Minister of Militia to set the matter at rest. We
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had no church and state in this country, and the very fact that this
great advantage had been obtained by us, by hard fought battles,
made us jealous of our rights. There was no such thing as any one
class being put over the other. All were pleased with an equality.
When the expedition was sent to the Red River last summer, some
of the members of the Wesleyan body joined the expedition. It was
proposed that one of the missionaries of the Wesleyan body should
be sent with the forces as a chaplain. A communication was sent to
the Hon. Minister of Militia asking to be allowed that privilege. The
Rev. Mr. Punshon was the gentleman who, on behalf of the body,
made the application. A gentleman well known as an eminent
Divine, not only in this Dominion but the British Empire. The
answer of the Hon. Minister of Militia, to that reverend gentleman,
was said to be very uncourteous—this he could not from his
knowledge of that hon. gentleman believe. The matter had however
obtained so much notoriety as to be brought before the conference
at Toronto. He did not stand up here as a vindicator of the
Methodist body; he would do the same for any other denomination.
He would move an address to His Excellency, asking for a
correspondence between Dominion Government and Rev. W.M.
Punshon and others, in reference to appointment of chaplain to
accompany Military Expedition to Manitoba.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said he was delighted that
the hon. gentleman had brought his motion before the House.
Unfortunately, a member of the Government—a Minister of the
Crown—was obliged to do his duty, and be silent often when
assailed even in the most unexpected place. He recollected about
the 17th of June last, he (Hon. Sir George-E. Cartier) made an
appointment to meet the Hon. Sir A.T. Galt in Montreal, who then
apprized him that the Methodist conference was sitting in Toronto;
and that some extraordinary statement had been made about the
appointment of a chaplain to the Red River Expedition. He was not
able to find out what amount of trouble there was with regard to the
chaplain for that force from his friend, Hon. Sir A.T. Galt (who was
always a friend of his). The news was merely telegraphic and came
from Toronto to Montreal. It was to the effect that a statement had
been made in Toronto by a rev. gentleman that Hon. Sir George-E.
Cartier had appropriated 1,000,000 acres for the priests and clergy
of Manitoba, that he would not listen to a petition sent on behalf of
the Methodist clergy, for the appointment of a Methodist chaplain
to accompany the volunteers from Ontario, and, besides, he had
sent twelve priests to accompany the expedition, while the poor
Methodist clergyman could not obtain leave to go.

Mr. MILLS: Who said that?

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said he would explain all
that. He felt more surprised than any one could imagine when he
learned these things, that such a large appropriation had been made,
that he had sent an army of priests to accompany the expedition and
had refused permission for a Methodist clergyman to go with them,
and, above all, that a Methodist deputation had been discourteously
received. He could do nothing more than telegraph to a colleague of
his, who happened to be in Toronto at the time, to ask if it was
really so, and requesting him to send a true explanation of the affair.
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He (Hon. Sir George-E Cartier) might say he felt uneasy about
these false statements which had been made against him. He felt
uneasy that the people of Lower Canada and the Roman Catholic
clergy, who were renowned for their liberality, should imagine that
he had inflicted an injustice on a body of Protestants. He felt
uneasy, too, lest the Protestants of Canada should fancy that he had
abused his position as a Minister of the Crown to serve the interests
of a particular party or creed. As a Minister of the Crown, he knew
neither Protestants nor Catholic, Upper Canada or Lower Canada.
He held the position to deal impartially towards all. He might add,
too, that there was no Protestant denomination amongst whom he
had so many personal friends as the Methodists, in Montreal
especially. Those who knew him would not believe that he could be
guilty of dealing unjustly with so respectable a denomination. He
was not in a position at the time to justify himself, and he was
decried right and left. On his way to Ottawa he fell in with a copy
of the Globe in which he saw a little article dedicated to him on the
subject. It referred to a letter from Rev. W. Punshon. Until then he
had no idea to what extent he (Hon. Sir George-E. Cartier) had been
slandered in Toronto.

The Globe stated that no insult had been offered in the
correspondence, to Rev. W. Punshon. He (Hon. Sir George-E.
Cartier) then read the letter of the rev. gentleman himself, and he
should have been pleased to have made the personal acquaintance
of one whose letter showed him to be, not only a good Christian,
but a true gentleman. In that communication, the Rev. W. Punshon
had replied to some previous remark of the Globe, that the
complaint against the Hon. Minister of Militia was not as stated. He
continued “‘Our grievance against him is this: We sent in our
application and received a letter of acknowledgment. Our complaint
is, that, after we had received that letter, we never read another
communication to tell us if our petition had been considered by the
Government.”” He (Hon. Sir George-E. Cartier) did not often keep
the Globe, but he kept that copy, and determined to himself that
when the discussion should be out of the newspapers, he would take
it on himself to write to the Rev. W. Punshon privately, explaining
the circumstances of the appointment of the Chaplain, and the
reason why the correspondence which he expected had not been
sent to him. The correspondence was, of course, private, and he was
not at liberty to say what it contained, but he would take this
opportunity to explain to the House the circumstances attending the
appointment of the two Chaplains to the Volunteer Force.

By an Order in Council, passed several weeks before the
departure of the troops, the number of non-combatant officers to
accompany the two battalions was determined. This was gazetted.
There were several applications from rev. gentlemen, both by letter
and personally for the position of chaplains of the Battalions. The
two gentlemen selected were Rev. Mr. Patterson and Father
Ouillett. Their appointments were gazetted and anyone who wished
to know who had obtained the positions could have seen it in the
Canada Gazette. Subsequent to this he read a resolution which was
passed at a Methodist conference in Toronto and reported by the
Globe and Telegraph of that city, which were very hostile to him,
he knew not why. He was, as it were a scapegoat, and they

February 27, 1871

represented him as black as they possibly could. He saw in the
report of the Conference that a resolution had been actually drafted
by a rev. gentleman, endorsing the most unwarrantable statements
against him (Hon. Sir George-E. Cartier). In that resolution it was
said that he had appropriated 1,400,000 acres to support the priests
at Red River. He did not remember whether this statement had been
made in the resolution itself or in the speech of the rev. mover, but
at all events he (Hon. Sir George-E. Cartier) had been slandered
right and left. He stated in his letter to Rev. W. Punshon that he
repudiated these charges entirely, and he hoped an opportunity
would be afforded him to repeat them in Parliament. This was a
delicate matter, but if hon. members opposite wished to appoint a
committee and investigate it thoroughly he would be glad of it. He
would like too, that certain gentlemen who had made such
statements should be brought before that committee and state on
what authority they preferred such charges. He was well known to a
large number of Methodists, and he was satisfied that they knew too
well his liberality, fairness and honesty to think that he could be
guilty of anything derogatory either to them or any other Protestant
denomination.

Mr. MACKENZIE said he understood rather differently. During
the discussion on the resolution, he had the pleasure to be present at
the Methodist conference, and he understood by the remarks of the
Rev. Dr. Ryerson, that in moving this resolution they only wished
to express their disapproval of the mode of appointing the
chaplains. They had asked permission to send a chaplain of their
own faith to accompany the expedition, only requesting the
Government to furnish coveyance for him and his baggage, and the
indignation was directed against the refusal of the Hon. Minister of
Militia to allow them to send a chaplain at their own cost.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said if anyone ought to be
conversant with military affairs it was the gallant Major Mackenzie,
the hon. member for Lambton. The Canadian battalions once
organized and officered were placed under the command of General
Lindsay, the Commander of the expedition, and the Government
had nothing further to do with them, and could not grant the
request.

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North) said, like the hon.
member for Lambton, he had heard a discussion very interesting to
him was about to take place at the Methodist conference, an
assembly of 500, among the most respectable men in the country.
He was present in the gallery during that discussion, and he could
not say there were such statements made as had been asserted in the
House tonight. He had listened very attentively to the very able
speech of Dr. Ryerson on that occasion. He had heard the remarks
respecting the Hon. Minister of Militia, and he did not hear such
statements made as the hon. gentleman complained of. He had
heard nothing said that was not perfectly justifiable in view of the
events which had since then transpired in connection with
Manitoba. Then, with regard to the appointment of the chaplains,
the Hon. Minister of Militia had sheltered himself under the Order
in Council, but who determined that only two chaplains should be
sent? Who determined that there should be but two chaplains, one
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from the Church of Rome, and the other from the Church of
England? The objection was made, that such a decision had been
arrived at. The objection was that they were not prepared to assert
that this large and influential body having ministers of their own
residing in that country, having a large number professing their own
religion among the volunteers, should not be allowed to send a
chaplain with the expedition to minister to their spiritual wants. It
was against the discourtesy of the reply merely, refusing to permit
them to send a chaplain at their own expense. He must do justice to
the Rev. Dr. Ryerson; it is true that gentleman was not named, but
there was no doubt that he was the rev. gentleman referred to by the
Hon. Minister of Militia. Dr. Ryerson was too well acquainted with
public life not to know, that such grave statements should only be
made on sufficient grounds. It had been reported that he said twelve
Roman Catholic priests had been sent with the expedition. He (Dr.
Ryerson) made no such statement. What he did say was that twelve
Roman Catholic chaplains had been attached to the Volunteer force
of the country.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER: That’s not the case!

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North): It might be true or
not, but that was the statement made by the rev. gentleman. Then
the Hon. Minister of Militia had said a great deal about the
statement that 1,400,000 acres of land had been appropriated for the
benefit of the Roman Catholic Clergy in Manitoba. He did not
believe that any such statement was made. (Here the hon.
gentleman referred to a file of the Globe, from which he read the
resolutions referred to.) The statement in these resolutions was that
the Hon. Minister of Militia had set apart 1,400,000 acres of land,
chiefly for the priests and his co-religionists, and this statement
could be borne out by facts (cries of oh! oh! from the Hon. Sir
George-E. Cartier and the French members), and all the facts
developed in that country since the resolutions were moved in the
conference confirmed the correctness of the statement. Was it not
true that the reserves which the Manitoba Bill directed should be
made under this Government in that province, were under the
control of the priesthood, and that it was chiefly for the benefit and
support of the hon. member’s co-religionists? It was a fact and
could not be disputed. (Hon. Sir George-E. Cartier—No! No!)

The hon. gentleman said no, no, but were not his co-religionists
in the majority there? They had the control of the Government, the
Bishop of St. Boniface was the actual ruler of that Government, and
his influence was supreme. (Cries of Oh! and No! No! from various
members.) Those associated with him, and who were under his
direction, were the people who ruled. He knew by letters recently
received from that country written by officers of the Volunteer
Force and by private members of that force, that it was so. It was
clear that the influence of the Bishop was predominant—that
nothing could be done with the Government without his assent; that
no man could get employment from the Government unless he first
went to the Bishop of St. Boniface, and got him to use his influence
in his favour. That was said as a fact on the best authority. The Hon.
Minister of Militia might laugh and attempt to deny it, but he (Hon.
Mr. McDougall) knew better what he heard stated by a member of
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this House! What he had heard by letters from Manitoba! What he
saw in the papers every day corroborated the statements made in the
resolution. The hon. gentleman had charged that it was a
misrepresentation of facts, and that the conference was not justified
in coming to the conclusion it did. He admitted, if the influence of
the Bishop was not predominant; if the clergy of his church were
not interfering in the control of public affairs of Manitoba, there
might be some blame attached to the members of the conference,
but under the circumstances he contended that the conference, in
supporting Dr. Ryerson, in view of the events that have since
occurred, were fully justified in stating that these reserves were
made for the co-religionists of the Hon. Minister of Militia. All the
facts went to show that there was no ground for charging the
conference with misrepresentation of facts. The House had been
told that the correspondence had been private. The hon. gentleman
had chosen, though writing upon matters of public importance, to
mark his communications “‘Private’” and hence they were not to be
submitted to the House. They could not tell what explanations had
been made, or what inducement had been held out to Rev. W.
Punshon to repeal the resolutions. There would be no doubt some
curious revelations if those letters were furnished to the House, but
they were told the communications were private, and they would be
no wiser for the motion of his hon. friend to have the
correspondence brought down.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said he had not intended to
enter into a discussion upon the proceedings of that conference, nor
had he intended to mention the name of Dr. Ryerson. It was not he
who had introduced that gentleman’s name into the discussion. He
had written privately to Mr. Punshon in reply to the letter of that
rev. gentleman, because it was a communication from a Christian
and a gentleman, and he congratulated the Methodist denomination
on having such a man amongst their number. What he (Hon. Sir
George-E. Cartier) complained of, was, that unwarrantable
statements had been made in a resolution by one of the rev.
gentlemen at the conference. He knew that if only Dr. Ryerson had
heard what his hon. friend had said he would have at once made use
of the proverb: “*Save me from my friends.””’

Mr. FERGUSON said the matter was one which had been
discussed throughout the country, and he therefore desired to make
a few remarks on it. He thought there was no doubt that Dr.
Ryerson, however sincere, had led his people astray on this matter
very considerably, and he was quite sure that if anything offensive
had emanated from the Department of the Minister of Militia, it had
been sent without his consent or knowledge. It had no doubt been
considered that the expedition should be accompanied by two
chaplains, one Protestant and the other Roman Catholic, and he was
quite sure that the Wesleyans were now satisfied that no offence
had been intended. Very much had been said as to land being
appropriated for the benefit of the priests and co-religionists of the
Minister of Militia, but nothing of the kind had been done. The
priests and co-religionists of the Minister of Militia had been treated
in no way differently from other classes of the people. He then read
the clauses of the Manitoba Act respecting the land appropriation,
shewing that it was in no way for the Roman Catholics but for the
half-breeds, and said he did not think there was now a single
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Methodist minister who did not believe that the priests had no
control whatever over the lands of Manitoba. Every land grant had
to be published in the Canada Gazette, and therefore nothing could
be done privately or in an underhand way,—and in fact he did not
hesitate to say that no Government that gave one party preference
over another could stand for one moment. As to the predominance
of the Roman Catholics in Manitoba, he had it on the authority of
Drs. Schultz and Lynch, that out of every ten, six were Protestant of
one denomination or another, and out of the twenty-four members
elected to the Local Legislature, thirteen were Protestant and eleven
Catholic.

He (Mr. Ferguson) felt satisfied that if his hon. friend from
Hamilton agreed to the suggestion of the Hon. Minister of Militia
for a Committee of Enquiry, it would meet the approval of the
public, and justice would be accorded to all parties, it placed this
honourable House in a position to approve or condemn—the action
of the Government in the premises as they deserved—and to this
end he would suggest to the Hon. Minister of Militia, the propriety
of obtaining permission from the Rev. Dr. Punshon to produce the
private letters which passed between himself and the reverend
gentleman on this important subject. He was satisfied that if his
friend agreed to the suggestion of the Hon. Minister of Militia for a
Commission, and witnesses were brought before it, justice could be
done.

Hon. Mr. HOWE would have much preferred the hon.
gentleman had waited till the papers were brought down, when all
the matters connected with this subject could have been discussed.
Already we had had two or three discussions on this subject in the
absence of the papers. He and the Government had been denounced
for their course in regard to the North West, and he himself, by a
wretched rag of a paper in this city, as the murderer of Scott. He
had long and patiently listened to sectional appeals and harangues,
and had even been accused of conspiring with the Roman Catholics
to oppress the Protestants. He had laboured for over thirty years in
the cause of religious liberty, and had succeeded in removing
disabilities from Methodists and other denominations in Nova
Scotia. He had sat for two years at the Government Council table,
and had never seen a minister mean, prejudiced and foolish enough
to propose the discussion of any question upon the ground of
religious preferences. He proceeded to ridicule the idea of Roman
Catholic domination, in face of the fact that only three of the
thirteen ministers were of that faith. Ten Protestants ruled or lead by
so small a minority! He was sorry that Dr. Ryerson had
misunderstood and condemned the conduct of the Government in
relation to the appointment of a chaplain to the Red River
expedition. He defended the appointments made on the ground of
adequacy and appropriateness. His Protestant colleagues had
decided as to the Protestant chaplain but all denominations could
not be satisfied in the matter. He believed and was certain all in the
House were convinced that Hon. Sir George-E. Cartier was
incapable of injustice towards, or of insulting any Christian
minister. The non-acknowledgment of the Methodist application
was a result of the official system, out of which no offence to the
denomination could reasonably be construed. As to Manitoba there
was no doubt now. The elections were now taken, and they and
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other events had justified the course of the Government and the
provisions of the Bill. What position would they have occupied
today but for that Bill? They would have been trying to maintain a
little family compact there, after the fall of the family compacts in
all the other provinces. The land was not given to the priests, but to
every man, woman and child in the province, whether French or
English. In protecting the rights of the original population, the
wisest, most liberal provision had been made for all the population,
whether volunteers, natives, or old residents. Reference had been
made to Bishop Taché’s influence. Why should he not have it, a
man who had lived and laboured and sacrificed so much for the
improvement and elevation of the population of the plains. Let the
member for Lanark (Hon. Mr. McDougall) go up there as a
missionary (laughter), and he would earn popularity too, perhaps.

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North): 1 would not like to
follow the hon. gentleman’s example. (Laughter.)

Hon. Mr. HOWE: If he had he might have avoided many of the
scrapes into which he has got. (Loud laughter.) He believed the
House would approve the conduct of the Government, and that
neither Protestantism nor the Dominion had anything to fear from
the Manitoba Bill.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT expressed his conviction that the Minister
of Militia was not open to blame for the omission that had appeared
in the matter of this chaplaincy. Through some mistake or accident
the application had been overlooked; he was satisfied not
intentionally, knowing the importance and claims of this
denomination he took an early opportunity of calling the attention
of the Minister of Militia to this default. Aware of the liberality and
fairness of dealing towards those of a different faith, always
displayed by the Minister of Militia, he was perfectly certain the
charge made against him must have arisen from some
misapprehension. He (Hon. Sir A.T. Galt) was sure no slight was
intended, and had desired an early opportunity of dispelling the
wrong impression created.

Mr. GIBBS expressed his conviction as to the innocence of the
Minister of Militia of all design to insult or overlook the Methodists
in this chaplaincy affair. He was glad the present discussion arose,
so as to relieve the minds of the public of all unpleasant suspicions
on this subject.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS followed in the same strain,
coinciding with the preceding speakers as to Hon. Sir George-E.
Cartier’s liberality of disposition, and repugnance to anything like
prejudice or ill-will towards any denomination.

Mr. POPE depreciated the dragging in of questions of creeds,
religions or sections like the present. He thought they should drop
such subjects. (Hear, hear.) He paid a compliment to the character
of the Minister of Militia.

Mr. MACKENZIE justified the consideration of this religious
question, which afforded a public functionary an opportunity of
justifying himself in regard to a charge preferred against him in the
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ministerial convention of one of the largest and most influential
denominations of the country. The Methodists did not complain of
the Government not sending up a chaplain, but of the refusal to
allow them to despatch one at their own expense. They claimed to
have the largest number of men in the battalion, and were entitled to
the privilege solicited. He thought the request could have been
obtained, had the Minister of Militia used his influence with the
Commander in Chief.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said his answer to those
remarks was just this,—the authority of the Canadian Government
touching the battalion of Volunteers ceased the moment it was fully
organized, since it passed under the authority of the General and
Colonel Wolseley; and the military chiefs were not only opposed to
the presence of two Chaplains, but to any Chaplains at all with the
military. (Hear, hear, and laughter.)

Mr. MAGILL said it was the duty of the House to take hold of
every subject and legislate on it, and thought it was well it should
go abroad to the country, that there was no insult offered to so large
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and influential a body as the Wesleyan Methodists of the Dominion.

* % %

WELLINGTON STREET BRIDGE

Hon. Mr. HOLTON moved for Report of Engineer of
Department of Public Works, on application to erect Railway
Bridge across Lachine Canal on the line of Wellington Street. He
said there was a considerable amount of feeling existing on the
subject, and there had been a favourable report made by the
Engineer on the work. He thought the production of the report
would tend to a considerable extent to allay the feelings existing
with respect to it.

Hon. Mr. LANGEVIN said the report would be produced in a
few days.

The House then adjourned at 11 o’clock.
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HOUSE OF COMMONS

Tuesday, February 28, 1871

The SPEAKER took the chair at 3.00 p.m.

Prayers

Several petitions were presented.

* * %

CORRECTION

Hon. Mr. CONNELL (whose remarks were very indistinctly
heard in the reporter’s gallery) referred to a mistake which had been
made in the report of his speech yesterday with regard to the
settlement of accounts between New Brunswick and the Dominion.
He had been represented as saying that “‘it would be necessary to
get an alteration of the Union Act.”” He would not like to have it go
abroad to his constituents that he had made such an absurd
statement. He had no wish to have the Union Act disturbed for a
settlement of the accounts between New Brunswick and the
Dominion. He had no doubt that a just and equitable arrangement
would be made.

* * %

LIBRARY OFFICIALS

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER moved that the Library
Committee be instructed to inquire into the remuneration,
classification, etc., of the officers of the library.

Carried.

* * %

NEW MEMBER

Mr. PEARSON the member elected by the constituency of
Colchester to fill the place rendered vacant by the appointment of
Hon. Mr. Archibald to the Lieutenant-Governorship of the North
West, was introduced by Messrs. Carmichael and Killam, and took
his seat.

* * %
THE ELECTION LAW

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER introduced a bill to make
temporary provision for the election of members for the House of

Commons. (Hear, hear from the Opposition.) He expected that his
hon. friends opposite would say ‘‘hear, hear’” at the very mention
of the measure. He would explain that since we were about to have
another province comprised in this Dominion, it was obvious that
the government could not yet enact a law to affect all the provinces
of the Dominion, as far as the representation of this House was
concerned. The circumstances of Manitoba having been recently
admitted into the Union and British Columbia being on the eve of
joining the Confederation, had led the Government to the
conclusion that it would be better to carry on the next election for
the Dominion under the laws as they now prevail in the several
provinces. (Hear, hear from the Opposition.) He might state that the
bill too, contained a provision with regard to the number of days on
which elections were to take place. This Bill provided that the
elections should take place on one day. (Hear, hear.)

Mr. BLAKE said that after two permanent Electoral Bills had
been passed, the House was now asked to enact a temporary one.
Last session one had been passed, the session before the House had
passed one, and now they were asked to deal with another one. The
hon. gentleman had explained that the reason why he now
submitted this temporary measure, was because of the introduction
of the new Provinces into Confederation. At what period since the
1st July, 1867, was not the House favoured with the news that new
Provinces were to be added? Every day they were told they were
coming in, though they didn’t come.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS: Yes! yes!

Mr. BLAKE: And yet the Hon. Minister of Militia had asserted
that it was in view of these additions to the Dominion that this
temporary Act was provided. Last session the Opposition had
pointed out the effect that the new measure then submitted would
have in the East and in the West. They had shown that it would be
impossible to work it in Manitoba, and that difficulties would arise
in other Provinces too. But they were told that their arguments were
fallacious, and that the Union would overcome all the difficulties
which were then deprecated. He was glad to hear that, taught by
experience, they had admitted the truth of the arguments then
advanced by the Opposition, that it was necessary to respect the
views of the different Provinces on the subject, and by degrees as
they became more acquainted with the franchise laws of other
countries, the Government had made some approach towards
providing for a common franchise for the Dominion. He was not
surprised that it was merely a temporary Act. It would be coming
down too far to propose as a permanent Act what they opposed so
consistently before, but, he had no doubt that it would contain for
some years to come the principle at the base of our Parliamentary
representation, founded on the motion of the hon. member for



COMMONS DEBATES

68

Hochelaga, that the franchise should be for the Dominion the same
as by law established for each of the Provinces. (Hear, hear.)

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said he did not intend to
discuss the measure at this moment, but he felt it to be his duty to
answer some of the observations made by the hon. gentleman
opposite. The Manitoba measure was submitted to the House as the
result of the negotiations carried on between the Dominion of
Canada and the gentlemen sent as delegates from Manitoba. No one
knew at the close of last session that Manitoba would certainly be a
member of the Confederation. There was no necessity or intention
at the outset that Manitoba should form a province and be
comprised in the Confederation. It was intended that it should be a
Crown colony, and that very reason induced the Government at the
time to withdraw the Bill.

Mr. BLAKE: Hear, hear!

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER: Then with regard to the
remarks of the hon. member for Lambton, he would say that the Bill
was proposed last year as there was no hope that we should have
British Columbia so soon. Every one expected of course, that
sooner or later that colony would be comprised as one of the sister
colonies in the Dominion. It would be useless at the close of this
Parliament, with one Province just admitted and another shortly to
be admitted into the Confederation, to endeavour to assimilate the
laws. They could not make a law now which would apply to British
Columbia. He hoped his hon. friend would take with a better feeling
the good intention of the Government in adopting this course.

The Bill was read a first time.

* * %

PAPERS ON BRITISH COLUMBIA

A message from His Excellency, accompanying papers relative
to the proposed union of British Columbia with Canada, was read.

* * %

HIS EXCELLENCY’S PEERAGE

The SPEAKER read the following reply of His Excellency the
Governor General to the recent congratulatory address of the House
of Commons:

Mr. Speaker and Gentlemen of the House of Commons.

I beg you to accept my sincere thanks for the address of
congratulation with which you have honoured me on the occasion
of my elevation to the Peerage.

The expression of your acquiescence in the favourable view
which our Sovereign has graciously deigned to take of my services
is highly to be valued, as conveying the good opinion of the freely
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chosen representatives of a people possessing the precious
endowments of energetic industry, self-reliance, and firm and
orderly attachment to the freedom and institutions of their country.

The North West Territories already added to the Confederation
and the willing accession of British Columbia, which, it is to be
hoped, will shortly take effect, as they extend your bounds, so they
proportionately augment the cares and responsibilities of those who
are in the high places of the land; but the legislature and people of
the Dominion will, | feel persuaded, prove equal to the lofty task,
the vast and varied interests throughout the wide domain will be
safe in their charge and gradually cemented into one compact and
contented whole, by the same wise legislation, and the same equal
administration of affairs as have done so much in the past to
establish the well being and satisfy the just expectations of the
people. In conclusion, I return your good wishes with all sincerity,
and assure you | shall retain and cherish to the close of my life a
warm interest in all that regards the position and prospects of this
great and growing country.

LISGAR
GOVERNMENT HOUSE,

FEBRUARY 27, 1871

* * *

BRITISH COLUMBIA PAPERS

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER moved that the papers just
submitted to the House be printed without delay. He explained that
the Hon. Mr. Trutch, the delegate from British Columbia, was now
in Chicago, on his way to Ottawa, and would reach here, he
expected, on Saturday. It was necessary, therefore, that the House
should be in possession of the correspondence relative to the
admission of the sister colony into the union.

Mr. MASSON (Terrebonne) complained of delays in printing
public documents in the French language. He knew that it took
some time to translate papers, but then, if there were not translators
enough to do the work, more should be employed.

After a short discussion on the subject the motion was carried.

* % %

EXPENSE OF FENIAN INVASION

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS moved that the House should on
Friday next go into Committee of the Whole to consider resolutions
affirming the expediency of indemnifying the Government for
having authorized the issue of a special warrant for $200,000, to
provide for the defence of the Dominion in repelling the Fenian
invasion in the month of May last.
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Hon. Mr. HOLTON thought that on a motion of this kind it was
necessary that a special message should be brought down
concerning it, as under the Audit Act it was provided that every
such disbursement should be attended by that ceremony. An
appropriation of money had taken place without the authority of
Parliament, and indemnity must be sought by a special message
from the Throne. He thought that was both the practice and the law
of the matter.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS then moved that the motion
should be allowed to stand over.—Carried.

* * %

SUPPLY

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS moved concurrence in the report
of the Committee of the Whole on the motion that a Supply be
granted to Her Majesty.—Carried.

He then moved that on Friday next the House should resolve
itself into Committee of the Whole to the Supply to be granted to
Her Majesty.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON asked whether it was the purpose of the
Finance Minister to go into that Committee on Friday, and whether
the Estimates would then be ready.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS thought it would scarcely be
possible to do so. Motion carried.

* * %

UNIFORM CURRENCY

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS moved that on Friday next the
House resolve itself into committee to consider seven resolutions to
establish a uniform Canadian currency currently throughout the
provinces, in which all public accounts in Canada must be kept. —
Carried.

* * %

CENSUS ACT

Hon. Mr. DUNKIN moved the second reading of the Bill ““An
Act to amend the Census Act.”

Mr. MACKENZIE said he would avail himself of the
opportunity to ask the hon. gentleman when he proposed to give
some explanation to the House on this question. There were several
Head Commissioners, whatever they might be called, many District
Commissioners, and nothing at all was known as to their salaries, or
other expenses connected with the matter. The House had
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generously given the hon. gentleman permission to make full
arrangements, under his promise that he would be much more
economical in his distribution of the public monies than the former
Government had been in 1861. That might be the case, and no
doubt the hon. gentleman had done what he could, but considering
the great license given, he thought it was due to the House that
some information should be given as to the steps taken to carry out
the necessary arrangements.

Hon. Mr. DUNKIN said that the Census Act required that within
fifteen days of the opening of the Session a report should be laid
before both Houses. That period would expire on the morrow, when
the report would be laid before the House, accompanied by all
documents, and he thought his hon. friend from Lambton would
then be fully satisfied with what had been done.

The Bill was then read a second time.

Hon. Mr. DUNKIN moved that the House should, on Friday,
resolve itself into a Committee of the Whole to consider the Bill. —
Carried.

* * *

INLAND REVENUE RETURNS

Hon. Mr. MORRIS laid on the table of the House the Official
Returns and statistics of the Inland Revenue Department.

* % %

PROVINCIAL ARBITRATION

The House then proceeded to the further consideration of the
proposed motion of Mr. Blake for an address for copies of all
correspondence between the Canadian and Quebec Governments,
and the Canadian and Ontario Governments touching, the
Provincial Arbitration and award, &c., of the motion of Mr. Godin
in amendment thereto, and the motion of Mr. Fournier in
amendment to the said amendment.

Mr. FOURNIER addressed the House in French on the subject
of his amendment, referring to the course taken and the remarks
made by the Hon. Premier of Quebec, in the previous debate, and
concluded by expressing his willingness to withdraw his
amendment, it having served the purpose he had in view—that of an
expression of opinion on the subject.

Hon. Mr. CHAUVEAU said he still adhered to his opinion that
the arbitration award was illegal, but thought it desirable to wait for
the production of the relevant papers.

Hon. Mr. GRAY did not rise to discuss the motion before the
House, but expressed his sincere hope, as one of the arbitrators, that
the papers would be brought before the House, and that there would
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be a full and fair discussion of everything connected with the
matter. He did not say that that House was the proper tribunal to
determine the validity of the award; indeed he was rather of opinion
that it was not. He trusted that if after a full discussion of the
subject the House should come to the conclusion that the course of
the Arbitrators had been injudicious, or would be injurious to the
welfare of the Dominion, some means would be found to obviate
the difficulty. Speaking on behalf of the Arbitrators, he wished to
say that they courted the most public enquiry, and whenever the
matter should be discussed before that House he should endeavour
to explain the course pursued, without feeling without prejudice,
and then if the House, expressing the opinion of the public of the
whole Dominion should consider that it would be better that the
discussion should be reconsidered no doubt such could be done. As
to the course pursued by the Arbitrators, after the resignation of the
gentleman appointed by the Government of Quebec, in continuing
the consideration of the matter and arriving at the award, they had
done so because they believed they had no power to abandon the
duties imposed on them, and he sincerely hoped that the matter
would result in peace and harmony and the restoration of good will.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON thought his friend from Bellechasse had
adopted a most judicious course in offering to withdraw his
amendment, after having elicited the discussion which had taken
place, and after eliciting the declaration made on a previous
occasion by the Minister of Militia, which declaration had
unquestionably been elicited by the amendment. He had, however, a
word or two to say to the gentleman from the Province of Quebec,
and especially to the members of the Government of that Province
who had denounced the hon. gentleman from Bellechasse in such
severe terms on the occasion of his first address to that House. He
thought that they, at least, were not in a position to denounce that
hon. gentleman for seeking the decision of the House in the same
way that they themselves had taken in the Legislature of Quebec.
What were the words used in the reply of the Legislative Council to
the speech of the Lieutenant-Governor, moved by the hon. member
for Quebec County, who had so severely attacked the member for
Bellechasse a few days before. They had thanked His Excellency
for informing them that in consequence of irreconciliable
differences between the arbitrators the gentleman appointed by
Quebec had resigned his office, and then thanking him for
protesting against the illegality of the proceedings subsequent to the
resignation of one of the Arbitrators, and afterwards against the
unjust and illegal award arrived at by the remaining two Arbitrators.
Thus, they had begun by declaring that proceedings were manifestly
unjust and illegal before the papers were submitted to the House,
and the hon. member for Bellechasse was doing no more than had
been done in the Quebec Legislature. At the present moment, the
members had all the papers in their desks, and therefore the member
for Bellechasse had asked the House to do no more when in point of
fact it was in possession of the papers than the Premier of Quebec
had asked his Assembly to do when it had no papers.

Hon. Mr. IRVINE would not have considered it necessary to
take any part in the discussion, had it not been for the remarks of
the hon. member for Chateauguay. That hon. gentleman had spoken
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as if a personal attack had been made on the hon. member from
Bellechasse, whereas he was quite sure that nothing of the sort had
been done—at least as far as he was concerned, he certainly had
intended nothing of the kind, nor did he think he had been so
understood. The case which had come up in the Quebec Assembly
was entirely different from that now before the House. The Quebec
Legislature had been informed in the speech that the Lieutenant-
Governor had protested against the proceedings which had taken
place after the resignation of the Arbitrator appointed by Quebec,
and they thanked His Excellency for having done so. It was quite
manifest that the Legislature of Quebec was called upon to
pronounce in some way as to the legality of the award, they had to
take action one way or the other, and it was quite proper that they
should pronounce upon it as soon as possible, and in response
therefore to the Lieutenant-Governor, who informed them that he
had come to the conclusion that the award was illegal and unjust,
they concurred in that conclusion, and thanked him for the
proceedings he had adopted. The members of the Legislature had
watched the matter from first to last, and were thoroughly well
acquainted with it, and were therefore in a position enabling them to
pronounce on the matter, but that House was not in such a position.
There were many gentlemen in the House who had not taken the
same interest in the matter as those directly concerned, and they
could not therefore be expected to be able to discuss the matter in
the absence of the papers. That therefore was reason why the House
should not then discuss the matter apart from the question as to
whether it was competent for the House to deal with it at all. The
hon. gentleman from Chateauguay knew perfectly well that the
Quebec House had not discussed the question in its details. The
response to the speech of the Lieutenant-Governor was merely an
expression of confidence in the action which the Government had
thought fit to take.

Hon. Mr. SMITH (Westmorland) thought the subject was not
one which could then be properly discussed by the House, but that
it was one simply of law. He thought, however, that the matter
might be discussed after the production of the papers, but that the
only thing that could then be done would be to state the facts and
refer the matter to a committee of the Privy Council, but beyond
that they could not go. It seemed to him that the present discussion
would be only productive of harm, and it would certainly not tend
to allay any feeling that might exist between Ontario and Quebec,
and, he therefore thought it unwise to discuss the question at all. He
thought the legality of the award could only be tested by the proper
tribunal, which was certainly not that House. Referring to the Act
bearing on the matter it seemed to him that the Schedules were to
be considered the joint property of Ontario and Quebec, and,
therefore, the arbitrators had no right to make a distinction in the
matter, as it could not be disputed that if a grant was made to two
parties, that were joint owners of the property so granted, and it was
provided that the assets belonged to the two provinces conjointly,
and, therefore, he thought the duty of the arbitrators was to divide
the assets equally, and if a larger portion had been given to Ontario
than to Quebec, he thought it was a direct contravention of the law,
and he also thought that it was legally necessary that any proper
award should be unanimous from the three arbitrators.
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Mr. BLAKE quite agreed with the member for Westmorland,
that the House had no power to decide the validity of the award, and
had therefore no right to discuss it and he did not, therefore,
propose to follow the example of his hon. friend, who, after making
that statement, had proceeded to a full discussion of the matter. He
would venture to make a suggestion, however, as to the limit of the
power and the duty of the House in reference to the matter, and as
to what course should be adopted in the altered circumstances under
which the matter then stood before the House. The Government of
Canada having the right to retain out of the subsidy of the Provinces
the interest on the excess of the debt, and having also control over
divers of the assets to be affected by the Arbitration, had been, as it
were, bound to take some action, and acting on a conventional view
of the possible or probable rights of the parties for the last three
years, the Government of Canada would be called upon to
determine whether it would adhere to that conventional mode of
dealing with the matter or in what way it would alter it, and also
what it would do in respect of the action of the Government of
Quebec in the matter. There could, therefore, be no doubt that the
Parliament of Canada had a right to express its opinion, a right to
negative, a right to approve, and a right to censure any action of the
Government, and that being the case, it would be perfectly
legitimate to make a number of motions on the subject.

No allusion had been made to the award in the Speech from the
Throne, and there had been no reference to any decision on the part
of the Government when his motion had been brought on, on the
contrary the first minister had stated that they would do nothing at
all to indicate their position in reference to the award. That state of
things necessitated action on the part of the House, because if that
state of things had continued the Government would have been
neglecting a duty. An announcement had, however, been made from
the Treasury Benches that on the morrow a message would come
down, stating the views of the Government on the subject, and he
therefore suggested that the hon. member for Bellechasse should, as
he proposed, withdraw his amendment, and that the debate should
be adjourned until after the message, so announced, had been
brought down. He was loath to enter on any discussion that might
result in any ill-feeling between the two Provinces, and it was
possible that the message of the morrow would remove all reason
for discussion, simply leaving them to pronounce on the expediency
of the course proposed by the Government.

Hon. Mr. CAMERON (Peel) said that he thought it very
desirable that the debate should be adjourned until after the
production of the papers, but there was one view of the case which
had not yet been presented, and which he thought the House ought
to hear. He quite agreed with the member for Durham West that the
House was not competent to decide on the legality of the award,
and in point of fact steps had been taken which would remove the
question entirely from the arena of that House and place it before
the judicial authorities. The Government of Quebec had actually
taken the initiative in obtaining the judgment of the Judicial Courts,
and matters were now in such a position as would result most
probably in a reference to the Judicial Committee of the Privy
Council.
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Hon. Mr. IRVINE: No, no.

Hon. Mr. CAMERON (Peel): The hon. gentleman might say
““No, no,”” but he certainly knew that proceedings had been taken in
the matter, that it was now before the Court of Appeal, and if he
understood anything of the law of Lower Canada, there would in all
probability be a reference to the Judicial Committee of the Privy
Council. That reference might be made in various ways, but he did
not pretend to know the peculiar mode of procedure under the law
of Lower Canada. He did not know when the Court of Appeal
would pronounce on the question, but he was advised by gentlemen
most competent to speak on the subject that the initiatory steps had
already been taken to bring the matter before the last Judicial resort
that could be appealed to. He thought the House ought to be in
possession of the full circumstances of the case, and should know
whether the Quebec Government had taken the steps he had
mentioned. He was quite sure that every one concerned for the
interests of Ontario and Quebec would desire that no dispute should
arise out of the mere settlement of debts, and he trusted some means
would be devised to obviate every difficulty, but he thought the
House would determine that it was not the tribunal finally to settle
the matter, and however the matter might come up, if it should have
to be determined on its strict legal merits it would certainly have to
be finally decided by the Judicial Committee of the Privy Council.

Hon. Mr. IRVINE simply desired to correct his hon. friend with
reference to the legal proceedings which he said had been adopted.
He had stated that legal proceedings had been commenced to test
the legality of the award. The three arbitrators sat at the city of
Montreal last summer, when the one named by the Province of
Quebec resigned his position, and read his resignation at a meeting
of the three. On the day following the two remaining arbitrators
continued their sittings, whereupon proceedings were taken by the
Quebec Government, in the nature of a prohibition to stay further
proceedings in consequence of the Board being incomplete, and the
two arbitrators then removed to Toronto, and after some time made
an award. He expressed no opinion on these proceedings, but
merely desired to correct the statement of his hon. friend, who
would see that the prohibition had been commenced before the
award had been made. The proceedings now adopted in the
Province of Quebec might result in a decision setting aside the
whole proceedings, but need not necessarily have the entire effect
stated by his hon. friend.

Hon. Mr. CAMERON (Peel) must say that he thought his hon.
friend the Solicitor General for Quebec was in error, and that he
was correct in the effect he had ascribed to the proceedings taken in
Quebec. There could be no doubt that the question at issue was the
right of the two Arbitrators to make an award, and therefore the
award could be declared invalid on the ground of the absence of one
Avrbitrator, so that the legality of the award was really affected.

Hon. Mr. CHAUVEAU said that on that point the legality of the
award could be tried, but there were also other grounds of dispute.

Mr. BLAKE said that of course it must be assumed that the
Quebec Courts had jurisdiction in the matter.
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Hon. Mr. CAMERON (Peel) could not admit anything of the
kind.

Mr. HARRISON thought it was clear that the House should not
then discuss the question, and he wished it to be understood that he
had been silent, not because he agreed with what had been said, but
because he did not think the House could settle the question. If the
Government decided the matter, they would be placed in a very
difficult position. If they upheld the award, Quebec would be
against them, and if otherwise, Ontario would be against them. He
considered the Privy Council should decide the question, and their
decision would no doubt be received.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON enquired whether the Government would
bring down the papers as well as the message on the morrow.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER: The message will cover all
the papers connected with it.

Mr. FOURNIER’S amendment to the amendment was then
withdrawn, and the debate adjourned.

* * %

CREDIT FONCIER

Mr. DUFRESNE then moved the second reading of the Bill
““An Act to facilitate the establishment of institutions of landed
credit’” (Credit Foncier). He explained that such institutions might
be established in any locality whenever at least twenty persons shall
give notice in the Canada Gazette of their intention to establish
such an institution, and give the Governor in Council satisfactory
evidence of their pecuniary ability to carry on the institution.

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North) thought that before
the House committed itself to so important a principle as that
involved in the Bill before them, they had a right to ask some
explanatory statements from the gentleman who laid the matter
before the House.

After some explanation the motion was carried.

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North) asked if this was the
same Bill as last session, and was answered that it was.

Referred to Committee on Banking and Commerce.
* % %
PROTECTION OF NAVIGABLE WATERS

Mr. CARTWRIGHT moved the second reading of an Act for
the better protection of navigable streams and rivers.
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Mr. CURRIER hoped the second reading would not be pressed
at present, as he was not prepared with certain information which he
wished to use against it.

Mr. MACKENZIE said the evidence could not be brought
before the House. The proper place to bring it up was before the
Committee. After the Bill went to the Committee a delay might be
granted for the production of evidence if it was required.

Mr. CARTWRIGHT replied that if delay was simply sought to
afford such an opportunity, he might wait a few days.

In response to a suggestion of Hon. Mr. Holton,

Mr. CARTWRIGHT agreed to the reference of the Bill to the
Committee on Banking and Commerce, after the second reading.

Mr. CURRIER repeated his request for delay.

Mr. MACKENZIE deprecated delay at a time when the House
had so little to do; besides, the subject was one of importance.

Mr. CARTWRIGHT said he was thoroughly in earnest about
this Bill, and had given all interested time to procure evidence
respecting it. He did not now see how he could let second reading
stand over.

Hon. Mr. LANGEVIN said important information was being
collected on this subject, which could not be ready for a few days.
He therefore suggested the postponement of the matter till
Thursday. He had no objection to the reference of the Bill to the
Committee on Banking and Commerce.

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North) hoped the mover
would not assent to the request for the reasons given. No
information procurable could induce members to report the
provisions of the Bill to the effect that it should not be lawful for
the owners of saw mills to throw sawdust and other rubbish into the
streams. The principle must be assented to as to the mode of giving
it effect, the penalties, and so forth. They might be questions for the
Committee. The suggestion of delay seemed to be aimed against the
principle of the Bill, which he hoped would be pressed.

Mr. BLAKE said the Commissioner of Public Works did not
anticipate the evidence would be ready on Thursday, and he (Mr.
Blake) did not think the Bill should be postponed on that account. It
was eminently one fit to be read at the earliest moment, and to go
before the Committee. The bill should now be read a second time
without delay.

Mr. GRANT characterized the Bill as most important. If
stringent provisions, carried into effect, they would most seriously
influence our local business. Throwing sawdust into the streams did
not obstruct them. The Bill would gravely retard and damage the
lumbering interests in this section. Mill owners should be allowed
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an opportunity of submitting the information they were now
collecting on this subject in their own defence. He hoped the bill
would be left at its present stage a few days longer.

Mr. YOUNG urged that the Bill should be gone on with, and
that it was wrong to say sawdust did not choke up the streams. He
had been informed the bed of the Ottawa had begun to fill up from
this cause in certain places. Fishery Commissioners in the West had
warned certain parties and fined them for throwing sawdust into the
streams. Those fines were not collected because, under the eyes of
the Government, the same abuse existed. He thought the opponents
of the second reading desired to kill the Bill which ought now to
take that stage.

Mr. CARTWRIGHT explained that the object of the measure
was to prevent the enormous nuisance now arising from the
accumulation of sawdust, slabs and other rubbish in the various
streams. Almost every navigable stream that flowed into Lake
Ontario was in very considerable danger of being obstructed in this
manner. By far the worst case, and the most important on account
of the interests involved, was that of Ottawa. He believed the
annual manufacture of lumber in and about this very town reached
something like 100,000,000 of board measure; that represented
about 10,000,000 of cubic feet, which occasioned the throwing into
the Ottawa of 2,000,000 cubic feet of rubbish annually. That
quantity would be sufficient to block up the river for four miles, to a
width of 200 feet, and a depth of one foot. It was equivalent to
20,000 cords of rubbish yearly cast into the river. There must be
some means of turning this enormous mass of fuel to some use in a
cold country like ours. He was not certain the difficulty of removing
it had not been exaggerated. Its removal involved expense, but not
any unreasonable expense to every one now throwing it into the
water. If the House ever undertook to carry out any extensive works
for the improvement of the Ottawa, they would have to expend a
very large sum in removing those obstacles now being flung into
the channel of this stream. After the expression of sentiments from
both sides of the House, which he had heard, he could not but feel it
was his duty to move the second reading. The opponents of the Bill
might be certain that in the hands of the Banking and Commerce
Committee no unfair advantage would be taken of them. He had the
utmost desire to give fair play to the lumber interest. He desired to
make the duty of preventing the casting of rubbish into the river as
little onerous as possible to everyone on the Ottawa.

Mr. FERGUSON pointed out the danger to which country
millers might be exposed by the Bill. He hoped some provision
would be made to protect them in the event of its passage.
Otherwise, it might be in the power of anyone, from whatever
motive, to give this class much annoyance.

Mr. WRIGHT regretted the Bill should have been introduced
under the present circumstances. It was distinctly understood the
Bill should not be introduced till next week, till those specially
interested in the Bill would have a full opportunity of adducing
arguments in rebuttal of the arguments in favour of the Bill. It was
entirely unnecessary and would be inoperative, and to make
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inoperative Bills tended to bring all our legislation into contempt.
To enact laws of a precisely similar character to those previously
enacted appeared the height of absurdity. This was the case with the
present Bill. The Minister of Marine had the same powers conferred
on him by statute as were asked for under the Bill. Under these
circumstances he hoped the House would not at present insist on the
second reading. If this bill were passed it would be impossible for
lumbermen to continue their operations. Sawdust did not injure the
navigation of rivers, but he admitted slabs and scantling should not
be cast into them. The experience of the last hundred years in
regard to the Hudson proved that sawdust did not injure rivers. The
Penobscot also was a case in point.

Hon. Mr. ANGLIN said whatever might be the experience of
other rivers, he could cite the Saint John as an instance of the injury
rivers experienced from sawdust, slabs, and so forth. It had become
necessary to pass a law to prevent the casting of this rubbish into
the river and harbour. When the necessity was imposed, every one
soon found a mode of disposing of this sawdust, slabs and edgings,
which were now consumed by fire and other means. If the hon.
member intended his Bill to prove of any value, he must increase
the penalty. The Bill ought not to be summarily dealt with.

Mr. BLANCHET hoped the mover would not at present persist
in the second reading. Some of his constituents were interested in it,
and before the second reading he was to hear from them. He
therefore hoped a little delay would be granted. If private interests
would be injured by the Bill, the hon. gentleman would be better to
compromise the matter, and, after full information, a better opinion
could be formed.

Hon. Mr. GRAY confirmed the statements of the member for
Gloucester with regard to the Saint John. The harbour was being
destroyed for navigation, and the fisheries were seriously affected
by this rubbish. The sawdust was now burned to advantage. It
appeared to him this noble river Ottawa was being rapidly
destroyed. No doubt the bottom of the river in the vicinity of the
city was covered with slabs and other rubbish.

Mr. WRIGHT: No doubt of it.

Mr. KILLAM criticised the Bill and condemned the fourth
clause. He was in favour of the principle of the Bill, but would
suggest a delay till the evidence as to the effect of throwing sawdust
into the rivers was collected. The matter should be referred to a
Committee to investigate the subject as regarded the whole
Dominion, and deal with it in a way not to hurt any particular
interest.

Mr. JONES (Leeds North and Grenville North) recommended
deliberate consideration in this matter and the temporary delay
asked for. He gave instances of the deposit of sawdust in rivers not
injuring them. The effect upon the fish was another matter. He
hoped the second reading would not be passed now.

Mr. MACDONALD (Glengarry) disputed the statement as to
slabs and sawdust being thrown into the Saint John. He had not
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seen any throughout its whole course. The refuse of the St. John
City saw mills was carried away and burnt. The question was one of
economy so far as the saw mills were concerned, and one as to the
maintenance of the navigability of the Ottawa. He was desirous of
protecting the mill owners, but they were bound to protect the
navigation of the Ottawa.

Mr. PICKARD who was imperfectly heard, cited facts to show
it was the slabs and not the sawdust that settled in and injured the
rivers. He would not like to vote in favor of a Bill that would
embarrass valuable industry.

Mr. CURRIER urged that throwing sawdust into the Ottawa had
not improved it. On the Hudson there had been more lumber made
than on the Ottawa, and this work had lasted three quarters of a
century, yet steamboats had no difficulty navigating it today. Slabs,
edgings, and all kinds of rubbish were thrown into this river. As to
the burning of the sawdust in the Ottawa, where water power was
so much used, he thought it hardly possible to do it. It was
impossible to run those mills without first disposing of the sawdust.

It being six o’clock, the House rose.

AFTER RECESS

Mr. CURRIER resumed the debate. He said if this Bill became
law he saw no way for it but to stop all the saw mills in the country.
It was needless to speak of the damage this would be to the country.
The fact was, the only use the rivers would be to the lumbermen
would be to float away their lumber. He would say no more at the
present stage of the Bill.

Mr. McCALLUM said he had known sawdust to float at least
100 miles, and fill up a harbour so that it had to be dredged. He
thought the House should endeavour to prevent such destruction of
navigable waters. He believed the sawdust could be caught at the
mills and prevented from filling up the beds of the rivers, and the
question was, whether this House was going to permit the
lumbermen to destroy the navigation of several rivers in order that
they might have a little money for themselves. Twenty years ago, at
a certain place in the Grand River, the water was 16 feet deep. In
the same place it was now only 6 feet deep. It had been said that
there was a Bill in existence to the same effect as the one before the
House, but if that was not stringent enough in its provisions to
protect the public, this one should be passed.

Mr. SHANLY thought the Bill could be better considered in
Committee. The lumber interest was one of the most important in
Canada, but the navigation of our streams was no less important.
Those who had observed what was taking place in the Ottawa River
must have seen that the navigation was being destroyed, and he
thought that the conflicting interests should be thoroughly
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investigated by a Committee. He thought that it was absolutely
necessary that there should be a law passed which could and would
be enforced. Important as the lumber trade undoubtedly was, the
unobstructed navigation of our rivers was paramount.

Mr. ROBITAILLE thought that if the lumber trade was of such
recognized importance, it would be well to defer the second reading
of the bill until the information which was required could be
obtained.

Mr. RYAN (Montreal West) said the second reading of the bill
was for this evening, and referring it to a Committee would not
interfere with the procuring of the information spoken of. He could
not agree with the hon. gentleman, who argued that because
sawdust sank to the bottom and raised the surface of the river that it
did no damage. To his (Mr. Ryan’s) mind this was one of the very
worst arguments that could be used to oppose the bill. In the spring
it was well known that in many places on the shores of the Ottawa,
the low banks were flooded for miles to the depth of two or three
feet, and for the time such tracts of land were completely useless to
their owners. There was an accumulation of sawdust in the Ottawa
River which was increasing every year which would have the most
injurious effects on the navigation of that stream if some such
measures as the one before the House were not passed. He would be
glad to have the Bill referred to a Committee.

Hon. Mr. MORRIS said this question was not confined solely to
the River Ottawa, but affected a number of rivers and districts
where the inhabitants were unaware that such a measure was before
the Legislature. The House had now been sitting a fortnight, yet he
had not seen this bill reproduced in any of the newspapers. There
was, therefore, no necessity for haste and it would be well to let
people have an opportunity to petition this House on the subject. He
was aware that a great deal of valuable information on the subject
was being prepared and it might be found after all that the sawdust
was not producing such very serious results. The Committee on
Banking and Commerce would, no doubt, give every opportunity to
the House to deal with this most important question and it would be
well to refer the Bill to them.

Mr. MACDONALD (Glengarry) said he was aware that there
was no class of people more enterprising than the lumbermen, and
he admitted that they were doing much good for the country. If he
thought for a moment that the measure before the House was
calculated to injure them, he would not vote for it, but, when he
considered the able gentlemen who composed the Committee on
Railway and Commerce, he was satisfied that the lumbermen would
be dealt with fairly and impartially by them. He admitted the
difficulty of running a saw mill without dropping the sawdust into
the stream. He would vote for the Bill to be referred to the
Committee on Banking and Commerce.

Hon. Mr. CONNELL said this was a most important measure,
and one that directly affected New Brunswick. The Legislature of
that Province had taken up the matter and enacted such a law as was
satisfactory to the people there. If this Bill before the House was
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passed in its present shape its effects would be as the hon. member
for York had observed, to shut up a large number of mills in the
Province. Unless it were remodelled and made less stringent in its
provisions he hoped the Province of New Brunswick would be
exempted from its operations. The Banking and Commerce
Committee might understand very well the difficulties complained
of in Ontario and Quebec, and he hoped they would confine their
legislation to these two Provinces and leave the law which was now
in existence in New Brunswick, and which satisfied the people,
unaltered.

Mr. OLIVER thought if it was the intention of Parliament to
expend millions of money in the improvement of our inland
navigation, it would be advisable to adopt measures to prevent the
obstruction of navigable channels. The time was coming when the
Ottawa River would be navigated by large vessels from the upper
lakes to the St. Lawrence, and care should be taken to prevent it
from being choked with sawdust in the meantime. He would vote
for the second reading of the Bill.

Mr. FORTIN said it was no easy matter to get rid of the sawdust
from a mill driven by water power. Several plans had been tried to
prevent it from falling into the water, but all had failed. He
approved of the suggestion to let the matter stand over for a while
till more information could be obtained on the subject.

Mr. POPE said the hon. gentleman who introduced this Bill, and
those who supported it, proposed to place restrictions on one of the
most important interests in the country. They proposed to add
considerable to the cost of manufacturing lumber and placed the
lumberman in a position where he could not compete with others
who were more favourably situated. Rather than have this Bill
passed the lumbermen should come before this House and offer to
employ dredging machines at their own cost to remove the sawdust
from the rivers. It would be cheaper in the end. He thought that the
law as it stood at present afforded ample protection to navigable
streams. He had no personal interest to serve in this matter, but he
could see that there was a great interest at stake, and one that the
House should be careful about sacrificing.

The Bill was read a second time and referred to Committee.

* * %

DUAL REPRESENTATION

Mr. MILLS moved the second reading of Bill No. 5, entitled An
Act to render members of the Legislative Councils, and Legislative
Assemblies of the Provinces now included or which may hereafter
be included within the Dominion of Canada, ineligible for sitting or
voting in the House of Commons of Canada.

He said that in making this motion he believed that the House
had sufficient experience of the injurious results of the evils which
he proposed to remedy. They had been informed that in starting this
federal system of Government it was important that men of
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experience should be in both Houses. In Ontario it was agreed that
as ‘‘birds in their little nests agreed’” it would be a shame that the
Local Government of Ontario and the Government of the Dominion
should be in antagonism as soon as the new constitution was
adopted. He thought that the excuse for adopting the principle of
dual representation was no longer valid, and that the Government
could now have no objection to giving this measure their support.
Any one who would look at the record of this Government would
see that all their theories had not been correct and that they had
sometimes blundered. In the North West question and in other
matters they made mistakes, but *“While the lamp holds out to burn,
The vilest sinner may return’’ and even this Government while it
existed as a Government would be capable of making very great
progress indeed. Now, there were many considerations why this
measure should be passed.

On a former occasion a measure similar to this had been met with
the objection that while the principle it embodied was very good,
none of the evils said to flow from the system had ever actually
occurred, but it was a sound principle that they should never depart
from a wholesome rule because they could not always see the
mischievous results to flow from such a departure. In the manner in
which the Arbitration matter had been discussed by hon. members
in the Local Governments who also held seats in this House, it
might be seen that gentlemen who had official business to transact
in other Governments could not bring that impartial mind to the
task in this House that they should. There was the case of the
unholy trinity from Ontario who held seats in this House yet their
public duties required them to be elsewhere during the session. It
was, therefore, quite clear that gentlemen holding seats in the
Legislature, especially Cabinet Ministers, should not have seats in
this House. This principle was recognized by the Legislature of
New Brunswick, and to a certain extent by Ontario and Quebec, for
it would be seen a comparatively large number were elected for
both Houses. It was quite evident that the members of Local
Governments who held seats in this Parliament were not
independent. He believed not a single instance could be found—
with the exception of the Treasurer of Ontario—where a member of
the Local Cabinet in this House voted against the Government here.
There was a species of alliance by which this Government gave its
support to the Administrations of Ontario and Quebec, and they in
return had supported the Government here. This was clearly a
violation of the independence of Parliament, and until there was a
complete separation of the Legislative functions of the Local
Legislatures and those of the Parliament of Canada, they would
never be enabled to fairly carry out the principle of Confederation.

It was of the utmost importance that each Legislature should be
composed of distinct and separate persons, and that each should in
the exercise of his power especially guard the interests with which
he was entrusted. It was a matter which the experience of men in
every department of life fully justified, and one that, from the
imperfections of human nature, that if a man was placed in any
position he would attempt to arrogate to himself more power than
was necessary for the discharge of the duties which devolve upon
him. It was of the utmost importance in order that the Local and
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Dominion Legislatures should mutually check each other, that they
should be composed of distinct persons. There were other evils
growing out of this system. It was also absolutely necessary that
each Legislature should have sufficient power to induce men of
ability to enter into it. Here there was a proposal to constitute a
Commission to unify the laws of the Provinces without consulting
the Local Government, and there were no remonstrances from them
against it. Now, any one who would consider the matter for a
moment—would consider it a gross waste of the public funds and a
great breach of public duty to enter into such a matter without
consulting the parties most interested in it.

And why was there no remonstrance? Why did not the Ontario
Government remonstrate with the Government of the Dominion for
entering into this work of codification without consulting them? It
was because they were dependent upon the Dominion Government,
and their existence could be destroyed at any moment by the
Minister of Justice. It was not more certain that spring would
succeed winter than that the Government of Ontario would be swept
out of existence before the end of March. (Laughter.) Hon.
gentleman laughed, but there was nothing more certain. Now, what
would be the position of that government if the Minister of Justice
were a supporter of it as the Minister of Militia was a supporter of
the Government of Quebec? Was it not clear that the Lieutenant-
Governor would be supposed to intrigue against his own Cabinet,
and in favour of those who had given him the position he held, and
could take it from him at any moment. The Government had
devised a system which would make the Lieutenant-Governor a
mere dependent on a gentleman who was antagonistic to him. They
knew very well that the Lieutenant-Governor would not dare to give
his support to those gentlemen who were in opposition to the
Minister of Militia, even though the majority of the House sustained
Her Majesty’s advisers. There was another consideration. This
House had unfortunately been given the veto power over measures
of the Local Legislature. Now he asked if a number of gentlemen
holding seats in both Houses who supported the Government here
and were opposing the Government of the Local Legislature would
not have a strong disposition here to press the Government to abuse
that veto power which they possessed.

These were some of the mischievous results which were certain
to flow out of the present system, apart from those that had been
practically developed during the past three years. They had been
told on a former occasion that a measure of this kind was trenching
on the measures of the people. He could not see how it applied in
this case. Why declare that the judges, minors, aliens and persons
not having certain property qualifications were ineligible to hold
seats in this House? Why did they interfere with the choice of the
people in all these matters? It was because if these things were
permitted abuses would grow up out of them from party and other
considerations. If the election to this House of members of the
Local Legislatures was likely to interfere with the “‘Independence
of Parliament,”” or the independence of the Local Government it
was sufficient consideration for the adoption of this Bill. Certain
hon. members in this House admitted that the principle of the
measure was good, but, they opposed it as emanating from the
Opposition. He thought that he had stated a significant number of
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considerations in favour of this measure to justify the House in its
adoption, and he had no doubt that the motion for the ‘‘second
reading’” would be carried.

Mr. DREW opposed the motion. He did not see why the
principle of compulsion should be applied in any case—why the
people of Ontario and Quebec should not be allowed to send here
whom they pleased. He thought the feeling of the House was that it
was for the Local Legislatures to deal with this matter. The question
was in the hands of the people, whose duty it was to decide whether
they would send the same person to both Houses. He moved the
sixth months’ hoist; i.e., that the Bill be read not now, but six
months hence.

Mr. HARRISON said there was nothing new to be said on this
subject, which had been so often discussed. He still failed to see any
reason why the liberty of the people should be interfered with, or
why men elected to one Legislature should not be eligible for
another. There was no more reason for excluding the member of
one Legislature from the other, than for excluding the member of a
township Council from a county Council. He saw no abstract reason
against the right of the people to send the same men to both
legislatures. (Hear, hear.)

Mr. BODWELL argued that popular rights were restrained in
various ways, such as the property qualification for entrance into
Parliament, and allowing office holders to sit in Parliament. He
contended the example of Nova Scotia, which allowed only single
representation, was deserving of imitation, and that this House had
a right to deal with the question, and that now was the proper time.

Mr. JONES (Leeds North and Greenville North) argued that
the people ought to be allowed to exercise their full rights and
power in regard to the elections for both legislatures. The power of
the people conveyed by the constitution should not be thus early
curtailed, and in the absence of any proved necessity.

Mr. MASSON (Terrebonne) contended that there was no
reason for interfering with the constitution as it stood—no reason
for an Ontario majority, or any majority from other provinces,
thrusting its opinions down the throats of the people of Quebec. The
people should be left in possession of their present privileges till a
good case for a change was made out. He deprecated hasty
alterations of the constitution, and warned members against
invading the rights of other provinces, or coercing their inhabitants
in the manner contemplated by the proposer of this innovation.
(Cheers.)

Mr. MILLS said it had been stated that if the people chose to
elect any gentleman who had a seat in the Local Legislature to
represent them in that House they ought to be allowed to do so. On
the same principle, why should not the people be allowed to elect a
gentleman holding position under the Government? Why should
they not judge of his independence in the one case as well as in the
other. The people were not allowed to elect a person in the one
case, because it was thought it would do mischief. Reference had
been made to the action of the Local Legislatures in the matter.
They were no doubt the proper judges as to who should sit in their
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House, and the Dominion Parliament should also judge for itself. It
had also been said that the Local Governments of Ontario and
Quebec had voted down the principle, but he said that the Ontario
Government had really upheld it, but our Government was
compelled to do as the others did, as it could not place its people in
a different position from those of other provinces. He considered
that great harm resulted from members of the Local Governments
being present in the Dominion House, as he knew many instances in
which they had been compelled to vote against their convictions.
He also remembered reading that an hon. gentleman, now a member
of the Government, had influenced 20 votes by an hour’s speech,
and it was well known how he himself had spoken of his influence.
He concluded by reiterating his opinion as to the good effects to be
derived from the passing of the Bill he had moved.

Mr. BURPEE made a few remarks in support of the measure.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT said he had voted during the last session in
favour of the Bill now before the House, and would have been
prepared to give the same vote on the present occasion, if the
experience over the past year had not led him to believe that it
would be better to let the matter stand for the present. This change
in his mind arose out of the circumstances of the Province of
Quebec. The feeling in Quebec had become more fully declared in
favour of the dual representation than it had been a year before. A
year ago the Bill for rendering ineligible members of the Local
Legislature to sit in the Dominion Parliament, had been lost by
about 15. This year it had been lost by 24. Referring to the fact that
in Quebec they had two distinct races, whose representation had
been protected by official enactments in the British North America
Act, 1867, and as representing a portion of the minority in that
province, he thought it a great advantage to have present in the
Dominion Parliament, gentlemen of French Canadian origin, who
form a majority of the Government of Quebec. They naturally
believed that the interests they had most at heart received a certain
amount of indirect protection at the hands of that House, but he
thought it useful that members of the Local Governments should
have seats in that House.

At the same time if he could see that the independence of the
House was seriously endangered by these gentlemen being there, he
confessed that the greater importance of freeing the House from all
improper influence should outweigh the local consideration. There
was no doubt that there was a connection between the Dominion
Government and those of the provinces, which had arisen naturally
from the circumstances attending Confederation. The Governments
of Ontario and Quebec had naturally harmonized in political views
with the Dominion Government, but that state of things could not
be expected to continue forever, and in time to come there might be
a Conservative Government in the provinces, with a Liberal one at
Ottawa, or the reverse. It was quite clear that under these
circumstances the influence of the Dominion Government over the
Local would amount to nothing, but at the same time the
responsibility towards the people of the country would rather be
increased, as there would be a double check. He could not help
noticing the reference made to Nova Scotia, and he thought it was
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not clear that that province would not have been better off had its
Government been represented here.

For instance the preceding night a case had occurred with which
he had been taken to task by the hon. member for Cumberland on
account of the view he had expressed, in which if a member of the
Provincial Government had been present he could have explained
the case fully. He thought the presence of members of Local
Governments in that House was by no means open to the same
objection as that of persons holding places of emolument under the
Government, and if the presence of members of the Governments
was not injurious, still less was that of ordinary members.
Confederation was still an experiment, and as they were then on the
eve of the Local Elections in Ontario and Quebec, when the people
could easily make their wishes known, he thought it would be
unwise to alter the system. Having voted in favour of the Bill last
year, and having for the reasons he had mentioned come to the
conclusion that his duty required that he should now give a different
vote, he had ventured to delay the House a short time to explain his
reasons for the change.

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North) said his position was
somewhat different from that of the hon. gentleman who had just
spoken. When he sat on the other side of the House he had felt it his
duty to vote against a proposition submitted by the member for
Bothwell, but he was now free from every influence except that of
duty to his constituents as an independent member of the House. He
intended to vote as he had voted before, for the reason that as a
Liberal, as a reformer, he did not desire to restrict the free choice of
the people, or attempt to dictate who they should or should not elect
as their representatives. It seemed to him that if the people were
intelligent, and they were intelligent in this Dominion, they would
apply a remedy if any evil was found to result from dual election.
He held that the whole theory of disqualifying and qualifying laws,
and in fact of all restrictive laws, in these matters was wrong in
principle, and an interference with the exercise of the franchise. It is
true that the experience of the Mother Country as well as our own
had justified restrictions and disqualifications in particular cases
where abuses had been really found to exist.

What he complained of on the part of his friend the member for
Bothwell, was that he pushed his theories and philosophic views too
far for the practical age and country in which he lived. He believed
that in the new experiment of Confederation, it was no objection
that the governments of the Dominion and provinces were in accord
and working together harmoniously; it was rather an advantage. He
feared his hon. friend had gone a little further than the expression
he had used implied, that of securing the ‘‘Independence of
Parliament.”” It might be desirable in a party view to be able to
detach the powerful influence of the different Provincial
Governments from the Government of the Dominion. He, however,
as one of those responsible to his constituents and the country for
the new system of Government, was determined to endeavour to
make the experiment a success, and until British North America
was consolidated, until all the provinces were working under the
new constitution, he had no desire to add to the antagonisms and
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hostilities between the several provinces arising out of the
circumstances preceding the Union. When an abuse was found,
when measures of public utility were delayed by reason of the
presence of members of the Local Governments in that House, then
he would yield to the force of that argument, but at present, having
listened to the reasons given in support of the Bill, he had been
unable to see during four years of most successful government that
had elapsed since Confederation, any sufficient reason for adding to
or modifying the constitution in that respect.

He thought there was great force in the argument that as they
were on the eve of new elections, it would be better to await the
expression of the opinion of the people, than to assume by any
action taken now that a change was desirable. The change in the
vote of the Quebec Assembly was a proof that the first view of the
question, which seemed to have carried the Local Legislatures of
Nova Scotia and New Brunswick, had changed, and that change
was a strong argument that the Dominion Parliament should
hesitate before attempting to override the views of the provinces.
The question had been discussed in the Ontario Legislature, and the
member for West Durham, with all his great ability and eloquence,
had failed to convince that body that it was inadvisable to allow
members of that House to sit in the Dominion Parliament, and he
was inclined to think that in the new Assembly there would be a
strong disposition to repeal the Act which prevents members from
the Ontario Government from sitting in this House. A very
important matter had been discussed, namely, the division of
property between the two provinces, and everyone must admit the
very great benefit that had been derived in that discussion, both
before this House and in the committees, from the presence of hon.
gentlemen from Ontario who had given their special attention to the
matter, and were able to furnish valuable information which would
not otherwise have been obtained. He was therefore not prepared to
support the measure of the member for Bothwell, until it could be
shown that abuses really existed which a restrictive law alone could
prevent.

Hon. Mr. TUPPER would not have spoken on this occasion but
for a remark made by the member for Lambton on the passage of
the reply to the address from the Throne, which had now been
reiterated by the member for Bothwell, as to a remark which they
alleged he had made when addressing his constituents on the
occasion of his recently soliciting re-election. They alleged that he
had then boasted of the great influence he had over members from
Nova Scotia in that House, and he thought it was due to those
members to state that the expression he had used would in no way
bear the construction that had been put upon it. If he had not replied
to the remark of the member for Lambton when it was uttered, it
was only because he did not consider it necessary, but as the matter
had now been repeated he thought he ought to make some
explanation.

Mr. BLAKE rose to a point of order, maintaining that as the
member for Cumberland had not replied to the member for
Lambton at the time, and as the member for Lambton was not in his
seat, he (Hon. Mr. Tupper) had no right to bring up the matter then.
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Hon. Mr. TUPPER acknowledged the call to order, and said he
would simply confine himself to the repetition of the statement as
made by the member for Bothwell. In his address to his constituents
he had explained that when his hon. friend the Secretary of State for
the Provinces had felt it his duty to change his attitude with regard
to Confederation he had been proud to become his humble follower,
and when that hon. gentleman felt it to be his duty to assist to work
out the great institution which he found it impossible to oppose, he
felt it his duty to assist him. He had never said anything to lead
anyone to suppose he wielded any undue influence over the
members from Nova Scotia. The attitude of hostility taken
invariably by the leading members of the Opposition as regards
Nova Scotian interests left no option to the representatives of that
province but that of supporting the administration. Having watched
the operation of the dual representation, he thought it would ill
become him to endeavour to force the views and principles of Nova
Scotia members upon the unwilling members for the great
provinces of Ontario and Quebec. The success of Confederation had
been greater in the provinces enjoying dual representation. There
had been more harmony between the Government of the Dominion
and the Local Governments of the provinces enjoying this system,
than had existed as regard the other provinces. The country gained
much from having in both Legislatures the same men, as respects
greater harmony between the different portions and governments of
the Federation. He would heartily oppose this unnecessary motion.

Mr. BLAKE said he was willing to vindicate the part of himself
and the Opposition with regard to Nova Scotia. They had freely
consented to all measures consistent with its full rights, but to
nothing more. But they had not thought it their duty to do anything
proper in an improper way. With regard to the alleged advantage of
local ministers’ attendance in this House, there was another side to
the picture. Now it was argued that the progress of Confederation
was accelerated because the Local Governments were represented
here. Suppose they disagreed with the Federal Ministry. In that
case, the cause of Confederation might be as much retarded or
damaged as it was said it was now benefited.

Mr. CARMICHAEL explained that in the Nova Scotia
Legislature he had opposed the Bill of Dr. Tupper, to abolish dual
representation, and was quite consistent in his intention to oppose
the present motion. He had no desire to deprive Ontario and Quebec
of the privilege of representation in both Legislatures.

The amendment was then put to the vote.

YEAS

Messieurs
Ault Beaty
Bellerose Bertrand
Blanchet Bowell
Bown Burton
Cameron (Peel) Caron
Cartier (Sir George-E.) Cartwright
Cayley Chauveau
Cimon Colby
Crawford (Brockville) Crawford (Leeds South)
Dobbie Drew
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Dufresne

Ferguson

Galt (Sir A. T.)
Gendron

Grant

Grover

Heath

Howe

Jackson

Keeler

Langevin

Lawson

McDonald (Middlesex West)
McCallum

McDougall (Trois-Riviéres)
Moffatt

Morrison (Niagara)
Perry

Pope

Renaud

Ryan (Montreal West)
Simard

Stephenson

Sylvain

Tourangeau

Walsh

Willson

Anglin
Béchard
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Dunkin

Fortin

Gaucher

Gibbs

Gray

Harrison

Holmes

Irvine

Jones (Leeds North and Grenville North)
Lacerte

Lapum

Little

Masson (Terrebonne)
McDougall (Lanark North)
McKeagney

Morris

Munroe

Pinsonneault

Pouliot

Robitaille

Shanly

Simpson

Street

Tilley

Tupper

Webb

Wright (Ottawa County) - 74

NAYS

Messieurs

Barthe
Blake

Bodwell

Bourassa

Burpee

Carmichael

Coffin

Costigan

Delorme

Forbes

Fournier

Hagar

Kempt

Magill

McDougall (Renfrew South)
Mills

Oiver

Pearson

Redford

Ross (Prince Edward)
Ross (Wellington Centre)
Scatcherd

Smith

Stirton

Thompson (Ontario North)
Wells

Wright (York West)
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Bolton

Bowman

Cameron (Huron South)
Cheval

Connell

Coupal

Ferris

Fortier

Godin

Holton

MacFarlane

McConkey

McMonies

Morison (Victoria North)
Paquet

Pelletier

Ross (Dundas)

Ross (Victoria, N. S.)
Rymal

Scriver

Snider

Thompson (Haldimand)
Wallace

Workman

Young - 54

The main question, as amended, then carried, and the Bill was
ordered to be read this day six months.

On the motion of the Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER, the

House adjourned at 10.35.
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HOUSE OF COMMONS

Wednesday, March 1, 1871

The SPEAKER took the chair at three o’clock.

Prayers

The SPEAKER announced the names of members appointed to
serve as the General Committee of Elections for the present session;
and some petitions were read and referred.

* * %

NEW BILLS

Mr. SAVARY moved for leave to introduce a Bill to amend
section 2 of the Insolvent Act of 1869.—Carried.

Mr. BROWN moved for leave to introduce a Bill to authorize
the village of Trenton to impose and collect harbour dues and for
other purposes.—Carried.

* * %

REPORTS

Hon. Mr. DUNKIN presented the report of the Minister of
Agriculture under the Census Act.

* * %

MESSAGES

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER presented a message from
His Excellency containing a copy of the agreement between the
Imperial and Canadian Governments relative to the Manitoba Act,
with copies, in draft, of the Bill presented to the Imperial
Parliament on the subject. Also copies of the agreement between
the Dominion Governments and Governments of Ontario and
Quebec, with other documents respecting the award of the
arbitrators.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON thought the Minister of Militia the other
day promised to announce the action proposed to be taken by the
Government on this subject.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said if the hon. gentleman
looked at the papers he would discover the action of the
Government with regard to the Arbitration. There was an Order in

Council by His Excellency which formed part of the documents
now submitted.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON suggested the reading of the Order in
Council, because it was the essence of the communications.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER: No objection whatever.
(Cheers and laughter.)

The Clerk then read an Order of Council of date 27th February,
concurring with the following report of the Hon. Minister of Justice
in reference to the Arbitration between the Provinces of Ontario and
Quebec:

In the matter of the arbitration under the British North America
Act, 1867, between the Provinces of Ontario and Quebec referred to
the undersigned, he has the honour to report that under the 142nd
section of the said Act the following arbitrators were appointed, viz:
The Hon. David Lewis Macpherson by the Government of Ontario,
the Hon. Charles Dewey Day by the Government of Quebec, and
the Hon. John Hamilton Gray, (of St. John, New Brunswick), by the
Government of Canada, his appointment dating from March 21st,
1868. That by a despatch from the Lieutenant-Governor of Quebec
to the Secretary of State for the Provinces, bearing date the 11th
July last, an order of the Executive Council of that province was
transmitted for the consideration of His Excellency the Governor
General which Order in Council sets forth that: Whereas the Hon.
Mr. Gray has resided for more than one year, and has become a
resident in the Province of Ontario, and has become thereby
disqualified to act as such arbitrator, it has become the duty of this
province to object to the said Hon. Mr. Gray acting as such
arbitrator. That by a despatch of the same date, the Lieutenant-
Governor transmitted two letters dated 9th July from the Hon.
Charles Dewey Day addressed to the Provincial Secretary of
Quebec resigning his appointment as Arbitrator under the section
above cited.

That by a subsequent despatch of the 19th July the Lieutenant-
Governor submitted a copy of an order of his Council accepting the
resignation of Mr. Day as the Arbitrator named for the Province of
Quebec. That by a letter dated the 5th September, Messrs. Gray and
Macpherson, the other two Arbitrators, transmitted a copy of the
award made by them under the said Act, stating that such an award
had been made in duplicate, and sent also to the Governments of
Ontario and Quebec, that the award is signed only by Messrs. Gray
and Macpherson, and after reciting that the three Arbitrators were
appointed by the several Governments as above mentioned,
proceeds to state that ‘‘the said Arbitrators having taken upon
themselves the burthen of this said Arbitration, the said John
Hamilton Gray and David Lewis Macpherson being a majority of
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the said Arbitrators, do hereby award, order, and adjudge of and
upon the premises as follows, that is to say, &c., &c., &c., that by a
despatch from the Lieutenant-Governor of Quebec, dated the 14th
September, a copy of an order of the Executive Council of Quebec
was transmitted, protesting for the reasons therein given against any
force or validity being given to the pretended judgment or award of
the said two Arbitrators by the Federal Authority, and advising of
the intention of the Government to appeal for redress and justice in
every constitutional mode, which it is the privilege of the British
subjects under the Crown to exercise when suffering under injustice
or wrong from the hands of any.”’

That by a subsequent despatch, dated 22nd December last, from
the Lieutenant-Governor he transmitted an address from the
Legislative Council and Legislative Assembly of the Province of
Quebec, to His Excellency the Governor General, setting out that
the Hon. Mr. Gray having taken up his residence at Ottawa, the
Government of Quebec had deemed it incumbent to protest against
his continuing in office, and to express their conviction that the
decision of the Arbitrators should be unanimous; that the Arbitrator
appointed by the Province of Quebec resigned his office; that such
resignation was accepted, and that the Government of Quebec at the
same time protested against any ulterior action on the part of the
Commission which was thus rendered incomplete; that Messrs.
Gray and Macpherson notwithstanding such representation, entered
upon the examination of the questions submitted by the two
provinces without the Province of Quebec being in any way
represented, and made their award against which the Lieutenant-
Governor of Quebec protested as unjust and illegal; that the
injustice of the pretended award is evident from the facts stated in
the address; that the pretended award is absolutely illegal, null and
void, for the reason therein set forth, and as having been rendered
by two Arbitrators, who, by the resignation of their colleagues,
remained without power or jurisdiction: That, therefore, the
intention of the “‘British North America Act’’ had not been carried
out, and no title has been conferred upon either Province in relation
to the credits, properties, and assets, which it was the duty of the
said Arbitrators to apportion and divide between the two Provinces.
That the Province of Quebec can neither submit to its property
being disposed of, or to any sum whatever being exacted from it,
nor can it accept any property credits or assets in virtue of the
pretended award, and will resist by all the means within its power
the execution of the said pretended award, claiming as it does, that
justice be done, and that its rights as represented by the British
North America Act be maintained, they therefore pray that His
Excellency the Governor General will be pleased to adopt such
measures as are best calculated to ensure justice to that Province.

* * %

THE CASE STANDS THUS

The Government of Ontario maintains the validity of the award.
The Government of Quebec contends that it is altogether illegal and
void, and declares its intention of appealing for redress and justice
in every constitutional mode, and the Legislature of Quebec also
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protesting against its validity asks the Governor General to adopt
measures to protect the rights of that Province. Now the
Government of Canada has no power or means of interfering
between the parties, or of enforcing the award as valid or setting it
aside as invalid, or of granting the means of redress or the measure
of protection sought for by the Legislature of Quebec. It is for the
Government of Ontario if it desires to enforce the award to take
such steps as it may be advised that the law allows for that purpose,
and it is for the Province of Quebec to take the necessary legal steps
to resist any action on the part of that of Ontario. If the question of
the validity of the award becomes a matter of litigation either
Province will have the power of carrying it by appeal from the
decision of any interior tribunal to the Judicial Committee of the
Privy Council, as the Court of last resort. If the Governments of the
two Provinces were to agree in a statement of special case with the
view of submitting the question of the validity of the award to the
Judicial Committee, it would be the duty of His Excellency the
Governor General in being prayed so to do to transmit such special
case to the Secretary of State for the Colonies with a request that it
should be submitted to such Judicial Committee for their opinion
under the fourth clause of the Imperial Act, 3 and 4 William, 4th,
chapter 41.

If the two Governments do not agree upon a joint submission of
the case it will be in the power of either Government to pray Her
Majesty to refer the case as stated by it for the opinion of the
Judicial Committee. As it is obvious that if the Governor in Council
were to assume to decide the questions in dispute the Province
against whom such decision would be given would not accept or
submit to it, and as such decision would have no legal force
whatever, the undersigned recommends that no expression of
opinion be given by His Excellency in Council; and for the same
reasons the undersigned refrains from making any report on the
legal questions under present circumstances, and until the questions
raised respecting the award are settled by judicial decision the
undersigned is of opinion that no action with respect to it can
properly be taken by the Governor in Council.

(SIGNED,)
JOHN A. MACDONALD

Hon. Mr. HOLTON reminded the Hon. Minister of Militia that
he had been kind enough to volunteer any information the House
might want on the subject.

SEVERAL MEMBERS: En francais!

The papers having been read in French,

Hon. Mr. HOLTON said at least one important paper relating to
this subject was not included. This Order in Council bore the date
February 27.
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The report of the Minister of Justice on which it was founded was
dated 25th February. A payment to the Provinces became due in
January. He assumed it was made in some form, and that the
Government being in possession of the award, some decision must
have been come to prior to that payment. The order upon which it
was made must be an Order in Council, without which the papers
were not complete.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said he had much pleasure in
informing the hon. gentleman there was no such paper. The
Government had taken no action on the award. The payments were
made to the Provinces on the same footing as formerly.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON: How could they have been made in the
face of the award without the Government deciding to act on it or
disregard it?

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER: That was the fact. In
January the award was in possession of the Government, as also the
protest from the Quebec Government. The Canadian Government
thought proper irrespective of the award to make the payments as
before.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON: There is no record of such decision.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER: The fact of the payment was
as good.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS repeated this statement adding
that the old payments had to be made till an order was given to the
contrary.

MOTIONS

Mr. BROUSSEAU moved that the correspondence between the
Imperial and Canadian Governments relative to the Manitoba
Bill,—and the correspondence between the Dominion Government
and the Governments of Ontario and Quebec, with other documents
respecting the award of the Arbitrators, be referred to the Joint
Committee of both Houses on the Printing of Parliament.—Carried.

Mr. CAMERON (Huron South) moved that a Return be laid
before this House shewing the number of insurance companies
which have made the deposits required by 31 Vic., Cap. 47, up to
the date of said Return; distinguishing between Canadian and
foreign companies, and between fire, marine, life and accidents
companies; specifying the name of the Company, when
incorporated, where the head office in Canada is located, the
amount deposited under the provisions in the above, or any other
Act, when deposited, whether for the benefit of Canadian Policy
holders or for that of Policy holders generally; also the numbers and
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names of Companies that have ceased to do business in Canada and
have withdrawn such deposits, if any.—Carried.

* % %

QUESTIONS

Mr. RENAUD asked whether it is the intention of the
Government to make, during the present session, any change in the
Tariff under which the consumers of flour in the Maritime
Provinces are the principal sufferers.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS: | hope at an early day to state the
intentions of the Government.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT: To make a flowery statement. (Laughter.)

Hon. Mr. SMITH (Westmorland) asked whether it is the
intention of the Government to make provision for the uniformity of
the laws relative to property and civil rights under the authority of
the 94th clause of the British North America Act.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER replied Government did not
intend to do more than was done the other day, namely, submit to
the consideration of the House the preliminary report of Hon. Mr.
Gray.

Hon. Mr. CONNELL asked whether in the account transmitted
to the British Government for the expenses incurred by Canada, in
consequence of Fenian raids, the expense incurred by New
Brunswick for like services previous to Confederation was
included.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER replied the Government has
transmitted to the Imperial Government the claims for indemnity
for any losses that may have been incurred either by the Dominion
Government, any of the Provinces, or any inhabitant in any part.

Mr. THOMPSON (Haldimand) asked whether it is the
intention of the Government to re-establish the money order office
at the Indiana Post Office, Province of Ontario; if so, when; if not,
why not?

Hon. Mr. TUPPER: The office was suspended in consequence
of the inability of the Postmaster to carry on the business correctly.
The Government, unhappily, were not more fortunate in the
appointment of a successor, for the same difficulty arose. A new
appointment had been made, and measures were now in progress to
re-establish the money order office at that place.

Mr. FORTIN asked whether the government have received any
communications from the Governments of Ontario or Quebec,
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respecting a proposed settlement of the surplus debts and assets of
the late Province of Canada.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER replied that neither the
Government nor any of the members of the Government had
received any communication on the subject from the Government
of Ontario, but some of the members of the Dominion Government
had received communications from members of the Quebec
Cabinet, suggesting a mode of settling the difficulty. It was this:
that the Dominion Government should assume the surplus. (Hear,
hear.)

Hon. Mr. HOLTON: Is the record of this application among the
papers submitted?

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER: No, there is no record; it is
simply a fact.

INSURANCE RETURNS

Mr. CAMERON (Huron South) moved for an order of the
House for a return of Insurance Companies which had made
deposits required by the law enacted last year. He said that there
was a great deal of doubt in the minds of policy holders, especially
in the constituency he represented, as to whether they were
sufficiently protected by that Act. Within the last year or so, a large
number of foreign insurance companies had failed, and policy
holders were victimized. He asked for these returns because he
understood that the Government proposed to introduce a measure
affecting insurance companies. He hoped it would be such a one as
would more effectually protect policy holders than the one now in
operation. The list of companies which had complied with the Act
and deposited the amounts required with the Government, he
understood had been published in the Canada Gazette. It might as
well have been published in the court journal of Madagascar, if
such a journal was ever issued, as in the Canada Gazette. It would
be much better to publish that list in some influential newspaper—
the Globe for instance—and then the public might know which
companies had complied with the requirements of the Act.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS said there could be no objection
to furnishing the information required. He took the opportunity of
saying that, notwithstanding the very great abuse which had been
heaped upon the Government for introducing and passing that Act,
he had reason to belileve that it gave the public substantial
protection. The Government would not be turned from increasing
that protection to the public, notwithstanding this abuse. Those who
made a business of denouncing the administration had assailed the
measure as one for increasing the funds in the Treasury. (Hear,
hear.) He was in a position to say that during the past year the
Government had been embarrassed by the operations of that Act—
that they did not want money, and money was sometimes paid them
which they did not want and would rather not be embarrassed with.
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When reference was made to the Act now in operation, and
complaint was made that it did not give sufficient protection, his
hon. friend must remember that the Opposition assailed it when it
was introduced for containing a provision which afforded that very
protection.

Mr. GIBBS thought that if the Act was intended to be for the
benefit of Canadian policy holders, the funds in the hands of the
Government should be held solely for their benefit.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON said that if the object of the Bill were to
bring money into the treasury it had been exceedingly well
contrived to attain that object, and his own impression was that had
really been the primary object. If, on the other hand, the protection
of Canadian policy holders had been the object in view, it had been
most unfortunately framed.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS would postpone the discussion of
the merits of the case until a future occasion when the Bill proposed
to be submitted had been brought down. If the hon. gentleman then
found that he could in any way improve what was proposed by the
Government he would have full opportunity of endeavouring to do
s0. He admitted that there was a distinction between companies as it
had been found impossible to treat mutual companies as other
companies were treated, and the point was one deserving of the
greatest consideration. The deposits made by mutual companies
were not entirely for the benefit of Canadian policy holders, but
those made by other companies were, and in a recent case in which
the position of an insurance company had caused some alarm, the
deposit was held entirely for the benefit and protection of Canadian
insurers.

The motion was carried.

* k% %

NORTH WEST

The next motion before the House was one which had been made
by Mr. Blake, that the House should resolve itself into a Committee
of the Whole to consider certain resolutions on the subject of the
admission of Rupert’s Land and the North Western Territory into
the Union, and the Legislation in reference to the same.

Mr. BLAKE said that the matter to which the motion he had
made had reference, being affected by the paper which had been
brought down that day he thought it would not be advisable to
proceed with the matter until those papers had been printed and
placed in the hands of the members, and he proposed therefore to
let the matter stand over.

Motion allowed to stand.

* * *
LIQUOR INSPECTION FUND

Mr. BOURASSA moved that on Monday next the House should
go into Committee of the Whole to consider certain resolutions for
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the creation of a fund to be denominated “*The Liquor Inspection
Fund,”” &c.

Hon. Mr. MORRIS said that in the interval preceding the day
named, he would consider the resolutions and be prepared to state
his opinion of the subject.

Motion carried.

* % %

HARBOUR OF REFUGE AT RIMOUSKI

Mr. FOURNIER moved an address for copies of all
correspondence, Orders in Council, and reports in connection with a
survey, made with a view to the construction of a Harbour of
Refuge at Rimouski, with an estimated cost of the harbor. He then
addressed the House in French on the subject, pointing out how
important it was that such a harbour should be constructed, as
steamers of the Allan line and others would be able to go in there all
the year round, and also showing that it was absolutely necessary in
the interest of the safe navigation of the St. Lawrence.

Hon. Mr. LANGEVIN replied in French, explaining the steps
which the Government had taken in the matter.

Mr. FORTIN said he considered the matter was one of very
great importance. He had seen, with pleasure, the intention of the
Government to construct a Harbour of Refuge in some part of the
Lower St. Lawrence. From what the Minister of Public Works has
stated, it seems that on the recommendation of the Chief Engineer
of the Intercolonial Railway, a survey had been made about
Rimouski, and no one could doubt the great necessity for such a
work when it was remembered that from the entrance into the River
up to Quebec there was not a single harbour (except one on the
North shore called the Seven Islands, which was altogether out of
the way) where a vessel could be safely anchored. When the
Intercolonial Railway should be in operation, connecting the
Provinces of Nova Scotia and New Brunswick with the centre of
Canada, such a harbour would be especially important and he
thought it was their duty to see whether they could not assist nature
and find some place where the vessels could stop in safety, some 12
or 20 hours before they could reach Quebec, where they could put
mails and passengers ashore and send them to the South and to the
West. This Harbour of Refuge at Rimouski or the neighbourhood,
he did not care where, would not only be useful as establishing a
Port on the Lower St. Lawrence, but would also be of great benefit
to the Northern parts of New Brunswick, as the people of that part
of the country would thereby be brought nearer, not only to Europe,
but also to Ontario and Quebec.

Persons or goods from Europe destined for New Brunswick
could be landed at this harbour and at once transported to their
destinations by means of the Intercolonial Railway at a less cost,
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and very much more speedily than by any other route. It was well
known that it was difficult to get any of the steamers plying
between New York and England to call at St. John, N.B., as
although it was a fine port it was somewhat out of the way of the
track of those steamers. Halifax was not so situated, and no doubt
when it became the terminus of the Intercolonial Railway steamers
would call there more frequently than at present, but St. John could
scarcely ever get a mail steamer to call there. The whole Northern
part of New Brunswick was without a steamer, while if there were a
harbour where vessels could call safely at all times of the day or
night, that want would be supplied. He thought the Government
could certainly not be blamed for having had an exploration to
ascertain whether a Harbour of Refuge could be constructed in the
neighbourhood in question.

Mr. ROBITAILLE: The Government were right in getting a
survey or exploration made of the harbour and vicinity of
Rimouski, with the view of building a Harbour of Refuge. The want
of such accommodation has been felt at all times for steamers as
well as for sailing vessels; for schooners as well as for ships sailing
on the gulf and river St. Lawrence. Also, there is no doubt, as the
Hon. Minister of Public Works has said, that a harbour in that
vicinity, in connection with the Intercolonial Railway, would
shorten the distance by several hours between Europe and Canada;
but if the Government is in earnest on this point, they should extend
the explorations further down. | am sure that when such an
important subject is in question local interest will not be allowed to
come into play, and that the Government well understand that the
public interest will be better served by widening their sphere of
information. A survey of the north shore of Baie des Chaleurs will
show that the coast is free of ice, free of fog, and offers easy access
to steamers for the twelve months of the year in the harbour
between New Carlisle and Paspebiac points—that mails and
passengers from Europe landed there in winter as well as in summer
will reach, by the Intercolonial Railway, Montreal or Toronto in
less time than if landed at Rimouski or Halifax.

You remember, Mr. Speaker, that the Chief Engineer of the
Intercolonial Railway, in his report, recommended that the harbour
of Shippigan should be selected for a winter as well as a summer
harbour, because it was the shortest route from Europe. At the time
of this recommendation people in the vicinity knew well that
Shippigan was an impossibility as a winter harbour, because it lies
on the south shore of Baie des Chaleurs, and the North winds,
always prevalent in winter time, keep the shore blocked with ice
and inaccessible. For the same reason the South Shore of the St.
Lawrence River is inaccessible in winter, while from the same
cause the North Shore of Baie des Chaleurs is free from ice and
quite accessible at all times. | have lived in Baie des Chaleurs for
the last thirteen years, and have never seen ice to prevent a steamer
from coming to Paspebiac or New Carlisle in the coldest months of
winter, and | seize this opportunity of calling the attention of the
Government to this fact. | commend the Hon. Minister of Public
Works for the lively interest he has taken to obtain all information
possible with a view to establish a Harbour of Refuge at Rimouski
or its vicinity, and | am very anxious to enlist his solicitude for Baie
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des Chaleurs, considering that it offers a harbour accessible at all
seasons. Therefore, | trust that, keeping in view the general interests
of the Dominion, the Government will order the necessary
exploration and survey of the Harbour of Paspebiac and New
Carlisle as soon as possible.

Mr. WORKMAN while admitting the importance of the subject,
and hoping it would have all the consideration it deserved, trusted
that the Government would not expend a large amount of money
merely to increase the value of the property of individuals, which
was certainly supposed to be the case in the matter under
discussion. Nothing but a very heavy expenditure would result in
constructing a Harbour at Rimouski, as there was no depth of water,
and it would be most absurd to attempt to construct a harbour there
at all. He hoped that before any expenditure was incurred, a reliable
survey would be made, and full particulars obtained, and that favour
would have no weight in the selection of the locality.

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North) said that he always
listened with some apprehension, when he found the Hon. Minister
of Public Works, and the member for Gaspé and Bonaventure
agreeing on projects for improvements in the part of the country in
question.

Hon. Mr. LANGEVIN said that he had already explained the
matter fully to the House in French, but as the hon. gentleman, the
member for Lanark, might not have fully understood him, he would
be glad to repeat his statement in English, although he might not
speak so clearly in a language which was not his own. In replying to
the hon. member for Bellechasse, he had told him he was mistaken
in supposing that the Government had undertaken the survey for the
purpose of making a Harbour of Refuge at Rimouski, a harbour
which could receive vessels during the winter. That was not the
intention of the Government. A survey had been undertaken on a
report of the Chief Engineer of the Intercolonial Railway that the
railway approached the St. Lawrence at Rimouski for the last time
before taking its course into the interior of New Brunswick.
Another reason for selecting Rimouski was that Father Point, the
point where steamers between Quebec and Europe received or
landed their pilots, was only a few miles further down. A survey
had, therefore, been ordered, the engineers had worked during the
summer and had returned a short time ago, and were then preparing
their plans and a report would be made to the Department in due
time. The object, however, was not to make a Port of Refuge, but to
provide a place where vessels could discharge their cargoes onto the
railway and receive cargoes from the railway, and where the
European steamers could land their passengers, baggage, and mails,
so that a train could be in readiness for the East and West, by which
means they could reach Quebec twelve hours, Montreal eighteen or
twenty hours and Toronto many hours earlier than they would if the
steamers had to go to Quebec, and so that steamers would not be
delayed by fog as they were now. That was a very important object,
and the Government had thought it right to order a survey.

As to the amount which the hon. member for Bellechasse had
spoken of it was out of the question. He (Hon. Mr. Langevin) had

March 1, 1871

spoken to one of the Engineers on the subject, who had told him
that no estimate had been made, but that that sum was out of all
proportion. The hon. member for Bonaventure had raised another
question in suggesting the Baie des Chaleurs as a landing place
which would be available in winter. The survey that had been made
had not been for the purpose of finding a Winter Harbour. That was
another question altogether, and the hon. gentleman must see that a
harbour in the Baie des Chaleurs would not prevent mariners from
navigating the St. Lawrence as they did now, and therefore a
harbour at Rimouski would still be necessary. If it could be shown
to the Government that at any particular place a harbour could be
constructed which would be available all the year round, the
Government would then consider the matter and decide whether a
survey should be made, but that should not interfere with the
Rimouski survey, as the objects were entirely different.

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North) in resuming, said the
explanation the hon. gentleman had made was so far satisfactory, in
that it showed that nothing had as yet been done beyond the making
of an investigation as to the practicability of the construction of the
harbour at the place mentioned. The construction of a Harbour of
Refuge involved a very large expenditure, and certainly no
complaints or demands had ever been heard from the people in the
neighbourhood concerned as to the want of such a work, and he
thought that when vessels had reached that point it might be
considered that their voyages were approaching completion, and
that they did not need a Harbour of Refuge. When the matter was
first spoken of he thought on the face of it, it looked as if an affair
which had occurred some time ago and which was well known was
about to be repeated. He referred to what had been known as *‘the
Baby Jobs.”” Large sums of money had then been expended in the
construction of works from which no benefit had ever been derived,
and which were now worthless, and no doubt the arguments urged
in favour of the construction of those works had been equally strong
with those now adduced.

It seemed to him, however, that the Minister of Public Works had
presented the matter in a new light. It appeared now that the
intention was that on the completion of the Intercolonial Railway
steamers would land their contents and transfer them to that
Railway at Rimouski or some other point in the St. Lawrence. His
impression hitherto had always been that it was intended to have a
Railway to Halifax and that there the transfer from the Ocean
steamers would take place. It would almost seem that the Minister
of Public Works despaired of the completion of the Railway for a
number of years, or of its practicability, or else of its being used
when it was completed. He did not object to surveys being made in
order that Government might ascertain the practicability of projects
recommended for their consideration, but he thought it was as yet
altogether too soon to decide what particular point on the
Intercolonial Railway ought to be the point at which ships and rail
should meet, and he trusted the House would not allow the
Government to incur any expenditure in the matter until something
more was known in regard to the Intercolonial Railway, and when
that road was almost built it would be quite time enough to decide
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at what point mails and passengers would be most beneficially
landed.

Mr. FORTIN asked to be allowed to add a few words with
reference to remarks made by the hon. gentleman who had last
spoken. From what had been said the House might think that he
(Mr. Fortin) was peculiarly interested in the construction of the
Harbour at Rimouski, and he desired to state that Gaspé would not
profit by that harbour, as their vessels were only small fishing
vessels, and they had already shelter for them at the Island of St.
Barnaby. He had not spoken in favour of the harbour in the interests
of his constituents, but as a member of that House, and for the
general good of the Dominion, and he might add that the harbour
would be a much greater advantage to the people of Ontario than to
the people of Gaspé. He had not objected to appropriations of
money for the construction of Harbours of Refuge in the upper
lakes, because he considered those harbours necessary for the safe
navigation of the lakes, and he was in favor of the harbour at
Rimouski on similar grounds.

The motion was carried.

* * %

REMUNERATION OF POSTMASTERS

Mr. STEPHENSON moved an address for copies of
correspondence with reference to the change made since
Confederation, in the rates of remuneration of Postmasters
throughout the Dominion, and in the mode of that remuneration.

Hon. Mr. TUPPER stated that he was instructed by the
Postmaster General that the effect of the Act reducing the rates of
postage had been a considerable decrease of revenue, but that the
largely increased number of letters transmitted, was rapidly
increasing the Revenue on which the remuneration of Postmasters
was made, and in order to meet the decrease in remunerations
which had resulted from the reduced rates of postage, a commission
of 40 per cent was allowed to Postmasters instead of 30 per cent,
the previous rate, and by that means the Postmaster General
expected to prevent any reduction in the remuneration given to
Postmasters. He further said that there was no correspondence that
could be brought down which would give any information further
than was contained in the report of the Postmaster General already
before the House, and he asked therefore that the motion should not
be pressed.

Mr. STEPHENSON said that his object had been to ascertain
what reasons there had been for passing the Order in Council. A
year ago it was understood that the Postmasters did not receive a
sufficient amount of remuneration, and it was then understood that
under the new regulations they would receive more, but the fact was
that they actually received less. In his own town the Postmaster had
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received in 1867 a salary of $1,600, whereas he now received only
about $1,300, and the same was the case throughout the Dominion.
He believed that Postmasters in country places had been benefitted,
but the reverse was the case with Town Postmasters, and he hoped
the Government would see the necessity of looking into the matter,
and if necessary, giving Town Postmasters a special rate. He did not
desire to press his motion.

Motion accordingly withdrawn.

* * *

SEIZURES IN LAKE ST. CLAIR

Mr. STEPHENSON moved an address for all correspondence
respecting a seizure by United States Customs officials of a steam
tug and barge, the property of Hiram Little, Esq., a British subject,
while engaged in legitimate trade in Canadian waters. He stated that
for a number of years a large trade had been carried on in wood on
the River St. Clair and Lake St. Clair by Canadians, that in 1866 the
American Government had given a contract for the construction of
a ship canal across the Flats in Lake St. Clair, on the Eastern side of
what was known as the St. Clair Flats Canal, which canal was
without doubt within Canadian jurisdiction. During the construction
of that canal Canadians had been in the habit of delivering wood
and other supplies necessary for the carrying on of the work, and on
the occasion in question Mr. Little arrived with a steam tug and a
barge loaded with wood for the contractor. At the time three
American officials from Detroit chanced to be fishing on the spot,
and they took upon themselves to seize Mr. Little’s vessels and
their loads and took them all to Detroit, and, as it were, confiscated
them. After much trouble and expense Mr. Little was allowed to
take the vessels away on entering into bonds for $3,000, the wood
being retained, and he expected that the Government would take
action to relieve him from his position and obtain compensation for
him. He (Mr. Stephenson) had reported the case to the Government
at the time it occurred, but had received no answer, and did not
know what steps had been taken in the matter. He thought,
therefore, that the matter should be laid before the House and
justice done in the matter without further unnecessary delay.

Hon. Mr. TILLEY said that correspondence was now going on
between the Canadian and American Governments, but it was not
complete, and he therefore asked that the motion be allowed to
stand over for the present.

Motion allowed to stand over.
* % %
CANAL ENLARGEMENT
Mr. MAGILL moved an address for copies of correspondence

and instructions to Commissioners on the subject of canal
enlargement, and of all other papers connected therewith.
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He said that the subject was one in which the country awaited
with very great anxiety an announcement of the policy of the
Government. It was of such importance that it had occupied a very
prominent place at the Quebec Conference in 1864, and had been a
strong argument in favour of Confederation, as it was urged that the
country joined together would be better able to deal with the matter
than otherwise; and although much had been done, and many
improvements effected, the great work of opening up the St
Lawrence still remained untouched. Referring to the rival project by
the French River and the Ottawa, he dwelt on the many advantages
possessed by the St. Lawrence route, which he thought more than
counterbalanced the difference in distance. If the St. Lawrence and
Welland Canals were deepened to 15 feet, the trade between the
different provinces would be wonderfully increased, and no one
would object to any import duty on foreign coal. He trusted the
matter would engross the attention of the ministers, and that they
would soon be able to announce their policy on that great question.

Hon. Mr. LANGEVIN said he had no objection to the address,
but there was really no correspondence yet, and he would suggest
that that portion of the hon. member’s address be dropped, and he
could afterwards give notice when the report of the Canal
Commissioners was submitted to the House.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON saw no necessity for delay. He understood
that the Commissioners had furnished the report, and had dispersed.

Hon. Mr. LANGEVIN said the hon. gentleman was mistaken.
The Commissioners had not dispersed and had not yet completed
their labours.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON said it was very desirable that the House
should have the report before it soon. The Government, from some
form of discord, incapacity or feebleness of purpose, being unable
to devise policy of their own, and having devolved this duty on
private gentlemen, who were utterly unknown to public life, should
at least put the House in possession of such information as would
enable them to furnish the Government with a policy if the
Commission should be unable to do it. (Hear, hear.)

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS was surprised to hear the hon.
gentleman, who had so large a parliamentary experience, blaming
the Government for appointing this Commission. He had the
practice of the British Government for a precedent. In England
there was hardly a subject of importance that was not initiated by a
Commission. The Canal Commission had been appointed at the
request of influential persons who were interested in having these
improvements made, and it certainly was not a matter in which the
Government were open to attack. He did not think it was too much
to expect that the Government should be allowed time to examine
papers before they were submitted to the House. He confessed that
for himself the only papers relative to the matter he had read was a
copy of the instructions issued to the Commission. He believed it
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would be in the power of the Government in a very few days to
produce the papers, but at present it was not.

Mr. MAGILL said he would let his motion stand for a few days.

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North) quite agreed with the
hon. member for Chateaugay that there was a growing practice in
the country, which would not be easily got rid of if allowed to
continue unchecked. He referred to this practice of the Government
of handing over important measures to irresponsible persons in
order to get rid of the difficulty of preparing a scheme. He could not
remember any precedent in the British House for this course of the
hon. gentleman opposite. It might be justifiable, but if so, what
were the thirteen hon. gentlemen opposite placed there for, if it was
not to act as a standing Commission, whose business was to deal
with great public measures of this kind. He apprehended that the
true reason for the appointment of this Canal Commission was that
there were various projects which the Government did not approve
of, and this Commission was the easiest and most deceptive way of
getting rid of them. What was the result? They had seen some
notice in the newspapers, and had heard in the lobbies mysterious
whispers about this Commission. They heard, and had read, in fact,
that the Bay Verte Canal was to be constructed, and as a set-off to
the Western people, a canal was to be constructed at Sault Ste.
Marie, and the St. Lawrence canals were to be deepened. They
could have had all that done by a Committee of the House.
Committees could have been formed to ascertain the practicability
of constructing works of this kind, and this House was the proper
body to deal with them. This appointment of the Commission was
an invasion of the functions, duties, and privileges of this House,
and it handed over to gentlemen whose names had never been heard
of in connection with works of this kind these important interests.
He had travelled with one of the Commissioners, Mr. Shannon, a
very entertaining gentleman, recently from the east. The gentleman
had come here probably after the report had been agreed on; but
even admitting that Mr. Shannon had been present at the meetings
of the Commission, what special knowledge had he, as a legal
practitioner at Halifax, of public works of this kind. The whole
system was a sham, and the hon. gentlemen opposite were bringing
a responsible Government into contempt by abdicating their
functions, handing over their duties to private gentlemen, and
shielding themselves under this Commission. What member of this
House was to be influenced or induced to vote for or against this
proposition because certain gentlemen had said yes or no. The
opinions of this Commission were just worth so much and no more,
as those of five or six other ordinary intelligent gentlemen. Yet the
hon. gentleman opposite stated that this sort of thing was done in
England, and consequently should be done here.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON: It is not done in England.

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North): No, it was not done
in England. The hon. gentlemen were practical men and were sent
to this Parliament for that reason, and they were the great
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Commission who were to decide this matter. The Ministry were the
standing Commission, and it was for them to deal with these
measures with the information they had, and to obtain for their
measures the assent of the House. Now what did they see in this
case? The Commission met in Ottawa to determine what canals
should be undertaken. They knew very little about the matter and
had to send for persons to instruct them as to what they should do.
They had to visit the Public Works Department, and to interrogate
the officials there as to facts on which they should base their
conclusions. That might be the interpretation of Responsible
Government by the hon. gentlemen opposite, but he was sorry to
hear the great apostle of that principle recommend that the
Government should hand over their prerogative in this manner.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said the Government
intended to take the responsibility of these works on themselves
(hear, hear) but they had not had time yet to come before the House
with any proposition, besides the Government was like a private
individual in such matters: they were interested in obtaining all
information necessary before entering into large expenditures.
There was no better means of obtaining information on matters in
which legislation was to take place than to refer it to a Commission.
The hon. gentlemen opposite had asserted that there was no such
practice in England. It was a well known fact that with the
exception of fortifications most public works were undertaken by
private corporations. When it was proposed to construct
fortifications in Canada, Commissioners were sent here to enquire
where were the proper places for them. In every Government
Commissions were employed for such purposes. In the enlargement
of canals were two great questions, the engineering question and the
commercial question. Who was better acquainted with the
commercial interests of this country than Mr. Hugh Allan? And
where was an engineer of greater experience than Mr. Gzowski to
be secured? Was not the member for North Lanark a Commissioner
appointed to proceed to the West Indies, to enquire as to the best
mode of extending our trade with them? (Cheers and laughter.) The
Government would form its policy on the recommendations of the
Canal Commissioners, and assume all responsibility for action
thereon and for such appropriations as they might occasion. They
would meet Parliament on the question of the acceptance or the
rejection of the Commissioners’ recommendations. He hoped and
was sure the Government would be able out of that report to frame
a policy that would meet the wants of the country.

Mr. BLANCHET was surprised the member for North Lanark
should reflect upon the appointment of Commissions. He belonged
to a Government from 1862 till 1864 that had managed the affairs
of the country by Commissions. He had also been concerned in a
North West Commission, which did not turn out successful. He was
unable to carry the commission in his pocket on that occasion.
(Laughter.) The fact was the appointment of a Commission in this
instance was the best step the Government could have taken to
procure the information needed; and the qualifications and high
standing of its members were a guarantee that both their statements
and recommendations were entitled to respect. (Hear, hear.)
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Hon. Sir A.T. GALT did not believe that any advantage was
likely to flow from the Canal Commission. He agreed with the
member for Lanark North that as to the improvement of our internal
navigation generally this House was as well informed as it could be
by the Commission. The Government had the able reports of the
Public Works Department, and those of their own engineers, and
were in as good a position to arrive at a sound opinion as to what
ought to be done as were these Commissioners, and far better. True,
they were men of high standing but he did not believe they
possessed any speciality beyond the Government and the House to
enable them to arrive at a conclusion. Further, as their appointment,
giving them so wide a scope, obliged them to go into a great many
questions which the Government could not have found it necessary
to take up, the Government were better able to judge of the
resources of the country at their disposal, and of its necessities, than
any Commissioners. (Cheers.) He therefore regretted their
appointment. The comparison of this Commission with that to the
West Indies was what called him to his feet, because he did think no
possible analogy could be established between them. The latter had
to visit the West Indies, which the Government could not have
done, they having such a disposition to keep their places. (Hear,
hear.)

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER: It establishes my position as
to the principle of the Commission.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT: This principle ought to be laid down—
That the Government should appoint a Commission where they
required the aid of skill, where persons possessed a specialty
pertaining to certain subjects. That was not the case with the
question of the canals, and if it was, the proper parties had not been
appointed. He did not deny the report might be an able one; but he
would be much surprised if they found in it anything not already in
the knowledge of the Government.

Hon. Mr. TUPPER said he would not have risen if hon. member
for North Lanark had not selected the Nova Scotia member of the
Commission for his criticism. Did he consider that holding a high
and distinguished position at the bar was any reason why a
gentleman should not be able to give his attention to public matters?
He was the last member who should treat that fact as a reason of the
sort. It would have been but fair to state that such were his abilities,
social qualities, and talents for public business that the county and
city of Halifax, the capital of Nova Scotia, had again and again
elected him as their representative; and that he was for years a
member of the Government. This discussion was ill timed. If
members believed it improper for the Government to avail itself of
the first commercial talent, and the ablest suggestions with
reference to this business, the time to make their objections was a
year ago, when the intention was first announced. The House then
having made no opposition it was a little late in the day for hon.
gentlemen to do it now.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON: No, no. | opposed it.
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Hon. Mr. TUPPER was surprised to hear the member for
Chateauguay denouncing this Commission, for he held in his hand a
vote given by him for a similar commercial commission requiring
special talent.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON: No.

Hon. Mr. TUPPER: But when a vote was proposed for the
expenditure of a million and a half, on fortifications, he placed his
opinion on record that it was due to the public interest the
Government should be relieved of the responsibility by the
appointment of Commissioners to consider where they should be
constructed; and having thus sanctioned the principle in a matter
where it was not relevant, he thought that hon. member was
precluded from raising his present objections.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON: | did raise that objection.

Hon. Mr. TUPPER: The suggestion of the Canal Commission
came from the House and not the Government. He had headed a
deputation which solicited this step, and the House having at the
time sanctioned the Government’s course, it was too late now to try
to elicit its censure. The Commissioners having consented to serve,
having withdrawn their talents and labours from their own business,
and cheerfully worked for the public he thought gentlemen
opposite, in reference to them, should have awaited their report
without prejudging their labours and endeavouring to destroy
confidence in them.

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North) could understand
now how it was that the hon. gentleman who had just spoken
founded the reputation he bore in his own province as a great stump
speaker, and as the accomplished and wily conqueror of its other
Minister in the Cabinet here. (Laughter.) Had he (Hon. Mr.
McDougall) not spoken of the Nova Scotia Commissioner as an
able lawyer and a gentleman of talent and respectability? His
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argument was not in depreciation of Mr. Shannon, but that his being
a distinguished and hard-worked lawyer, he was not in a position to
come here and inform hon. members as to where canals should be
constructed. With regard to the Commission spoken of by the
Minister of Militia, it was appointed partly from the Government,
which was responsible for its report through him (Hon. Mr.
McDougall). A member of Nova Scotia Government, also, was on
that Commission.

The case was unfortunate as an illustration in another point of
view: it was unfortunate as an example of the benefits of a
Commission, that after the travels of its members and the exposure
of their lives on the high seas and in foreign parts, and after a report
which, he thought, would be admitted displayed a good deal of
industry, that Commission fell still-born. Its work was never acted
on either by the Government or this House. The carrying out of its
recommendations would have developed the resources of the
country in an important direction. Even hon. gentlemen opposite
must admit that neither the Government nor the House had acted as
promptly and judiciously, as they ought, on that occasion. As Mr.
Smith wrote on one occasion as regards England, Government
Commissions were generally devised for the purpose of concealing
and distorting information already accessible, and which should be
put to a proper use. As to Mr. Allan, he stood at the head of the
commercial element, and was, no doubt well schooled in all the
subjects connected with the navigation of the St. Lawrence, and the
transportation of the products of this country to the old world. He
(Hon. Mr. McDougall) would have summoned him before this
House on a special Committee on this subject. As a witness he
would have been useful; but as a Commissioner to occupy the place
of the Government, the fact of his being a merchant in such
circumstances, disqualified him from giving an intelligent, reliable
opinion upon this great subject. (Hear, hear.)

It being six o’clock, the Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER
moved the House adjourn till tomorrow, as there was very little
business on the paper. After some obstructions from the leaders of
the Opposition the motion was carried.



COMMONS DEBATES

March 2, 1871

91

HOUSE OF COMMONS

Thursday, March 2, 1871

The SPEAKER took the chair at three o’clock.

Prayers

PETITIONS

Several petitions were received and referred.

PAPERS, ETC.

Hon. Mr. LANGEVIN submitted papers relative to the leasing
of a portion of land on the Lachine Canal to the Montreal
Warehousing Company.

NEW BILLS

Hon. Mr. CAMERON (Peel) moved for leave to introduce a
Bill to amend the Railway Act of 1868.—Carried.

Mr. CRAWFORD (Leeds South) moved to introduce a Bill to
incorporate the Ontario and Quebec Railroad.—Carried.

Mr. SNIDER moved for leave to introduce a Bill to authorize
the town of Owen Sound to collect harbour dues, and for other
purposes.—Carried.

Mr. YOUNG moved to introduce a Bill to naturalise certain
aliens. He explained he did not propose to interfere with the law,
but merely to confirm in their naturalization rights many persons
who had failed to comply with some of the technical requirements
of the law. At present a certificate from the Courts that the oath had
been taken was required, and many were disqualified from voting
owing to the neglect of this formality. The provisions of the Bill
were to the effect that all who, in good faith, prior to 1868, took the
naturalization oath, should be confirmed in their privileges. If the
First Reading were carried, he would move its reference to a Select
Committee to consider its various clauses.—Carried.

All bills introduced received First Reading.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON moved the reference of the papers
respecting the Montreal Warehousing Company’s case of land on
the Lachine Canal, to the Printing Committee—Carried.

MESSAGE FROM THE GOVERNOR GENERAL

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER submitted a Message from
His Excellency, consisting of an Order in Council and
memorandum, establishing, under the provisions of the Act, 33
Vic., Cap. 3, regulations respecting the public lands in the Province
of Manitoba.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER proceeded to explain that the
Government had had under consideration the disposal of the public
lands in Manitoba, and the different interests of the various classes
of that Province. Those regulations now brought down related to the
reserve for the half breeds, and the mode of its administration.
There was a reserve of the vested rights of the Hudson’s Bay
Company in every township. Every settler would be entitled to a
free grant apart from the Company’s and the half breeds’ lands.
Any one desirous of promptly obtaining the title to a lot, might do
so by paying a dollar an acre. Each lot would consist of 160 acres.
Every private and officer of the Volunteers who went to Manitoba,
who might settle there, would be entitled to a lot besides the lot
bestowed him as his absolute property. (Cheers.) He thought those
regulations would show Government had adopted the best possible
policy for the settlement of the country.

Mr. RYMAL asked if a volunteer, whether he remained in the
country or not, would get a land grant.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER: No; the actual settlers only
would get it. The Government wanted the country settled.

Mr. RYMAL said that in such a case a volunteer would get no
reward for his services. He had thought that a volunteer, whether he
resided there or not, was entitled to his free grant.

Mr. MILLS asked information as to the size of the sections. Last
year, they had been fixed at 800 acres, and now there appeared a
change to 640 acres.
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Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER: The plan of the survey of
last year was departed from.

Mr. STEPHENSON asked if the VVolunteers who received their
discharges would be entitled to land.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER replied that all the
Volunteers, discharged or not, who settled there would receive land.

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North) asked whether the
condition of settlement was required in the case of the half breeds.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER replied, their case was
different from that of new comers. The 1,400,000 acres reserved to
them was to settle their rights of property.

Mr. FERGUSON was disappointed at this intention. He thought
this land was to be given only on condition of settlement and to the
law declared. He was sorry that provision had been departed from.
He hoped the Government would reconsider this matter, and change
their policy. If the half breeds learned they were required to settle
on their lands, in order to obtain them they will become citizens of
the country and travel from their homes no more.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER replied that the reading of
the papers would show that all the regulations in respect to the
Manitoba Act had been complied with.

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North) said he would hardly
have risen to speak on this occasion, but that he did not wish the
statements which had just been made to go abroad unchallenged.
The Government had reversed the policy which had been
deliberately agreed to, with respect to the survey of the lands in
Manitoba. They had announced as their policy that they would hold
out greater inducements to settlers than the United States, that each
settler should receive 200 acres of land instead of 160 acres, and
that the townships should be larger than the townships in the United
States in order that when municipalities should be incorporated in
the North West there should be sufficient area for them. He wished
to let this fact be known, and that the Government had changed
their policy, and now offered the comparatively paltry amount of
160 acres of land. Such a policy was a mistake. There was land
enough there and to spare to offer greater inducements to the
settlers. There was a complete violation of the policy of last session
with respect to the lands of that territory. It appeared that the rights
of half breeds in their lands were to be placed under the jurisdiction
and control and subject to the laws to be enacted by the Legislature
of Manitoba. It might be said, and it was asserted by the
Government organs, that this was a proper system, but every one in
the House who was at all acquainted with the matter knew very well
that the half breeds had little familiarity with Government matters.
In the recent elections they gave their votes as they were directed by
those whom they recognized as leaders. (Cries of ““No, no’’.) Hon.
gentlemen opposite said ‘*‘No, no’’, but he said “*Yes, yes.”’

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS: No, no.
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Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North): It was so, and he
had a letter from the Bishop of that country, stating by his own hand
that he had selected from Lower Canada, men whom he had
intended to take with him to act as representatives in Manitoba, and
it turned out that no less than three of those men were elected, while
loyal gentlemen in that country had been excluded and withdrawn
from office. He saw it stated that the three representatives taken
from Lower Canada had no legal right to the seats that they held,
because they had not complied with the terms of the Act, but he was
of opinion that there was no legal objection to any one being in that
Assembly that the electors might have selected under the provisions
of the Act. He believed that the Act was purposely framed so that
there should be no exclusion, no condition of eligibility, and in
order that the hon. gentlemen opposite might be enabled to send out
their pliant tools to make laws that would suit their ends. He for one
had great apprehension that the rights of the half breeds would be
sacrificed if left at the mercy of such men. He believed such was the
policy at the bottom of the scheme as the public would yet see.

Hon. Mr. HOWE said it was not to be supposed that the
Government could originate a policy to suit the hon. member for
Lanark North. As for the charge brought against the Hon. Minister
of Militia that he advised certain friends of his to go out to this
blessed country, he (Hon. Mr. Howe) would like to know who had a
right to question him for that. The argument was hardly worthy of a
moment’s notice. When the papers came before the House he was
sure that the Government would be able to show that if the policy of
the Government was changed it was only for good and sufficient
reasons.

Hon. Mr. MORRIS said it must be remembered that in bringing
down a land policy for the North West, it was not for Manitoba
alone, but for the whole of the Red River territory. If it was really
desirable to build up that great country, as the House intended to
do—

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North): Hear, hear.

Hon. Mr. MORRIS appealed to the House if they were not
anxious to see the great North West country developed, and if so, it
was important that a policy should be framed which would not only
attract to Manitoba a large Canadian emigration, but also the great
tide of emigration from Europe, which now flowed to the United
States. In the future it would be found that the Government had
acted wisely in conforming the land policy of the North West to that
of the neighbouring union, which was understood in Europe, and
which had worked so well. It had been said that the Government
were disposed to prevent emigration from going to the North West,
but the fact was, that their policy was to develop that country, and
have it settled as early as possible. With regard to the election of
Lower Canadians to seats in the Local Legislature in Manitoba, he
believed the people of that Province had a right to exercise their
privilege to elect whoever they pleased to represent them. He knew
but one of the gentlemen personally, Captain Howard, and from
what he knew of him he believed that the people of Manitoba would
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find in him a valuable representative. These remarks, at this stage of
the measure, were rather premature, but he could not let the remarks
of the hon. member for North Lanark pass without some comment.

Mr. SCATCHERD was surprised to hear the hon. member say
that Government had encouraged emigration to the North West. He
defied them to point to a single proof that such had ever been their
policy. In the first place, the Canadians who had gone to settle
there, were driven out of the country, and now the VVolunteers were
to be disbanded and only two small Companies were to be retained.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS: We want them to settle there.

Mr. SCATCHERD: Did his hon. friend suppose that the
Volunteers from Ontario would care to settle in a country which
was ruled by the very men who had driven loyal Canadians from it
last year? From the course which the Government had pursued so
far, it was evident that they had no desire to see the North West
Territory settled.

* * %

SCHOOLS OF NAVIGATION

Mr. PELLETIER asked whether it is the intention of the
Government to provide for the establishment of Public Schools of
Navigation and Seamanship with Board of Examiners at the
different seaports of the Dominion, or at any one of them?

Hon. Mr. TUPPER said, as far as the Board of Examiners were
concerned, it would be provided for by the Government. In relation
to Schools of Navigation and Seamanship, the providing of a
moderate amount to facilitate passing an examination in the
principal outports was under the consideration of the Government.

* * %

THE WELLAND CANAL

Mr. MERRITT moved for papers, and the report having
reference to the works on the Welland Canal known as the Lake
Erie Level. In making this motion, he would remind the
Government that they had promised last session to make some
improvements on the Canal during the summer, but no progress
whatever had been made in the matter. He knew that there had been
difficulties to prevent this work from being accomplished, and he
therefore asked that the report of the engineer should be laid before
the House explaining the state of the work and the difficulties to be
surmounted.

Hon. Mr. LANGEVIN said the Government had no doubt
promised last session to improve the Welland Canal, but they
ccould not control the elements, and heavy slides had taken place
on the east side of the Deep Cut. These slides, of course, were not
expected, and were very extensive. The fact was, that in one place,
for a long distance the Canal was so narrow from these slides that
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two vessels could not pass each other. The Government would be
able to come down to the House and ask for a vote of money in
order to try to provide against these land slides in future. The cause
of these slides was this. When the Canal was commenced the work
was done by a company, who, as they made the cutting, threw the
earth and stones on the top of the banks at each side, and it was the
pressure of these piles of rubbish that caused these slides. The
engineers were of the opinion that unless these piles were removed
from the banks they would all slide in, and have to be removed
from the bottom of the Canal by dredging, and it would cost a great
deal less to remove them from their present position. The
Government would therefore ask for an appropriation to remove
them.

Mr. McCALLUM was satisfied with the explanation of the
Minister of Public Works so far as it went, but thought it did not go
far enough. Government had proposed to proceed with the work
year after year, and yet nothing was done. He thought that Port
Colborne could never be made a suitable harbour for the terminus
of the Welland Canal, and pointed out the greater advantages of
Port Maitland. A few years ago the whole district had been flooded
by a freshet on the Grand River, and on claiming compensation
from the Government had been told that nothing could be done, and
although it was some times said that the Crown could not err, he
thought the Government had very frequently done great injury to
the people. He would not dwell on the subject further as when the
report of the Canal Commission was brought down there would be
full opportunity for discussion.

Mr. THOMPSON (Haldimand) thought the member for
Lincoln was deserving of the thanks of his constituents for so
persistently bringing this matter before Government. Promises
made on the subject by the Government time after time were still
unfilled, and if the hon. member really wanted to have the work
carried out he would suggest to him, as the only means of attaining
his end that he should leave the Government side of the House and
join the Opposition.

Mr. STREET very much regretted that the Lake Erie Level was
still unattained, and everyone interested in the works erected on the
Welland Canal especially regretted it. That level was necessary in
order to carry the trade of the country. The Minister of Public
Works had, however, explained why the work could not be carried
out during the present year, but he was glad to know that the
Government would ask a vote for the purpose. He thought,
however, they should not proceed on mere suggestions of members
of the House, but should be careful to obtain the advice of the most
competent men. As to the obstructions which had been spoken of
their removal might cost a large amount of money, but he was sure
there was no impossibility in the matter, and he certainly considered
it absolutely necessary that the waters of Lake Erie should be
obtained in some way or another. He would not further take up the
time of the House on that occasion.

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North) thought the present a
favourable opportunity for calling the attention of the House to the
very great danger of a policy on questions like the present based on
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the representations of members of that House who chanced to live
in a locality where those works were to be constructed. He had on a
former occasion, and when sitting on the other side of the House,
contended that the Welland Canal was a great public work, in which
every person in the Dominion was interested. It was quite true that
the waters of the canal had been made use of. The Government had
conceded great privileges in order to encourage the establishment of
manufactures. The right of using surplus water had been granted on
almost nominal terms for that purpose, and a very important
manufacturing interest had sprung up as a consequence, but a very
great expense had been entailed on the country. The policy of the
Government had been to endeavour to obtain the Lake Erie level,
the water having hitherto been supplied from the interior of the
country.

The Government had been accused of breaking its promise, but
he thought they must act on the advice of men who were experts in
the matter, and who understood the effects that would be produced
by the changes proposed, and when he had been urged to expedite
the works he had been advised by the Engineers, that if the water
should be brought down suddenly, the probability was that the
Canal would be closed up. Only a few years ago a slide had taken
place, which had necessitated the expenditure of an enormous sum
of money, and it was the fear of a recurrence that caused the delay.
The Minister of Public Works had told them that acting on the
advice of the officers of his Department he proposed asking for a
vote of money to complete the work, by removing the
superincumbent weight of earth on the banks and so remove the
fear of a further slide. He was surprised to hear, however, from the
member for Monck that a new scheme was proposed, and that, what
the most eminent engineers had advised would not do. He told them
that Port Colborne would not do, but that the Canal must be
constructed to Port Maitland. Thus the House must see that it would
never do to trust the opinions of members. He might refer in
support of this to the case of St. Peter’s Canal in Cape Breton. That
canal was in course of construction at the time of Confederation
when some sixty or seventy thousand dollars had been expended on
it, and now that it had been completed they were told that it was of
no value.

Hon. Mr. TUPPER: No, no.

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North) said that the hon.
gentleman might say ‘“No, no,”” but he had been assured by
gentlemen from the country that it was of no practical value, and
would have to be enlarged to make it of any use whatever, and
further than this they had also been told by two representatives from
the country that another canal altogether would have to be built. He
stated this to show the great danger of entering upon works of this
kind without first obtaining the advice of responsible officers of the
Government selected for the purpose on account of their superior
skill. Reverting to the question of the enlargement of the Welland
Canal, he thought that when that matter was laid before the House it
ought to be most carefully considered, but he had no hesitation in
saying beforehand that he was entirely opposed to the expenditure
of any larger sum of money in the enlargement of that canal. The
Welland Canal was sufficiently large to accommodate all the trade
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of Canada, and very much more, and he was decidedly opposed to
any expenditure which would simply result in benefitting the
Americans. He would have no objection to the Welland and St.
Lawrence Canals being made common to the Americans, and then
if any enlargement should be necessary the Americans could
contribute their share of the money, and improvements could be
easily accomplished.

Mr. ROSS (Victoria) said that when the hon. gentleman spoke
of the St. Peter’s Canal he spoke of a matter of which he knew
nothing. He (Mr. Ross) had a few days previously submitted a
statement to the Public Works Department, which shewed that in
one year 503 vessels had passed through that canal, and if it were
properly enlarged fully double that number would pass through. He
trusted that the matter of the additional canal which had been
recommended would obtain the consideration of the Government,
and that in the meantime they would see that the present canal was
kept in good working order.

Mr. McCALLUM desired to add a few remarks to what had
been said by the hon. member for Lanark North. He remembered
that when that gentleman had been Minister of Public Works he had
professed a great interest in the work in question, and on the
strength of that interest had attempted to represent a constituency in
the neighbourhood, but had been rejected, and it was hardly right to
ignore the matter now. He might add that the Government had
rented a large amount of water power, and that the mills had had to
remain idle for the most valuable part of the year for want of water.
Further, the House would remember that he had urged the hon.
member for Lanark when Commissioner of Public Works to have
the embankments strengthened, and he had only been laughed at,
but it was now shown that if his recommendations had been acted
on, the hon. gentleman would by an expenditure of $1,200 have
saved the country $30,000.

Mr. MACDONALD (Glengarry), speaking of the St. Peter’s
Canal, thought it was much to be regretted that the canal had not
been made sufficiently large in the first instance as it had been but a
very short time constructed, and they were now told that unless
enlarged it would be of no use. He could not find from the Public
Accounts that that canal had ever produced any revenue, and he did
not see that any benefit would occur to the Dominion even if the
Canal were enlarged. As an old contractor, he considered that to
enlarge the canal would cost as much as had been expended on the
Canal when first constructed, and he thought the whole system of
dealing with the works ought to be changed, and that nothing could
be undertaken except on the report and advice of reliable scientific
men appointed for the purpose.

Mr. MERRITT: Referring to what had been said by the hon.
member for Lanark North, thought that members living on the
spot—where the works required to be undertaken—were the very
ones to advise in the matter. The matter of the Lake Erie Level was
no new matter and the necessity of the work had engaged the
attention of the country at large. In 1869, there had been sufficient
water to supply the Canal alone, independent of the works
established in its neighbourhood, and no one who knew anything of
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the trade of the country would deny that if for one month,
navigation should be closed, the loss to the country would be ten
times the amount that was now required to be expended. He trusted
that the Government would lose no time in asking for appropriation
for the work.

Mr. WORKMAN thought the question of the enlargement of the
Welland Canal one of the most important that could engage the
attention of the House as that Canal formed one of the great arteries
of internal navigation, and he was confident that any reasonable
sum would be granted by the House and justified by the country. He
thought that the Americans, instead of being excluded from our
Canals, should be encouraged to use them. He hoped the
Government would rise above all local considerations, and do what
was necessary in the interests of the Dominion.

Mr. MILLS said it had been announced that the St. Peter’s
Canal, though only just completed, was totally inadequate to the
requirements for which it was built, and he thought the government
that had planned the work, of which he believed the Hon. President
of the Council had been the head, were very much at fault in the
matter.

Hon. Mr. HOWE rose to state that the work had been originated
by a government of which he was the head, while it had been
carried on by a government of which his hon. friend, the President
of the Council, was the head. He added, that as the work had been
commenced with the limited resources of Nova Scotia, it had
naturally not been made so extensive and perfect as the canals of
Canada, but they took it for granted that the Dominion would now
make that canal as good as the others.

Mr. MILLS resumed, saying that the explanation made by the
Hon. Secretary of State for the Provinces merely shewed that he, as
well as the President of the Council, was responsible for the faulty
construction of the canal in question. As to the St. Lawrence canals,
it had been a well understood condition of Confederation that those
canals should be enlarged, and that enlargement was of the utmost
consequence in order to obtain control of the trade of the western
states and also in order that connection should be maintained with
the North West.

Mr. JONES (Leeds North and Grenville North) thought that in
the discussion of this subject the first question should be—what will
most benefit Canada? He fully admitted that it was well to
encourage intercourse with the Americans, but not at the expense of
millions of money belonging to Canada. Already $20 million had
been expended on the St. Lawrence canals, and $16 million on the
Grand Trunk running parallel with them, while the interior of the
country had been altogether neglected. As to the Canal
Commission, he objected to its appointment altogether as being
utterly useless, but, it being appointed, he regretted exceedingly that
the Ottawa district was not represented on it. He thought the canals
were already sufficiently large for the requirements of Canadian
trade, and in attempting to facilitate the transport of the products of
the western states to the seaboard and thence to England, we were
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simply helping them to compete at Liverpool with their own
products. Construction of the Sault Ste. Marie canal he, however,
regarded as an absolute necessity as a link in the great chain of
communication with the Red River.

Mr. HARRISON raised a point of order, as the motion before
the Chair was simply for the production of certain papers, to which
general discussion on the canal system of the country was entirely
irrelevant.

The SPEAKER, however, decided that although members might
have enlarged on the question before them, he had not been called
upon to check them.

Mr. CARMICHAEL then referred to the condition of the St.
Peter’s Canal as being very much in need of repairs, and urged that
unless the government gave it speedy attention vessels would be
unable to pass through. He said the walls of the St. Peter’s Canal
were falling in, and recommended its repair and improvement.

Mr. RYAN (Montreal West) believed that if the Welland Canal
should be enlarged, and also the St. Lawrence, they would give
employment to thousands within the Dominion, and increase our
carrying trade and commerce. He hoped the commission would
recommend such employments.

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North) read a portion of Mr.
Mill’s report respecting the propriety of enlarging the St. Peter’s
Canal, and the construction of others for the extension of the trade
of the Island of Cape Breton. He cited this case as an illustration of
the danger of beginning canals before they were sure of the means
of completing them. He himself had favoured the improvement of
this very St. Peter’s Canal, and was not opposed to one more than
the other apart from public grounds.

Mr. MAGILL said that the hon. gentleman took part in the
convention leading to Confederation, the basis of which was the
creating of internal improvements. It ill became him, therefore, a
leading friend of the new Constitution, to oppose those promising
works—the Welland and St. Lawrence Canals. As to American
produce competing with ours, in Europe, what fear need we have of
it if we enjoyed a large share of the carrying trade? If there were
any public works more deserving than others it was the
improvement of those valuable works, so well calculated to draw a
larger trade to our waters.

The motion was carried.
* k* %
THE FISHERIES

Mr. MILLS moved for an address for the regulations and papers
originating with the Governor in Council relating to the fisheries.
He said he moved for these papers because the government had
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lacked moral force to carry out the act, and that the public were
praying for the performance of duties which the department had
ordered should not be performed. He explained that a great many
persons were receiving salaries who were performing duties in the
protection of fisheries, such persons not being required by the
department. Almost every other man along the Bay of Fundy, as he
(Mr. Mills) was informed, had been appointed an overseer by the
Fisheries Department. He desired to know how far the complaints
on these subjects were well or ill founded.

Hon. Mr. TUPPER said the government were desirous of giving
the fullest information on this subject. He was instructed by the
Minister of Marine to say the correspondence was very voluminous,
and that if he called at the office and selected such portions as he
wanted, they would be printed. The protection of the river fisheries,
though very difficult, had turned out highly beneficial. The supply
of fish had gratifyingly increased. He was certain the papers would
show the hon. gentleman was mistaken in his opinions on the
subject.

Motion carried.

* * %

WITHDRAWAL OF TROOPS

On the motion of Mr. Cartwright coming up, namely the address
to Her Majesty on the subject of withdrawal of the garrisons and
munitions of war from British North America &c,

Mr. CARTWRIGHT asked when the correspondence would be
ready.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said the government of late
had been much pressed in producing returns, but they would try to
bring down the correspondence in three or four days.

The motion was allowed to lie over.

* * %

REPEAL OF DUTIES

Hon. Mr. HOLTON, in the absence of Hon. Mr. Dorion, moved
that the House go into Committee of the Whole on a future day to
consider a resolution declaring it expedient to abolish the duties on
coal, coke, flour, wheat, and other grains.
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Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS said it was an unusual course for
a member to press such a resolution before the policy of the
Government had been announced, and if this resolution were
pressed, he would be obliged to move its postponement.

The motion was allowed to stand.

THE PROVINCIAL ARBITRATION

Mr. BLAKE moved the discharge of the order on the resumption
of the adjourned debate on his motion for correspondence touching
the arbitration. He said the principal objects of his motion had been
attained both as regards the production of papers and the
ascertainment of the policy of the Government on the subject.

The order was discharged.

* % %

DELAY IN PRINTING BILLS

Mr. BLAKE complained that his bill to secure the independence
of the Senate, though it has been on the Order Paper several days,
had not been printed in French.

Mr. YOUNG said he would bring the matter before the Printing
Committee.

* * *
BUSINESS FOR FRIDAY
On the motion for adjournment,

Hon. Mr. HOLTON asked what government business would be
entered upon tomorrow.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER replied that the Census Bill
would be taken up and perhaps Hon. Sir Francis Hinck’s currency
resolutions.

The House then adjourned, it being a quarter to six o’clock.
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HOUSE OF COMMONS

Friday, March 3, 1871

The SPEAKER took the chair at 3.10 p.m.

Prayers

Several petitions were presented.

* * %

PRIVATE ACCOUNTS OF MEMBERS

Hon. Mr. CAMERON (Peel) called attention to the fact that
some members had called upon the accountant of the House to pry
into the state of the accounts of other members without an order
from the Speaker of the House or from the Committee of Public
Accounts. No member should be allowed to examine the accounts
of any other member.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON said he quite concurred with the member
for Peel in his views on this matter.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT: Hear, hear.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON said he was not aware that such a course
had been pursued, but there could be no two opinions as to its
impropriety. No individual member had a right to pry into the
affairs of any of his fellow members. The Committee of Public
Accounts and the House at large were bound to do so if any abuse
existed in the matter of indemnity to members, but no individual
members should do so. Last year the Committee of Public Accounts
had investigated these matters very thoroughly and would do so at
the present session.

The SPEAKER said he thought the facts were not quite in
accordance with the statements of the hon. member for Peel; but
application had been made by individual members to the
bookkeeper of the accounts of the House to look over the accounts.
Having heard the opinion of the House on the subject, he would
take care that in future no such information should be given to
individual members.

Mr. WHITE said he had asked for some information in order to
discover the truth or falsity of certain alleged improprieties charged
against the other member from his county. He contended he had a
right to seek for such information, and was ready to assume the
responsibility in the matter.

Hon. Mr. CAMERON (Peel) said he did not know the hon.
gentleman had made such application, and did not refer to him.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON said he spoke of the practice merely, and
did not know of any individual case.

* k x

COLLECTORS’ FEES

Hon. Mr. TILLEY laid on the table a statement of the fees of
collectors of customs.

BANK ACT

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS moved for leave to introduce a
bill relating to banks and banking. In making this motion he wished
to make a few explanatory remarks with respect to the scope of the
bill. Last year he had the honor to introduce a measure to enable the
Governor General to grant new charters to banks as the old ones
expired. It was supposed at the time that many banks would avail
themselves of the opportunity afforded them of having their
charters renewed. It had so happened that in only one single
instance had a charter been so renewed. Although within the last
couple of weeks there had been a number of applications from
banks for the extension of their charters. They almost unanimously
expressed themselves in favour of having parliamentary charters.
When this was ascertained—and it was quite recently—government
determined that they would endeavour to embody in one general
act, not only the provisions of the act of last session, but also the
general provisions of what he might term the internal regulations of
banks, which seemed desirable, and which they themselves seemed
desirous should be as near as possible assimilated. They wished all
to be put on the same footing with respect to these resolutions.
Now, he was bound to say that this was as far as government
thought of going with regard to that matter, but within a very few
days he had reason to believe, from conversations he had had with
gentlemen well versed in such matters, that there was a very general
desire that in the Bank Act the charters should be extended for ten
years. He would now move for leave to introduce the measure, and
after the second reading he would refer it to the Committee on
Banking and Commerce, where hon. gentlemen of experience in
banking matters would have an opportunity to aid in producing a
measure that would satisfy all parties.

The bill was then read a first time, second reading on Friday next.
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PREVENTION OF BRIBERY

Hon. Mr. MORRIS introduced an Act for the prevention of
corrupt practices in relation to the collection of revenue. He
explained that under the present law that the only penalty for
bribing a Revenue officer was a civil suit for the collection of 100
pounds. This sum was altogether inadequate, and the bill he now
introduced was to provide that such offences should be punishable
as misdemeanors, both the officer bribed and the person corrupting
him to be liable to punishment.

* * %

OWEN SOUND HARBOUR DUES

Mr. SNIDER moved that Bill No. 22 be discharged, and the
motion being carried, introduced a Bill to extend the Act
authorizing the imposition and collection of harbour dues, by the
town of Owen Sound.

* * %

EXPENSES OF THE FENIAN RAID

A formal message from His Excellency was read, recommending
the expediency of indemnifying the Government for having
authorized the issue of a special warrant for $200,000 to provide for
the defence of the Dominion in repelling the Fenian invasion of last
May.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS moved that the House go into
Committee of the Whole to consider the relevant resolutions. He
would take occasion to explain with respect to the resolutions of
last year, involving the expenditure of money, that he had looked at
the Act during recess, and notwithstanding the objection of the hon.
member for Chéteauguay, he did not find that it was necessary to
precede the resolution by a message from His Excellency; still, he
was bound to admit that it was hardly possible in cases of this kind
to proceed with too great caution. He had, therefore, adopted the
usual formality.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON was quite sure that if the act did not specify
the mode of proceeding, the spirit of it was that the form should be
observed. Its object was to tie the hands of the House against any
unauthorized expenditure. He, therefore, thought that when a large
amount was to be expended, and in this case he admitted,
necessarily expended, the utmost solemnity should be observed.

The resolution was read a first time.

* % %

BANKS AND BANKING

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS moved that the House resolve
itself into a Committee of the Whole to consider certain resolutions
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on the subject of savings banks, and also of the issue and
redemption of Dominion notes. In making this motion, he wished to
observe that His Excellency had commanded him to inform the
House that he (the Governor General) had cognizance of this
motion. Before Tuesday the resolutions would be printed in both
languages, and in the hands of hon. members.

* * *

THE CENSUS ACT

Hon. Mr. DUNKIN moved the House into Committee on the
Bill to amend the Census Act, Hon. Mr. GRAY in the Chair.

In reply to the Hon. Mr. Holton,

Hon. Mr. DUNKIN said the majority of the enumerators would
finish their work in about three weeks from the commencement of
the enumeration. There were some few districts with small scattered
populations in which the census could not be taken before mid-
summer. Of course, the moment the Government should get returns
from the greater part of the country, they would commence to
combine and count. There would be no delay on the part of the
commissioners. The compilation would be pushed forward with the
utmost despatch, and the work would be completed long before the
next meeting of the House.

On reading the eighth clause,

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North) said the provisions
of this clause empowered the Governor General to render valid
anything that should be done under the authority of the Minister of
Agriculture. Why have any other provision at all? It did seem to
him, in practice and reason and in every point of view as a most
omnium gatherum kind of provision. He really thought it would
save printing and trouble to strike out all the rest of the bill but this
one clause.

Hon. Mr. DUNKIN said he had explained the object of this
clause when he introduced the bill. The hon. member for Lambton
had expressed his assent to it. The reason was this, in the numerous
districts and sub-districts, it was hardly possible to avoid mistakes,
and the whole purport of this bill was to permit the correction of
such errors without issuing a new proclamation.

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North) said the only
objection to it was that serious questions might be involved, which
should be dealt with by proclamation in the usual way. He had very
great confidence in the hon. gentleman opposite, but the public
outside might have a different opinion and he thought it was
desirable in this census matter that everything should be done open
and above board that the people might see and know what was
going on. In Manitoba it was charged that the census had been
taken there under local official sanction, and very improperly.
Sections where nobody existed were declared as having hundreds of
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inhabitants, and it was charged directly in newspapers of that
country that the census had been falsified. Now, in a case of that
kind where the taking of the census was to determine the proportion
of representatives of the Province, everything should be done in the
most open and frank manner possible. There should be no arming of
the hon. gentleman with a law which could be abused.

Hon. Mr. DUNKIN assured his hon. friend that the clause did
not increase the power of the Government except in the manner he
had explained.

The clause was passed and the bill was reported with
amendments.

* * %

ASSIMILATION OF CURRENCY

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS moved the House into committee
to consider seven resolutions for the assimilation of the currency
throughout the Dominion, as follows:

1. Resolved, That it is expedient to establish one uniform
currency for all Canada, and for that purpose to provide that on and
after the First day of July, 1871, the currency of the Province of
Nova Scotia shall be the same as that of the Provinces of Quebec,
Ontario and New Brunswick, in all of which one currency of
uniform value is used.

2. Resolved, That it is expedient to provide, that on and after the
said day, the currency of Canada shall be such that the British
sovereign, of lawful weight, shall be equal to and pass current for
four dollars and eighty-six cents and two-thirds of a cent of the
currency of Canada, and that all public accounts throughout
Canada shall be kept in such currency; and that in any statement as
to money or money value, in any indictment or legal proceeding,
the same shall be stated in such currency, and in all private accounts
and agreements rendered or entered into on or after the said day, all
sums mentioned shall be understood to be in such currency, unless
some other is clearly expressed, or must, from the circumstances of
the case, have been intended by the parties.

3. Resolved, That it is expedient to provide, that all sums of
money payable on and after the said day to Her Majesty or to any
party, under any Act or law in force in Nova Scotia, passed before
the said day, or under any bill, note, contract or agreement made
before the said day in Nova Scotia, or with reference thereto, or
made after the said day out of Nova Scotia and with reference
thereto, and which were intended to be, and if such alteration of the
currency had not been made, would have been payable in the
present equivalent sums in the currency of Nova Scotia, shall, on
and after the said day be payable, respectively, by equivalent sums
in the currency of Canada, that is to say, for every seventy-five
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cents of Nova Scotia currency, by seventy-three cents of Canada
currency, and so in proportion for any greater or less sum; and if in
any such sum there be a fraction of a cent in the equivalent in
Canada currency, the nearest whole cent shall be taken.

4. Resolved, That it is expedient to provide, that on and after the
said day, no Dominion note or bank note payable in any other
currency than the currency of Canada shall be issued or re-issued
by the Government of Canada, or by any bank, and that all such
notes issued before the said day, shall, as soon as practicable, be
called in and redeemed, or notes payable in the currency of Canada
shall be substituted or exchanged for them.

5. Resolved, That it is expedient to provide, that any gold coins
which Her Majesty may cause to be struck for circulation in
Canada, of a standard fineness prescribed by law for the gold coins
of the United Kingdom, and bearing the same proportion in weight
to that of the British sovereign, which five dollars bear to four
dollars eighty-six cents and two-thirds of a cent, shall pass current
and be a legal tender in Canada for five dollars, and any multiples
or divisions of such coin, which Her Majesty may cause to be
struck for like purposes, shall pass current and be a legal tender in
Canada at rates proportionate to their intrinsic value respectively;
and that any such coins shall pass by such names as Her Majesty
may assign to them in her Proclamation, declaring them a legal
tender, and shall be subject to the like allowance for remedy as
British coins.

6. Resolved, That it is expedient to provide, that the coins which
Her Majesty has caused to be struck for circulation in the Provinces
of Quebec, Ontario and New Brunswick, under the Acts now in
force in the said Provinces, respectively, shall continue to be current
therein, and shall, on and after the said day, be current in the
Province of Nova Scotia, at the rates and the said currency of
Canada, now assigned to them respectively by the said Acts, and
under such conditions and provisions as are mentioned therein; and
that such other silver, copper or bronze coins as Her Majesty may
cause to be struck for circulation in Canada, being of the proper
weight and fineness, shall pass current in Canada at the rates to be
assigned to them respectively by Her Majesty’s Royal
Proclamation; and all such silver coins, as aforesaid, being a legal
tender to the amount of ten dollars, and such copper or bronze coins
to the amount of twenty-five cents, in any one payment; but no
other silver or copper coins than those which Her Majesty shall
have cause to be struck for circulation in Canada or in some
Province thereof, shall be a legal tender or pass current in Canada;
and that Her Majesty may, by proclamation, from time to time, fix
the rates at which any foreign gold coins of the description, date,
weight and fineness, mentioned in such Proclamation, shall pass
current in Canada.

7. Resolved, That it is expedient that all Acts or laws inconsistent
with the foregoing Resolutions be repealed, and that one Act for
giving effect to the same, and applying to all Canada, be passed.
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Hon. Mr. GRAY in the chair.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS said he hardly knew that he had
any observations to make to the House on this occasion. It seemed
to him that the assimilation of the currency had commended itself to
the opinion of every hon. member in this House so completely, that
it was hardly necessary to say one word with respect to the
resolutions which he had introduced. He very much regretted that
there was not the entire satisfaction to the measure in the Province
of Nova Scotia, which had a different currency from other parts of
the Dominion. He had reason to fear that they were hardly yet
reconciled to have the currency assimilated, but the question was
not one for the Dominion of Canada alone, but the object was to
have an assimilated currency throughout the whole of this
continent. (Hear, hear.) He thought it must be obvious that the time
had arrived that this assimilation should be made. (Hear, hear.) It
was one of the objects proposed on this occasion to put an end to
having British silver any longer a legal tender in the country. He
thought it was exceedingly desirable that the only legal tender
should be our own coin.

It had been found by experience that the British silver was
exceedingly inconvenient for circulation and there were fears and
very obvious reasons that a coin which answered very well for a
subsidiary coin in the British Islands, but which might not be found
to suit our comparatively small population might be thrown upon us
in large quantities. It was in itself depreciated and really and truly
was no better intrinsically than the coins of the United States, which
we had so much trouble in removing, and we must remember that if
it ever should circulate in such quantities it would produce exactly
the same effects as the American silver did. He thought it, therefore,
advisable that an end should be put to that. He believed we had
sufficient quantity of our own silver, and as there was no difficulty
in procuring the coin, there was no necessity to resort to the silver
of other countries.

There was another provision in this bill respecting gold coins.
They would still continue to be legal tenders, and he was bound to
say that he could not conceive any circumstances under which it
would be advisable, as long as gold coins continued at their present
value, that they should cease to be legal tender in this country. The
British gold in circulation in this country was under one-tenth of the
whole amount; that was to say that for one sovereign in circulation
there were nine half-eagles. Whether it might be desirable to have
Canadian gold coins he could not say at present. However, it was
quite premature to discuss at present the advisability of issuing
Canadian coins. From inquiries he had made, he had discovered that
the banks preferred American half-eagles to British sovereigns, it
being found that the sovereigns were not worth as much as the
American coin.

With regard to copper coinage it was provided that the bronze
cents should be the only legal tender. He proposed that the Act
should come into operation on the 1st of July, 1871. All existing
liabilities would be settled in the currency in which they were
contracted, and although, no doubt, some inconvenience would be
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experienced, he trusted it would be but of short duration. He
referred to the time when there had been different currencies in
England and Ireland, and said he had a distinct recollection of the
dissatisfaction expressed when these currencies were assimilated,
but it had soon ended, and he was satisfied that in the case of the
Dominion the benefit would soon be experienced, and that Nova
Scotians would be amongst those best satisfied with the change.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON considered that the necessity of a uniform
currency was self-evident, and that the resolutions before the House
very thoroughly met the requirements of the case. He was glad there
would be an entire displacement of British silver, which was a
grievance almost as great as the American silver had been. He was
not, however, disposed to assent to a gold coinage, as he thought it
would prove most costly, and without commensurate advantage. He
also thought that the American gold standard was not identical with
that of England and consequently the proposed Canadian half-eagle
would not be of the exact value of the American half-eagle.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS explained that the difference in
fineness would be met by a proportionate difference in weight, so as
to make the two coins of exactly the same intrinsic value.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON admitted that the difficulty could in that
way be obviated, but maintained that the wording of the resolutions
did not admit of such being done. He thought that the effect of the
6th clause was to confirm the action of the government in issuing
silver coins, for which he was inclined to think, there was no
authority in law.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER: Plenty of authority.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON was aware that there were acts in the old
province, but did not remember any bill since the 1st July 1867. He
did not object, but merely pointed out the effect of the clause.

On the whole he approved of the resolutions.

Mr. CHIPMAN moved in amendment that all after the word
““expedient’” should be struck out, and that the following should be
substituted, that the currency of Nova Scotia should remain
unchanged, and should not be assimilated to that of the United
States, while we are a dependency of the British Crown. He feared
that the Finance Minister and the Leader of the Opposition being in
accord in the matter, Nova Scotia would, with its small
representation, go to the wall, unless the House accorded them that
generosity to which they had a right. He pointed out the Nova
Scotia currency was based on the decimal system, the English
sovereign passing for $5, and the English shilling for 25 cents, and
urged that any change made by the Dominion Parliament would
create very great dissatisfaction. He then read a resolution of the
Nova Scotia Assembly opposing any change in the currency except
on an international basis and claimed for it the respect and
consideration of the House as representing the opinion of the people
of Nova Scotia at large. He considered it his duty thus to bring the
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matter before the House, and should demand a vote on his
amendment. He further objected to the time proposed for the
coming into operation of the measure, on the ground that
throughout Nova Scotia all mercantile accounts were closed on the
1st January, and urged therefore that in order to have as little
confusion and inconvenience as possible, the time should be the 1st
of January. He concluded by asking that Nova Scotia should receive
at the hands of the Government the same considerations that had
been extended to it on former occasions, and that the measure
would at least be postponed until another session.

Hon. Mr. TILLEY thought it was quite clear that the member
for Kings was a young member of that House, or he would not have
asked consideration for Nova Scotia on account of its small
representation, for no one could question that the interests of Nova
Scotia had ever been treated with the greatest consideration. The
assimilation of the currency had been one of the advantages that
was expected to result specially from Confederation, and it had
simply been postponed hitherto on account of the representations of
members from Nova Scotia, who, session after session, had urged
that no change should take place while there was the least prospect
of an international currency, but now that that prospect was so
entirely done away with there could be no possible reason for
further postponement. As far as New Brunswick was concerned, he
did not hesitate to say that the prospect of this assimilation had been
one of the strongest reasons for agreeing to Confederation, and he
was confident that in a very short time after the change had been
effected Nova Scotia would be as much pleased as any other
portion of the Dominion. He detailed the many difficulties and the
great inconvenience experienced throughout Nova Scotia in all
matters of Customs and Excise, and in fact in every transaction
between businessmen and any of the public offices.

As to the time at which the change should take place, he pointed
out the great importance of its taking effect from the beginning of
the financial year, the 1st July, as otherwise one half year of the
Public Accounts would be under a different system to the other, and
if the Finance Minister could be prepared to introduce a sufficient
supply of the new silver coinage into Nova Scotia at the
commencement of the act, he anticipated very little inconvenience.
He instanced the great inconvenience and loss a merchant from
Ontario or Quebec would sustain, if, after collecting accounts in
Nova Scotia and returning home, he found the amount of notes he
had received nominally correct, but in reality 3 or 4 per cent below
their value from being payable at Halifax, and he could state
positively that great loss had been experienced in New Brunswick
in that way, and there could be no possible reason for allowing such
a state of things to continue—notwithstanding the resolution of the
Assembly of Nova Scotia that had been read, he knew that there
existed a great division of opinion in that Province on the subject,
and he read an extract from a letter from Mr. John R. Ryerson of
Yarmouth, Nova Scotia urging the assimilation of the currency and
urging also that that assimilation should come into effect as soon as
possible. As to losses which it was anticipated might result on
contracts entered into previous to the change, he mentioned that a
gentleman in Nova Scotia, who was acknowledged to have devoted
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more time and attention to the subject than any other in the
province, Mr. Jack, had published an article some years previously,
for the purpose of urging the Dominion to accept the currency of
Nova Scotia, in which he shewed that though there might be
unconvenience there need be neither gain nor loss. He read an
extract from the article. He trusted not only that the principle of the
measure would be accepted by the House, but that no postponement
would take place in the date on which it was to take effect.

Mr. McDONALD (Lunenburg) when this question had been
previously discussed he had considered it his duty to oppose it as
unjust to Nova Scotia, so long as there was any possibility of an
international currency, but from the moment that project ceased to
be a possibility, he made up his mind that there was no further
reason for opposing an assimilation of the currency of the
Dominion. He had always regarded that assimilation as inevitable in
one way or another, and while, as a Nova Scotian, regretting the
inconvenience to which his Province would be subjected, he was
compelled to admit that it would be unfair to subject the other three
Provinces to the inconvenience of changing their currency to that of
Nova Scotia, and he fully admitted that opinion was by no means
unanimous on the question in Nova Scotia. As to the time, he
thought it a matter open to discussion, but the assimilation he
regarded as inevitable.

Hon. Mr. HOWE had listened with very great pleasure to the
maiden speech of the member for Kings, and was only sorry that he
had to oppose him, but the question was now before them in such a
way that it could not be withstood, and with regard to one particular
remark of the member for Kings he could not help saying that
though the representatives of Nova Scotia were in a minority, they
had invariably received the greatest consideration. The question had
been staved off time after time in the hope of an international
currency, but such a hope was now at an end, and as gentlemen he
thought Nova Scotia members could not ask the majority of the
House further to postpone the matter. He referred to the
establishment of the present Nova Scotia currency by the present
Chief Justice, Sir William Young, recalling how he (Hon. Mr.
Howe) had urged, though in vain, that that currency should be the
same as that in use on the remainder of the continent. He admitted
that in their transactions with England, Nova Scotians found their
currency most convenient, but maintained that in other transactions
it was most inconvenient. He was sure ample provisions had been
made to avoid all loss on dealings commenced before the change,
and though inconvenience and even dissatisfaction might arise, the
question would have to come sometime, and it might just as well
Come Now.

Mr. OLIVER feared that when the English silver and the twenty
cent pieces were withdrawn from circulation there would be a great
scarcity of silver, and now that the banks were prohibited from
issuing smaller notes than $4, the small notes would naturally be
withheld and consequently there would be a greater demand for
silver, and he would press this matter on the attention of the
Minister of Finance.
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Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS assured the hon. member for
Oxford North that he had been constantly considering the question,
as he had felt that it would be most disadvantageous to have either
too much or too little silver. He thought, however, that no one had a
better opportunity of knowing the exact state of affairs than he had,
and he well understood that the withdrawal of twenty cent pieces
and British silver would necessitate a greater quantity of Canadian
silver, but he stated that the difficulties in obtaining supplies of the
new coinage experienced in the first instance were now obviated,
and that fresh supplies could be obtained on a very short notice. As
to the time at which the new measures should take effect, he found
it would be very difficult to ascertain how much of the new
coinage, either gold or silver, would be required when that time
came, and he therefore considered it most important that it should
be at a time of the year when fresh supplies could be obtained with
the least possible delay and expense.

Mr. CHIPMAN then agreed to withdraw his amendment, on the
understanding that he would move it again when the resolutions
came up for concurrence.

Mr. GIBBS said that two of the chief benefits that had been
promised from Confederation were the encouragement of
commercial intercourse between the Provinces, and the assimilation
of the currency. The one had been accomplished, and the other had
only been deferred in consideration for the Province of Nova
Scotia. The necessity for assimilation was universally conceded,
and needed no argument. He thought that in return for the
consideration shown to Nova Scotia in the repeated postponements
of the matter they ought to withhold all opposition and allow the
measure to pass unanimously. The question was whether the larger
should yield to the smaller, or the smaller to the larger. There might
be a little difficulty, but it would very soon be overcome and the
Nova Scotians would soon find that the change was most beneficial.

Mr. SAVARY was just as much in favour of the Nova Scotian
currency as any one could be, and had urged his views session after
session, but felt that the House was so decided in the matter that it
would be useless to oppose the resolution. He thought the true
question was which was the best currency, and although he felt
strongly in the matter, he would not repeat his opinions as he knew
it would be useless. Referring to the question of an international
currency, he stated that the project had fallen through, not because
of the unhappy position of France and other European countries, but
because the American Government had refused to accede to the
recommendations of the Paris conference. He should certainly
support the amendment of the member for Kings, but that failing he
should not further oppose the measure, as he thought the anomaly
of the Dominion having different currencies should not exist any
longer.

Mr. CHIPMAN said he thought he had heard the hon. member
for Hants say that no Gentleman could oppose the measure—
(laughter)—but trusted he had misunderstood him. In reply to the
member for Oshawa he thought the question was not whether *‘the
larger should yield to the smaller, nor the smaller to the larger’” but
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which was the best currency, and as the Nova Scotia currency was
based on the British coinage, he certainly thought it more patriotic
(cheers and laughter) for those who believed in British connection
to pay homage to their Sovereign. (Renewed laughter.) When the
resolutions came up for concurrence he should endeavour to
address himself directly to the point, and test the sense of the
House.

The 1st, 2nd and 3rd clauses were then passed.
In reply to Mr. Killam’s question on the 4th resolution,

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS stated that every security would
be given as regards the notes, gold and silver coin. With regard to
the standard of fineness for their gold coin, they could not use the
Mint of the United States, though on the ground of the desirability
of uniformity he would prefer their standard. Having to go to the
Royal Mint, the English standard of fineness would have to be
chosen. But the Canadian coin, though not of the same standard as
that of the Republic, would be of the same value; of that there need
be no doubt or fear.

Hon. Mr. ANGLIN hoped the Finance Minister would hesitate
long before resorting to an issue of a gold coin currency, though he
might take power in the Bill therefore. In the settlement of foreign
exchanges it would be of less value than American or English coin,
however equal to either nation’s coin it might be in Canada.
Besides, we did not want a new coinage, having all the coin we
needed at present.

The 5th and remaining resolutions were passed, and the
Committee rose. The report to be received on Tuesday next.

PATENT ACT

The order for the second reading of Mr. Oliver’s Bill to amend
the Patent Act being called,

Mr. OLIVER said his Bill had not yet been printed in French,
and, therefore, he could not go on with it, but hoped to go on with it
at an early day.

* % %

NEW BRUNSWICK ORDNANCE LANDS

Mr. COSTIGAN inquired whether the Ordnance Lands in New
Brunswick had been transferred by the Imperial Government; if so,
do they intend to dispose of them, and under what system. If no
such transfer has yet been made, is it the intention of the
Government to take any steps to obtain such transfer?
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Hon. Sir GEORGE E.-CARTIER said that a certain portion of
the Ordnance Lands in New Brunswick were transferred to the
Government of Canada—a portion of them in the vicinity of
Fredericton. As to the remainder, the matter had not yet engaged the

103

attention of the Government, but would soon.

There being no other orders on the paper ready to proceed with,
the motion for an adjournment till Monday was carried, at 5.45 p.m.






COMMONS DEBATES

March 6, 1871

105

HOUSE OF COMMONS

Monday, March 6, 1871

The SPEAKER took the chair at 3.20 p.m.

Prayers

Several petitions were presented.

* * %

NEW BILLS

Mr. HARRISON introduced a Bill to remove doubts as to
Premium notes taken or held by Insurance Companies. In reply to
Hon. Mr. Holton, he explained that under the present Act, notes
taken under some circumstances by Insurance Companies were not
stamped. In the Bill he now introduced, he proposed that all notes
should be stamped.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON asked if it was not beyond the province of
the hon. member to introduce such a measure by which it was
proposed to impose taxation.

Hon. Mr. CAMERON (Peel) was of opinion that the Bill should
be introduced by the Government. All promissory notes required
stamps, and he had never seen any unstamped. At any rate he
thought the Bill could not be introduced by a private member.

Mr. HARRISON said the Bill he now introduced was to enable
those who had been mistaken in the construction of the present Act,
to put themselves right, not to impose any duty.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT believed the Government should deal with
all such measures. This was the first case of which he was aware in
which a private member proposed to legislate on fiscal regulations.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON said the bill must first be introduced by
resolutions.

Mr. HARRISON said the principal object of the bill was to
render valid, securities which were now invalid. On two former
occasions he had introduced similar measures which were referred
to special committees. The general law as it now stood imposed a
tax, and the bill before the House was simply to enable those who
had mistaken the nature of that bill to correct their errors.

Hon. M. HOLTON said the Bill was out of order on the face of
it; and the proper time to raise the point of order was at the
introduction of the Bill, before the expense of printing was incurred.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER reiterated his opinion.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON submitted his point of order to Mr.
Speaker.

The SPEAKER said he could only decide upon the motion
before him, and could only gather from the Bill what its purport
was to be. The Bill was to remove legal doubts as to the validity of
promissory notes. He saw nothing in the motion that should induce
him to rule it was not in order. He thought a Bill to remove doubts
on a question was always admissible by any private member. This
Bill was to remove legal doubts as to the validity of promissory
notes, and he thought this was its sole purport, and such being the
case the Bill could be introduced.

The bill was read a first time.

* * x

A MISUNDERSTANDING CORRECTED

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS presented a return of the number
and names of the employees connected with the Finance
Department. He remarked at the same time that none of these
gentlemen had been employed in the arbitration question. The cause
of the statement that had been made was this:—In the time of his
predecessor, experienced men were required by the Local
Governments. Four gentlemen connected with the Finance
Department were unemployed, and for their services received some
small remuneration, but they had nothing to do with the arbitration
question.

* * %

THE ESTIMATES

A message from His Excellency, submitting a portion of the
estimates for 1872, to the House, was read.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS in reply to Hon. Sir A.T. Galt,
said returns of expenditures for the current year to as late a date as
possible would be laid before the House tomorrow.
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In reply to Hon. Mr. Holton, Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS said
it was not his intention to make the Financial statement tomorrow.
He would simply move the House into Committee of Supply and
pass a few items, to which no objection could be made. The
financial statement would be made on Friday.

* * %

SAVINGS BANKS RESOLUTIONS

Hon. Mr. HOLTON inquired how it was that the savings banks
resolutions had been made public, but had not yet been submitted to
the members.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS said they had not been made
public with the sanction, direct or indirect, of any member of the
Government.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON said that information must have been
published at an early period, for the substance of the measure had
been telegraphed to Montreal, and appeared in a Montreal paper on
Saturday.

The subject was dropped.

* * %

SALARIES OF POSTMASTERS

Mr. MACFARLANE asked whether it is the intention of the
Government to reimburse Postmasters paid by percentage the
deficiency in the emoluments of their offices occasioned by the
decreased postal rates created by 31 Vic., Cap. 10, so that the
revenues received by them from such offices (since the
establishment of such rates) may be repleted to make up an annual
income equal to that received by them previous to the passage of
said Act; and also whether any promise or suggestion was at any
time made by the Postmaster General to any such officers that such
would be done.

Hon. Mr. TUPPER replied that although there had been a
considerable falling off in the post office receipts at the time the
reduction of postal rates was made, the receipts were increasing.
When the change had been made, the percentage of Postmasters
was increased. He assured his hon. friends that the Postmasters did
not suffer in any way from the decreased postal rates.

* * %

RIVER IMPROVEMENTS

Mr. COSTIGAN asked whether the officers appointed by
Government to make surveys of the Rivers Saint John and
Madawaska, with a view of improving the navigation of the same,
have yet reported thereon, and if so, what action the Government
intend taking in the matter?
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Hon. Mr. LANGEVIN said that the officers appointed by
Government to make surveys on the River Saint John and the
Madawaska had reported thereon, and the report showed that these
surveys were very extensive. The hon. member could not expect
him now to give a résumé of the whole report, but he had no doubt
if the hon. member would move at a future day for the production
of the report it would be given, and the hon. member would find
that it was very interesting. Several suggestions were made in it by
the engineer, and the hon. member would see by the Estimates that
Government intended to meet them. The hon. gentleman would also
see that since the survey had been ordered events had occurred
which would render certain changes necessary. New railways, to
which large land grants had been made, were to be constructed,
which might change the plans of the Government altogether in that
direction.

* * %

LEGISLATIVE UNION

Hon. Mr. SMITH (Westmorland) asked whether the
Government have had any correspondence with the local
Governments of Nova Scotia and New Brunswick on the subject of
a legislative union of those two provinces, which it is so desirable
to accomplish.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said there was no
correspondence on the subject, but if the hon. gentleman would
allow him to give his individual wish, he could say he wished such
correspondence did exist, taking in also Prince Edward Island, so as
to make one large maritime Province.

* k% %

THE TARIFF

Mr. BOWMAN asked whether it is the intention of the
Government to revise the Customs Tariff during the present
Session, and if so, whether they intend to place ‘‘Vegetable Ivory
Nut’’ on the free list.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS: The hon. member will have to
wait for an answer.

THE RED RIVER EXPEDITION

Mr. MASSON (Soulanges) moved for copies of all Orders in
Council relative to the Red River Expedition with copies of
correspondence between the Dominion Government and Colonel
Wolseley.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said that the Government
would gladly comply with the request of the hon. member as far as
possible, but he would inform the hon. gentleman that there was no
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correspondence with Col. Wolseley to be produced. When the two
Canadian battalions were organized they were handed over to the
charge of Gen. Lindsay, who appointed Col. Wolseley as their
commander. All the correspondence from that time forward was
with General Lindsay, and he suggested that the hon. member
should amend his motion by substituting that officer’s name for
Col. Wolseley’s.

The motion was accordingly amended and carried.

* * %

MR. MOYLAN, EMIGRATION AGENT

In the absence of Hon. Mr. McConnell, who had given notice of
the motion,

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North) moved an address
for copies of instructions to Mr. J. G. Moylan, Emigrant Agent for
the Dominion Government in Ireland, and of all correspondence
respecting the letters written by Mr. Moylan, respecting the action
of the Imperial Government in the release of Fenians, adding to it,
copies of all correspondence respecting the attack made by Mr.
Moylan, through the press on Dr. Ryerson, Superintendent of
Education. He said—It appears that this gentleman, Mr. Moylan,
who was formerly connected with the press in this country, has
been selected and sent to Europe by the Dominion Government for
the purpose of inducing emigration, and that, following the
profession to which he had been accustomed, he has been a very
voluminous writer since his arrival on the other side of the Atlantic.
His letters have appeared in the public press, covering a very wide
field, and he had dated them from ‘“The Canadian Government
Emigration office, Dublin.”” In a letter addressed to Mr. Gladstone
on the subject of the action taken by the Imperial Government in the
proposed release of the Fenian prisoners then confined in Ireland,
he undertook to express his opinion of the policy of the Imperial
Government, and of the effect of that policy in Canada, and also to
express his view of what those who employed him would and did
think of that policy. He spoke with great authority stating that the
Dominion and its Government would be slow to appreciate the
action of the Imperial Government in the matter, and that Her
Majesty’s Government were exposing to great risk the people of
Canada in sending those Fenians into their neighbourhood and that
in so doing they showed but little feeling for the Canadians. He also
desired to call the attention of the House to another matter which
perhaps would be more directly interesting to them.

He thought it was generally presumed that when agents were
selected, and sent to foreign countries in order to make known the
merits of Canada, they should at least present the advantages
offered to emigrants in the most favorable aspect consistent with the
truth; but Mr. Moylan seemed to have taken a different view of his
duty, and on one occasion when writing of the educational system
of Upper Canada, he stated his great regret at being compelled to
state that the gentleman at the head of that institution was a
Methodist minister, and that he used his position to benefit the body
to which he belonged. The letter containing this statement was
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published in the Irish Times, and was also headed from the
*“Canadian Emigration Office.”” With reference to this charge the
Chief Superintendent of Education, had thought it his duty to
contradict it directly and pointedly, stating that during the twenty-
seven years during which he had had charge of the Educational
Department not a single instance of proselytising had occurred, that
on a previous occasion when Mr. Moylan had made a similar
statement in Canada, in a newspaper with which he was then
connected, he had been challenged to name such an instance, and
had been unable to do so, and that therefore he had stated what he
knew to be untrue, and further that he had made a false statement
with regard to the whole system of education. Hon. Mr. McDougall
then read a statement prepared by Mr. Ryerson, showing that there
were in the schools, which Mr. Moylan had represented to be
entirely Protestant, 327 Roman Catholic teachers, and that out of
the 246 worn teachers, who were receiving pensions, the larger
number were Roman Catholics and also showing that as regards
religions that the whole system was thoroughly impartial. He
thought that to say the least it was unfortunate that anyone acting
under the official sanction of, and paid by the Dominion
Government, should go to any country and so misrepresent and
falsify the facts connected with Canadian institutions.

Hon. Mr. DUNKIN said the hon. gentleman was very fond
indeed of hitting at the Government; he thought he was correct in
saying that the present was not the first occasion on which he had
hit at actions of the Governments of which he himself had been a
member. The hon. gentlemen desired very much to see the
instructions given to Mr. Moylan, but he (Hon. Mr. Dunkin)
thought he knew as much about them as any one, for Mr. Moylan
had been appointed in August 1869, when the hon. gentleman was
himself a member of the Government, and as such responsible for
the appointment, and though he did not remember the precise time
at which Mr. Moylan had received his instructions, he believed they
had issued at a time when the hon. gentleman was a member of the
Government and also when he was acting as such. He thought it
was not the first time the hon. gentleman had thrown a boomerang,
without taking into consideration the effect of the recoil, but he had
no hesitation in saying that there would not be the slightest
objection to the production of the papers. He thought Mr. Moylan
was sufficiently well known in this country to render needless any
defence of his general fitness for the position he occupied. With
regard to the indiscreet letters he had written, although he (Hon. Mr.
Dunkin) had no official knowledge of them, he had thought it his
duty to address a quiet letter to Mr. Moylan, which would be
produced with the other papers in which he had instructed him not
to be guilty of any similar indiscretions in future. The gravamen of
the charge seemed to be that the productions had appeared under an
official heading. With regard to the portion of the motion added by
the hon. member for Lanark North, although he had no objection to
the addition, he wished to say that as there had been no notice of the
matter, he had not thought it necessary to read the letters referred to,
as they had never come before him officially.

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North) said that the hon.
gentleman who had just addressed the House in common with the
other members of the Government, seemed to imagine that the kind
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of retort used justified them, and very much damaged him. With
respect to his responsibility for Acts of an Administration of which
he had been a member, he knew how much to share and how much
to decline, and he would say that it certainly did not lie in the mouth
of the hon. gentleman who had spoken or in those of his colleagues
to take that line of argument. With respect to the particular motion
before the House, he had moved it simply in the absence of an hon.
member who had been stricken down with illness; still he fully
agreed in the object of the motion, and he did not entertain any
apprehension as to the effect which would be produced on the
Government or himself, by the production of the instructions for
which he had asked. On the contrary, he was anxious that they be
supplied, as if they had been drawn up during the time he had been
in the Government, he was confident they contained no instructions
to correspond with Ministers of State in England, attacking them for
their policy, or to take any of the other objectionable proceedings
adapted by Mr. Moylan. The hon. gentlemen opposite had not
thought it inconsistent with their duty or beneath their dignity to
disavow all responsibility for Acts of Administration, which had
occurred while he was a member of the Government; or to
endeavour to place on his shoulders the whole responsibility of
those Acts. He might mention many instances, but he would confine
himself to one, in which a pamphlet acknowledged by a Minister of
Crown, the Minister of Finance, had been distributed, probably at
the public expense, in which it had been stated, with reference to
the surveys ordered in the North West, that the course taken by
Colonel Dennis acting on instructions given him, was the most
imprudent that could have been adopted, and could only be ascribed
as infatuation. And when the hon. gentlemen could take so mean, so
despicable, so unworthy a course as this to disavow their
responsibility for Acts of an Administration with which he had been
connected, for the purpose of gaining the applause of their friends,
and avoiding the censure of their enemies, he thought they had
better not charge him with any share of responsibility in the matter
in question. He repeated, however, that so far as the first
instructions were concerned, he was in no way apprehensive, as to
their containing anything wrong. The gravamen of the charge was
that Mr. Moylan, speaking in the name of the Government, and if
authorized to do so, had made a number of statements that were
utterly false, and he wished to ascertain whether the Government
had ordered his instant dismissal, and if not he charged them with
the responsibility of the letters that had been written and of the
attack on the educational system of Upper Canada, and with all the
evil consequences that might occur.

Hon. Mr. DUNKIN was very glad that the hon. gentleman had
in some degree felt the answer that had been made, and this was
fully shown by his falling back on two lines of defence, neither of
which, however, would hold. He had had to say that the motion did
not originate with him, but when a gentleman took up any motion,
he (Hon. Mr. Dunkin) thought he made himself answerable for it. In
his opening speech the hon. gentleman had spoken of Mr. Moylan’s
indiscretions as being of course consequent on the instructions sent
him, and when reminded that the instructions had been given partly
by himself, he changed his mind and said they were no doubt
perfectly right. He congratulated his hon. friend on having, for
once, attacked where he had no right to attack.
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FISHERIES

Mr. MASSON (Soulanges) moved an address for copies of all
correspondence between the Department of Marine and Fisheries
and Admiral Wellesley in regard to protection of Fisheries,
mentioning certain rumours that were afloat on the subject, and
saying that he believed an insult had been offered to the
Government by Admiral Wellesley, and he desired to ascertain the
truth of the matter.

Hon. Mr. TUPPER said there would not be the slightest
objection to bringing down the correspondence asked for, but that
with reference to the concluding remarks of the member for
Soulanges, he might say that it would be found that the Government
had no reason whatever to complain of Admiral Wellesley, who had
given every possible assistance in carrying out the wishes of the
Dominion Government. The bulk of the correspondence had
already been brought down, but if there was anything further that
would throw any light on the subject it would be produced.

The motion was carried.

* % %

NORTH WEST EXPEDITION

Mr. McCALLUM moved an address for a statement of vessels
chartered for transportation of men and material in the Expedition
to the North West Territory, in 1870, together with particulars of
their tonnage, nationality, capacity, time employed and amount paid
for each per day.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER suggested that the mover
should add to his motion a request for similar particulars of vessels
chartered by the Imperial Government, a portion of the expense of
which the Canadian Government would of course have to bear, as
the Expedition had been under the command of General Lindrey.

Mr. McCALLUM said that he had no objection to amend his
motion as suggested, although he merely desired information as far
as the Canadian Government was concerned, and stated that there
were many rumours as to their having been much mismanagement
in the matter, and as to many American vessels being employed at a
large expense when Canadian vessels ought to have been employed,
and he desired to ascertain the correctness of that rumour.

Motion was then carried as amended.

* k% %

ARBITRATION

Hon. Mr. DORION moved that the House should go into a
Committee of the Whole to take into consideration four resolutions
as follows:
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1. That the division between the Province of Ontario and the
Province of Quebec, of the surplus of the debt of the former
Province of Canada, over and above the sum of $62,500,000,
assigned to the Dominion of Canada by the British North America
Act, presents great difficulties, which it has not hitherto been
possible to overcome in a satisfactory manner.

2. That the difficulties resulting as well from the uncertainty as to
the amount of the debt to be divided, as from the absence of an
acceptable base for the making of such division, and that of the
assets remaining in common to those two Provinces, threaten to
give rise to serious embarrassment.

3. That for the avoidance of such difficulties, the debt of the
former Province of Canada should be assigned entirely to the
Dominion as though it had been so from the first, with
compensation to the Provinces of New Brunswick and Nova Scotia
for the share which those Provinces would have to pay upon the
surplus of that debt.

4. That an humble Address be presented to Her Majesty, praying
Her to be pleased to recommend that the British North America Act
should be amended in accordance with these Resolutions.

Hon. Mr. DORION said that it was well known to the House
that the Union Act contained a provision that out of the whole debt
of Canada, $62,500,000 should be assumed by the Dominion, and
that the balance should be divided between the Provinces of Ontario
and Quebec, in such way as might be determined by arbitration.
After three and a half years an award had been obtained, which,
however, in his opinion, decided nothing at all. It would have
seemed that the first thing to be ascertained was the exact amount to
be divided, yet the award did not speak of it, and in fact there were
at present three different statements of that amount. The Dominion
Auditor stated it at $10,800,000; the Treasurer of Ontario at
$18,539,000; and the Treasurer of Quebec at $10,000,000. The
Avrbitrators in their award had made no mention of the respective
amounts to be paid, but had merely stated that each Province should
pay a certain proportion.

It had been stated that the Arbitrators had no right to determine
the amounts, but such was not his opinion. The duty prescribed for
the Arbitrators was to “‘divide’” and ‘‘adjust’ the amount to be
paid, and surely if it had not been intended that the Arbitrators
should define the amounts why had the word “‘adjust’ been used.
The intention plainly was that the Arbitrators should first determine
the amount to be divided, and then divide it between the two
provinces. They had in their award come to a very minute
calculation, deciding that Ontario should pay the proportion which
$9,808,728.02 bears to $18,587,520.57 and Quebec the proportion
of $8,778,792.55 to $18,587,520.57; but they had not stated the
amount to be divided, so that at present no accountant could state
definitely what each province had to pay. It was also impossible to
ascertain on what principle the two Arbitrators had acted, as they
had given no reasons.

109

To shew the operation of the award he had made a calculation of
what the provinces would have to pay, taking the total amount to be
as stated by the Treasurer of Ontario, $10,539,553.92. That
calculation shewed that under these circumstances Ontario would
have to pay $5,561,785, and Quebec $4,877,678, or only $583,000
less than Ontario. Taking the division according to population, and
estimating that of Ontario at the time of the union at 2,000,000 and
that of Quebec at 1,400,000, Ontario would have to pay $6,199,737,
and Quebec $4,339,816, or $1,859,921 less than Ontario. Even
taking the population on the census of 1861 when Ontario had
1,395,000 and Quebec 1,110,000, Ontario would have to pay
$5,863,738 and Quebec $4,675,815, or $607,000 less than Ontario.
He thought, taking these figures into consideration, it was
inconceivable how the Arbitrators had arrived at their conclusion.
Referring to the division of the assets, he continued, these are not
very numerous, consisting of 19 items. The amount awarded to
Ontario is $7,011,604, while to Quebec it is only $4,191,022, but
those of Ontario are estimated at between $2 million and $3 million,
and those of Quebec at $2,087,000, or those of Ontario 28 1/6 per
cent, and Quebec 48 per cent.

Taking one of these items as an example, there is the Municipal
Loan Fund, $6,618,050 in Ontario, valued at $1,920,000 or 28 1/6
per cent, while in Quebec it is $2,939,000, valued at $1,410,000, or
49 per cent, although the Ontario municipalities were better able to
pay than those of Quebec. By a statement among the papers it
appeared that the cost of the Assets was $17,734,000, but by a note
at the foot it was stated at $1,587,000, indicating that the cost of the
Assets had been the basis upon which the Arbitrators had acted.
Further, there was an item on the part of Quebec of $3,715,000 for
the seignorial tenure, which, however, he considered no asset at all,
but a corresponding amount of indemnity had been given to
Ontario. Taking the statements as they were, it was impossible to
ascertain by what mode of reasoning the division had been arrived
at. In looking over the award he found no correct principle on
which it had been based, and on looking over the whole of the
correspondence he could not find the principle which he considered
ought to have governed the Arbitrators, stated either by Ontario or
Quebec.

He had so far been speaking of the merits of the award, and it
must strike everyone that an award so decidedly in favour of
Ontario, which everyone knew had more money than it knew how
to dispose of, and which had been derived solely from the collection
of the debts due at the time of the Union, the amount due on Crown
Lands in that province, amounting to five or six millions, all of
which was capable of collection, while in Quebec it did not exceed
$1,400,000, a small portion only of which could be collected, could
not be just. The Treasurer of Ontario had expressed himself
perfectly willing to a division according to population, and when
the three Arbitrators discussed the question, Mr. Justice Day
maintained that the basis should be that of a partnership, while Mr.
McPherson maintained that it should be that of population, and yet
the two Arbitrators had made an award that it should be according
to the origin of certain claims or assets, notwithstanding that the
Treasurer and the Arbitrator of Ontario had both previously
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expressed their willingness to accept population as the basis. He
thought this clearly proved that the Dominion Arbitrator had not
been just to Lower Canada. He, however, considered that neither
the basis of population nor that of partnership was the one on which
the award should have been given, as however just the principle of
partnership might appear it would be very complicated.

His opinion was that the true principle was the ability of each
province to bear taxation and if instead of the provision made for
the division of the debt, it had been resolved to pay that debt, it
would doubtless have been done on this principle—the ability of
each province to bear taxation. The British North America Act of
1867 made no provision for anything in the way of a partnership
account to ascertain which of the two provinces had most benefitted
by the Union. It merely stated that the excess of debt beyond
$62,500,000 should be divided reasonably and equitably, and if the
Avrbitrators, instead of going into the origin of the items of
indebtedness of Upper and Lower Canada and then making an
arbitrary division, had merely applied themselves to ascertaining
the ability of the two provinces to bear taxation, they would very
soon have arrived at a just conclusion. He had merely spoken of the
injustice of the award towards Quebec, and did not impute any
motives to either of the two Arbitrators, as he did not doubt that
they had attempted to do justice, but he considered they had been
mistaken in their basis. In addition to the injustice of the award,
however, he did not consider it in any way valid, as it could not be,
when three Arbitrators had been appointed, that two of them could
continue their proceedings, and come to a conclusion in the absence
of the third. Up to July, nothing had been decided except the basis
upon which they were to proceed. At that time, Mr. Justice Day
resigned, his resignation was accepted, and the Arbitrators and the
Dominion Government were notified, and after that it was certainly
not competent for the remaining Arbitrators to make an award.

If the principle he had suggested had been adopted, there would
have been very little difficulty in acting upon it. They would simply
have to take the amount of surplus debt, and let each province
contribute in the exact proportion in which it contributed to the
taxation of the country. It would however have to be taken into
consideration that Nova Scotia and New Brunswick had been
brought in since, so that if the ten millions and a half were added to
the debt of Canada, those provinces would be paying some small
portion of it. But they could easily be compensated, and he had no
doubt that both those provinces would be very glad to get some
amount, as it would enable them to carry out some of their
contemplated improvements.

Hon. Mr. SMITH (Westmorland): How much would you give
us?

Hon. Mr. DORION would be willing to give them a very fair
proportion. His position was that the House should go into
Committee on his resolutions, so that the matter might be fully
discussed, and some equitable mode of division arrived at, in order
that the heavy expenses which would be incurred in case the legal
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proceedings already commenced were persevered in, might be
avoided.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said the resolutions and
proposed address were, at this stage, out of order, and could only be
considered on a resolution from the Governor General. (Hear,
hear.) The hon. member would find, on reference to the 54th clause
of the B.N.A. Act, that these resolutions should be recommended to
the House by an address from the Governor General.

Hon. Mr. DORION said the resolutions asked for no
appropriation of money. They merely asked Her Majesty for
permission to settle a question in a certain manner, and therefore,
did not contravene the terms of the 54th clause or the B.N.A. Act.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said the hon. member was
only playing on words. The resolutions asked that the Imperial
Government should by a certain act provide a compensation to New
Brunswick and Nova Scotia. If the resolutions did not mean that
they meant nothing at all.

AFTER RECESS

Mr. HARRISON resumed the debate on the point of order,
contending that section 54 of the Union Act was but an extension of
a rule of the British House of Commons, which provided that the
Government should have control of the public expenditure. This
rule was in practice always extended to motions involving an
expenditure of public money, even though no grant was actually
proposed. The third of the four resolutions was more than a mere
prayer for an address to the throne, and if acted on would
appropriate the public money as effectually as if actually done by
this Parliament. It seemed to him, therefore, that this was a
proposition on the part of a private member to increase the debt of
$10,500,000, and in so doing increase the taxes of the country, thus
directly contravening the terms of the 64th clause of the Union Act.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON said this was no motion involving an
expenditure of money, but simply an appeal to the Throne for
permission to amend an existing Act. He remembered a case similar
to this in Quebec, when Mr. Wallbridge was Speaker, in which it
was ruled that the resolution was not contrary to the rule of the
House referred to. He regretted exceedingly that his hon. friend
(Hon. Sir George-E. Cartier) should interpose this technical
objection to obtaining the judgment of the House on this important
question. The hon. gentleman, it seemed to him, should desire more
than anyone else in the House to have this matter set at rest.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER was sorry to hear the hon.
member for Chateauguay, who was at all times a sort of
constitutional executor, endeavouring to belittle these very forms
which were regarded as the safeguards of their constitutional
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privileges. The premises of his hon. friend’s arguments was that this
subject was not wholly clear of difficulties. Then the hon.
gentleman proceeds to give as a precedent a case in which Mr.
Wallbridge had ruled a resolution similar to this in order. But these
hon. members had forgotten to enter into details. The cases were
not similar and the present rule was more stringent than that of the
old Province of Canada. This was a question not to be viewed in a
provincial light, but on its merits.

Hon. Mr. DORION proposed to amend the Act by substituting
the following words for the fourth clause: “*That an humble address
be presented to Her Majesty, praying Her to be pleased to
recommend that the B.N.A. Act be amended so as to authorise the
Parliament of the Dominion to deal with the surplus debt of the
Province of Canada.”” Now he did not wish to interfere with the
hon. member’s point of order and this would remove all objections.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said Parliament would not be
prorogued tomorrow, and the hon. member could give notice of this
amendment in due form.

Hon. Mr. DORION said the hon. member must take upon
himself the blame of having opposed this motion of having
endeavoured to throw every obstacle in the way of doing simply
justice to Lower Canada. He warned the hon. member that this was
the view that would be taken of the hon. member’s action in
Quebec.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said that he was willing to
take the responsibility of his course, and he cared little for the
threats of the hon. member. He had met the hon. gentleman many a
time before the people of Lower Canada, and he (Hon. Sir George-
E. Cartier) had always come out best. (Laughter.) He had no desire
to throw obstacles in the way of the hon. member’s motion—on the
contrary, he desired to see this matter settled by proper means.

The SPEAKER ruled: ““The Motion proposes that an Address
be presented to Her Majesty, praying Her to recommend that the
British North America Act be amended, so that the Public Debt of
the Dominion be increased, and that compensation be made to the
Provinces of New Brunswick and Nova Scotia.”

““In my opinion this Motion cannot be entertained, it being in
contravention of the 54th Section of the Imperial Act for the union
of British North America. In that section it is provided that this
House shall not adopt any Vote, Resolution, Address, or Bill, for
the appropriation of any part of the Public Revenue, &c., &c., to
any purpose that has not been first recommended by Message of the
Governor General.

““The contention is that the proposed appropriation being beyond
the power of the Parliament of Canada this provision of the Statute
cannot therefore apply.
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“In its literal construction it does apply to the motion, and
certainly it seems to me to the full as necessary in a Constitutional
sense, to interpose the check of a Message from His Excellency,
under the responsibility of His Ministerial Advisers, before
adopting an Address which may be followed by Legislation,
imposing a burthen on the people by a Parliament and Ministers,
owing it no responsibility as in the case of a Bill or Motion for the
appropriation of money within our direct control.

*‘For these reasons, the Motion, in my opinion, is not in order.”’

* % %

ADMINISTRATION OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE

Mr. HARRISON moved for a return of names of all convicts
now in Kingston, St. John, and Halifax penitentiaries, &c. In
making this motion he explained that he wished to see if the
Administration of Criminal Justice was the same in all the
provinces. Now that uniformity had been secured in criminal
procedure, it was advisable that there should be uniformity, also in
the administration of Criminal Justice.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said that out of consideration
to the criminals, it was inadvisable to publish their names to the
world, and he would request of the hon. member, at least, to
postpone his motion to some future time.

The motion was allowed to stand.

* k x

GOVERNMENT RAILWAYS IN NOVA SCOTIA

Mr. BODWELL moved that the House go into a Committee of
the Whole, to consider the following resolutions:

1. That it appears from the Public Accounts for the year ending
30th June, 1870, that the Railways under Government management
in Nova Scotia have not paid the working expenses.

2. That it is inexpedient that the management of the railways of
the country, especially such as are not important as great national
works for defensive purposes, should be in the hands of the
Government, as such roads can be much more economically worked
as commercial undertakings in the hands of private parties or
companies.

3. That it is desirable to dispose by tender or otherwise as the
Government in Council may direct of all the Railways in Nova
Scotia and New Brunswick not forming parts of the Intercolonial
Railway now under the management of the Dominion Government,
to such persons or companies as will undertake to work them under
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the laws which now exist, or may hereafter be passed governing
Railways.

In making this motion he said he believed that in France railways
were aided by the Government in various ways. The same was the
case in other countries. When Confederation was established certain
roads in New Brunswick and Nova Scotia came into the possession
and under the control of the Dominion Government. Under the
Civil Governments they yielded a profit, which did not now appear
in the returns. Statistics showed a net annual increase of the revenue
from the Nova Scotia roads ranging from $21,000 in 1863 to
$34,000 in 1866. The first year after Confederation the net revenue
fell to $18,944. There had been loss ever since. On the Nova Scotia
roads in 1870 there was a loss of $140,000. They were set down as
assets to the value of $6,520,990. There should be no loss in assets.
The New Brunswick railways and those in other Provinces yielded
a profit, and in the hands of private corporations such works were
generally profitable. He thought the results in the present, as well as
in other cases, proved the desirability of leaving all such enterprises
under private direction—they should be taken out of the hands of
the Government, which was under too much temptation.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER: Too much pressure.

Mr. BODWELL continuing, reiterated arguments in favour of
removing Governments from that temptation or pressure connected
with the management of large public works. He understood that the
tariff of rates was considerably reduced since the roads came into
the control of the Dominion. These facts showed that there was a
necessity for reform. The fact that these railways cost $105,000 for
maintaining them during the past year was sufficient evidence that
they were mismanaged. He believed that the roads would be made
to pay if under the control of private companies.

Hon. Mr. LANGEVIN said that the hon. member was slightly in
error as to the figures he had given, and had omitted to mention
some very important facts connected with the matter. Since the
Dominion Government had assumed the management of the lines,
large expenditures had been caused by making extensive repairs on
them. The culverts and bridges, which were of wood, had all to be
renewed during the last three years. In the years 1869 and 1870,
there had been a surplus of receipts over ordinary expenditures.
During the present year there would be no necessity for expending
such large sums of money on improving these lines. Then, with
respect to the suggestion of the hon. member to give these
Government lines into the hands of private companies, he would
say that such a disposal of them would tend to injure the
Intercolonial line, even though they could be sold or leased to
advantage. He hoped the hon. member would withdraw his motion.

Mr. KILLAM thought it was inopportune at the present time to
press the motion. He agreed, however, with the hon. mover of the
resolution, that it would be much better to give the control of the
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railways into the hands of private companies. They were, under the
present management, a burden to the Dominion.

Mr. McDONALD (Antigonish) said the people of Nova Scotia
desired that their railways should be managed by private
companies. The roads, as they stood at present, were not a paying
concern, and they never would be until they were extended.

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North) agreed with the Hon.
Minister of Public Works, that it would be advisable to retain the
control of these railways until the completion of the Intercolonial
Railway. It would be well, though, after that road should be open, to
give these lines into the hands of private companies. When he was
in New Brunswick, he found that such was the opinion of the
people there. It was believed that they could be better managed by
private corporations than by a Government removed at such
distance from the nearest point on the roads. He would say nothing
of the injurious political effect the control of these lines by the
Government must lead to, no matter who the hon. gentlemen might
be who held office.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON moved an adjournment, as it was an
important subject, and several members wished to speak on it.

Hon. Mr. TUPPER hoped the hon. member would not press his
motion, for he (Hon. Mr. Tupper) wished to make a few
observations on this important question of the Nova Scotia
Railways. He joined issue with the hon. member for Oxford South
as to the advisability of leaving railway schemes to private
enterprise. If Government had not constructed these Nova Scotia
lines, there would hardly be one of them in existence today. They
had proved to be excellent commercial enterprises, too, for, besides
aiding in opening up the country and developing its resources, the
returns from them had been large, and had formed a considerable
portion of the revenue of the provinces. He did not think it
necessary to go into the figures, but he could show that his hon.
friend was entirely unable to produce any figures from the Public
Accounts or elsewhere that would give anything like a data for a
correct comparison between the Government and private
enterprises. The Minister of Public Works had explained very
lucidly to the House, the difference between the receipts on the
expenditure. On the Windsor line alone, there was over three-
quarters of a mile of wooded bridges. That line had been open for
12 or 15 years, and the House would see that in the very nature of
things, the time had arrived when a large expenditure was necessary
to put the roads in proper order. The statement of the Minister of
Public Works was satisfactory inasmuch as it showed that the
revenue derived from these roads was largely and steadily
increasing, evidencing the fact of the prosperity of the country. His
hon. friend had stated that private companies could always manage
undertakings much more economically and better than governments
could, but he (Hon. Mr. Tupper) could not agree with that
statement—and to show clearly the error of his hon. friend’s
statement, he had merely to point out the fact that the great public
censor of the country, the man who considers it his special duty to
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find out every instance of mismanagement and portray it to the
public, had been compelled to be silent in regard to the Government
Works of Nova Scotia and New Brunswick, while he filled the
columns of his paper day after day with accounts of the
mismanagement and corruption exhibited in the management of a
great private Railway of the country. If, therefore, weight was to be
given to the opinions of that great man, the Government ought to
take the Railway out of the hands of the private enterprise that was
so unequal to its management, and carry it on in the same way as
they had carried out their works in New Brunswick and Nova
Scotia.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON asked whether the hon. gentleman would
say that he was really in favour of his proposition being carried out.

Hon. Mr. TUPPER did not say that he was prepared to go so far
as that, but he desired to show the fallacy of the reasoning of the
hon. member for Lanark. He looked upon the proposition that had
been made as most monstrous, and he spoke not as a member of the
Government, but as a representative of Nova Scotia. Was his hon.
friend not satisfied with the enormous revenue derived from Nova
Scotia, from its customs and its taxes, without taking away their
public works to enrich the Dominion, of which Ontario formed so
large a part. If it was found that the railways were burdensome to
the Dominion, they should be joined together and used for the
purpose of extending lines of railway east and west, and such a
proposition would be much more welcome to the people of the
Maritime Provinces than the proposal that they should be put in the
market and sold for the benefit of the larger Provinces.

He desired to say a few words on a point which had escaped the
notice of the Minister of Public Works, and to which attention had
been called by the hon. member for Lanark North—he meant the
statement that Mr. Carvill had been placed in charge of the railways
in Nova Scotia, and subsequently returned to the duties in New
Brunswick, and that a large increase had been made in that
gentleman’s salary over and above what he had received as
Superintendent of the New Brunswick railways alone. The
Government, in the exercise of their discretion, had sent the
gentleman in question to do all he could to bring the two systems of
railways into more harmonious working with each other. He (Mr.
Carvill) went to Nova Scotia, and did all he could in the matter, but
it was found that while the terminus of the Nova Scotia railway at
Truro, and the portion then constructed to Sackville, in New
Brunswick, was separated by some 70 miles of coach road, it was
impossible to have a joint management of the railways of the two
provinces. Mr. Carvill, after having done a great deal to bring into
harmony the management of the two railways, so as to be infinitely
more convenient to the department here was replaced by a
gentleman who for 10 or 15 years has been thoroughly conversant
with the management of the railways in Nova Scotia, and who
never was a politician. His hon. friend complained that Mr.
Carvill’s salary was largely increased, but he (Hon. Mr. Tupper)
thought it would have been only candid if he had informed the
House, that a large additional responsibility had been thrown on Mr.
Carvill, and that his duties had been increased some 50 per cent. As
the matter was one in which the people of Nova Scotia pleaded
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some interest he had thought it right to make some slight protest on
the subject. As to the statement made to the House that in
consequence of political pressure upon the Dominion Government,
the rates paid under the former management had been decreased,
the simple answer was that the statement was contrary to the fact;
on the contrary Nova Scotia complained that under Confederation
the charges on the railways were higher than they were before.

Mr. BOLTON said that the Minister of Public Works had stated
that the Nova Scotia roads had provided a profit, but he certainly
could not find that to be the case from the Public Accounts. He had
already a motion on the papers for information as to the rates to be
imposed on these railroads, and he had given notice of that motion
simply from an examination of the Public Accounts. Those
accounts showed a deficiency in the receipts as compared with the
revenue, and notwithstanding the glowing terms in which the
President of the Council had spoken, he hardly saw much on which
they could congratulate themselves. The road had now been in
operation over 12 years and as it did not yield any profit, either it
was not a necessity, or else it was grossly mismanaged. The New
Brunswick railways, however, were paying something over the
expenditure and had always done so, and when their returns had
been low, it had been in consequence of the Government allowing
the roads to get out of order, and then having to expend larger sums
in order to put them right. The President of the Council had spoken
of the benefit derived by Nova Scotia from these railways, and no
doubt they were a benefit, so long as they were supported by the
Dominion. The only thing he feared was that while at the present
moment they might get rid of the Nova Scotia roads, when the
Intercolonial was joined on to them, no one would be willing to
touch them.

Hon. Mr. ANGLIN thought the member for Fort Yarmouth was
mistaken in saying that the New Brunswick Railway had always
failed to pay enough to cover working expenses, for ever since its
opening it had always paid something beyond its expenditure. He
was not prepared to say whether or not a private company could
work the Railways better than Government, but he knew of no
serious complaints as to the management hitherto, with the
exception of that which had arisen when Mr. Carvill had attempted
to raise the scale of charges to nearly the rate charged in New
Brunswick, in consequence of which that gentleman had been
driven from the Province.

Hon. Mr. TUPPER asked whether the hon. gentleman was
aware that the Railway charges in Nova Scotia were higher than
those in New Brunswick.

Hon. Mr. ANGLIN could not speak to that point, but he knew
what a storm had been raised when Mr. Carvill attempted to raise
the rates. They had heard a great deal of the value of these roads
and the President of the Council had asked whether the House was
prepared to sell the people of Nova Scotia, but he thought it would
be very difficult to sell an undertaking with an expenditure larger
than its receipts. Through the pressure of the representatives of
Nova Scotia, the rates had been kept down to such a degree, and the
expenses had been kept up to such a degree that the revenue was
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largely defunct, and he asked who would take railways under such
circumstances. There was a strong contrast, however, in the
management of railways under the Government of Nova Scotia, and
under that of the Dominion. In the former case the system had been
to spend nothing on the railways, and to get as much revenue as
possible, while under the present management they had been greatly
improved. He trusted the question would receive the consideration
of the whole House as it was no party question. He did not see any
reason to find fault with the action of the Government in the matter,
and he was not prepared to say that he would agree to part with the
roads to private parties, and he thought it very remarkable that with
so large a revenue there should be a deficiency year after year. He
thought when the connecting links in the system were supplied the
traffic would largely increase, and did not in any way share the
apprehensions of the member for Charlotte as to the failure of the
Intercolonial, although it might be some years before it became a
success, but he was glad to see that the Commissioners were
constructing it in a most substantial manner, so that it would require
no further expenditure for many years.

Hon. Mr. HOWE said if the Nova Scotia railways were not built
by private companies it was not the fault of the Province. Every
inducement was offered to companies to build them, but none
would undertake them, and he very much doubted whether any
could be got to buy them now and guarantee to run them. These
roads had been built in 1854, and when the Dominion Government
got control of them, it was nothing wonderful that they should be
found pretty well worn down after thirteen years of constant use.
The Dominion Government wisely undertook the work of
improving them, and it was not strange that it should have been
found necessary to expend a good deal of money on them. But that
money was well employed, and would yield a good return.

Mr. MACDONALD (Glengarry) was of the opinion that the
sooner the Government could get rid of those roads the better. It
was a waste of money to manage them at such a distance. The
manager was under the control of the Government, and could settle
none of the difficulties that might arise without much delay. He
believed it was unfair to charge the difficulties of the road to the
Dominion. The Province which was benefitted by the roads should
pay for them, if they did not pay for themselves, unless they were
transferred to private companies.

Hon. Mr. TILLEY believed that the time was coming when it
would be to the advantage of this Dominion to get rid of the
management of these roads.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON: Why not now?

Hon. Mr. TILLEY said it would not do to part with them until
the system was completed. Their value would then be very greatly
increased and they could be disposed of to much greater advantage.

Hon. Mr. SMITH (Westmorland) said he took a very different
view of the management of railways from hon. members who had
spoken tonight. It was all very well to leave productive works to
private companies but where lines did not yield fair returns, it was
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better to be able to draw on the public treasury for assistance. Did
anyone suppose that the Grand Trunk would be worse served if it
were managed by the Government? He trusted that the hon. mover
of these resolutions would withdraw his resolutions for the people
of New Brunswick, at least, would be opposed to giving the control
of the Government railways to private companies. He would oppose
any attempt to make such a transfer. (Hear, hear.)

Mr. GRANT regretted to hear the hon. mover speak of the
Intercolonial railway as an enterprise that was to be an incubus on
the country. He was sure that it was an important work from which
we were to derive many advantages. The country through which it
passed was no barren wilderness, but would be one of the most
fertile parts of Canada when opened up and settled. As a section of
the future Interoceanic Railway it was a necessity to the Dominion,
and he hoped the hon. member would not interfere with the
progress of the work by opposing it.

Mr. YOUNG contended that the accounts of the receipts and
expenditure of Government railways clearly proved that it would be
desirable to have them placed under the management of private
companies. With regard to the Grand Trunk, it was believed by a
good many people that the bad state of that road was due to the fact
that there was a close connection between its Manager and the
Government, and if the road were entirely handed over to the
Government the matter would only be worse.

The debate was then adjourned.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER moved the adjournment of
the House.

* k% %

A QUESTION OF PRIVILEGE

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North) rose to speak on a
question of privilege. He thought as long as he acted in accordance
to the rules of the Parliament, he thought he was entitled to the
protection of the House. He had occasion to quote another
gentleman’s words from a newspaper report to sustain his position,
and had employed that gentleman’s name, but disavowed any
intention of saying anything derogatory to his position. That
gentleman happened to be in the gallery at the time and had taken
offence at it, and had afterwards referred to him (Hon. Mr.
McDougall) in the Senate in the most scurrilous manner. He (Hon.
Mr. McDougall) would not take the trouble to notice this attack,
than to point to his public record for the last twenty years as a
sufficient refutation of it. During his visit to New Brunswick he had
the satisfaction of reading in the public papers, and here amongst all
the classes to whom he had addressed himself on subjects of great
political importance to them, they had listened to him with the
kindest attention and courtesy, and if that was “‘political
vagabondism’” he should like to know it.

Hon. Mr. McDOUGALL (Lanark North) then referred to the
13th rule of the House to show how contrary the course of the hon.
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Senator had been to Parliamentary usages. He also quoted from
British authorities in support of his argument that no hon. member
of another House should refer to remarks made in another Chamber
during debate, because the hon. member making such observations
could not be present to reply. He contended if the body before
whom these remarks of which he complained would not take
cognizance of this transgression of Parliamentary rules and usages,
he (Hon. Mr. McDougall) would take advantage of the first
opportunity afforded him of replying when the hon. member should
be present. (Cheers.)

Hon. Mr. HOLTON wished to know if the leader of the
Government had nothing to say respecting this attack on the
privileges of this House.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER said the hon. member for
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North Lanark had stated his case and his intention to pursue a
certain course without asking the House to take any action on the
matter. He (Hon. Sir George-E. Cartier) could therefore say
nothing.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON said the leader of the Government should
be the custodian of the privileges of the House. Since, however, the
hon. member had refused to take any action in the matter, he (Hon.
Mr. Holton) felt it his duty to condemn this assault, for it was an
assault made by a member of another branch of this Parliament on a
member of this House, as a gross, wanton and utterly unprovoked
assault—utterly unprovoked by any language made use of by the
hon. member for Lanark North. (Cheers.)

The House adjourned at 11.15.
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HOUSE OF COMMONS

Tuesday, March 7, 1871

The SPEAKER took the chair at 3.25 p.m.

Prayers

Several petitions were presented.

* * %

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Mr. BROSSEAU presented the report of the Joint Committee on
Printing.

Mr. MACFARLANE presented the fourth report of the
Committee on Standing Orders, and moved that the time for
receiving petitions for private Bills, be extended to the 22nd instant,
and for receiving private Bills to the 29th instant.

The motion was carried.

* * %

POSTAGE STAMPS

Hon. Mr. TUPPER presented a statement of sales of postage
stamps for the past year.

* * %

PUBLIC WORKS

Hon. Mr. LANGEVIN presented the report of the Minister of
Public Works for the year ending 30th June, 1870.

* k% %

BRITISH COLUMBIA

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER gave notice that on Friday
next he would move that the House should resolve itself into a
Committee of the Whole to consider a series of Resolutions
respecting the admission of British Columbia into the Dominion of
Canada.

* * %

INDEPENDENCE OF PARLIAMENT

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER also gave notice that on the
same day he would introduce a Bill to amend the Act to further
secure the independence of Parliament.

MILITIA AND DEFENCE

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER also gave notice that he
would introduce a Bill to amend the Act respecting Militia and
Defence.

* k% %

THE METRIC SYSTEM

Hon. Mr. MORRIS said that he would move on Friday the
consideration of the resolutions respecting weights and measures,
and to permit the use of the Metric System.

* * *

INSPECTION LAWS

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS gave notice that on Friday he
would move the House into Committee of the Whole on the
resolutions respecting the consolidation of the Inspection Laws.

* % %

CENSUS ACT

Hon. Mr. DUNKIN moved the third reading of the Bill to
amend the Census Act. Carried. He then moved that the bill should
pass and be entitled “‘an Act to Amend the Census Act’’. Carried.

* k *

CURRENCY

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS then moved concurrence in the
first of seven resolutions reported from Committee of the Whole for
the assimilation of the currency throughout the Dominion:

1. Resolved, That it is expedient to establish one uniform
currency, for all Canada, and for that purpose to provide, that on
and after the First day of July 1871, the currency of the Province of
Nova Scotia shall be the same as that of the Provinces of Quebec,
Ontario, and New Brunswick, in all of which one currency of
uniform value, is used.

2. Resolved, That it is expedient to provide, that on and after the
said day, the currency of Canada shall be such that the British
sovereign, of lawful weight, shall be equal to and shall pass current
for four dollars and eighty-six cents and two thirds of a cent of the
currency of Canada, and that all public accounts throughout
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Canada shall be kept in such currency; and that in any statement as
to money or money value, in any indictment or legal proceeding,
the same shall be stated in such currency, and in all private accounts
and agreements rendered or entered into on or after the said day, all
sums mentioned shall be understood to be in such currency, unless
some other is clearly expressed, or must, from the circumstances of
the case, have been intended by the parties.

3. Resolved, That it is expedient to provide, that all sums of
money payable on and after the said day to Her Majesty, or to any
party under any act or law in force in Nova Scotia, passed before
the said day, or under any bill, note, contract or agreement made
before the said day in Nova Scotia, or with reference thereto, or
made after the said day out of Nova Scotia and with reference
thereto, and which were intended to be, and if such alteration of
currency had not been made, would have been payable in the
present currency of Nova Scotia, shall, on and after the said day, be
payable, respectively, by equivalent sums in the currency of
Canada, that is to say, for every seventy-five cents of Nova Scotia
currency, by seventy-three cents of Canada currency, and so in
proportion for any greater or less sum; and if in any such sum there
be a fraction of a cent in the equivalent in Canada currency, the
nearest whole cent shall be taken.

4. Resolved, That it is expedient to provide, that on and after the
said day, no Dominion note or bank note payable in any other
currency than the currency of Canada, shall be issued or re-issued
by the Government of Canada, or by any bank, and that all such
notes issued before the said day, shall, as soon as practicable, be
called in and redeemed or notes payable in the currency of Canada
shall be substituted or exchanged for them.

5. Resolved, That it is expedient to provide, that any gold coins
which Her Majesty may cause to be struck for circulation in
Canada, of the standard of fineness prescribed by law for the gold
coins of the United Kingdom, and bearing the same proportion in
weight to that of the British sovereign, which five dollars bear to
four dollars eighty-six cents and two-thirds of a cent, shall pass
current and be a legal tender in Canada for five dollars, and any
multiples or divisions of such coin, which Her Majesty may cause
to be struck for like purposes, shall pass current and to be a legal
tender in Canada at rates proportionate to their intrinsic value
respectively and that any such coin shall pass by such names as Her
Majesty may assign to them in her proclamation declaring them a
legal tender, and shall be subject to the like allowance for remedy
as British coins.

6. Resolved, That it is expedient to provide, that the coins which
Her Majesty has causd to be struck for circulation in the Provinces
of Quebec, Ontario and New Brunswick, under the Acts now in
force in the said Provinces respectively, shall continue to be current
therein, and shall, on and after the said day, be current in the
Province of Nova Scotia, at the rates in the said currency of
Canada, now assigned to them respectively by the said Acts, and
under such conditions and provisions as are mentioned therein; and
that such other silver, copper or bronze coins as Her Majesty may
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cause to be struck for circulation in Canada, being of the proper
weight and fineness, shall pass current in Canada, at the rates to be
assigned to them respectively by Her Majesty’s Royal
Proclamation; all such silver coins as aforesaid being a legal tender
to the amount of ten dollars, and such copper or bronze coins to the
amount of twenty-five cents, in any one payment; but no other
silver or copper coins than those which Her Majesty shall have
caused to be struck for circulation in Canada or in some Province
thereof shall be a legal tender or pass current in Canada; and that
Her Majesty may by Proclamation, from time to time, fix the rates
at which any foreign gold coins of the description, date, weight and
fineness, mentioned in such Proclamation, shall pass current in
Canada.

7. Resolved, That it is expedient that all Acts or Laws
inconsistent with the foregoing Resolutions be repealed, and that
one Act for giving effect to the same, and applying to all Canada,
be passed.

The resolutions being read, Mr. CHIPMAN moved in
amendment that all after the word “‘expedient’” be struck out,
and that instead there should be inserted, “‘that the currency of
Nova Scotia should remain unchanged and should not be
assimilated with that of the rest of the Dominion.”” He stated
that he had just received a telegram from the leader of the
Government in Nova Scotia, advising the transmission by
steamer Carlotta of a petition against the proposed change,
numerously and respectably signed by all parties. He urged,
first, that the Provincial Legislature had passed a series of
resolutions opposing assimilation, and second, the forwarding of
the petition, and asked that for these reasons, and in
consideration of the state of feeling in Nova Scotia, the
consideration of the resolutions might be postponed until the
petition could be laid before the House.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS said that it was perfectly clear
that the postponement of the consideration of the resolutions would
imply an abandonment of the whole measure for the present
session. The whole matter had been fully considered by the
Government. They were fully aware of the feeling in Nova Scotia,
but they thought the case one in which the rest of the Dominion
could not yield any longer. He had heard the opinions of many
people in Nova Scotia on the subject, and one and all admitted the
necessity of an assimilation, and the question, therefore, was in
which direction that assimilation should be made. The currency
could not be changed to that of Nova Scotia, as that would be
adopting a currency at variance with that of the rest of the
continent; and he was sure that before many months had elapsed
Nova Scotia would perceive the great advantages derived from the
change. The matter had already been delayed two sessions in
deference to Nova Scotia, and the prospect of an International
Currency, but that prospect no longer existing, he saw no reason for
further adjournment.

Hon. Mr. DORION thought the question was not whether the
Government would abandon their measure for another session, but
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whether in deference to the people of Nova Scotia they would
simply delay its consideration for a few days until the petition
spoken of could be received. That petition might contain arguments
not previously advanced, but at all events he thought the
Government might accede to the request of the member for Kings
and allow a short delay.

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER thought that the object of the
request for postponement was chiefly to change the day on which
the Act should come into operation, from the 1st July to the 1st
January. The Minister of Finance merely asked for concurrence in
the resolution on which he intended to base his Bill. If that
concurrence was acceded to, as no doubt it would be, the Bill would
have to be submitted to the House, and could hardly be read for the
first time before Friday, but if it should possibly be read a second
time on Friday, it would still have to go into a committee, which
could not be before the following Tuesday, and, therefore, the
House would see that before the Bill could possibly become law,
there would be plenty of time for receiving the petition and taking it
into consideration.

Mr. CHIPMAN had listened with surprise to the hesitancy of
the Minister of Finance to concede the very slight delay he had
asked, as he would have thought that policy would dictate that
every opportunity should be afforded the people of Nova Scotia to
express their opinions, so that if the decision should chance to be in
opposition to their views, they might have the satisfaction of
knowing that all consideration had been accorded to them—and he
therefore again pressed on the Government that they should not
force a discussion, but should allow the resolutions to lie over, and
he thought such an act would be very graceful on their part.

Mr. MAGILL fully agreed that the people of Nova Scotia
deserved every consideration, but that they had already received all
the consideration they could ask. He thought that if there was any
particular in which the provinces ought to agree with each other, it
was in that of the currency. The member for Kings had urged that
the measure was objectionable to the people of Nova Scotia, and so
it might be, but he thought the time had come when Nova Scotia
ought to yield something to the wishes of the other parts of the
Dominion. As to the time at which the change should commence,
there was no doubt that the 1st July was far the best time that could
be selected. He was glad to see the measure propounded by the
Government and was sure it would make the people of the
Dominion feel more like one people.

Hon. Mr. CAMPBELL regretted very much that the story of
Nova Scotia grievances had again been revived, as he thought that
story ought now to be a matter of the past, and that the general good
of the country should be considered, and he thought that the people
of Nova Scotia fully understood that the time had arrived when they
must yield in the general interest to an assimilation of the currency.
There was no doubt that the petition would have but little effect on
the minds of the members of the House, and it would only be using
improperly the time of the House to ask for a postponement to
allow of its being taken into consideration.
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Mr. JONES (Halifax) thought that questions of this kind should
not be forced on the consideration of the House until the views of
the people of Nova Scotia had been fully brought forward. He
thought the petition, signed, as it no doubt was, by the chief
commercial men of the Province, deserved all attention, and he
trusted the government would reconsider their decision and allow
the matter to be postponed.

Hon. Mr. HOWE thought that, as the Minister of Militia had
explained, in the natural order of things the petition would be
received in full time to be taken into consideration, the matter
should not be pressed further. He could scarcely think that the
petition could contain any new arguments, as the matter had already
received the fullest possible discussion and consideration. The
matter had already been postponed for two sessions, and though it
pained him to have to differ with other representatives of his
Province, he did not think that Nova Scotia could expect any further
postponement.

Hon. Mr. TILLEY said he would be very sorry that there should
be any feeling in the minds of the representatives of Nova Scotia
that the Government was not disposed to give them ample justice
and consideration. He showed how, in 1869 and 1870, the
Government had postponed the consideration of the matter, and had
withdrawn their measures in deference to the opinions and views of
Nova Scotia, notwithstanding larger petitions from New Brunswick
in favour of an assimilation, urging the great loss and
inconvenience sustained by that Province. Postponement had,
however, only been granted in view of the probability of an
international currency, and when that ceased to be a possibility,
surely no further delay could be asked. The member for Kings had
stated that he thought policy should dictate that Government should
accede to his request, but he (Hon. Mr. Tilley) thought policy
dictated the opposite course. He thought a further postponement
would rather tend to increase than diminish the dissatisfaction in
Nova Scotia, as they would imagine that the delay implied yielding,
and then when finding such was not the case, they would be more
than ever dissatisfied. He could say that the Minister of Finance
would undertake not to pass the second reading until the petition
had been received, and with that assurance he trusted the hon.
gentlemen would not press the matter further.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON said this was the proper stage of the
measure on which to take exception to it. To deny the delay asked
for was to say that no objection would be listened to. The
Government could lose nothing in point of time, and certainly
nothing in point of dignity in granting so reasonable a request.

Mr. McDONALD (Antigonish) did not think the Government
were treating the petition with disrespect in refusing to grant the
delay. The majority in this House was in favour of the proposed
change, and no good purpose could be served by waiting for the
petition. If, when it should arrive, reasons should be urged of
sufficient weight to change the opinions the House entertained at
present, it would not be too late to alter their policy. He hoped some
consideration would be made in favour of the railway contractors of
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Nova Scotia, who would be seriously injured by a change in the
currency. They would be obliged to pay in the proportion of $1 to
every 97 cents under the present arrangement.

Mr. BURPEE thought the question had been fairly discussed.
He congratulated the Government on having taken up this matter,
for this House had been too often charged with having, in their
Legislative enactments, done those things which they ought not to
have done and left undone the things which they should have done.

Hon. Mr. TUPPER could not understand the object of the hon.
member for Hochelaga in paying this empty compliment to Nova
Scotia. Since the time of Confederation the assimilation of the
currency had been looked forward to by commercial men, for there
was nothing which tended more to facilitate their business
transactions than a uniform currency. In prospect of the adoption of
an international currency, the Government had postponed this
change, but there seemed to be a very slight prospect of such a
comprehensive assimilation taking place and it was time for the
Government to assimilate our own currency. It would be
ungenerous for him to object to carrying out a change which was
accepted as one incidental and necessary to Confederation by the
majority of the people of Canada. In assimilating the currency, it
was necessary to adopt a system which would suit the majority of
the people. The currency of Nova Scotia was a depreciated
currency, and a large portion of the Legislature of that Province
previous to Confederation held the view that it would be better to
reject it and adopt the currency of Canada and the United States. He
would endeavour to relieve the hon. member for Kings of some of
the apprehensions which he entertained as to the manner in which
his constituents would receive this change. He (Hon. Mr. Tupper)
held in his hand a letter from one of the most influential electors in
that constituency, congratulating the Government on having
undertaken the assimilation of the currency of the Dominion. The
same gentleman stated in his letter that there was not a worse
currency in circulation than that of Nova Scotia, which would not
be accepted at its face value outside of the province. He (Hon. Mr.
Tupper) regarded the matter in the same light, and he hoped that the
hon. member for Kings would not press for a delay, which, if
granted, would excite hopes in Nova Scotia, which could not fail to
end in disappointment.

Mr. SAVARY said this was a most important measure, being
nothing less than one of the first steps towards making us one
people. He was not disposed to hasten the passage of these
resolutions or to refuse the petitioners an opportunity to express
their views against them. He believed petitions had already been
presented against an assimilation of the currency, but he would also
remind the hon. member for Kings that there was a large section of
the people in Nova Scotia in favour of such a change. The
constituency which he represented agreed to the temporary
inconvenience resulting from the assimilation, for the ultimate
benefit which it would confer on them in common with the rest of
the Dominion. There might be some good reason for postponing the
change till the first of January, but if the Government thought it best
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for the whole Dominion to have it go into operation sooner, he
would not oppose the measures.

Mr. MILLS said that a good many hon. members had spoken on
this question as one of profit and loss, but he did not see how any
loss was to be occasioned by the change of full value. If a fifty cent
piece were accepted as a unit here and were accepted as only half a
unit under the United States system, there would be no real
difference in the actual value of the coin, though it might be called a
dollar in our country and half a dollar in the United States. It was
purely a matter of convenience and nothing else, and till it could be
shown that it was something more, there was no reason why the
measure of the Finance Minister should not become law.

Mr. OLIVER said while dealing with this question he would
like to urge upon the Hon. Finance Minister the necessity of
increasing the number of small bills in circulation. Much
inconvenience was felt from the want of them. There was another
matter also, to which he would like to refer. In the section of the
country from which he came, there was still a large amount of
American silver in circulation, and he hoped Government would
endeavour to withdraw it from the country and substitute for it a
Canadian currency. There could be no reason for delaying the
assimilation of the currency. It was one of the principal
inducements held out to the people to induce them to accept
Confederation. The claims put forward in behalf of the Intercolonial
Railway contractors should not be allowed to stand in the way. The
Intercolonial had already cost the country a great deal, and it would
be time enough to consider the claims of contractors when they
should be put forward by those gentlemen themselves. The country
had suffered long enough from the want of uniformity in our
currency, and he hoped this measure would be carried.

Mr. CHIPMAN said he occupied a position of independence in
the House, and he held his seat to protect and further the interests of
his constituents. He came here unpledged in regard to any action he
might see fit to take on each measure that came up for consideration
before the House. Therefore there could be no claims upon him to
prevent him from giving an unbiased and untrammelled
consideration to any Bill which might come up, and if there was
any error whatever in his action, it could simply be one of
judgment. He had taken pains to obtain the views of his constituents
on this subject before the House, and though he was satisfied that
the resolutions would be carried by a large majority he deemed it
his duty to oppose them. It was no use for him to attempt to prove
that the currency of Nova Scotia was the best for the people there,
though he believed the fact was susceptible of proof. He believed
that the House was not unanimously in favour of the measure of the
Finance Minister, and he would therefore press his amendment to a
vote.

The amendment of Mr. Chipman was declared lost on a division,
and the first resolution was then given second reading. Resolutions
2 to 7 were also given second reading.
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Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS moved for leave to introduce a
bill entitled: An Act to establish one uniform currency for
Canada.—Carried. The motion that it be read a second time on
Tuesday next having been offered, Hon. Sir Francis Hincks stated
that in order to meet the views of his Nova Scotia opponents as
fully as possible, he would not then press for that stage should the
petition not have arrived. (Hear, hear.)

* * %

THE ELECTION BILL

Hon. Sir GEORGE-E. CARTIER moved second reading of the
Bill to make temporary provision for the election of members to
serve in the House of Commons of Canada.

Mr. YOUNG said it must be satisfactory to the House to know
the Government had withdrawn the very objectionable bill
introduced during the two previous sessions. He considered it very
objectionable, and if it had been carried they would have seen in the
various Provinces thousands of people disfranchised; and with the
very complicated machinery which that bill created an army of
officials would have been brought into existence, involving a very
great expenditure. Looking at it in those points of view, the bill was
one of the most dangerous character. He was therefore glad to know
that it had been given up. It would have been very unpalatable
throughout the various Provinces, particularly in the smaller, as it
must have interfered to a great extent with the privileges they
hitherto enjoyed. The old bill was received, as they all knew, with a
great deal of dissatisfaction by members of the House amd
multitudes throughout the country. He believed the House was
indebted to a considerable extent to members on the ministerial side
for the withdrawal of the measure. If he was correctly informed,
they had told ministers plainly last session that if the Bill was
pressed they would feel it their duty to vote against it. The
proposition the Government now brought forward was one which
adopted in the main the views so ably put forth by the hon. member
for Hochelaga and others on the same side of the House. He only
regretted that, while accepting several good points, Government had
introduced various features of a most objectionable character. He
observed the second clause of the bill re-enacted the old election
laws existing in the different Provinces at the time of Confederation
in 1867.

Now he thought it was very doubtful whether it was possible for
this House to re-enact some, at least, of those laws, unless they
were expressly stated in the body of the Bill. It was a fact that
several of them had been rescinded or abolished by the Local
Legislatures, and yet they were here, as he understood the Bill, re-
enacted by the second clause. In addition, he saw no good reason
why this House should go back to those laws of 1867 when they
knew that since that time the Local Legislatures had adopted new
laws believed to be an improvement upon them. He could see no
good reason for passing even a temporary law. They should take the
laws existing in the various Provinces instead of returning to their
predecessors of 1867. He particularly regretted to see in the Bill a
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special clause inserted to prevent the elections in Ontario taking
place simultaneously. The Minister of Militia had seen fit to forbid
what nine-tenths of the people of Ontario believed would be an
improvement—that is the elections being held all on one and the
same day.

They knew that during the last general elections in Ontario there
was a very large amount of excitement, bribery and corruption and
a good deal of violence. As regards other Provinces, they were
aware that much violence was witnessed at Kamouraska, in
Quebec, and in Toronto West and other Ontario constituencies
much corruption was resorted to. (Hear, hear and laughter.) It had
been argued that holding the Ontario elections on one and the same
day would, to a considerable extent, exempt them from the present
evils. The Government however, had seen fit to prevent this reform.
Although this was but a temporary measure, he was in hopes it
would be found possible to continue it on a similar measure with
improvements. He saw no reason why they could not in settling the
election law for all time adopt machinery created by the old
legislature. They knew it had been the course pursued in the United
States, ever since they became a nation, to receive members of
Congress elected under the laws made, and in operation under the
control of the legislatures of the different states. In this country he
believed they would find no practical difficulty in managing the
elections for members of this House, by simply using the machinery
brought into being by laws of the Local Legislatures. For one he
must strongly insist on some such provision being made one of the
subsections. It would enable the people of Ontario to have the
elections held simultaneously as in New Brunswick and Nova
Scotia.

A MEMBER: Not in New Brunswick.

Mr. YOUNG: They have in Nova Scotia, and he saw no reason
why the right should be withdrawn from the people of Ontario. In
New Brunswick they had privileges or rights not enjoyed here,
including the ballot. They had in Nova Scotia the right to the ballot,
but under this Bill he fancied that in the elections for the House of
Commons they would be deprived of voting in this manner. The
people ought not to be deprived of the ballot. He believed the time
would come when the inhabitants of all the Provinces would enjoy
the ballot. He thought experience had proved that where the system
had been introduced on a great scale such as in Australia, it had
proved a great advantage at the time of elections. They had the
authority of the present First Lord of the Admiralty in England, for
the statement that the effect of the ballot in Australia had been
largely to reduce the cost of elections, corruption, bribery and
violence. In the mother country it would soon be law. Instead of
depriving Nova Scotia of the ballot, it would have been well to
extend it to all the other Provinces.

Whatever action might be taken with regard to the Bill generally,
he hoped some member would propose an amendment to that
provision respecting the election laws of 1867 instead of those now
in existence. He could see no good principle in refusing to adopt the
good election laws on the Statute books of the various Provinces.
They knew the Ontario Act, under which the elections were
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proceeding, differed very considerably from the law of 1867. He
was anxious to know the reason for the departure in this instance.
He hoped the Ontario members would insist that the law should
provide for the taking of the election simultaneously. There could
be no difference of opinion as to the feeling throughout Ontario on
that subject. Unless the hon. gentlemen opposite were prepared to
concede that point, and to allow the present law to stand, he should
feel it his duty to move an amendment, and take the sense of the
House on the point. (Cheers.)

Mr. HARRISON said there were two objections to the hon.
gentleman’s proposition to have the elections simultaneously, and
one was that he did not think it would afford a proper representation
to property. A man who owned property in different constituencies,
would not be properly represented unless he could divide himself
into several, and go all over the country on one day. There was
another objection: A man might become very eminent in serving his
country and yet become locally unpopular, displeasing to the people
of his particular constituency. With the elections all in one day
being objectionable to his constituents, his services would be lost to
the country, whereas if the elections took place on different days,
there would be a chance in other constituencies for him, and thus
his talents might be saved to the country. (Cheers.) It always
appeared to him that these were two formidable objections. The
experiment had been made in Ontario of having the elections all on
one day. The experiment had yet to be proved; whether it would
work well or not remained to be seen. It would be time enough to
think of introducing it here, if the experiment proved a success. The
hon. gentleman said that at the last election for Toronto, there was
bribery and corruption. That hon. member knew more about it than
he did. There was none on his (Mr. Harrison’s) side, and he must
have been speaking of what was done on the side of the Opposition.
(Cheers and laughter.) He had heard no good reason yet for holding
all the elections on one and the same day. Until his two reasons
were answered, and the experiment in Ontario proved successful, he
thought it would be premature in the House to adopt the principle.
(Cheers.)

Mr. MILLS said he was pleased with the progress the
Government had shown in this matter last session, and he hoped
before the Bill became law, they would see further progress. He
thought there were some features in the Bill which might be
materially improved. He thought they were not likely to hear in the
discussion of this Bill the kind of arguments used in the defence of
the Government Bill last year, nor likely to hear so much about the
beauty and importance of uniformity. He remembered pointing out
the effect of the old bill on the provinces not yet in Confederation,
and distinctly putting the question to the Government, whether if a
province was created in the North West, they proposed to apply the
principle of uniformity with regard to its representatives; and
among the defenders of the bill of last year, he did not think there
was anyone who laboured more zealously than the hon. member for
Toronto West. He had laid down a principle with regard to that bill,
which he thought would carry him much further than the provisions
of the bill itself. He said that if all the elections took place on the
same day the principle would be very objectionable, that it would
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be quite impossible for any gentleman to divide himself into a
certain number of personages and to make his appearance in various
constituencies in the same day.

There was just this to say in reply. If *“A’” had property in Essex
and also in Elgin, he did not see anything to prevent the
Government holding the elections in those two places, and if they
did it would be quite impossible for the gentleman to be in two
places at the same time. He supposed the hon. gentleman would
insist on the Government amending this bill, and upon every
property holder owning property in more than one place having the
right to stay an election because it might hinder him from giving
two votes. It was of the utmost consequence, he told us, that
property should be represented, and the only way this could be done
was to begin on a certain day at one end of the country, and that one
election a day be held till all the members were elected. Unless this
were done some elector might be cheated out of his rights. ““A”’
might have a very large amount of property in one constituency and
““B>’ a much smaller amount divided between two. Under this
principle “‘B’” would have a right which he (Mr. Mills) thought he
ought not to have to vote in two while “*A,”’ the richer man, could
vote only in one. The hon. member, for Toronto West, would
oppose the one arrangement, and grant that person having the
largest amount of property, the greatest interest in the election. If
“A” owning $1,000 worth of property, had a right to one vote,
“‘B”” possessing $2,000 would have a right to two. This was the
logical consequence flowing from the very sound proposition of
that hon. gentleman.

He was sure the hon. member would not be satisfied with the
very imperfect representation of his scheme in the Bill now before
them. It seemed to him that in this House, where the questions of
property and civil rights were taken from their province and placed
under the control of the local legislatures, the tendency of the
representation must be altogether in a different direction. The time
could come when those who contributed to the revenue of the
country and took part in its defence, would have some say in the
Government of the country. There was a time when those who had
property were entitled to the vote in a different sense from the
present, because they contributed most to the revenue. But now it
was only just and fair that those upon whom the public
responsibilities, debts and burdens were imposed, should have a say
in the Government of the country. He did not propose to bring this
matter under the consideration of the House at present. He thought
the Government had now taken a step a long way toward the
adoption of their views, making the local law of each Province that
upon which the representation in the House should be based. He
believed Government might go further, and have all the elections on
one and the same day. It was a very important matter no doubt to an
administration that felt that they were not entitled to the confidence
of the country, that they should have the power to influence all
those looking for positions or favours from the Government.

There was always a number of men in every constituency looking
for public favours, and it was to the interest of the Administration to
bring on the elections first in those places where they had the
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greatest chance of success, that those in respect to which they were
doubtful might be influenced. Elections under this principle
prevented Parliament from becoming a fair representation of public
opinion. It interfered with the independence of the electors for it
was not more important that they should be protected from coercion
by the Government. The object of this Bill was to give ministers an
unfair advantage over their opponents, which they ought not to
possess, and when it reached Committee he would propose that it be
so amended that all the elections in the Dominion should take place
on the same day.

Hon. Mr. DORION said this was the third effort of the
Government to bring in an Election Bill. They introduced one in
1869 and another in 1870, at that time they were informed the
Government could not allow the local bodies to have anything to do
with the elections, or with the regulation of the qualification. The
elections, moreover, were to be uniform throughout the whole
country; and nothing except the entire control of all these matters
by this House would satisfy the Government. The opposition having
forced amendments last year, Government found they could not
carry their Bill to their satisfaction and it was dropped. He
complimented them on submitting an improved Bill this year;
although this Bill adopted the qualifications prescribed in the
several provinces, and did away with the necessity for a double set
of officials and all the machinery by which the list of electors was,
last session, proposed to be made, there were yet apparent many
deficiencies. He thought the subject of qualification of electors was
very properly left to the Local Legislatures, yet as the elections
must be conducted by officers of this Government alone, the mode
of securing the elections might well have been uniform for the
Dominion. The Government would have greatly improved the
measure had they adopted the improved method of carrying the
elections in force in Ontario and Nova Scotia. They did not want to
have uniformity at all—not even in the mode of securing the
elections.

Instead of a uniformity law on the subject, they were multiplying
laws. They took a portion of the laws prevalent in the different
Provinces, and even a part of those of 1867. They had entirely
ignored the principle of uniformity. A portion of the proposed
measure would lead to great errors which might have the effect of
annulling the elections. If they did not enact uniformity, they might
adopt the laws in force at the time of the elections in the several
Provinces. He was a strong advocate of another amendment,
namely, all the elections on one and the same day. This would avoid
excitements or shorten them, to the advantage of the country. While
elections took place in rotation, detrimental excitement and
distraction were maintained. Moreover he did not like the clause
giving the Returning Officer greater power than he had before—
namely, by appointing a great many sub-officers, deputy returning
officers, and poll clerks, to suit the new districts created, each of
which was to consist of two hundred voters.

It was also proposed to confer upon Government larger powers in
some respects than hitherto. He thought one or two officers should
have been held in the several districts responsible to the
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Government. They, feeling their responsibility towards the public
appointing them, would have acted properly. The Government
might thus carry their elections, but they might not long be in
power. Another might succeed them, and it would be best that the
returning officers should be selected from well known public
officers. If not that, let Government name permanent officers, as in
the Province of Quebec, such as the sheriff. He would prefer the
selection of the Warden or Secretary-Treasurer of each county,
considering their greater powers. Besides, the subdivisions would
be more fairly made by a well known officer than by any other. The
lists would have to be subdivided according to the county
subdivisions, and who would be better qualified for the work than
the municipal officers therewith connected? The returning officer
would have to make the subdivision of the electoral lists. The
Municipal Council would be better qualified for that duty. He
would propose it should make the subdivisions, and that if it did not
do so till the issue of the writs, it should be the duty of the returning
officer to make them. The Council, however, would do the work
much better than the returning officer.

Another abuse under the old law related to the assumption of the
power of annulling voters’ lists by returning officers. Thus large
numbers of voters were disfranchised by persons assuming the
duties of Parliamentary election committees. This stretch of
authority had been in some instances the occasions of great trouble
and difficulty in Kamouraska. Exasperated electors finding they
were cheated out of their rights had prevented the elections taking
place. He supposed that the same thing would have occurred in any
other constituency under similar provocation. To avoid such abuses
hereafter, he will move that no returning officer should have a right
to question the validity of any list he might find registered at the
registry office, and that he should use the list whether regular or
not, and leave the matter to the trial of the proper tribunal, a
Parliamentary Committee. Unless this were done they would
witness a repetition of the scenes enacted in Lower Canada on
several occasions. At least in ten instances masses of the electors
had been disfranchised by these returning officers. In one case
because an informal term was used by a certifying officer, “‘true
copies’” instead of ‘‘duplicate’” in reference to lists of voters, the
returning officer took upon himself to declare the lists illegal. A
more monstrous abuse he had never heard of.

This Bill was an improvement in the clumsy one of last year, and
because the views of the Opposition had in a great measure been
adopted. At the same time that he would accept the Bill he would
move two or three amendments to remedy the abuses or defects; he
had indicated, namely, to give power to the Government to select
returning officers from certain county officers, and limit the power
of these officers to make subdivisions of electoral districts only in
cases where the local municipality should not have done so; and
also to limit the power of the returning officer, so as to prevent him
from doing what had been done with so much abuse hitherto,
namely, declaring whether a poll should be held here, there or
elsewhere. (Cheers.)

It being six o’clock the House rose.
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AFTER RECESS

Mr. OLIVER resumed the debate. He said the old bill passed in
1869 and reproduced in 1870 did not give satisfaction. It was
objectionable because of the expense which it involved. The
opposition to that measure was so strong on both sides of the House
the Government were obliged to withdraw it. He had no objections
to the general provisions of the measure now before the House, but
he did not approve of the absence from it of the clause providing
that all the elections should be held on the same day. It was found
under the old law that when the elections were held on different
days in different constituencies, that it led to corruption. So
generally was this known and condemned that Ontario was opposed
to any measure which permitted it, and he could not see why in
Ontario, at least, the elections should all be held simultaneously. He
regretted also that the system of voting by ballot had not been
adopted throughout the Dominion as in Nova Scotia. It was the only
true system of securing a fair representation of the people.

He objected also that no provision had been made to prevent
gentlemen who were strangers in the country for years, from
coming in and getting some candidate to step aside and allow him
to run as representative of a constituency of which he could have
but little knowledge. In certain constituencies it was well known
that bribery was practiced. In the city of Toronto, especially, it was
well known that the candidate with the largest purse generally
carried the elections. Simultaneous voting, he believed, would be
the best preventative of corrupt practices and if it could be extended
to the whole Dominion, and the elections could all take place on
one day, it would prove to be a most beneficial measure to the
people.

Mr. SCATCHERD said that the law of 1842, which had been
placed on the statute books by the present Finance Minister,
remained almost unaltered to the present day, with the exception of
the adoption of the registration system in 1853, so that during the
last thirty years the law had remained almost unchanged. He
approved of the amendment to hold all the elections on the one day,
and would vote for a motion to that effect.

The Bill was read a second time, and referred to a Committee of
the Whole House on Friday next.

SUPPLY

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS moved the House into Committee
of Supply, Mr. STREET in the Chair.

A few items were formally passed, dealing with the expenses of
the Governor General’s secretary, the Privy Council Office, and the
Department of Justice. The Committee rose and reported, and asked
leave to sit again.
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EXPENSES OF FENIAN RAID

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS moved the House into Committee
to consider certain resolutions affirming the expediency of
indemnifying the Government for having authorized the issue of a
special warrant for $200,000, to provide for the defence of the
Dominion in repelling the Fenian invasion in the month of May last.
Hon. Mr. GRAY in the chair.

The Committee rose and reported concurrence to be taken on
Friday next.

* k x

SAVINGS BANKS

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS moved the House into Committee
to consider certain resolutions on the subject of Savings Banks.
Hon. Mr. GRAY in the chair.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS said that in proposing the
resolutions he would endeavour as briefly as possible to place
before the House, the position of the Government on the question.
There had been an old Act of the Province of Canada with regard to
Savings Banks, regulating the mode in which these institutions
should be conducted, which expired at the end of the last session,
but was then renewed until the end of the present session. It then
became absolutely necessary for the Government to consider the
whole question as to the best mode of regulating these banks, and of
making proper provision as to the manner of receiving deposits. On
examining into the matter it was found that in all the Dominion
there was but one Savings Bank, conducted strictly as a
Government Savings Bank, and which invested all its deposits in
Government securities, and that bank was in Nova Scotia. In the
Province of New Brunswick there was a system under which a
number of Collectors of Customs were agents for the Government
in the management of Local Savings Banks, very much on the same
principle as the Post Office system in Ontario and Quebec; that is,
receiving the deposits and paying them over to the Receiver
General, but in the city of St. John there was an institution managed
by trustees, and therefore not strictly a Government Savings Bank,
but which invested all its monies in Government securities. With
reference to Quebec and Ontario, a law was passed very soon after
the Union of the two Provinces, which established a system under
which certain Savings Banks had been and were now conducted.
Those Banks numbered five: three in Quebec and two in Ontario.
Another law was subsequently passed, prohibiting the organization
of any new Banks, but not interfering with existing institutions.

There were also in Ontario certain Building Societies which
were allowed to receive deposits on certain conditions
prescribed by law, and with these it was not the intention of
Government to interfere beyond making stricter provisions as to
returns, and particulars of transactions. Then there was the
system of Post Office Savings Banks, which had been in
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operation for a considerable time, and had been attended with
great success, but this system had never been extended beyond
Ontario and Quebec. The amount now held in deposit by the
Post Office Savings Banks was $3,353,205, and of that amount
$293,717 only, had been deposited in Quebec, and the
remainder, $3,059,488, in Ontario; and it would therefore be
seen that the Post Office Savings Bank system had been almost
entirely confined to Ontario, the Province of Quebec having
peculiar institutions of its own.

He desired most particularly to state that endeavouring to put
the Savings Banks on a different footing, he had no reason
whatever to doubt that the institutions in Quebec had been
managed most creditably, and the Government in considering
the question and submitting the resolutions, were actuated by no
want of confidence in those institutions, but by the belief that
the principle on which they were based was wrong in theory,
although hitherto it might have worked well in practice. There
were also in Ontario two small Savings Banks conducted on the
same principle as those of Quebec, but which were
comparatively unimportant. These Banks had absorbed the great
bulk of the savings in Quebec, while in Ontario the bulk had
been absorbed by the Post Office Savings Bank, and the
remainder by the building societies. The Government proposed
as far as Nova Scotia was concerned to make no change
whatever, but simply to develop the system already in operation
by letting the Banks there have branches in the different towns
of the Provinces. With regard to New Brunswick they proposed
to put the Bank at St. John which had hitherto been managed by
Trustees, on the same footing as that at Halifax, placing all the
other Savings Banks in the Province in the position of
subsidiary offices, instructing them to deal with the head Bank
at St. John in the same way as the Post Office Savings Bank of
Quebec and Ontario communicate with the offices at Ottawa.
Thus with regard to Nova Scotia and New Brunswick the change
would simply consist in the development of the system now in
operation.

He might mention that in all cases of Savings Banks which had
been in operation for a number of years, there were certain sums
that would never be called for and there had been correspondence
between the Dominion and Local Governments as to the disposal of
these sums, and it was now proposed that in the case of all accounts
in which there had been no transactions, either of deposit or
withdrawal, since the 1st of July 1867, the amounts of those
accounts should be considered as placed in suspense, the Province
not being charged with interest, but if at any time hereafter any such
amounts should be called for they should be placed against the
Province.

Mr. YOUNG asked what percentage those uncalled for amounts
formed of the total deposits.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS could not say as to that. With
regard to such Banks as came under the Act to which he had
referred as expiring at the end of the present session, he proposed
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that that Act should be continued up to the end of the next Session,
and that in the meantime the Banks should not have the choice of
taking three different modes of putting themselves in a different
position. Under the present circumstances, there were a certain
number of gentlemen acting as Trustees, no doubt with the most
benevolent feelings, and, of course, if it could be considered a
sound system to expect that persons would always act in that
manner, there would be no necessity for change, but these
gentlemen had no interest whatever and no responsibility, and they
received and dealt with large sums of money, the surplus profits of
which were given to charitable institutions. However well that
system might have worked hitherto, and he believed that in the
generality of cases it had worked well, there had been exceptions to
the rule both in Ontario and Quebec, and he could not think the
system was so sound as to justify its being continued. Of the three
alternatives proposed to be offered to the Banks, the first was to
arrange their matters with the Government, handing over to them
their assets, and allowing the Government to manage them as a
Government Savings Bank.

The next proposition was that they should incorporate themselves
with any chartered Banks in the Dominion, and become part of
those chartered Banks, in that way affording depositors the security
of the paid up capital of such Banks. The third alternative was that
they should become incorporate themselves with a paid up capital,
the minimum of which should be say $200,000, but which they
could extend as they might desire, and paying up 25 per cent of that
capital by instalments, 10 per cent on organization, and the
remainder subsequently, and being allowed to receive deposits on
the same class of securities as they were now allowed to invest in,
up to the amount of their capital, but beyond that investing in
Government securities. With regard to the surplus which most of
the Banks possessed, which had accrued out of past transactions, up
to the time of their going into their new positions, it was proposed
that that surplus should be invested in Government securities for the
benefit of charitable institutions. The other parts of the resolutions
referred to the returns to be made. If the Banks did not choose to
accept any of the alternatives proposed, they would remain in their
present position to the end of next session, and it would then be for
Parliament to decide what should be done further—on which point,
however, he did not wish to express any opinion prematurely. He
trusted he had sufficiently explained the object of the resolutions.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT suggested that he had said nothing as to
that portion of the resolutions referring to the circulation of
Dominion notes.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS said that inasmuch as there would
no doubt be principal Savings Banks at Halifax, St. John, Montreal,
Toronto, &c., it had been thought that it would be very convenient
to make the officers in charge of these Banks agents for issuing
Dominion notes, as in no other way could that be accomplished
more economicaly or satisfactorily.

Mr. WORKMAN asked whether under these circumstances the
present arrangement with the Bank of Montreal would continue.
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Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS replied that that arrangement
would then necessarily terminate, and in that way he calculated on a
saving of $157,000, the amount paid to the Bank of Montreal as
compensation for abandoning their issue of notes.

Hon. Sir AT. GALT thought that the reference to the
redemption offices in Montreal, Toronto, and elsewhere disclosed
the real object of the resolutions. The Minister of Finance
proposed to make no change in Nova Scotia and New Brunswick,
and he might add in Ontario also, but he proposed to give the
Quebec institutions the chance of three alternatives. So far he did
not see any great objection to the proposals, except as to the
principle of the Government endeavouring to get all the Savings
Banks of the country into their hands, which he thought might be
carried too far. He thought the House would require some further
explanation of the matter, and he trusted the Minister of Finance
would be prepared to state the conditions on which the institutions
could become incorporated, or could attach themselves to Banks
already chartered. In his opinion the whole object of the
resolutions was to establish a Bank of deposit for the
Government. As the Minister of Finance intended to make the
offices, offices for the issue and redemption of Dominion notes,
they would have to have on hand the specie necessary for that
redemption, and he also proposed that they should open Banks for
Dominion stock, and that they should also be Banks of Deposit;
and in fact they were banks of issue, the only difference being that
in the mode of dealing with the sums received as deposits. He
certainly had not anticipated the nature of the resolutions, and
although there would be a future opportunity of discussing the
matter, he felt it his duty to point out that the proposal was the
establishment of Institutions having all the characteristics of a
Bank of Issue except the name.

Hon. Mr. DORION said that as the Banks in Quebec had been
well managed hitherto, as there were no complaints, as they had
always paid the highest interest that could be obtained to their
depositors, and at the same time had distributed larger sums among
the Charitable Institutions, he did not see that the Government were
in any way called upon to interfere. And as to the argument that the
only security consisted in the character of the Trustees, he replied
that hitherto that security had always been found sufficient. The two
principal objects at present attained by these Banks, the payment of
the highest possible rate of interest to depositors, and the
distribution of a large sum among charitable institutions, would not
be nearly so well secured by any of the alterations proposed by the
Minister of Finance. If the Banks became incorporated with
chartered Banks the interest would be reduced and the surplus
applied to the benefit of the chartered banks, while if they became
Government banks the Government would have the sole power of
fixing the interest, and would appropriate the surplus.

He was glad, however, to see that it was not proposed that the
surplus which some of the banks had accumulated should, on the
banks becoming incorporated, go into the pockets of the
corporators, as had been the case in a measure formerly submitted,
but that it should go to the purpose for which it was originally
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intended—namely to charitable institutions. He thought the scheme
proposed shewed a desire on the part of the Government to get
control of all the spare funds in the Provinces. He had no objection
to the rules as to returns being made more stringent, but he certainly
thought that it would be much better to leave the institutions alone.

Hon. Mr. HOLTON asked the Minister of Finance whether he
intended to meet the very strong point made by the hon. member for
Sherbrooke, with reference to the proposed establishment of Sub-
Treasuries, which his hon. friend had characterised as meaning in
fact a bank of issue.

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS was certainly not aware that the
hon. member for Sherbrooke had made any ‘‘strong point,”” as he
thought his hon. friend was the last in the House who could make a
charge on the ground of the supposed establishment of a bank of
issue, for his hon. friend had made much greater strides in that
direction than he (Hon. Sir Francis Hincks) had ever made. His hon.
friend had once attempted to establish such a bank, while he (Hon.
Sir Francis Hincks) had always considered that the country was not
prepared for it.

Hon. Sir A.T. GALT: Are you going to do it now?

Hon. Sir FRANCIS HINCKS: No. He entirely denied that the
resolutions he had moved could in any way be construed to
assimilate to a Government Bank of Issue. The amount of notes
which the Government could issue was already prescribed by law,
and it was neither the intention nor the desire of Government to
seek an increase of that amount. His object was to devise ways and
means of getting circulation about equal to that they had had
through the Bank of Montreal, and he could say with the utmost
sincerity that in bringing forward the resolutions under discussion,
the Government had no desire whatever to endeavour to establish
what the hon. member had called a Bank of Issue, or to force the
circulation of Dominion No